
 
 
 
 
 
 Date: 24 May 2006 
 
 
TO: 
 
 
TO: 

All Members of the Executive 
FOR ATTENDANCE 
 
All Other Members of the Council 
FOR INFORMATION 

  

 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the EXECUTIVE to be 
held in the GUILDHALL, ABINGDON on Friday, 2nd June, 2006 at 
2.30 pm. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
Terry Stock 
Chief Executive  
 
 

Members are reminded of the provisions contained in Part 2 of the Local Code of Conduct, and Standing 
Order 34 regarding the declaration of Personal and Prejudicial Interests. 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
Open to the Public including the Press 
 

A large print version of this agenda is available.  Any background 
papers referred to may be inspected by prior arrangement. Contact 
Steve Culliford, Democratic Services Officer on telephone number 
(01235) 540307. 
 
  
Map and Vision   
 

(Page 9) 
 

A map showing the location of the venue for this meeting, together with a copy the Council Vision is 
attached.   
 
 
STANDING ITEMS  
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence  
 

 
 

 To receive apologies for absence.   

 



Executive  Friday, 2nd June, 2006   
 

 
2. Minutes  
 

 
 

 To adopt and sign as a correct record the public minutes of the meeting of the Executive held 
on 5 and 17 May 2006, (previously circulated).   
 

3. Declarations of Interest  
 

 
 

 To receive any declarations of Personal or Personal and Prejudicial Interests in respect of items 
on the agenda for this meeting.   
 
In accordance with Part 2 of the Local Code of Conduct and the provisions of Standing Order 
34, any Member with a personal interest must disclose the existence and nature of that interest 
to the meeting prior to the matter being debated.  Where that personal interest is also a 
prejudicial interest, then the Member must withdraw from the room in which the meeting is 
being held and not seek improperly to influence any decision about the matter unless he/she 
has obtained a dispensation from the Standards Committee. 
 

4. Urgent Business and Chair's Announcements  
 

 
 

 To receive notification of any matters which the Chair determines should be considered as 
urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the matters urgent, and to 
receive any announcements from the Chair. 
 

5. Statements and Petitions from the Public Under Standing Order 32  
 

 
 

 Any statements and/or petitions from the public under Standing Order 32 will be made or 
presented at the meeting.   
 

6. Questions from the Public Under Standing Order 32  
 

 
 

 Any questions from members of the public under Standing Order 32 will be asked at the 
meeting. 
 

7. Referral under the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules or the Budget and Policy 
Framework Procedure Rules  

 

 
 

 Call-In of Executive Decision – Internal Audit Plan 2005/06 Outturn 
 
The Executive will recall that its decisions in respect of the Internal Audit Plan 2005/06 Outturn 
(minutes Ex.304 and 307) were called in by the Scrutiny Committee. The call-in meeting was 
held on 18 May 2006 and after considering the matter further, the Scrutiny Committee resolved 
that it had no more concerns about the Executive’s decision.  However, the Committee 
resolved: 
 

that the Executive be recommended to request a progress report to its July 2006 
meeting on the following improvements detailed in Paragraph 9 of report 287/05: 
(a) The full implementation of the Debt Strategy, which is essential to achieving and 

maintaining robust control over debt. 
(b) The review of the Council’s Risk Registers following the senior management 

restructure, and the production of Business Continuity Plans. 
(c) Improvements in reconciliation of income and the resolution & ownership of 

discrepancies.   
 



Executive  Friday, 2nd June, 2006   
 
8. Referrals from the Overview and Scrutiny Committees and Other Committees  
 

 
 

 (a) Notice of Motion – Referred from Council 17 May 2006 
 

At its meeting held on 17 May 2006. the Council received the following motion and 
referred it to the Executive for determination: 
 

Motion to be proposed by Councillor Peter Saunders, seconded by Councillor Robert 
Sharp: 
 

“This Council requests the Executive to reconsider how rural parishes can get fairer 
funding from the Vale for street cleansing and grass cutting”.  
 
With the agreement of the proposer and seconder, this item has been deferred until the 
next meeting of the Executive on 7 July 2006 in order to allow further information to be 
collated to assist the consideration of this matter.  
 

(b) Major and Minor Planning Applications Improvement Plan - Referred from the 
Development Control Committee 22 May 2006 
 
The Development Control Committee considered the report 04/06 of the Deputy Director 
(Planning and Community Strategy) which also set out the implications of the Council 
being included on the list of Planning Standards Authorities for processing Major and Minor 
planning applications.  The Committee resolved as follows: 

 
(a) that the Executive be recommended to agree the proposed Improvement Plan and 

Trajectory, amended to include the following:  
 (1)       the comments of the Scrutiny Committee, namely the inclusion of an 

additional bullet point in Action 4 of the Improvement Plan specifying that 
all consultees are to be urged to respond within the statutory deadlines; 

 (2)  revised deadlines for outstanding targets. 
  
(b) that the Executive be asked to endorsed that the Officers be requested to put in 

place measures to enable the monitoring of the planning process in respect of 
major applications to enable the reasons for delay to be readily identifiable. 

  
(c) that the Executive be asked to consider whether the Council’s internal 

procedures in terms of managing vacancies and recruitment have any adverse 
impact on performance in determining major and minor planning applications.   

 
9. Items Deferred from the Previous Meeting  
 

 
 

 None 
 

10. Financial Monitoring  
 

 (Pages 10 - 12) 
 

 Members are requested to consider any significant budget variances and any requests for 
virement or permanent budget adjustment. 
 
 

KEY DECISIONS  
 
 

11. Forward Plan  
 

 (Pages 13 - 16) 
 

 To receive the Forward Plan containing Executive decisions to be taken from June to 



Executive  Friday, 2nd June, 2006   
 

September 2006.   
 
Recommendation 
 
that the Forward Plan be received.   
 
 

OTHER MATTERS  
 
 

12. Corporate Governance Quarterly Report  
 

 (Pages 17 - 73) 
 

 To receive and consider report 11/06 of the Directors' Group.   
 
Introduction and Report Summary 
 
To receive the corporate governance report for the fourth quarter of 2005/06. 
 
The Contact Officer for this report is Tim Sadler, Strategic Director (01235) 540360. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is recommended to resolve that: 
(a)  the Directors’ Group Corporate Governance Report for the fourth quarter 2005/06 be 

noted 
(b) the current Comprehensive Performance Assessment action plans be closed in their 

entireties and that officers propose updated replacements to the July meeting of the 
Executive. 

(c) staff in the Housing and Benefits teams are congratulated for strong performance 
through out the year. 

(d) staff in the waste management are congratulated on the successful implementation of 
the Brown Wheeled Bin Scheme 

(e) contact centre staff are congratulated on a successful first year. 
(f) The reductions in BVPI 2a (equality standard) and 2b (promotion of race equality) are 

noted with concern and that the Strategic Director, Tim Sadler, and Portfolio holder, Roz 
Smith,  progress the situation as a priority and monitor progress closely 

(g) The success of the change to the Housing Allocations Policy in respect of hostels be 
noted.   

 
13. Vale of White Horse Local Plan to 2011  
 

 (Pages 74 - 103) 
 

 Appended to this agenda is report 7/06 of the Deputy Director (Planning and Community 
Strategy) to the Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and the Development Control 
Committee.  The Advisory Group and the Committee met on 24 May 2006 to consider this 
report in detail and make recommendations to the Executive.  These will circulated separately 
after the despatch of this agenda.   
 
Introduction and Report Summary 
 
Members will recall that following the consideration of the Inspector’s Report on the Local Plan 
2011 the Council’s statement of decisions on the Inspector’s recommendations and its proposed 
modifications to the Local Plan were published for comment between 23 March and 4 May. 
 
The purpose of this report is to consider the representations received and decide whether any 
further modifications should be made before the Local Plan is formally adopted. 
 
Appendix 1 to this report contains a schedule of representations received together with the 



Executive  Friday, 2nd June, 2006   
 

officers’ responses and suggested recommendations to Executive and Council.  Appendix 2 
contains a list of policies subject to proposed modifications where no objections have been 
received.  The Council at its meeting on 22 March agreed that such policies could be given full 
weight when considering planning applications. 
 
The contact officer for this report are Katie Barrett, Section Head: Planning Strategy, contact Tel 
No: 01235 540339 and Grant Audley-Miller, Section Head (Environmental Planning & 
Conservation), contact Tel No. 01235 540343.   
 
Recommendations  
 
That the Advisory Group and the Development Control Committee recommend the Executive to 
recommend Council to: 
 
(i) note the representations received on the Council’s decisions on the Inspector’s 

recommendations and the proposed modifications to the Local Plan and agree the officers’ 
observations and recommendations; 

 
(ii) accept there is no justification for making further substantive changes to the Local Plan 

which would require the publication of further proposed modifications; 
 
(iii) delegate authority to the Deputy Director (Planning and Community Strategy) to make 

minor editorial changes and up-dates to the Local Plan prior to adoption; 
 
(iv) adopt the Local Plan as proposed to be modified and authorise officers to give notice of 

this decision and take the remaining necessary steps in accordance with the regulations. 
 

14. Formal Consultation on the draft South East Plan Submitted to the Government  
 

 (Pages 104 - 115) 
 

 Appended to this agenda is report 8/06 of the Deputy Director (Planning and Community 
Strategy) to the Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and the Development Control 
Committee.  The Advisory Group and the Committee met on 24 May 2006 to consider this 
report in detail and make recommendations to the Executive.  These will circulated separately 
after the dispatch of this agenda.   
 
Introduction and Report Summary 
 
The South East England Regional Assembly (SEERA) submitted the draft Plan for the South East 
to Government in March this year.  It is the Regional Spatial Strategy for the South East and sets 
out how the region will develop to 2026.  It follows extensive public consultation – this Council 
having commented on the emerging plan in March 2005 and the draft housing figures in October 
2005.  When approved, the South East Plan will replace current regional guidance (RPG9) and the 
Oxfordshire Structure Plan, and will become part of the development plan for the district.  It will 
form the context within which the Council’s Local Development Framework (LDF) will be prepared 
and will be a significant material consideration when planning applications are determined.  It will 
provide the context for other key regional strategies and incorporate the regional transport 
strategy.  The closing date for comments is 23rd June 2006.   
 
All Members of the Council have been sent an Executive summary of the draft South East Plan.  
Copies of all the documents submitted including the full draft plan, pre-submission consultation 
statement, sustainability appraisal, implementation plan and monitoring framework are available in 
the local services points in Abingdon and Wantage, the Council Office in Faringdon and the 
Members Lounge in Abbey House. 
 
This report summarises the key features of the draft plan as they affect the Vale and outlines a 
proposed response from the Council.  Section 4 of this report outlines and comments on the main 
features of the region-wide policies and section 5 focuses on the policies for Central Oxfordshire 



Executive  Friday, 2nd June, 2006   
 

and the housing figures for the Vale of White Horse.  A report on the South East Plan incorporating 
where appropriate the views of the Advisory Group and Development Control Committee will be 
considered by Executive on 2 June and Council on 14 June.  Relevant sections of the draft Plan 
have been circulated to assistant and deputy directors and a workshop of officers held to help 
formulate the Council response. 
 
The Key dates for the next steps of the South East Plan are as follows: 
 
31 August 2006 - the Panel publishes matters to be discussed at the Examination in Public and 

the participants to be invited 
End of September - comments on matters and participants due 
23 October  - final list of matters and participants published 
9 November - participants’ statements to be submitted 
28 November - Examination in Public starts 
28 November -15 December - regional and general matters to be discussed 
16 January – 30 March 2007 - sub-regional matters to be discussed 
27 February – 9 March - Gatwick, London Fringe, Western Corridor, Oxfordshire and Milton 

Keynes and Aylesbury Vale sub regions to be discussed 
End of July 2007 - Panel Report due 
 
The contact officer for this report is Katie Barrett, Section Head (Planning Strategy) telephone 
number 01235 540339 
 
Recommendation 
 
that the Executive recommends Council to make representations on the South East Plan as set 
out in Sections 4 and 5 of this report. 
 

15. Local Development Framework - Statement of Community Involvement  
 

 (Pages 116 - 134) 
 

 Appended to this agenda is report 9/06 of the Strategic Director to the Strategic and Local 
Planning Advisory Group, which met on 24 May 2006 to consider this report in detail and make 
recommendations to the Executive.  These will circulated separately after the dispatch of this 
agenda.   
 
Introduction and Report Summary 
 
The Statement of Community Involvement was submitted to the Secretary of State on the 10th 
March 2006 and placed on deposit until 21st April 2006.  This report summarises the 
representations received during the deposit period and Appendix A sets out the recommended 
response of the Council to the representations for consideration by the Inspector at the 
Examination. 
 
The Contact Officer for this report is Grant Audley-Miller, Section Head (Environmental Planning 
& Conservation) 01235 540343. 
 
Recommendations  
 
That the Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group recommend the Executive to: 
 
(i) Note the representations received in response to the submission of the Statement of 

Community Involvement, 
 
(ii) Forward Appendix A to the Planning Inspectorate as the Council’s response to the issues 

raised by the representations and possible changes to the final Statement of Community 
Involvement that would improve the document. 

 



Executive  Friday, 2nd June, 2006   
 

 
16. Major and Minor Planning Applications Improvement Plan  
 

 (Pages 135 - 145) 
 

 To receive and consider report 12/06 of the Strategic Director.   
 
Introduction and Report Summary 
 
This report considers the implications of the Council being included on the list of Planning 
Standards Authorities for processing Major and Minor planning applications.  Historical and current 
performance for processing all planning applications are considered, and an Improvement Plan is 
proposed in relation to Major and Minor applications. 
 
The Contact Officer for this report is Mike Gilbert, Development Control Manager, telephone 
(01235) 547681. 
 
Recommendation  
 
It is recommended that the proposed Improvement Plan and trajectory, as appended to this report, 
be agreed.   
 

17. CCTV Service  
 

 (Pages 146 - 149) 
 

 To receive and consider report 13/06 of the Strategic Director.   
 
Introduction and Report Summary 
 
The Executive will be aware that the 2006/7 budget contained two commitments to make 
savings within CCTV, these are; 
 
The merging of the current out-of-hours Duty Officer system with CCTV; 
The deletion of the post of CCTV Manager. 
 
This report recommends decisions necessary to achieve these commitments. 
 
The contact officer for this report is Paul Staines, Assistant Director (Housing and Community 
Safety) tel. 01235-547621. 
 
Recommendations 
 
That the Executive agree to the proposals to merge the Duty Officer system with CCTV and 
delegate to the Assistant Director ( Housing and Community Safety) the task of introducing this 
by September 2006. 
 
The Executive recommend to PRAC the deletion of the post of CCTV Manager from the   
current staff structure and the creation of the post of CCTV Supervisor with effect from 
30/06/2006. 
 
 

18. Financial Services Update and Appointment of Joint Head of Finance  
 

 
 

 To receive an oral report from the Strategic Director.   
 

19. Local Government Review - Unitary Authorities  
 

 (Pages 150 - 151) 
 



Executive  Friday, 2nd June, 2006   
 
 To note that the attached press release was issued by the Leader of the Council on Thursday 

18 May 2006 in conjunction with South Oxfordshire District Council.   
 
Recommendation 
 
that the action of the Leader of the Council, in issuing the attached press release, be endorsed.   
 

20. Local Area Agreement  
 

 
 

 To note that the Local Area Agreement for Oxfordshire has not yet been signed by Oxfordshire 
County Council and the Government Office for the South East.  The agreement, setting out final 
targets, is scheduled for conclusion by the end of June 2006.   
 

21. Exclusion of the Public, including the Press  
 

 
 

 The Chair to move that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public, including the press, be excluded from the remainder of the meeting to prevent the 
disclosure to them of exempt information, as defined in Section 100(I) and Part 1 of Schedule 
12A, as amended, to the Act when the following items are considered: 
 
Item 22  Minutes 

(Category 1 - Information relating to any individual.) 
(Category 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information.) 

 
Item 23  Property Matters  
   (Category 3) 
 
 

EXEMPT INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 100A(4) OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972  
 

 
 

STANDING ITEMS  
 
 

22. Minutes  
 

 
 

 To adopt and sign as a correct record the Exempt minutes of the meeting of the Executive held 
on 5 May 2006, (previously circulated). 
 
 

OTHER MATTERS  
 
 

23. Property Matters  
 

 (Pages 152 - 157) 
 

 To consider any property matters.   
 

 
 



Agenda Annex

Page 9



Agenda Item 10

Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Agenda Item 11

Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\5\9\AI00003956\CorporateGovernanceReportReport0.doc    

 - 1 - 

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL      Report No 11/06 
   Wards Affected: ALL 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS 
TO THE EXECUTIVE 

2nd JUNE 2006  

Corporate Governance Report Fourth Quarter (January, February, March) 2005/06 

 
 

1.0 Introduction and Report Summary 
 
1.1 To receive the corporate governance report for the fourth quarter of 2005/06. 
 
1.2 The Contact Officer for this report is Tim Sadler, Strategic Director (01235) 540360. 
 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
 The Executive is recommended to resolve that: 

(a)  the Directors’ Group Corporate Governance Report for the fourth quarter 2005/06 be 
noted 

(b) the current Comprehensive Performance Assessment action plans be closed in their 
entireties and that officers propose updated replacements to the July meeting of the 
Executive. 

(c) staff in the Housing and Benefits teams are congratulated for strong performance through 
out the year. 

(d) staff in the waste management are congratulated on the successful implementation of the 
Brown Wheeled Bin Scheme 

(e) contact centre staff are congratulated on a successful first year. 
(f) The reductions in BVPI 2a (equality standard) and 2b (promotion of race equality) are 

noted with concern and that the Strategic Director, Tim Sadler, and Portfolio holder, Roz 
Smith,  progress the situation as a priority and monitor progress closely 

(g) The success of the change to the Housing Allocations Policy in respect of hostels be 
noted. 

 
3.0 Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies 
 
 This report 

(a) relates to the entire Vision Statement. 
(b) relates to the Best Value Performance Plan and Corporate Plan and  
(c) Complies with Corporate Planning Timetable.  
 

4.0 Background and Supporting Information 
 

4.1 The Directors’ “Corporate Governance Report” for the quarter looks at the key areas of:- 

• Key issues and projects 

• CPA Improvement Action Plan monitoring 
   Corporate 
   Housing 
   Open Spaces 
   Implementing Electronic Government (IEG) 

• Best Value Performance Indicators 

• Local Performance Indicators linked to priorities for improvement 

• Financial Information 

Agenda Item 12

Page 17



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\5\9\AI00003956\CorporateGovernanceReportReport0.doc    

 - 2 - 

• Key staffing data 
 
4.2 Key Issues 

The key issues list has been updated and is reproduced in Appendix 1.  There are no significant 
issues to report beyond this.  In order to produce the Best Value Performance Plan for 2006/7 
and update the Corporate Plan steps will be taken to close down as many outstanding key issues 
between this report and the next.  The list will then be updated with new key issues identified in 
the service and budget process. 
 

4.3 CPA Improvement Action Plans 
These have been updated and are attached.  Significant progress has now been made against 
these action plans.  It is proposed that these action plans now be closed down and new plans be 
brought to the Executive reflecting that progress and those significant issues identified in the 
various recent reports from the Audit Commission which help the Council in focusing on new 
priority development areas. 
  

4.4 Best Value Performance Indicators 
Of particular note are:- 
 
BVPIs 2a (Equality Standard for Local Government) and 2b (duty to promote race equality 
checklist score), due to a lack of maintenance of existing procedures, for example on review of 
the Corporate Equalities Plan, our performance has dropped over the last year.  Members of the 
Executive will be aware that there are plans in place to reverse this trend. 
 
BVPIs 183a (Average length of stay in bed and breakfast) and 183b (average length of stay in a 
hostel – weeks), Continued strong performance in respect of use of bed and breakfast.  Much 
improved performance in respect of hostels reflecting the change in policy adopted last year 
which restricted the period of offer to three months.  It is your officers’ view that this change has 
had the desired effect with no noticeable negative impacts and that the policy should remain in its 
amended form. 
 
None of the housing BVPIs are now in the bottom quartile, a substantial reversal of our position at 
the time of the CPA inspection. 
 
Benefits BVPIs show continued high level performance despite the additional work and the 
acknowledge risk of staff uncertainty around the shared service organisation and the transfer of 
some work to Capita. 
 
BVPI 82 (Recycled and composted waste) The impact of the introduction of the Brown Wheeled 
Bin scheme can be seen with the local target being exceeded. 
 
BVPI 166 Environmental Health Checklist remains an issue for the Council.  This has been 
investigated by the Scrutiny Committee and an action plan has now been approved to remedy the 
situation. 
 

4.5 Local Performance Indicators 
 

Affordable Housing – the local performance indicators show continued strong performance in the 
last quarter and for the year as a whole.  There is an issue around the balance of rented to 
shared ownership provided in the context of the draft Affordable Housing Supplementary 
Planning Guidance and the targets the Council has set.  This essentially relates to site viability 
and the amount of public subsidy available.  Where there are viability issues the level of rented 
accommodation provided is reduced and replaced with shared ownership which requires less 

Page 18



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\5\9\AI00003956\CorporateGovernanceReportReport0.doc    

 - 3 - 

subsidy.  We are investigating a number of possibilities in this respect including the Expression of 
Interest in Private Finance Initiative funding. 
 
Access to services – the contact centre has now been running for a year and has dealt with over 
67,000 contacts.  The target for the time to answer calls has been missed.  However, it should be 
borne in mind that the Council’s target exceeds the industry norm of 80% in 20 seconds and 
hence is still good performance.  Of particular note is the abandoned call rate which has been 
reduced month on month to a record low of just 2%.  Reducing the number of abandoned calls 
was a key driver for the introduction of the contact centre. 
 

4.6 Financial Issues 
 
There is no financial summary in this quarter due to the close down of accounts.  A full report will 
be made to the next meeting of the Executive. 
 

4.7 Staffing Issues 
 
See commentary on sickness and turnover summaries. Turnover shows a third successive year 
of improvement.  Sickness levels are being investigated by the Scrutiny Committee.  

 
4.8 Risk Management 
 
 The review of the corporate risk register is due in the next quarter. 

 
Terry Stock 
Tim Sadler 

Steve Bishop 
Brian McAndrew 

DIRECTORS GROUP 
 
 

Background Papers: Corporate Governance Report of the Directors Group  
 

Page 19



D
:\

m
o
d

er
n

g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o

cs
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5
6

\K
e
y
Is

su
es

R
ep

o
rt

0
.d

o
c 

 
 

 
 

- 
1
 -

 

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 –

 K
E

Y
 I
S

S
U

E
S

 A
N

D
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 

 
 

4
th

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0
0
5
-0

6
 

 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 
L

e
a

d
 

M
e
m

b
e

r 

L
e

a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
s
 

N
e

x
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
 

1
. 

H
E

L
P

 F
A

C
IL

IT
A

T
E

 
T

H
E

 P
R

O
V

IS
IO

N
 

O
F

 A
F

F
O

R
D

A
B

L
E

 
H

O
U

S
IN

G
  

  T
D

V
 

  T
S

/P
S

 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 d

a
ta

 h
e

ld
 a

n
d

 
it
s
 c

o
lla

ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 

a
n

d
 n

e
g

o
ti
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

t 
n

e
w

 
d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 n

e
e
d

s
 s

u
rv

e
y
 

re
fr

e
s
h

e
d
 f

o
r 

L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

 
E

n
q

u
ir

y
. 

A
g

re
e

d
 i
n
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
 t

o
 j
o

in
t 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 N

e
e

d
s
 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

O
x
o

n
. 

 M
o

n
th

ly
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
t 

a
n
a

ly
s
is

 n
o

w
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

. 
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
g
re

e
d

 t
o
 t

a
k
e
 p

a
rt

 
in

 A
C

T
V

a
R

 T
h
a

m
e

s
 V

a
lle

y
 

S
u

rv
e

y
 o

f 
g

y
p

s
y
 a

n
d

 
tr

a
v
e

lle
r 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s
. 

 P
ro

je
c
t 

T
e

a
m

 f
o

rm
e

d
. 

 
S

p
e

c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

a
n
d

 t
e

n
d

e
re

d
. 

 O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 n

o
m

in
a
te

d
 a

s
 

p
a
th

fi
n

d
e

r 
a

re
a

 f
o
r 

H
M

A
 

 P
ro

je
c
t 

te
a

m
 f

o
rm

e
d

 
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 M

a
rk

e
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

s
ta

rt
s
 S

u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0

6
 

 

     C
L

O
S

E
D

 M
A

Y
 0

6
 

  

Page 20



D
:\

m
o
d

er
n

g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o

cs
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5
6

\K
e
y
Is

su
es

R
ep

o
rt

0
.d

o
c 

 
 

 
 

- 
2
 -

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

L
e

a
d

 
M

e
m

b
e

r 

L
e

a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
s
 

N
e

x
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
 

2
. 

 T
D

V
 

 T
S

/R
H

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 S

u
p

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c
e

 
(S

P
G

)o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 

  

In
s
p

e
c
to

r’
s
 R

e
p
o

rt
 J

a
n

 0
6
  

R
e

v
is

e
d

 d
ra

ft
 o

u
t 
fo

r 
c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 A

p
ri

l/
M

a
y
 0

6
 

C
o

n
s
id

e
r 

c
o

n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 

re
s
p
o

n
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
g

re
e

 a
n

d
 

a
d
o

p
t 

re
v
is

e
d
 v

e
rs

io
n

 J
u

ly
 0

6
 

 

3
. 

M
D

V
 

T
S

/P
S

 
In

tr
o

d
u

c
e
 l
o

c
a

l 
p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 t

o
 

tr
a

c
k
 t

h
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 
re

s
p
e

c
t 

o
f 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 

F
ir

s
t 

p
u
b

lic
a

ti
o

n
 3

rd
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

0
0

5
/0

6
. 

 
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 O

x
o

n
 

s
ta

rt
e

d
 1

/4
/0

6
 

  C
L

O
S

E
D

 M
A

Y
 0

6
 

4
. 

 M
D

V
 

 T
S

/P
S

 
P

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 o

u
tl
in

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

c
a
s
e

 t
o

 r
e

-m
o

d
e

l 
h
o

s
te

l 
a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o
n

 i
n

 t
im

e
 f

o
r 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 2

0
0

6
/0

7
 

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r/
P

o
rt

fo
lio

 h
o

ld
e

r 
b

ri
e

fe
d

. 
 I

n
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n
 C

a
p

it
a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

  

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 o
f 

fe
a

s
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
y
 

O
c
t.

0
6

 

5
. 

 M
D

V
 

 T
S

/P
S

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 H

o
s
te

l 
a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 

p
o

lic
y
 S

e
p
t 

0
5

 
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 e

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e
  

D
e

a
lt
 w

it
h

 i
n

 t
h

is
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 

C
L

O
S

E
 

6
. 

 
 T

D
V

 
 T

S
/R

H
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a
n

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 
a
g

re
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t 

(G
O

S
E

) 
fo

r 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

O
n

 t
a
rg

e
t 

  C
L

O
S

E
D

 M
A

Y
 0

6
 

7
. 

C
R

E
A

T
E

 A
 

C
L

E
A

N
E

R
, 

S
A

F
E

R
 

A
N

D
 H

E
A

L
T

H
IE

R
 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 &
 

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 

 T
D

V
 

 S
B

/D
S

 
A

c
h

ie
v
e

 R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 R

a
te

 o
f 

2
5

%
 f

ro
m

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 g

re
e

n
 b

o
x
 

a
n

d
 b

ri
n

g
 s

c
h
e

m
e

s
  

 

 R
a

te
 i
s
 u

p
 o

n
 2

0
0
4

/0
5

 b
u

t 
w

a
s
te

 a
ri

s
in

g
 u

p
 t

o
o
. 

 
C

le
a

n
a

w
a

y
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 

c
o
n

s
tr

a
in

t 
(n

o
w

 r
e

s
o

lv
e

d
) 

le
d

 t
o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

re
v
is

io
n

 t
o
 

2
4
%

. 
 L

a
te

s
t 

q
u
a

rt
e

r 
b

e
lo

w
 

 R
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 P

la
n

 2
0

0
6

 –
 0

9
 t
o

 
b

e
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 i
n

 J
u

n
e

 0
6

  

Page 21



D
:\

m
o
d

er
n

g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o

cs
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5
6

\K
e
y
Is

su
es

R
ep

o
rt

0
.d

o
c 

 
 

 
 

- 
3
 -

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

L
e

a
d

 
M

e
m

b
e

r 

L
e

a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
s
 

N
e

x
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
 

ta
rg

e
t 

b
y
 2

%
 

8
. 

 T
D

V
 

 S
B

/D
S

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
  

R
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 R

a
te

 
b

y
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
2

%
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 
in

tr
o
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
 p

ilo
t 

c
o
m

p
o

s
ti
n

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
  

 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
s
 

c
o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

0
5

. 
D

e
la

y
 l
e

d
 t

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

re
v
is

io
n
 

to
 1

%
 

4
K

 c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 b

y
 

J
a
n

u
a

ry
 0

6
 a

h
e
a

d
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

t.
  

L
a
te

s
t 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

a
b

o
v
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

b
y 

0
.5

9
%

 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 e

x
p
a

n
s
io

n
 (

in
te

ri
m

) 
F

e
b

 0
6

; 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

e
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 

A
p

ri
l 
0
6

; 
c
o

m
m

e
n
c
e

d
 

9
. 

 T
D

V
 

 T
S

/R
H

 
A

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h
e

 m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
 i
n
 

th
e

 L
o
c
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 2

0
0

5
-0

8
  

 

C
le

a
r 

m
ile

s
to

n
e
s
 a

n
d

 
tr

a
c
k
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 

S
L

A
G

 &
 E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 

C
L

O
S

E
 

1
0

. 
 T

D
V

 
 T

S
/R

H
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 
p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

P
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

 I
n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

e
n

s
u

re
 a

ll 
a

re
 o

u
t 

o
f 

b
o

tt
o
m

 
¼

 a
n

d
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

M
in

o
r 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
B

V
P

I’
s
 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
. 

 D
ra

ft
 I

m
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

ra
ft

e
d

 a
n

d
 

a
p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

 
H

o
ld

e
r 

&
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 M

a
rc

h
/A

p
ri

l 
0
6

 

P
la

n
 b

e
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

. 
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d
 i
n

 
s
e
rv

ic
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
, 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 G
o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
R

e
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
. 

1
1

. 
M

D
V

 
T

S
/P

S
 

In
tr

o
d

u
c
e
 a

 t
w

ic
e

 a
 y

e
a

r 
u
p

d
a

te
 o

n
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 

S
a

fe
ty

 f
o

r 
s
ta

ff
/m

e
m

b
e
rs

/p
a
rt

n
e

rs
 o

n
 

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 

F
ir

s
t 

e
d
it
io

n
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
0

5
 

S
e

c
o

n
d

 e
d

it
io

n
 i
n

 
p

re
p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 

1
2

. 
J
H

 
S

B
/H

G
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 L
e

is
u

re
, 

C
u

lt
u
re

 
a
n

d
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o

n
a
l 
F

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 

b
y
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
a
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

fu
tu

re
 u

s
e

 o
f:

  

•
 

T
u

g
w

e
ll 

F
ie

ld
s
 

•
 

S
to

c
k
h
a

m
 P

a
rk

 

T
u

g
w

e
ll 

F
ie

ld
 

•
 

C
o

u
n

ty
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 

•
 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

 
 S

to
c
k
h

a
m

 P
a

rk
  

•
 

S
p
e

c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 

•
 

T
e
n

d
e

r 

C
o

m
m

e
n

c
e
 s

c
h
e

m
e

s
 

T
u

g
w

e
ll 

F
ie

ld
 -

 s
u
b

je
c
t 

to
 

c
o
u

n
ty

 d
e

c
is

io
n

, 
e

a
rl

ie
s
t 

s
ta

rt
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 L

a
te

 2
0

0
6

. 
 S

to
c
k
h

a
m

 P
a

rk
 –

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 

s
p
e

c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 J
u

ly
. 

 E
a

rl
ie

s
t 

s
ta

rt
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 O

c
t.

0
6

 

Page 22



D
:\

m
o
d

er
n

g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o

cs
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5
6

\K
e
y
Is

su
es

R
ep

o
rt

0
.d

o
c 

 
 

 
 

- 
4
 -

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

L
e

a
d

 
M

e
m

b
e

r 

L
e

a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
s
 

N
e

x
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
 

•
 

M
a

b
ly

 W
a
y
 

 
•
 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 

 M
a

b
ly

 W
a

y
 –

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
r 

d
e
c
is

io
n

 o
n

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
 

  M
a

b
ly

 W
a

y
 –

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 

d
e
c
is

io
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
G

ro
v
e

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 s

it
e

. 
  

 
1

3
. 

T
D

V
 

S
B

/D
S

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 o
u

r 
w

a
s
te

 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
e
n

t 
B

e
s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
 –

 
im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

c
ti
o

n
 

P
la

n
 

B
V

R
 I

m
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 

b
e
in

g
 d

ra
ft

e
d

. 
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 c

o
n

s
u
lt
e

d
 a

n
d

 
c
o
n

fi
rm

e
d

 b
y
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e

r 
0
5

 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

. 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

1
.3

 W
a
s
te

 &
 R

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
- 

O
W

P
 

d
e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 b
e

in
g

 
in

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
; 

1
.4

 S
e
rv

ic
e

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 –

 
d

e
la

y
 b

y
 2

 m
o

n
th

s
 

1
.5

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
- 

V
V

P
5

 
s
u
rv

e
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

1
.7

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

M
o

n
it
o
ri

n
g

 –
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
im

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 
1

.8
 L

P
I 

R
e
v
ie

w
 –

 B
u

lk
y
 

w
a

s
te

 P
I 

a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 

re
fl
e
c
t 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

d
v
ic

e
 

1
.1

0
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

(s
e

e
 K

e
y
 

Is
s
u

e
 1

8
) 

1
.1

1
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
A

s
s
is

te
d

 
C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 –

 V
V

P
5
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 a

w
a

it
e

d
 

1
.1

2
 E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a

n
d

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 –

 
A

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 i
n
 d

ra
ft

 

      1
.3

  
R

e
p
o

rt
 t

o
 M

a
rc

h
 0

6
 

E
x
e

c
. 

  1
.4

 D
u

e
 M

a
rc

h
 0

6
 

 1
.5

 R
e

s
u

lt
s
 d

u
e
 M

a
rc

h
 0

6
 

 1
.7

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

  1
.8

 L
P

I 
re

v
ie

w
 d

u
e
 M

a
rc

h
 0

6
 

   1
.1

1
 R

e
s
u

lt
s
 d

u
e

 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 
0

6
 

  1
.1

2
 E

x
p

e
c
te

d
 J

u
n
e

 0
6

 
  

Page 23



D
:\

m
o
d

er
n

g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o

cs
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5
6

\K
e
y
Is

su
es

R
ep

o
rt

0
.d

o
c 

 
 

 
 

- 
5
 -

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

L
e

a
d

 
M

e
m

b
e

r 

L
e

a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
s
 

N
e

x
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
 

1
.1

6
 W

M
 T

e
a
m

 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

c
a

p
a
c
it
y
 –

 
In

te
ri

m
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
te

d
 t

o
 e

n
d

 
M

a
rc

h
. 

1
.1

6
 R

e
v
ie

w
 M

a
rc

h
 0

6
 

1
4

. 
J
P

 
T

S
/R

H
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 
c
o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n

 w
h

ic
h

 p
ro

te
c
ts

 
th

e
 i
n

te
re

s
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 V

a
le

 i
n

 
th

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
re

g
io

n
a

l 
s
p

a
ti
a

l 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 S

o
u

th
 E

a
s
t 

a
n

d
 

S
o

u
th

 W
e

s
t 

V
a

le
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 

e
m

e
rg

in
g

 S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t 

P
la

n
 

d
o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

: 
  

P
ro

v
id

e
 V

a
le

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

d
ra

ft
 S

o
u

th
 E

a
s
t 

P
la

n
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
a

n
d

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

d
v
is

o
ry

 
G

ro
u

p
 a

n
d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 (

M
a

y
 0

6
) 

a
n
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 &
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

(J
u

n
e

 0
6

).
 

 
1

5
. 

J
P

 
T

S
/R

H
 

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e
 

V
a

le
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 

e
m

e
rg

in
g

 s
p

a
ti
a

l 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

fo
r 

th
e
 S

o
u

th
 W

e
s
t.

 

V
a

le
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
  

R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
S

p
a
ti
a

l 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 t

o
 

b
e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 a

n
d

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

A
d

v
is

o
ry

 G
ro

u
p

 (
J
u

n
e
 0

6
) 

a
n
d

 E
x
e

c
u
ti
v
e

 (
J
u

ly
 0

6
).

 
 

1
6

. 
J
H

 
S

B
/H

G
 

C
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 

re
v
ie

w
 t

o
 e

n
a

b
le

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
s
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 t
o
 o

p
ti
m

is
e

 
c
o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 n
e

w
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 

le
is

u
re

, 
c
u

lt
u

re
 a

n
d

 
re

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 

D
e

v
e
lo

p
 a

 P
a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 O
p
e

n
 

S
p

a
c
e
s
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 w

h
ic

h
 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 p

la
y
g

ro
u
n

d
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 
 

P
P

G
1

7
 s

u
rv

e
y 

R
e

s
u

lt
s
 t

o
 f

e
e

d
 i
n

to
 

d
e
v
e

lo
p

e
r 

n
e

g
o
ti
a

ti
o

n
s
. 

S
u

rv
e

y
 o

n
g

o
in

g
, 

d
u

e
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 O
c
t.

 0
6
. 

1
7

. 
T

D
V

 
S

B
/D

S
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

C
le

a
n
s
in

g
 -

 
In

v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 w
a

y
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 

R
a

is
e

d
 a

t 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 i
n

 J
u

ly
 0

5
. 

 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r 
s
tr

e
e

t 
C

le
a

n
s
in

g
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 

Page 24



D
:\

m
o
d

er
n

g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o

cs
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5
6

\K
e
y
Is

su
es

R
ep

o
rt

0
.d

o
c 

 
 

 
 

- 
6
 -

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

L
e

a
d

 
M

e
m

b
e

r 

L
e

a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
s
 

N
e

x
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
 

in
c
e

n
ti
v
is

e
 o

u
r 

c
o
n

tr
a

c
to

rs
 t

o
 

h
ig

h
e

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 

In
 O

c
t 

a
n

d
 N

o
v
. 

 A
ll 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

re
v
is

io
n

 t
o

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
b
u

lk
y
 w

a
s
te

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 i
n
 F

e
b

 0
6

; 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
C

le
a

n
lin

e
s
s
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 d
u
e

 J
u

n
e

 0
6

 
 

1
8

. 
T

W
 

S
B

/D
S

 
P

u
b

lis
h
 a

n
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

p
o

lic
y
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u
re

s
 f

o
r 

“e
n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
c
ri

m
e

” 
 

A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

o
lic

y
 o

f 
p

re
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 

p
ro

s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

fl
y
 t

ip
p

in
g

 
o

ff
e

n
c
e
s
. 

F
ix

e
d
 P

e
n

a
lt
y
 P

o
w

e
rs

 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 i
n
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

0
5
. 

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

P
la

n
 d

u
e

 J
u

ly
 0

6
 

 

1
9

. 
J
H

 
S

B
/A

M
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

 S
k
a

te
 P

a
rk

 i
n
 

A
b

in
g

d
o

n
. 

  
 

•
 

D
e

s
ig

n
 s

ta
g
e

 e
n

te
re

d
 

in
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 
y
o

u
th

 g
ro

u
p
 

•
 

T
e
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 

•
 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 

C
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 

s
ta

g
e
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 s

o
o
n

. 
 

S
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

 w
ill

 
b

e
 t

e
n

d
e

re
d

 

2
0

. 
J
H

 
T

S
/T

B
 

A
d

o
p
t 

a
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 

P
o

lic
y
 

 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

D
e

c
. 

0
5

 
T

o
 b

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

p
la

n
 2

0
0
6

/0
7

 

2
1

. 
J
H

 
T

S
/T

W
 

C
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n

’s
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
’s

 s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d
 

in
te

g
ra

te
 w

it
h
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 a

n
d

 
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p
le

s
 P

la
n

 
 

T
h

e
 D

ra
ft

 Y
o

u
th

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

w
e

n
t 

to
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e
 i
n

 M
a
rc

h
 

0
6
. 

  
 

D
ra

ft
 s

tr
a

te
g

y 
fi
n

a
lis

e
d

 i
n
 

a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 r
e

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 o

n
 3

rd
 

M
a

rc
h

. 
 N

o
w

 o
u

t 
to

 p
u

b
lic

 
c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 u

n
ti
l 
1
8

th
 A

u
g
. 

0
6
 

 
2

2
. 

T
D

V
 

S
B

 
F

u
tu

re
 u

s
e

 o
f 

O
ld

 G
a

o
l 

 
R

e
c
e

iv
e

 f
e
a

s
ib

ili
ty

 r
e
p

o
rt

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e
 o

n
c
e

 
o

p
ti
o

n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
is

 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 
 

2
3

. 
IM

P
R

O
V

E
 A

N
D

 
M

O
D

E
R

N
IS

E
 

R
S

 
T

S
/H

B
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e
 i
n

te
g

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h
 b

a
c
k
 

o
ff

ic
e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h
/W

a
s
te

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 

tr
a

n
s
fe

rr
e

d
. 

  

 D
e

c
id

e
 w

h
a

t 
ro

le
 C

a
p

it
a

 m
a

y
 

h
a
v
e

 i
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 M

a
y
 

Page 25



D
:\

m
o
d

er
n

g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o

cs
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5
6

\K
e
y
Is

su
es

R
ep

o
rt

0
.d

o
c 

 
 

 
 

- 
7
 -

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

L
e

a
d

 
M

e
m

b
e

r 

L
e

a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
s
 

N
e

x
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
 

A
C

C
E

S
S

 T
O

 
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 
lo

c
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 p

o
in

ts
 a

n
d
 

c
u
s
to

m
e

r 
c
o

n
ta

c
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
 

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
C

o
n
ta

c
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

a
p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e
. 

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 i
n
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
 

0
6
 

2
4

. 
M

D
V

 
S

B
 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 t
h
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

re
v
e

n
u
e

s
 a

n
d

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 
s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 b

y
 i
n

te
g

ra
ti
n

g
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 r

e
-

e
n

g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
, 

w
o

rk
fl
o

w
 a

n
d

 
c
u
s
to

m
e

r 
c
o

n
ta

c
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
 

(n
o

w
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n

to
 V

a
le

- 
S

o
u

th
 O

x
o

n
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
S

h
a

re
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e

 
p
ro

je
c
t)

 
 

S
u

b
m

it
 b

id
  

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
d

e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

s
u

lt
in

g
 

in
 t

h
e
 t

ra
n

s
fe

r 
o
f 

s
o

m
e

 
s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 C

a
p
it
a

 u
n

d
e

r 
c
o
n

tr
a

c
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 c
re

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
R

id
g

e
w

a
y
 S

h
a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 S
O

D
C

. 
 C

L
O

S
E

D
 

2
5

. 
R

S
 

T
S

/H
B

 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u

s
 

 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
C

o
n
ta

c
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

to
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

 F
e
b

. 
0

6
 

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 M
a

y
 0

6
 

2
8

. 
R

S
 

T
S

/H
B

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
C

o
n
ta

c
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

In
 d

ra
ft

 f
o
rm

, 
d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 

ta
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

 w
it
h
 D

ir
e

c
to

rs
 

a
n
d

 L
e

a
d

e
r 

 C
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
o

n
 3

rd
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 0

6
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
2

n
d
 0

6
 

 C
L

O
S

E
D

 M
A

Y
 0

6
 

2
9

. 
R

S
 

T
S

/H
B

 
In

v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 t
h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
s
h
a

ri
n

g
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
C

o
n
ta

c
t 

C
e

n
tr

e
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 

In
it
ia

l 
ta

lk
s
 w

it
h

 C
o
u

n
ty

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

&
 a

d
jo

in
in

g
 

a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 

 A
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

w
o

rk
s
h

o
p
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

0
5
 

 

     D
e

c
is

io
n
 a

s
 t

o
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
to

 
in

c
lu

d
e

 C
a
p

it
a

 i
n
 

d
e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

–
 J

u
n

e
 0

6
 

Page 26



D
:\

m
o
d

er
n

g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o

cs
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5
6

\K
e
y
Is

su
es

R
ep

o
rt

0
.d

o
c 

 
 

 
 

- 
8
 -

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

L
e

a
d

 
M

e
m

b
e

r 

L
e

a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
s
 

N
e

x
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
 

S
e

c
o

n
d

 w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

 s
e

t 
u

p
 

fo
r 

a
 m

o
re

 f
o

c
u

s
s
e
d

 
e

x
p

lo
ra

ti
o

n
 a

ro
u

n
d
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 
h

ig
h

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
e
g

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
in

g
 

o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 
fr

o
m

 s
h
a

ri
n

g
 b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

. 
 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

n
 b

e
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
. 

 
3

1
. 

J
H

 
T

S
 

V
ie

w
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 o
n

 e
a

s
e
 o

f 
a
c
c
e

s
s
 –

 v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
m

a
rg

in
a

lis
e
d

 g
ro

u
p

s
 

A
w

a
it
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

ro
m

 
n

e
w

ly
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

D
e

la
y
e

d
 p

e
n
d

in
g

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 P

la
n

 
 

3
3

. 
B

U
IL

D
 O

U
R

 
C

A
P

A
C

IT
Y

 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

IA
L

 &
 

O
R

G
A

N
IS

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 

J
P

 
B

M
c
A

 
D

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
a

n
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

 

F
o

llo
w

in
g
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 

c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

 n
e

w
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 s
e

le
c
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 

a
n
d

 i
s
 s

e
t 

fo
r 

d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
 a

t 
th

e
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 o

f 
C

o
u

n
c
il.

 
 In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
 

T
e

a
m

 B
u

ild
in

g
 A

w
a

y
 D

a
y
s
 

n
o

w
 u

n
d
e

rw
a

y.
  

P
h

a
s
e
 1

 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
 

e
n
d

 M
a

y
. 

 F
u

rt
h

e
r 

s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 

a
re

 b
e
in

g
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 
p

la
c
e

 i
n

 J
u

n
e

/J
u

ly
 0

6
. 

 T
h

e
 h

a
n

d
o

v
e

r 
o

f 
C

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 I
n

te
ri
m

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
to

 P
e

rm
a
n

e
n

t 
V

a
le

 
s
ta

ff
. 

 
3

4
. 

R
F

 
T

S
/T

B
 

P
u

b
lis

h
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

o
u

r 
P

a
y
 a

n
d

 W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 

W
o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 

to
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 P

e
o

p
le

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

a
n
d

 P
a

y
 &

 W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

T
h

e
 P

e
o
p

le
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 h

a
s
 

n
o

w
 b

e
e
n

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 
d

e
ta

ile
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
, 

w
h

ic
h

 f
o

rm
 t

h
e
 P

a
y
 &

 
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
, 

a
re

 
b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

Page 27



D
:\

m
o
d

er
n

g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o

cs
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5
6

\K
e
y
Is

su
es

R
ep

o
rt

0
.d

o
c 

 
 

 
 

- 
9
 -

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

L
e

a
d

 
M

e
m

b
e

r 

L
e

a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
s
 

N
e

x
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 

3
5

. 
M

D
V

 
S

B
 

S
tr

e
a
m

lin
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n
ti
n

g
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 
w

o
rk

lo
a

d
 w

h
ils

t 
p

ro
v
id

in
g

 
n
e

c
e

s
s
a
ry

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
c
o
n

tr
o
ls

 (
n

o
w

 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 

in
to

 V
a

le
-S

o
u
th

 O
x
o

n
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l 
S

h
a

re
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
je

c
t)

 
 

W
o
rk

 u
p
 S

h
a

re
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e

 
p

ro
p
o

s
it
io

n
 i
n

c
l.
 n

e
w

 
A

c
c
o

u
n
ta

n
c
y
 u

n
it
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
, 

w
o

rk
in

g
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 &

 
V

a
le

-S
O

D
C

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

je
c
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
. 

 V
a

le
 a

n
d

 S
O

D
C

 w
ill

 
h

a
rm

o
n

is
e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n
g

 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 g

a
in

s
. 

 C
L

O
S

E
D

 

3
6

. 
J
P

 
T

S
/H

B
 

R
e

-c
o

n
fi
rm

 r
o

le
 a

n
d

 
re

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

“C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 C
o

re
” 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

o
u

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

  

B
u

d
g

e
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
it
io

n
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 

re
-a

llo
c
a

te
d

 p
o

s
ts

 t
o

 f
o

rm
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 C
o
re

 
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 F

e
b
.0

6
 

T
o

 b
e

 c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 i
n
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 

o
f 

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o

n
a
l 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

&
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

s
e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a
. 
 R

e
p

o
rt

 i
n

 J
u

n
e
 

o
r 

J
u

ly
 

3
7

. 
R

S
 

T
S

/A
S

 
D

ra
w

 u
p
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 f
ro

m
 

th
e

 P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
H

e
a

lt
h

 
C

h
e

c
k
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
in

 2
0

0
4
 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

n
e

w
 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

H
a

v
e

 e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 I

D
E

A
 t

o
 

w
o

rk
 u

p
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 w
it
h

 u
s
. 

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 a
d
o

p
te

d
 O

c
t.

 
0

5
 

 

N
e

w
 P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

to
 b

e
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

in
 

M
a

y
 0

6
. 

R
e

a
d

y
 i
n

 d
ra

ft
 f

o
rm

. 
 N

o
w

 
J
u
ly

 0
6

 

3
8

. 
R

S
 

T
S

 
R

e
v
ie

w
, 

in
te

g
ra

te
 a

n
d

 
im

p
le

m
e
n

t 
o

u
r 

ri
s
k
 a

n
d

 
p
ro

je
c
t 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 
p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 

 

P
re

lim
in

a
ry

 w
o

rk
 

c
o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 J

u
n
e

 0
5

 
P

e
n

d
in

g
 r

e
-s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 &

 
p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
&

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ti
n

g
 

p
o
s
t 

–
 M

a
y
 0

6
 

R
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

to
 p

o
s
t 

c
o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
. 

3
9

. 
R

S
 

T
S

/S
T

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

b
y
 r

o
lli

n
g

 o
u

t 
p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 t

o
 a

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a
s
 

 

A
u

d
it
 i
n
 N

o
v
. 

0
5

 
 R

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 S
M

G
 o

n
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n

e
s
s
 e

tc
. 

F
e
b

.0
6

 

T
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 
in

 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

re
v
ie

w
 –

 A
p

ri
l 
0

6
. 

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

 C
L

O
S

E
D

 

4
0

. 
R

S
 

T
S

/S
T

 
P

u
b

lis
h
 a

 g
u
id

e
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 
B

e
in

g
 p

ri
n

te
d

 F
e
b

ru
a

ry
 0

6
 

D
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 w

it
h

 T
e
a

m
 B

ri
e

f 

Page 28



D
:\

m
o
d

er
n

g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o

cs
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5
6

\K
e
y
Is

su
es

R
ep

o
rt

0
.d

o
c 

 
 

 
 

- 
1
0

 -
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

L
e

a
d

 
M

e
m

b
e

r 

L
e

a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
s
 

N
e

x
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
 

m
e

m
b
e

rs
 t

o
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 
M

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 V
a
le

 
M

a
rc

h
 0

6
. 

 C
L

O
S

E
D

 M
A

Y
 0

6
 

4
1

. 
R

S
 

T
S

/A
S

 
U

p
d

a
te

 o
u
r 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o
n

s
 

T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

o
 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

m
e
s
 a

n
d

 
p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

  

C
o

n
s
u
lt
a

n
ts

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
. 

 P
ro

je
c
t 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e
d

 M
a

y
 

0
6
 

D
ra

ft
 r

e
p

o
rt

 –
 J

u
n
e

 0
6

 

4
2

. 
J
P

 
T

S
/A

S
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

u
r 

S
ta

n
d

in
g

 O
rd

e
rs

 
a
n

d
 F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
R

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n

s
 i
n

 
lig

h
t 

o
f 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 

In
it
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 u
n

d
e

rw
a

y
. 

C
o

n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n

g
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

 
c
o
m

p
le

te
 

W
o
rk

 n
o
w

 b
e

in
g

 t
a
k
e

n
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 b
y 

A
n

n
 S

a
d
le

r 
a

n
d
 

T
im

 S
a

d
le

r 
w

it
h
 I

D
E

A
 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
. 

 W
ill

 f
o
llo

w
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 
o

f 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 M

a
y
 0

6
 

 
4

3
. 

T
D

V
 

S
B

 
M

e
e
t 

th
e
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

ti
m

e
ta

b
le

 f
o

r 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 t

o
 

c
lo

s
e
 d

o
w

n
 2

0
0

4
/0

5
 b

y
 

3
1

.7
.0

5
 a

n
d

 m
a

k
e

 
p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 c
lo

s
e

 
d
o

w
n
 o

f 
2

0
0

5
/0

6
 b

y
 3

0
.6

.0
6

 
(3

1
.7

.0
5
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
) 

 

2
0
0

5
-0

6
 c

lo
s
e

d
o

w
n

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

 2
0

0
4
/0

5
 

c
lo

s
e

d
o

w
n
 o

n
 t

im
e
. 

 O
n

 t
a
rg

e
t 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 2
0

0
5

/0
6

 
c
lo

s
e

d
o

w
n
 b

y
 3

0
.6

.0
6
 

4
4

. 
R

F
 

T
S

/T
B

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e
 I

n
v
e

s
to

rs
 i
n
 

P
e

o
p
le

 R
e
-a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

in
 

th
e

 a
u
tu

m
n

 o
f 

2
0

0
5

 
 

In
v
e

s
to

rs
 i
n
 P

e
o

p
le

 (
Ii
P

) 
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
  

A
g
re

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 

s
ta

n
d
a

rd
. 

Ii
P

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
0

6
 

 

Ii
P

 R
e

-a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 
d

ra
w

n
 u

p
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 

p
ri
o

r 
to

 r
e

-a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

in
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0

6
. 

4
5

. 
R

F
 

T
S

/T
B

 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

o
u

r 
H

u
m

a
n

 
R

e
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 c

o
m

p
u

te
r 

s
y
s
te

m
 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 w

o
rk

fl
o

w
 

G
a

te
w

a
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
 

D
e

c
id

e
d

 t
o

 p
ro

c
e

e
d
. 

P
ro

je
c
t 

s
ta

rt
e

d
 M

a
y
 0

6
 

Page 29



D
:\

m
o
d

er
n

g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o

cs
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5
6

\K
e
y
Is

su
es

R
ep

o
rt

0
.d

o
c 

 
 

 
 

- 
1
1

 -
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

L
e

a
d

 
M

e
m

b
e

r 

L
e

a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
s
 

N
e

x
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
 

4
6

. 
R

F
 

T
S

/T
B

 
R

e
s
o
lv

e
 P

a
y
 a

n
d

 G
ra

d
in

g
 

c
o
m

p
e

te
n

c
y
 b

a
rs

 
 

W
o
rk

in
g

 g
ro

u
p
 m

e
t 

3
rd

 M
a

y
 

to
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

o
p

ti
o
n

s
. 

A
w

a
it
in

g
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
e

 f
ro

m
 s

ta
ff

 
s
id

e
/U

N
IS

O
N

 

4
7

. 
R

F
 

T
A

S
/T

B
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

u
r 

a
p
p

ra
is

a
l 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y
 s

u
b
-

g
ro

u
p

 a
n

d
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d
 

a
s
 b

a
s
is

 f
o

r 
c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
. 

N
e

w
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 

“c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
” 

fo
r 

s
e

n
io

r 
m

a
n
a

g
e

rs
 a

n
d

 P
D

P
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
rs

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 –

 T
ra

in
in

g
 

u
n
d

e
rw

a
y
 

4
8

. 
R

S
 

T
S

/S
T

 
D

e
v
is

e
 a

 5
-y

e
a

r 
A

u
d

it
 P

la
n
 

to
 m

e
e

t 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

 

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 F

e
b

.0
6
 

 R
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e
 M

a
r 

0
6

 
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

 –
 C

L
O

S
E

D
 

 
4

9
. 

D
E

L
IV

E
R

 T
H

E
 

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 P

L
A

N
 

T
D

V
 

S
B

 
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 &
 r

e
p
o

rt
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
s
a
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

s
 

a
p
p

ro
v
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 b
u
d

g
e

t 

F
o

rm
a
l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 o

f 
S

P
P

 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 &
 t

ra
n

s
fe

r 
o
f 

s
a
v
e

d
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 t

o
 

C
o

n
ti
n
g

e
n

c
y 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 R

e
p

o
rt

s
 d

u
e

 i
n

 
2

0
0

6
/0

7
 

5
3

. 
J
H

 
T

S
 

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
H

a
lls

 m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 b

y
 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

to
 N

o
n

 P
ro

fi
t 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
n

g
 O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 

T
e

n
d

e
ri

n
g

 f
a
ile

d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 

D
e

c
id

e
d

 n
o

t 
to

 p
ro

c
e

e
d

 a
t 

th
is

 t
im

e
. 

C
L

O
S

E
D

 M
A

Y
 0

6
 

 
5

6
. 

R
S

 
S

B
/B

F
 

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
e

 D
ir
e

c
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
 r

e
d

u
c
e

s
 i
ts

 
d
e

fi
c
it
 

U
n

d
e

rg
o
in

g
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
 

a
n
d

 r
e
a

lig
n

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

–
 i
n

it
ia

l 
re

p
o

rt
 

o
n
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 d
u
e

 i
n

 A
u

g
 0

5
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 
a
t 

y
e
a

r-
e

n
d

 
a

n
d

 p
ro

d
u

c
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

 –
 

J
u
ly

 2
0
0

6
. 

(H
a

lf
 y

e
a

r 
re

v
ie

w
 

re
s
u
lt
e

d
 

in
 

£
5

0
k
 

a
n

n
u

a
l 

b
u
d

g
e

t 
s
a

v
in

g
).
 

 
5

8
. 

T
D

V
 

S
B

 
R

e
d

u
c
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 c
o

s
ts

 
 

N
o

ti
fy

 A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

rs
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e

 s
a

v
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 i
n

 
2

0
0

6
 B

u
d
g

e
t-

s
e

tt
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 

 

C
L

O
S

E
 

(S
u
p

p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 i
n

 F
e

b
 0

6
) 

  
5

9
. 

J
H

 
S

B
/H

G
 

R
e

d
u
c
e

 s
u

b
s
id

y
 g

ra
n

t 
p
a

id
 

T
e

rm
s
 b

e
in

g
 n

e
g

o
ti
a

te
d
 

D
e

c
id

e
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
to

 p
ro

c
e

e
d

  
 

Page 30



D
:\

m
o
d

er
n

g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o

cs
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5
6

\K
e
y
Is

su
es

R
ep

o
rt

0
.d

o
c 

 
 

 
 

- 
1
2

 -
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

L
e

a
d

 
M

e
m

b
e

r 

L
e

a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
s
 

N
e

x
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
 

to
 S

O
L

L
 (

V
a
le

) 
th

ro
u

g
h

 
d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

g
y
m

 a
n

d
 

fi
tn

e
s
s
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 a

t 
T

ils
le

y
 

P
a

rk
 

 

w
it
h

 S
O

L
L

 (
V

a
le

) 
S

h
o

rt
lis

t 
o

f 
o
p

ti
o

n
 b

e
in

g
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

0
6

 

6
0

. 
M

D
V

 
S

B
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 f

ro
m

 
B

e
s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
R

e
v
e
n

u
e

s
 a

n
d
 B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 (

n
o
w

 i
n
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 

in
to

 V
a

le
-S

o
u
th

 O
x
o

n
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

h
a

re
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
je

c
t)

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 a
ft

e
r 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
d
e

c
is

io
n

 
S

u
p

e
rc

e
d
e

d
 b

y
 N

o
.2

4
 

6
1

. 
M

D
V

 
S

B
 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
b

e
n
e

fi
t 

fr
a

u
d

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 t
o
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

m
a

tc
h

 a
ll 

c
o

s
ts

 a
ri

s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 
a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
fr

a
u

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

 

M
o

n
it
o

r 
fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 c
o
s
t 

n
e
u

tr
a
l 
a

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
t 

Y
e

a
r-

e
n

d
 c

o
s
t 

b
e

n
e
fi
t 

re
v
ie

w
 

in
d

ic
a

te
s
 n

e
t 

‘s
u

rp
lu

s
’ 
o

f 
£

2
3

K
 i
n

 8
 m

o
n
th

s
 t

o
 M

a
rc

h
 

0
6
. 

 G
ra

n
t 
c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 

in
c
e

n
ti
v
e

s
 b

u
t 

s
ti
ll 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 

to
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
 s

u
rp

lu
s
. 

 W
ill

 b
e

 
s
u
p

e
rc

e
d

e
d

 w
h

e
n

 F
ra

u
d

 
s
e
c
ti
o

n
s
 m

e
rg

e
 (

lin
k
e

d
 t

o
 

N
o

.2
4

 
  

6
2

. 
R

J
 

S
B

/A
M

 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 s

e
e

k
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

c
o

m
e

 t
h

ro
u
g

h
 

s
o
u

n
d

 c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 

C
a

n
te

rb
u

ry
 &

 H
a

tf
ie

ld
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
 W

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 

m
o

n
it
o

r 
m

a
rk

e
t 
fo

r 
g

o
ld

e
n
 

o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

Id
e

n
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
 “

g
o

ld
e

n
” 

o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
. 

 C
L

O
S

E
D

 
  

6
3

. 
IM

P
R

O
V

E
 B

O
T

H
 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

N
D

 
E

X
T

E
R

N
A

L
 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
 

J
P

 
T

S
/N

M
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 b

o
th

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
a

n
d

 
e
x
te

rn
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o
n

 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 

 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
in

 p
o

s
t 

2
4

th
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
0

5
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 P

la
n
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 A

p
ri

l 
0

6
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 d
ra

ft
e

d
 J

u
n

e
 0

6
 

Page 31



D
:\

m
o
d

er
n

g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o

cs
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5
6

\K
e
y
Is

su
es

R
ep

o
rt

0
.d

o
c 

 
 

 
 

- 
1
3

 -
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

L
e

a
d

 
M

e
m

b
e

r 

L
e

a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
s
 

N
e

x
t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
 

6
4

. 
J
P

 
T

S
/N

M
 

D
e

v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 

T
o

 f
o

llo
w

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

to
 

w
o

rk
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

. 
 

A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

0
6
 

  

Page 32



C
P

A
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
H

ig
h

L
ev

el
Im

p
ro

v
em

en
tP

la
n
0

.d
o

c 
 

 

S
H

A
D

IN
G

 =
 C

O
M

P
L
E

T
E

D
 A

C
T

IO
N

 O
R

 M
IL

E
S

T
O

N
E

 
* 

=
  
s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

d
e

le
ti
n
g

 a
ft
e
r 

4
th
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

re
p
o
rt

 
D

:\
m

o
d
e
rn

g
o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g
e
n
d
a

It
e
m

D
o
c
s
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0
0
3

9
5

6
\C

P
A

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
H

ig
h
L
e
v
e
lI
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
tP

la
n
0
.d

o
c
 

P
a
g

e
 1

 o
f 
6

 
2

3
/0

5
/2

0
0

6
 

  
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

E
 O

F
F

IC
E

R
 

 A
C

T
IO

N
 F

O
R

 
IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 

 M
IL

E
S

T
O

N
E

S
 

 

 T
IM

E
- 

S
C

A
L

E
 

 P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

 A
S

 A
T

 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
4

 2
0
0

5
 -

 0
6
 

1
.1

 
J
P

 /
 T

A
S

 
R

e
fi
n

e
 a

n
d

 s
im

p
lif

y
 v

is
io

n
, 

a
im

s
, 

a
n

d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
  

 

R
e

v
ie

w
 v

is
io

n
 

N
o

v
 0

4
 

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
 N

e
w

 V
is

io
n

 a
d

o
p

te
d

 
N

o
v
 2

0
0

5
. 

 
 

 
Id

e
n

ti
fy

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 t

h
e

m
e

s
 f

o
r 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 l
e

a
d

 o
n

. 
N

o
v
 0

4
 

 
A

g
re

e
d

 b
y
 V

S
P

 S
e

p
 2

0
0

4
. 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
. 

 
 

 
P

ro
d

u
c
e

 a
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n

 l
in

k
e

d
 t

o
 

p
ri

o
ri
ti
e

s
(T

S
) 

F
e

b
 0

5
 

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n

 I
s
s
u

e
d

 
D

e
c
 2

0
0

5
. 

 

 
 

 
L

in
k
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e
s
 i
n

to
 t

h
e
 I

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e

 
a

n
d

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
P

la
n

n
in

g
  

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 

F
e

b
 0

5
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
. 

R
e

fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 0
5

/0
6
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
–
 

in
fl
u
e

n
c
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 

u
n

d
e
rp

in
 b

u
d
g

e
t 

0
6

/0
7

. 
S

p
e

c
if
ic

 
lin

k
s
 t

o
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

re
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 i
n

 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
s
. 

 
 

 
Id

e
n

ti
fy

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

V
a
lu

e
s
 

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e
d

 b
y
 

P
R

A
C

 M
a

rc
h
 2

0
0

5
. 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
. 

 

 
 

 
 B

u
ild

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 &
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
 O

c
t 

0
5

 
 T

o
 b

e
 l
in

k
e

d
 i
n

to
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 *

 
 

1
.2

 
J
P

 /
 T

S
 

Id
e
n

ti
fy

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 t

o
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h
e

 
re

m
a
in

in
g

 s
tr

a
n

d
s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 l
e

d
 b

y
 

o
th

e
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 
 

O
th

e
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
 

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

 

 
 

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 w
o
rk

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 
 

S
o

m
e

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e

 o
f 

le
a

d
s
 b

e
in

g
 

ta
k
e

n
. 

 W
e
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

a
n

d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 l
e

a
d

s
. 

 W
e
 

a
re

 e
x
a

m
in

in
g
 f

u
tu

re
 r

o
le

 o
f 

V
S

P
 i
n

 
lig

h
t 

o
f 

L
o

c
a
l 
A

re
a

 A
g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
. 

 
A

 B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
L
S

P
 a

n
d

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

* 
  

 
 

 
IS

F
P

 P
ro

c
e

s
s
 

F
e

b
 0

5
 

W
ill

 f
e
e

d
 i
n

to
 I

S
F

P
 0

6
/0

7
.*

 
 

Page 33



C
P

A
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
H

ig
h

L
ev

el
Im

p
ro

v
em

en
tP

la
n
0

.d
o

c 
 

 

S
H

A
D

IN
G

 =
 C

O
M

P
L
E

T
E

D
 A

C
T

IO
N

 O
R

 M
IL

E
S

T
O

N
E

 
* 

=
  
s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

d
e

le
ti
n
g

 a
ft
e
r 

4
th
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

re
p
o
rt

 
D

:\
m

o
d
e
rn

g
o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g
e
n
d
a

It
e
m

D
o
c
s
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0
0
3

9
5

6
\C

P
A

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
H

ig
h
L
e
v
e
lI
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
tP

la
n
0
.d

o
c
 

P
a
g

e
 2

 o
f 
6

 
2

3
/0

5
/2

0
0

6
 

  
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

E
 O

F
F

IC
E

R
 

 A
C

T
IO

N
 F

O
R

 
IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 

 M
IL

E
S

T
O

N
E

S
 

 

 T
IM

E
- 

S
C

A
L

E
 

 P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

 A
S

 A
T

 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
4

 2
0
0

5
 -

 0
6
 

1
.3

 
J
P

 /
 T

A
S

 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

E
n

s
u
re

 a
p
p

ro
v
e

d
 C

o
n

s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

ie
s
, 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 

fe
e
d

b
a

c
k
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 e

x
p

lic
it
, 

a
re

 
d

e
liv

e
re

d
. 

F
ro

m
 N

o
v
 0

4
 

 
N

e
w

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

s
ta

rt
e
d

 
2

4
/1

0
/0

5
. 

 R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
v
a

c
a

n
t 

p
o

s
ts

 u
n

d
e
rw

a
y
 *

 

 
 

 
S

tr
u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 S
ta

ff
in

g
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 

&
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
s
 p

o
s
ts

 n
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
. 

N
o

v
 0

4
 

 
T

a
k
e
n

 i
n

to
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
in

 n
e

w
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 a

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 i
n

 N
o

v
 2

0
0

5
. 

 
 

 
A

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
t 

o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 

o
ff

ic
e

r(
s
).

 
N

o
v
 0

4
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
. 

2
.1

 
T

A
S

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
le

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 
th

ro
u
g

h
 a

lig
n

m
e
n

t 
o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

s
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 o

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 D

ir
e

c
to

rs
 

P
o

rt
fo

lio
s
 l
in

k
e

d
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a

s
. 

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

 M
a

y
 0

4
 

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
* 

 

 
 

 
S

M
G

 c
re

a
te

d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 m

e
d

iu
m

 
to

 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 i
s
s
u

e
s
. 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 M

a
y
 0

4
 

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

 *
 

 

 
 

 
R

e
-c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

m
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 p

o
s
t 

le
is

u
re

 t
ru

s
t 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 O

c
t 

0
4
 

N
e

w
 S

tr
u

c
tu

re
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 1
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0

6
. 

* 
 

2
.2

 
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 w

o
rk

in
g

 o
f 

&
 

re
s
o

u
rc

in
g

 t
h

e
 P

o
lic

y
 

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
s
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 
m

a
k
in

g
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 

 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 A

p
r 

0
4
 

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
  

 
 

 
In

tr
o

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 R
e
v
ie

w
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 (

S
R

C
) 

 

S
e

p
 0

4
  

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

 
 

 
 

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 w

o
rk

in
g

 o
f 

S
R

C
/S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

S
e

p
 0

5
 

R
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 b

y
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

N
o

v
 2

0
0

4
. 

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 r
e

c
’d

 F
e

b
 

2
0

0
5
. 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

tt
e

e
 e

x
p

lic
it
ly

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 
p

a
c
k
a
g

e
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 &
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

w
h

ic
h

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

s
 t

im
e

 &
 s

k
ill

s
 o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

tt
e

e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

. 

 
 

 
N

e
e
d

 t
o

 c
o

n
c
lu

d
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

re
p

o
rt

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
O

c
t 

0
5

 
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
  

w
e

re
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

J
u

ly
 0

5
. 

O
u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 r

e
m

a
in

 e
.g

. 
a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
. 

* 

Page 34



C
P

A
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
H

ig
h

L
ev

el
Im

p
ro

v
em

en
tP

la
n
0

.d
o

c 
 

 

S
H

A
D

IN
G

 =
 C

O
M

P
L
E

T
E

D
 A

C
T

IO
N

 O
R

 M
IL

E
S

T
O

N
E

 
* 

=
  
s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

d
e

le
ti
n
g

 a
ft
e
r 

4
th
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

re
p
o
rt

 
D

:\
m

o
d
e
rn

g
o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g
e
n
d
a

It
e
m

D
o
c
s
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0
0
3

9
5

6
\C

P
A

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
H

ig
h
L
e
v
e
lI
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
tP

la
n
0
.d

o
c
 

P
a
g

e
 3

 o
f 
6

 
2

3
/0

5
/2

0
0

6
 

  
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

E
 O

F
F

IC
E

R
 

 A
C

T
IO

N
 F

O
R

 
IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 

 M
IL

E
S

T
O

N
E

S
 

 

 T
IM

E
- 

S
C

A
L

E
 

 P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

 A
S

 A
T

 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
4

 2
0
0

5
 -

 0
6
 

 
 

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

in
g

 o
f 

S
R

C
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

IS
F

P
. 

F
e

b
 0

5
  

 
S

R
C

 m
o

d
e

l 
is

 l
e
s
s
 w

e
ll 

d
e

v
e
lo

p
e

d
. 

W
ill

 b
e

 e
x
p

lo
ri

n
g

 h
o

w
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
is

 
c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 c

a
n

 m
o

re
 e

x
p

lic
it
ly

 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 a

g
e

n
d

a
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 w

h
a

t 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
 i
t 

in
 t

u
rn

 r
e

q
u

ir
e
s
. 

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 –

 r
e

v
ie

w
 

ro
le

 &
 e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

w
id

e
r 

m
e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
* 

 

2
.3

 
 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

p
la

n
n
e

d
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 n
e

e
d

 
to

 b
e
 c

le
a

r 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 t
o
 a

s
s
ig

n
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
. 

F
e

b
 0

5
 

 
R

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 i
n
 d

e
ta

il 
a

t 
S

M
G

. 
R

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 B
V

P
P

 &
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
s
. 

 
R

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

n
. 

 
 

 
C

u
t 

o
ff

 o
n

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 n

e
e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
a

lis
ti
c
 t

o
 

a
llo

w
 t

im
e

 b
o
th

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 t
o
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 i
s
s
u

e
s
  

F
e

b
 0

5
 

 
R

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 S
e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
s
 s

ig
n

e
d
 

o
ff

 b
y
 A

D
, 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
a
n

d
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

 
H

o
ld

e
r.

  
R

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 a
t 

m
o

n
th

ly
 

p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

 r
e
v
ie

w
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
. 

3
.1

 
T

S
 

A
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 c
h

a
n
g

e
 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

n
e

e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 e

m
b

e
d
d

e
d

 

E
n

s
u
re

 a
n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

P
ro

je
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
is

 u
ti
lis

e
d

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
p

ro
je

c
ts

. 
S

e
p
 0

5
 

 
E

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

im
e
s
c
a

le
 A

p
r 

0
6

. 
P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a

n
a
g

e
r 

p
o

s
ts

 m
a
d

e
 

p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

N
o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

0
5

 E
x
e
c
. 

D
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
0

5
/0

6
 w

e
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g

 o
n

 
c
la

ri
fy

in
g

 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
. 

 
N

o
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 d

u
e

 t
o
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e

 
c
o

n
s
tr

a
in

ts
.*

 

 
 

 
E

n
s
u
re

 R
is

k
 M

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
 i
s
 

fu
lly

 a
p
p

lie
d

. 
S

e
p
 0

5
 

 
R

is
k
 R

e
g
is

te
rs

 c
o

m
p

le
te

. 
 R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
m

o
s
t 

ri
s
k
 r

e
g

is
te

rs
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 i
n

 
M

a
y
/J

u
n

e
 0

5
. 

 R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

rs
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
p

la
n

n
in

g
. 

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
is

k
s
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 6

 m
o

n
th

ly
 a

t 
S

M
G

.*
 

 
 

 
N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
. 

 
In

 P
ro

g
re

s
s
. 

 E
.g

. 
S

P
P

O
 (

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 f

o
r 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir

e
);

 J
o

in
t 

s
ta

ti
o
n

e
ry

 
te

n
d

e
r;

 a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

b
e

in
g

 a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 e

x
p

lo
re

d
 (

“A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 

F
”)

.*
 

 
 

 
ID

e
A

 p
ro

c
u
re

m
e

n
t 

H
e

a
lt
h
c
h

e
c
k
 a

c
ti
o

n
 

p
la

n
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 

O
c
t 

0
5

 
ID

E
A

 H
e

a
lt
h

c
h

e
c
k
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 

 
P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 b

e
in

g
 d

ra
ft

e
d

. 

Page 35



C
P

A
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
H

ig
h

L
ev

el
Im

p
ro

v
em

en
tP

la
n
0

.d
o

c 
 

 

S
H

A
D

IN
G

 =
 C

O
M

P
L
E

T
E

D
 A

C
T

IO
N

 O
R

 M
IL

E
S

T
O

N
E

 
* 

=
  
s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

d
e

le
ti
n
g

 a
ft
e
r 

4
th
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

re
p
o
rt

 
D

:\
m

o
d
e
rn

g
o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g
e
n
d
a

It
e
m

D
o
c
s
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0
0
3

9
5

6
\C

P
A

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
H

ig
h
L
e
v
e
lI
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
tP

la
n
0
.d

o
c
 

P
a
g

e
 4

 o
f 
6

 
2

3
/0

5
/2

0
0

6
 

  
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

E
 O

F
F

IC
E

R
 

 A
C

T
IO

N
 F

O
R

 
IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 

 M
IL

E
S

T
O

N
E

S
 

 

 T
IM

E
- 

S
C

A
L

E
 

 P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

 A
S

 A
T

 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
4

 2
0
0

5
 -

 0
6
 

3
.2

 
B

M
c
A

 
S

h
a
ri

n
g

 l
e
s
s
o

n
s
 l
e

a
rn

t 
T

ie
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
a

n
d

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
le

s
s
o

n
s
 l
e

a
rn

t 
in

to
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t.

 
 

F
e

b
 0

5
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

d
 M

a
y
 0

6
* 

4
.1

 
T

A
S

 
E

n
s
u
re

 s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

a
n

d
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 

d
e

liv
e

r 
a

g
re

e
d
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e
s
 

P
a

y
 a

n
d

 G
ra

d
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 
N

o
v
 0

4
 

 
E

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

im
e

s
c
a
le

 N
o
v
 0

5
. 

“m
a

in
” 

P
&

G
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
C

o
n

s
e

q
u

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
l.
 

c
o

m
p

e
te

n
c
y
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 a
re

 o
n

g
o
in

g
. 

T
u
rn

o
v
e

r 
b
e

in
g

 m
o
n

it
o

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h
 

c
o

rp
 g

o
v
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

. 
2

0
0
2

/0
3

 1
9

.0
7

%
 

2
0

0
3

/0
4

 1
5

.9
9

%
 

2
0

0
4

/0
5

 1
5

.4
1

%
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

  
  

  
  

  
  

 *
 

 

 
 

 
R

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g

 r
e

p
o

rt
. 

O
c
t 

0
4

 
N

e
w

 S
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
5

.*
 

 

4
.2

 
B

M
c
A

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
k
ill

s
 n

o
t 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 b

e
in

g
 p

la
n

n
e

d
, 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 
F

e
b

 0
5
 

In
te

ri
m

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
in

 p
la

c
e

. 
M

g
t 

D
e

v
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 f

o
llo

w
. 

 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

s
e

n
io

r 
m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 
c
o

m
p

le
te

 M
a

rc
h

 0
6
 *

 

4
.3

 
B

M
c
A

 
C

a
p
a

c
it
y
 o

f 
k
e
y
 s

ta
ff

 n
e
e

d
s
 

to
 b

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 
C

a
p

a
c
it
y
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 
to

 
b
e

 
lin

k
e
d

 
to

 
IS

F
P

 
a

n
d

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 

F
e

b
 0

5
 

T
h

is
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 
w

h
o
le

 o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o

n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.*
 

5
.1

 
T

S
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

C
u

lt
u

re
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

e
m

b
e

d
d

e
d

 

C
E

O
, 

D
ir
e

c
to

rs
 &

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e
m

b
e

rs
 t

o
 

ta
k
e

 g
re

a
te

r 
le

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 i
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
th

ro
u

g
h
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 a

t 
S

M
G

 a
n

d
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 
R

e
p
o

rt
 f

ro
m

 A
u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 o

n
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

im
m

in
e

n
t.

* 

Page 36



C
P

A
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
H

ig
h

L
ev

el
Im

p
ro

v
em

en
tP

la
n
0

.d
o

c 
 

 

S
H

A
D

IN
G

 =
 C

O
M

P
L
E

T
E

D
 A

C
T

IO
N

 O
R

 M
IL

E
S

T
O

N
E

 
* 

=
  
s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

d
e

le
ti
n
g

 a
ft
e
r 

4
th
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

re
p
o
rt

 
D

:\
m

o
d
e
rn

g
o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g
e
n
d
a

It
e
m

D
o
c
s
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0
0
3

9
5

6
\C

P
A

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
H

ig
h
L
e
v
e
lI
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
tP

la
n
0
.d

o
c
 

P
a
g

e
 5

 o
f 
6

 
2

3
/0

5
/2

0
0

6
 

  
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

E
 O

F
F

IC
E

R
 

 A
C

T
IO

N
 F

O
R

 
IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 

 M
IL

E
S

T
O

N
E

S
 

 

 T
IM

E
- 

S
C

A
L

E
 

 P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

 A
S

 A
T

 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
4

 2
0
0

5
 -

 0
6
 

5
.2

 
D

ir
e
c
to

rs
 

G
ro

u
p

. 
U

s
e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 

C
a

s
c
a

d
e

 u
s
e
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e

rn
a
n

c
e

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 

D
e

c
 0

4
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
. 

R
e

g
u

la
r 

m
o

n
it
o
ri

n
g

 i
n
 p

la
c
e

. 
 F

o
rm

a
t 

a
g

re
e

d
 f

o
r 

E
x
e

c
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
in

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n

t 
in

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 
re

v
ie

w
s
. 

C
o

m
m

e
n

c
e
d

 J
u

n
e

 0
5

. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

IT
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

–
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

 f
o

rm
a

t 
fo

r 
p

re
s
e

n
ti
n
g

 d
a

ta
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 i
n

 C
o

rp
 G

o
v
 r

e
p
o

rt
 4

th
 

Q
tr

 2
0

0
4

/0
5

. 
E

v
id

e
n

c
e
 o

f 
d

a
ta

 d
ri

v
in

g
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
. 

Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 B

V
P

Is
. 

 

5
.3

 
T

S
/S

T
/R

W
 

p
e

n
d

in
g

 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 o
f 

C
h

a
lle

n
g

e
, 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
, 

C
o

m
p

a
re

 &
 

C
o

m
p

e
te

, 
n

e
e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 m
o

re
 

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

tl
y
 a

p
p
lie

d
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
. 

D
e

c
 0

4
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 J

a
n
 E

x
e

c
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 

re
v
ie

w
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 &
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

. 
 B

V
R

 o
f 

w
a

s
te

 m
g

m
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
. 

 
A

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

d
. 

 B
V

R
 o

f 
R

e
v
e

n
u

e
s
 a

n
d
 B

e
n

e
fi
ts

. 
J
o

in
t 

re
v
ie

w
. 

 R
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 E

x
e

c
 

J
u

n
e

 0
5

. 
 B

V
R

 o
f 

L
S

P
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 J

u
ly

 0
5

 a
s
 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
R

e
v
e
n

u
e

s
 a

n
d

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 
R

e
v
ie

w
. 

 R
e

v
is

e
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

6
 E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

. 
  

S
e

rv
ic

e
 R

e
v
ie

w
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
a

y
 0

6
. 

  
 

Page 37



- 
1

 –
 

2
3
/0

5
/2

0
0
6

D
:\

m
o

d
er

n
g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o
cs

\6
\5

\9
\A

I0
0

0
0

3
9
5

6
\C

P
A

H
O

U
S

IN
G

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

A
C

T
IO

N
P

L
A

N
0

.d
o

c 

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

 2
0
0
5
 -

 0
6
 

 
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

E
 O

F
F

IC
E

R
 

 
W

E
A

K
N

E
S

S
E

S
 

ID
E

N
T

IF
IE

D
 

 
A

C
T

IO
N

 F
O

R
 

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

 
M

IL
E

S
T

O
N

E
S

 
 

 
T

IM
E

- 
S

C
A

L
E

 

 
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 A

S
 A

T
 

Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 4

  

1
. 

P
a
u

l 
S

ta
in

e
s
 

  

G
a

p
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 D

a
ta

 o
n
 

s
o
m

e
 g

ro
u
p

s
 

s
u
c
h

 a
s
 e

ld
e
rl

y
, 

b
la

c
k
, 

m
in

o
ri
ty

 &
 

e
ld

e
rl

y
 (

B
M

E
) 

U
p

d
a

te
d
 H

N
S

 
                     U

p
d

a
te

 H
o

u
s
e

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

S
u

rv
e

y
 

R
e

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e
d

 
B

ri
e

f 
d

ra
ft

e
d
 

P
ro

v
id

e
rs

 s
o

u
g

h
t 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

c
h
o

s
e

n
 

S
ta

rt
 

C
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 

                S
ta

rt
s
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 p

o
lic

y
, 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 
ta

rg
e

ts
 

D
e

c
 0

4
 

D
e

c
 0

4
 

D
e

c
 0

4
 

J
a

n
 0

5
 

J
a

n
 0

5
 

M
a

r 
0

5
 

                O
c
t 

0
4
 

J
a

n
 0

5
 

F
e

b
 0

5
 

B
id

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

D
ra

ft
 p

ro
d

u
c
e
d

. 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

 r
e

fr
e

s
h

e
d

 
v
e
rs

io
n

 o
f 

2
0

0
0

 s
u

rv
e

y
 

 V
a

le
 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 C

o
u

n
ty

 
b

id
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 p
a
th

fi
n

d
e

r 
fo

r 
c
a
rr

y
in

g
 o

u
t 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

M
a

rk
e

t 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 
th

e
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
O

x
o

n
 a

re
a
. 

 In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 

V
a

le
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e

n
 a

c
ti
n

g
 a

s
 

c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
t 

fo
r 

F
o
rd

h
a

m
 

A
s
s
o

c
ia

te
s
 w

o
rk

in
g

 u
p

 a
 

v
ia

b
le

 B
H

M
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 i
n

 
O

x
o

n
. 

  
 R

e
fr

e
s
h

e
d

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 M
a

rc
h

 0
5

 
H

o
u

s
e
 C

o
n

d
it
io

n
 S

u
rv

e
y
 

(H
C

S
) 

–
 C

o
m

p
le

te
d

 d
ra

ft
 

M
a

rc
h

 0
5

 
 

2
. 

P
a
u

l 
S

ta
in

e
s
 

O
u

td
a

te
d

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 

n
e
e

d
s
 a

n
d
 

p
ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
s
to

c
k
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
 

s
u
rv

e
y
s
 

C
o

n
s
id

e
r 

re
v
is

in
g

 f
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
 

s
u
rv

e
y
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
 

C
o

s
t 

b
e

n
e
fi
t 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
n

 m
o
re

 u
p

-
to

-d
a

te
 d

a
ta

. 
 

D
e

c
 0

4
 

N
o

 c
le

a
r 

a
d
v
ic

e
 f

ro
m

 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
 o

f 
th

e
 S

o
u

th
 E

a
s
t 

(G
O

S
E

) 
o

r 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 I

n
s
p

e
c
to

ra
te

 
o

n
 ‘
c
o

rr
e

c
t’
 f

re
q

u
e

n
c
y
. 

 
W

ill
 b

e
 p

ic
k
e
d

 u
p

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 
o

f 
w

o
rk

 t
o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 n

e
w

 

Page 38



- 
2

 –
 

2
3
/0

5
/2

0
0
6

D
:\

m
o

d
er

n
g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o
cs

\6
\5

\9
\A

I0
0

0
0

3
9
5

6
\C

P
A

H
O

U
S

IN
G

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

A
C

T
IO

N
P

L
A

N
0

.d
o

c 

 
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

E
 O

F
F

IC
E

R
 

 
W

E
A

K
N

E
S

S
E

S
 

ID
E

N
T

IF
IE

D
 

 
A

C
T

IO
N

 F
O

R
 

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

 
M

IL
E

S
T

O
N

E
S

 
 

 
T

IM
E

- 
S

C
A

L
E

 

 
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 A

S
 A

T
 

Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 4

  

a
p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 

m
a

rk
e

t 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 

3
. 

P
a
u

l 
S

ta
in

e
s
 

A
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
n

 
e

x
p

lic
it
 a

im
 

U
p

d
a

te
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 

a
g
a

in
s
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 -

 
A

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 b

e
c
o

m
e
s
 

e
x
p

lic
it
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 

C
o

n
s
id

e
r 

a
t 

E
x
e

c
u
ti
v
e

 
R

e
fl
e
c
t 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

s
 a

 
p
ri

o
ri

ty
 i
n

 I
S

F
P

  
R

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n

 b
u

d
g
e

t 

J
u

n
e

 0
5

 
A

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 n

o
w

 
a

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
im

. 
 

4
. 

R
o

d
g

e
r 

H
o
o

d
 

                   

S
lo

w
 

d
e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 L
o

c
a
l 
P

la
n

 

E
n

s
u

re
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

re
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 t

o
 

p
re

v
e
n

t 
s
lip

p
a

g
e

 o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
p

la
n

 
ti
m

e
ta

b
le

 
 C

o
n

s
id

e
r 

re
fo

c
u

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
n

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
o

lic
y
 t

e
a

m
s
 t

o
 

g
iv

e
 g

re
a

te
r 

p
ri

o
ri

ty
 t

o
 t

h
e

 l
o
c
a

l 
p

la
n

/d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
. 

             Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

     

•
 

In
q

u
ir

y
 d

a
te

 f
o
r 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

lo
c
a
l 

p
la

n
 t

o
 2

0
1

1
 f

ix
e
d

 f
o

r 
M

a
y
 

2
0

0
5

 

•
 

B
id

 t
o

 E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

 (
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
4

) 
to

 u
s
e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 

D
e

liv
e
ry

 G
ra

n
t 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
p
la

n
 i
n

q
u

ir
y
 

         •
 

A
d

o
p
t 

L
o

c
a
l 
P

la
n

 t
o
 2

0
1

1
 

    •
 

P
re

p
a

re
 L

o
c
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 (

L
D

S
) 

fo
r 

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 b

y 
3

1
s
t  M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

5
  

  
  

  
L

D
S

 w
ill

 s
p

e
c
if
y
 L

o
c
a

l 
  
  

  
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 

M
a

y
 0

5
 

  N
o

v
. 

0
4

 
             J
u

ly
 0

6
 

          

In
q

u
ir

y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 S

e
p

t 
0

5
 

 P
o

rt
fo

lio
 h

o
ld

e
r 

a
g

re
e

d
 

to
 r

e
te

n
ti
o

n
 o

f 
£
5

0
K

 o
f 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 D
e

liv
e
ry

 G
ra

n
t 

a
w

a
rd

 a
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

g
e

n
c
y
 

s
u
m

 t
o
 e

n
s
u

re
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

th
e

 L
o

c
a
l 
P

la
n

 i
n

q
u

ir
y
. 

 
C

o
n

s
u
lt
a

n
ts

 u
s
e

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 

in
q

u
ir

y
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 d

e
a

lin
g
 

w
it
h

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 

to
 h

e
lp

 p
re

s
e

n
t 

th
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 c

a
s
e

. 
 In

s
p

e
c
to

r’
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
re

c
e

iv
e

d
. 

 P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
m

o
d

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 L

o
c
a

l 
P

la
n
 o

n
 d

e
p

o
s
it
 M

a
rc

h
 –

 
M

a
y
 0

6
T

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

a
d
o

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
L

o
c
a
l 
P

la
n

 
J
u
ly

 2
0

0
6
 

 L
o
c
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 (

L
D

S
) 

s
u
b

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 G

O
S

E
 e

n
d
 

o
f 

F
e

b
 2

0
0

5
 a

n
d

 n
o

w
 

Page 39



- 
3

 –
 

2
3
/0

5
/2

0
0
6

D
:\

m
o

d
er

n
g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o
cs

\6
\5

\9
\A

I0
0

0
0

3
9
5

6
\C

P
A

H
O

U
S

IN
G

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

A
C

T
IO

N
P

L
A

N
0

.d
o

c 

 
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

E
 O

F
F

IC
E

R
 

 
W

E
A

K
N

E
S

S
E

S
 

ID
E

N
T

IF
IE

D
 

 
A

C
T

IO
N

 F
O

R
 

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

 
M

IL
E

S
T

O
N

E
S

 
 

 
T

IM
E

- 
S

C
A

L
E

 

 
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 A

S
 A

T
 

Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 4

  

    

  
  

  
(L

D
F

) 
fo

r 
p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o
n

 o
f 

 
  
  

  
fu

tu
re

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
o

lic
y
 

  
  

  
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 a

llo
c
a

te
 

  
  

  
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
, 

s
e
t 

o
u

t 
p
ro

je
c
t 

 
  
  

  
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
m

e
th

o
d

s
 a

n
d
  

  
  

  
ti
m

e
s
c
a

le
s
. 

   •
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 2

0
0

5
 L

D
S

 a
n

d
 r

e
-

s
u

b
m

it
 t

o
 G

O
S

E
 

 

         A
u

tu
m

n
 

0
6
 

a
g
re

e
d

 b
y
 G

O
S

E
. 

 W
o
rk

 o
n
 L

o
c
a

l 
P

la
n

 a
n

d
 

L
D

F
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e

 
w

it
h

 t
h
e
 L

D
S

 m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
 

 N
o

 A
c
ti
o
n

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 u

n
ti
l 

A
u

tu
m

n
 0

6
 

5
. 

R
o

d
g

e
r 

H
o
o

d
 

 
E

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
s
e
rv

ic
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 
a

d
e

q
u

a
te

ly
 r

e
fl
e

c
ts

 t
h

e
 d

e
s
ir

e
d

 
c
o
m

p
ro

m
is

e
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

ti
m

e
s
c
a

le
s
, 

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

 

•
 

U
p

d
a
te

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 P

la
n
 t

o
 

re
fl
e
c
t 

th
e

 L
o

c
a
l 
P

la
n

 a
n

d
 

L
D

S
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 
  

  A
p

ri
l 
0

6
 

L
a
tt

e
r 

s
ta

g
e

s
 o

f 
L

o
c
a

l 
P

la
n
 2

0
1

1
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

  
In

it
ia

l 
s
ta

g
e

s
 o

f 
n

e
w

 
L

o
c
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 (

a
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 

th
e

 L
D

S
) 

in
c
lu

d
e
d

 a
s
 

c
o
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 i
n

 
th

e
 2

0
0
6

/0
7

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n

 
w

it
h

 r
e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

im
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 s

p
e

lt
 o

u
t.

  
 

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 P

la
n
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
y
 

P
o

rt
fo

lio
 H

o
ld

e
r,

 a
n

d
 

s
ig

n
e

d
 o

ff
 A

p
ri

l 
0
6

. 
 W

o
rk

 o
n
 L

D
S

 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

  

6
. 

R
o

d
g

e
r 

H
o
o

d
 

 
C

o
n

s
id

e
r 

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 s
c
o

p
e
 o

f 
c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 
p

re
s
s
u

re
 o

n
 s

ta
ff
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 

•
 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 L

D
F

 t
o

 
b
e

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 
p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

   

 

Page 40



- 
4

 –
 

2
3
/0

5
/2

0
0
6

D
:\

m
o

d
er

n
g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o
cs

\6
\5

\9
\A

I0
0

0
0

3
9
5

6
\C

P
A

H
O

U
S

IN
G

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

A
C

T
IO

N
P

L
A

N
0

.d
o

c 

 
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

E
 O

F
F

IC
E

R
 

 
W

E
A

K
N

E
S

S
E

S
 

ID
E

N
T

IF
IE

D
 

 
A

C
T

IO
N

 F
O

R
 

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

 
M

IL
E

S
T

O
N

E
S

 
 

 
T

IM
E

- 
S

C
A

L
E

 

 
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 A

S
 A

T
 

Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 4

  

a
n
d

 d
e

c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e

s
 t

o
 e

n
a

b
le

 s
p

e
e

d
ie

r 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

In
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n

t 
(S

C
I)

 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 b

y
 P

la
n
n

in
g

 
R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s
 

 

•
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 

re
v
is

io
n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 S
C

I 
in

 t
h

e
 

lig
h

t 
o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 3

.2
.0

6
 

•
 

R
e

v
is

e
d

 S
C

I 
to

 b
e

 
s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 M

a
y
 0

6
. 

 
 

 D
e

c
 0

5
 

        M
a

y
 0

6
 

7
. 

K
a
ti
e

 B
a

rr
e

tt
 

    

N
o

 
S

u
p

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 
G

u
id

a
n

c
e
 (

S
P

G
) 

o
n
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 

D
ra

ft
 S

P
G

 t
o

 b
e
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 f
o

r 
c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
  

  
C

o
n

s
id

e
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 –

 p
u

b
lis

h
 

re
v
is

e
d

 d
ra

ft
, 
th

e
n

 f
in

a
l 
v
e
rs

io
n

 
w

h
e

n
 L

o
c
a

l 
P

la
n

 t
o
 2

0
1

1
 

a
d
o

p
te

d
 

 

•
 

R
e

v
is

e
d

 d
ra

ft
 t

o
 b

e
 

p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
in

s
p

e
c
to

r’
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
re

c
e
iv

e
d

 

•
 

F
in

a
l 
S

P
G

 t
o

 b
e
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 

J
u

ly
 0

6
 

M
a

y
/J

u
n

e
 

2
0
0

6
 

  J
u

ly
 0

6
 

   R
e

v
is

e
d

 d
ra

ft
 o

u
t 
to

 
p

u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 

A
p

ri
l/
M

a
y
 0

6
 

8
. 

   R
o

d
g

e
r 

H
o
o

d
 

       

C
u

rr
e
n

tl
y
 b

e
h

in
d

 
S

tr
u

c
tu

re
 P

la
n

 
2

0
0

3
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 

h
o
u

s
in

g
 

A
p

p
ly

 n
e

w
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 

re
c
e

ip
t 

o
f 

L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

 
In

s
p

e
c
to

r’
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 f

in
a

l 
a

d
o

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
P

la
n

 
 Im

p
le

m
e
n

t 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 

S
P

G
 a

n
d

 l
in

k
a

g
e

 t
o

 S
o
c
ia

l 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 G

ra
n

t.
 

   

•
 

S
e

e
k
 m

a
x
im

u
m

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 
d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
, 

in
 t

h
e

 i
n

te
ri

m
, 

 
u
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 a

n
d

 
th

re
s
h
o

ld
s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
e

d
 

b
y
 t

h
e

 i
n

s
p

e
c
to

r 
in

 h
is

 
re

p
o

rt
. 

 

•
 

L
o

c
a

l 
p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 f

o
r 

      O
c
t.

 0
4

 
o

n
w

a
rd

s
 

    

O
n

g
o
in

g
. 

 D
e

v
.C

o
n

tr
o
l 

s
ta

ff
 n

e
g
o

ti
a

ti
n
g

 w
it
h

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 a
s
 

a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

. 
 J

o
in

t 
lia

is
o

n
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

h
o
u

s
in

g
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o

 
o

p
ti
m

is
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 
a

n
d

 b
ro

a
d

e
n
 

u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
k
e
y
 

is
s
u

e
s
. 

  
  

Page 41



- 
5

 –
 

2
3
/0

5
/2

0
0
6

D
:\

m
o

d
er

n
g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o
cs

\6
\5

\9
\A

I0
0

0
0

3
9
5

6
\C

P
A

H
O

U
S

IN
G

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

A
C

T
IO

N
P

L
A

N
0

.d
o

c 

 
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

E
 O

F
F

IC
E

R
 

 
W

E
A

K
N

E
S

S
E

S
 

ID
E

N
T

IF
IE

D
 

 
A

C
T

IO
N

 F
O

R
 

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

 
M

IL
E

S
T

O
N

E
S

 
 

 
T

IM
E

- 
S

C
A

L
E

 

 
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 A

S
 A

T
 

Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 4

  

 R
o

d
g

e
r 

H
o
o

d
/ 

K
a
ti
e

 B
a

rr
e

tt
 

             R
o

d
g

e
r 

H
o

o
d

/K
a
ti
e

 
B

a
rr

e
tt

 
    

   M
o

re
 E

x
p
lic

it
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n
g

 
a

g
a

in
s
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

. 
 F

ro
m

 
L

o
c
a

l 
P

I 
to

 i
n

c
o

rp
o
ra

te
 i
n

 
s
e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

liv
e
ry

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
. 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 

   

  J
a

n
 0

6
 

F
in

a
l 
ta

rg
e
ts

 a
n

d
 

in
d

ic
a

to
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 s

e
t 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 a

d
o

p
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 
L

o
c
a

l 
P

la
n
  

  
 In

te
ri

m
 l
o

c
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
2

n
d
 

q
u
a

rt
e

r 
2

0
0
5

/0
6

. 
 

9
. 

T
im

 S
a

d
le

r 
 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

in
p

u
t 

in
to

 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

c
o
n

tr
o

l 
te

a
m

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 
a

d
v
is

e
 o

n
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
y
p

e
 

o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 n

e
e

d
e
d

 
(s

e
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 b

e
lo

w
) 

  

R
e

p
o
rt

 t
o
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
 T

h
is

 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

th
e

 j
o

in
t 

tr
a

in
in

g
  

  

D
e

c
 0

4
 

   N
o

v
 0

5
 

M
o

n
it
o

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

w
it
h

 n
e

w
 L

o
c
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 

1
0

. 
T

im
 S

a
d

le
r/

 
P

a
u

l 
S

ta
in

e
s
 

N
o

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 l
o

s
s
 

o
f 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 t

o
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
L

A
S

H
G

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 -
R

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 s
ta

ti
n

g
 o

u
r 

p
o

s
it
io

n
 

Id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 t

h
re

e
 s

tr
a

n
d

s
 t

o
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 

 

   

 C
a

p
it
a
l 
fu

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 i
n

 
b

u
d

g
e

t.
  

R
e
v
ie

w
in

g
 

Page 42



- 
6

 –
 

2
3
/0

5
/2

0
0
6

D
:\

m
o

d
er

n
g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o
cs

\6
\5

\9
\A

I0
0

0
0

3
9
5

6
\C

P
A

H
O

U
S

IN
G

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

A
C

T
IO

N
P

L
A

N
0

.d
o

c 

 
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

E
 O

F
F

IC
E

R
 

 
W

E
A

K
N

E
S

S
E

S
 

ID
E

N
T

IF
IE

D
 

 
A

C
T

IO
N

 F
O

R
 

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

 
M

IL
E

S
T

O
N

E
S

 
 

 
T

IM
E

- 
S

C
A

L
E

 

 
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 A

S
 A

T
 

Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 4

  

S
o

c
ia

l 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 

G
ra

n
t 

(L
A

S
H

G
) 

in
 t

im
e
 t

o
 f

e
e

d
 i
n

to
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d

 
s
e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
p

la
n

 
1
. 

C
a

p
it
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g
 

   2
. 

A
p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 l
o
c
a

l 
p

la
n

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 

     3
. 

h
ig

h
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
jo

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 

N
o

v
. 

0
5

 
  A

p
ri

l 
0

6
 

       N
o

v
/D

e
c
 

0
5
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a

l 
o

f 
P

F
I.

 
  D

ra
ft

 S
P

G
 o

n
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b

le
 

h
o
u

s
in

g
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 

S
L

A
G

. 
 W

ill
 n

o
w

 b
e

 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
 i
n

 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

In
s
p

e
c
to

r’
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 

o
th

e
r 

d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
. 

 F
o

llo
w

in
g
 j
o

in
t 

tr
a

in
in

g
, 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 L

P
Is

. 

1
1

. 
T

im
 S

a
d

le
r/

 
P

a
u

l 
S

ta
in

e
s
 

L
im

it
e

d
 

m
e

c
h
a

n
is

m
s
 i
n

 
p

la
c
e

 t
o

 m
a
in

ta
in

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 b

a
s
e
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 e

n
a

b
lin

g
 r

o
le

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

re
p

o
rt

 t
o

 E
x
e

c
u
ti
v
e
 o

n
 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
L

A
S

H
G

.-
 E

n
a
b

lin
g

 r
o

le
 r

e
-

fo
c
u

s
e
d

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

a
n
d

 u
p

-t
o
-d

a
te

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
 b

id
s
, 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 

n
e
g

o
ti
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
s
it
e

s
 

R
e

p
o
rt

 t
o
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
D

e
c
 0

4
 

S
ta

ff
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 f

o
u

n
d

 
fr

o
m

 e
x
is

ti
n
g

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 

c
o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 

d
a
ta

b
a

s
e

. 
 P

ro
je

c
t 

a
n

d
 

S
D

P
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 f

o
r 

2
0
0

6
/0

7
. 

1
2

. 
T

im
 S

a
d

le
r/

 
P

a
u

l 
S

ta
in

e
s
 

W
o
rs

t 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 o

n
 

B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs
 

(B
V

P
I’
s
) 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
s
 f

o
r 

B
V

P
I’
s
 

fo
r 

6
2

, 
6

4
, 

1
8

3
a
 (

V
a

le
 V

a
lu

e
 

P
ro

p
o

s
it
io

n
 (

V
V

P
) 

 
 R

e
-c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

p
o

s
it
io

n
 i
n

 r
e

s
p
e

c
t 

o
f 

1
8

3
b
  

B
V

P
I’
s
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d
 m

o
n

th
ly

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
c
a

lc
u
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 w
h
a

t 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
e

n
s
it
iv

e
 t

o
. 

   R
e

v
ie

w
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 e
tc

 f
o

r 
B

V
P

I 
6

2
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 H

C
S

 i
n
 F

e
b

 0
5

 
    R

e
p

o
rt

 t
o
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e
 o

n
 m

a
n

a
g

in
g

 

D
o

n
e

 
      F

e
b

 0
5

 
     J
u

n
e

 0
5

 

B
V

6
4
- 

N
o

 o
f 

v
a

c
a
n

t 
p

ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
d

w
e

lli
n

g
s
 

re
tu

rn
e

d
 i
n

to
 o

c
c
u

p
a

ti
o

n
 

- 
o

u
t 

o
f 

b
o
tt

o
m

 q
u
a

rt
ile

 
  B

V
6

2
- 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

e
m

p
ty

 
h

o
m

e
s
 b

o
u

g
h
t 

b
a

c
k
 i
n

to
 

u
s
e

 -
  

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

 
ta

k
e

s
 u

s
 o

u
t 

o
f 

b
o
tt

o
m

 
q

u
a

rt
ile

 
 B

V
 1

8
3

a
 A

v
e

ra
g

e
 l
e

n
g

th
 

o
f 

s
ta

y
 i
n

 B
&

B
 -

 o
u
t 

o
f 

Page 43



- 
7

 –
 

2
3
/0

5
/2

0
0
6

D
:\

m
o

d
er

n
g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o
cs

\6
\5

\9
\A

I0
0

0
0

3
9
5

6
\C

P
A

H
O

U
S

IN
G

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

A
C

T
IO

N
P

L
A

N
0

.d
o

c 

 
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

E
 O

F
F

IC
E

R
 

 
W

E
A

K
N

E
S

S
E

S
 

ID
E

N
T

IF
IE

D
 

 
A

C
T

IO
N

 F
O

R
 

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

 
M

IL
E

S
T

O
N

E
S

 
 

 
T

IM
E

- 
S

C
A

L
E

 

 
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 A

S
 A

T
 

Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 4

  

B
V

 1
8

3
b

 
b

o
tt

o
m

 q
u

a
rt

ile
. 

 R
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e
 o

n
 

m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 B

V
 1

8
3

b
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 l
e

n
g

th
 o

f 
s
ta

y
 i
n
 

a
 h

o
s
te

l 
- 

o
u

t 
o
f 

b
o
tt

o
m

 
q

u
a

rt
ile

 J
u

ly
 2

0
0

5
. 

 
S

e
c
o

n
d
 q

u
a

rt
e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 (

Y
T

D
) 

o
u

t 
o

f 
b

o
tt

o
m

 q
u
a

rt
ile

. 
 T

h
ir

d
 q

u
a
rt

ile
 i
n

 b
o
tt

o
m

 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 
d

u
e
 t

o
 r

a
is

in
g

 o
f 

b
o
tt

o
m

 q
u

a
rt

ile
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 

a
n
d

 o
n

e
 c

a
s
e

 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 

a
rr

e
a

rs
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
 

w
h

ic
h

 w
e

 i
n
te

n
d

 t
o

 
d

is
c
o

u
n

t 
fr

o
m

 o
u
r 

fi
g
u

re
s
. 

   

1
3

. 
K

a
ti
e

 B
a

rr
e

tt
 

 1
4

. 
R

o
d

g
e
r 

H
o

o
d

/K
a
ti
e

 
B

a
rr

e
tt

 
  

F
a

ili
n

g
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 
ta

rg
e

ts
 s

e
t 

in
 

S
tr

u
c
tu

re
 P

la
n

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n

d
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
g
re

e
d

 
w

it
h

 G
O

S
E

 
     

•
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 f

ir
s
t 

re
v
is

io
n

 
to

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 

N
o

v
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
0

4
 

 •
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
 

p
la

n
 w

it
h

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
 f

o
r 

S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t,
 a

s
 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
 

 

    N
o

v
 0

5
 

     

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 a
g

re
e

d
 w

it
h

 
G

O
S

E
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 0

5
. 

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 i
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 

 
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 w

it
h
 

G
O

S
E

 h
e
ld

 N
o

v
.0

5
. 

 
A

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 &
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

tr
a

je
c
to

ry
 r

e
v
is

e
d

. 
 

 

Page 44



- 
8

 –
 

2
3
/0

5
/2

0
0
6

D
:\

m
o

d
er

n
g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o
cs

\6
\5

\9
\A

I0
0

0
0

3
9
5

6
\C

P
A

H
O

U
S

IN
G

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

A
C

T
IO

N
P

L
A

N
0

.d
o

c 

 

Page 45



- 
1

 –
 

D
:\

m
o
d

er
n

g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o

cs
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5
6

\C
P

A
P

u
b

li
cS

p
ac

es
D

ia
g
n
o

st
ic

A
ct

io
n

P
la

n
0

.d
o

c 

P
U

B
L

IC
 S

P
A

C
E

S
 D

IA
G

N
O

S
T

IC
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

 2
0
0

5
 -

 0
6
 

 
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

E
 O

F
F

IC
E

R
 

 
W

E
A

K
N

E
S

S
E

S
 

ID
E

N
T

IF
IE

D
 

 
A

C
T

IO
N

 F
O

R
 

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

 
M

IL
E

S
T

O
N

E
S

 
 

 
T

IM
E

- 
S

C
A

L
E

 

 
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 A

S
 A

T
 

Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 4

 

R
o

d
g

e
r 

H
o
o

d
 

    

S
lo

w
 t

o
 f

in
a
lis

e
 

L
o
c
a

l 
P

la
n

 
C

o
n

s
id

e
r 

a
d

ju
s
ti
n

g
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 o

r 
a

llo
c
a

ti
n

g
 m

o
re

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

S
tr

e
n
g

th
e

n
 L

o
c
a
l 
P

la
n

s
 t

e
a

m
 a

n
d

 
s
p

e
e

d
 u

p
 L

o
c
a

l 
P

la
n
  

 S
e

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 D

ia
g

n
o

s
ti
c
 A

c
ti
o
n

 
P

la
n

 

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
0

5
 

C
L

O
S

E
D

 

1
. 

D
a

v
id

 S
te

v
e

n
s
 

   

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 n

o
t 

w
e

ll 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 o
r 

c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

d
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 p

u
b

lis
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 f

o
r 

k
e

y
 

e
n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d
 

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
0

5
 

  S
e

p
t 

0
5

 

•
 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h
 

(E
H

) 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

ll 
d
e

s
c
ri

b
e
d

 o
n

 w
e
b

s
it
e

 

•
 

E
H

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 t

a
b

le
 

u
n

d
e

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

 
d
u

e
 D

e
c
. 

0
5

 

•
 

D
e

la
y
e

d
, 

n
e

w
 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

 J
u

n
e

.0
6

 
 

2
. 

S
te

v
e
 B

is
h
o

p
 

L
it
tl
e

 f
o

c
u
s
 o

n
 

w
id

e
r 

s
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 

is
s
u

e
s
 

C
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e

 w
id

e
r 

s
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 r

o
le

 s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 

s
h
o

u
ld

 p
la

y
 i
n

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

is
s
u

e
s
 

R
e

s
o
lv

e
 i
ts

 f
u
tu

re
 r

o
le

 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0

5
 

P
re

lim
in

a
ry

 w
o
rk

 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
 I

n
c
o

rp
o
ra

te
d

 
in

 c
u

rr
e
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 e

.g
. 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 
 

3
. 

D
a

v
id

 S
te

v
e

n
s
 

  

S
tr

e
e

t 
c
le

a
n

in
g

 
a

n
 a

re
a
 o

f 
d

is
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h

 n
e

w
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

rs
 t

o
 

d
ir
e

c
t 

re
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 a

t 
k
e

y
 a

re
a
s
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
0

5
 

•
 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 
im

p
ro

v
e

d
. 

•
 

S
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 t
e

s
te

d
 

J
a
n

 0
6

  

•
 

R
e

s
u
lt
s
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
C

le
a

n
lin

e
s
s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 

P
la

n
 J

u
n

e
 0

6
 

4
. 

D
a

v
id

 S
te

v
e

n
s
 

 

L
o
n

g
e

r 
te

rm
 

p
la

n
s
 f

o
r 

re
fu

s
e

 
c
o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 u

n
c
le

a
r 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
 p

la
n

s
 f

o
r 

re
fu

s
e

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 

C
le

a
re

r 
p
la

n
s
 a

n
d

 b
e

tt
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
5

 
•
 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a
ti
o

n
 i
n
 

C
o

u
n
ty

-w
id

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

Page 46



- 
2

 –
 

D
:\

m
o
d

er
n

g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o

cs
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5
6

\C
P

A
P

u
b

li
cS

p
ac

es
D

ia
g
n
o

st
ic

A
ct

io
n

P
la

n
0

.d
o

c 

 
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

E
 O

F
F

IC
E

R
 

 
W

E
A

K
N

E
S

S
E

S
 

ID
E

N
T

IF
IE

D
 

 
A

C
T

IO
N

 F
O

R
 

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

 
M

IL
E

S
T

O
N

E
S

 
 

 
T

IM
E

- 
S

C
A

L
E

 

 
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 A

S
 A

T
 

Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 4

 

 
th

ro
u

g
h

 M
e
m

b
e

r 
a
n

d
 

o
th

e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 

•
 

A
d

o
p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
jo

in
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 
re

s
e
a

rc
h

 a
s
 a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

p
ri

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

0
5
/0

6
 

•
 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
re

c
o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti
o

n
s
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
e

d
 b

y
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

•
 

R
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 P

la
n

 
2
0

0
5

/0
6

 c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d
 b

y
 

N
o

v
. 

E
x
e

c
u
ti
v
e

 

•
 

R
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 P

la
n

 2
0

0
6
-

0
8

 d
u

e
 J

u
n

e
 0

6
  

5
. 

D
a

v
id

 S
te

v
e

n
s
 

   

N
e

w
 (

W
a
s
te

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t)
 

c
o
n

tr
a

c
t 

d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
 

in
c
e

n
ti
v
e

s
 f

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 

N
e

g
o

ti
a

te
 a

n
d

 a
g

re
e

 i
n
c
e

n
ti
v
e
s
 

w
it
h

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 
c
le

a
r 

in
c
e

n
ti
v
e
s
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
5

 
•
 

S
o
m

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 t
h

ro
u
g

h
 

n
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
 

•
 

B
u
lk

y
 W

a
s
te

 P
I 

a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 

•
 

L
ia

is
o

n
 w

it
h
 L

e
is

u
re

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 o

n
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

im
p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 
 

6
. 

D
a

v
id

 S
te

v
e

n
s
 

  

N
o

 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 p

u
b

lis
h

 
e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

k
e
y
 

a
re

a
s
 

R
e

d
u
c
e

d
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 t
h

ro
u

g
h
 

m
o

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 e
n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
0

5
 

•
 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

W
a
rd

e
n

 
p
o

s
t 

c
re

a
te

d
 

•
 

P
ri

n
c
ip

a
l 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h
 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
(E

H
O

) 
tr

a
n

s
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 

Page 47



- 
3

 –
 

D
:\

m
o
d

er
n

g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o

cs
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5
6

\C
P

A
P

u
b

li
cS

p
ac

es
D

ia
g
n
o

st
ic

A
ct

io
n

P
la

n
0

.d
o

c 

 
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

E
 O

F
F

IC
E

R
 

 
W

E
A

K
N

E
S

S
E

S
 

ID
E

N
T

IF
IE

D
 

 
A

C
T

IO
N

 F
O

R
 

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

 
M

IL
E

S
T

O
N

E
S

 
 

 
T

IM
E

- 
S

C
A

L
E

 

 
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 A

S
 A

T
 

Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 4

 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 t

e
a

m
 

•
 

E
H

 P
u

b
lic

 S
p

a
c
e

s
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

c
o
n

s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

n
d

 i
n
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

•
 

P
ro

s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
 

p
re

s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

fl
y
 

ti
p
p

in
g

 a
d

o
p

te
d
 b

y
 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

•
 

F
P

N
 p

o
w

e
rs

 u
n
d

e
r 

C
le

a
n

 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d
s
 &

 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

A
c
t 

d
e

le
g

a
te

d
. 

  

•
 

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

d
u

e
 J

u
n

e
 0

6
 

 

7
. 

P
a
u

l 
S

ta
in

e
s
 

    

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

s
a
fe

ty
 n

o
t 

e
m

b
e

d
d

e
d
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 c
o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e

 
re

la
ti
v
e

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

s
a
fe

ty
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

it
s
 r

e
fl
e

c
ti
o
n

 
o

n
 t

h
e

 a
c
ti
o
n

s
 c

o
n

ta
in

e
d

 w
it
h

in
 

th
e

 V
a
le

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

a
n
d

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

a
re

a
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 

N
e

w
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

d
ra

ft
e

d
. 

 N
e

w
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 c

o
m

m
u
n

ic
a
te

d
 

in
te

rn
a

lly
 

M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
0

5
 

•
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 b

y
 

E
x
e

c
u
ti
v
e

 M
a

y
 0

5
. 

•
 

S
1

7
 C

ri
m

e
 &

 
D

is
o

rd
e

r 
A

c
t 

s
e
m

in
a

r 
h
e

ld
 f

o
r 

M
e

m
b
e

rs
 

a
n

d
 S

e
n

io
r 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 
J
u
n

e
 0

5
 

•
 

F
ir

s
t 

tw
ic

e
-y

e
a
rl

y
 

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 

b
ri

e
fi
n

g
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 

8
. 

T
o
b

y
 W

a
rr

e
n

 
   

N
o

 n
e

e
d
s
 

a
n
a

ly
s
is

 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

n
d
 

n
o
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
th

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 

C
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 

n
e

e
d

s
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 a
n
d

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 p

u
b

lis
h

 a
 y

o
u

th
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

J
u

n
e

 C
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0

5
 

W
it
h
 t

h
e

 a
d

v
e

n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 

n
e
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
 C

o
u

n
ty

-w
id

e
 

C
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 Y
o

u
n

g
 

P
e

o
p

le
’s

 P
la

n
 a

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 
ti
m

e
s
c
a

le
 h

a
s
 y

e
t 

to
 b

e
 

Page 48



- 
4

 –
 

D
:\

m
o
d

er
n

g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o

cs
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5
6

\C
P

A
P

u
b

li
cS

p
ac

es
D

ia
g
n
o

st
ic

A
ct

io
n

P
la

n
0

.d
o

c 

 
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

E
 O

F
F

IC
E

R
 

 
W

E
A

K
N

E
S

S
E

S
 

ID
E

N
T

IF
IE

D
 

 
A

C
T

IO
N

 F
O

R
 

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

 
M

IL
E

S
T

O
N

E
S

 
 

 
T

IM
E

- 
S

C
A

L
E

 

 
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 A

S
 A

T
 

Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 4

 

 
d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 d
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
C

o
u

n
ty

 w
o
rk

. 
  

 A
 d

ra
ft

 C
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 
Y

o
u

n
g
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 P

la
n

 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
. 

 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 a
llo

w
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 
ti
m

e
s
c
a

le
 t

o
 b

e
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

. 
   

9
. 

C
h

ri
s
 W

e
b

b
 

N
o

 p
la

y
g

ro
u

n
d
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 p

u
b

lis
h

 a
 

p
la

y
g

ro
u
n

d
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 p

la
y
g
ro

u
n

d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 
a
n

d
 u

s
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

P
P

G
1

7
 S

u
rv

e
y
 

S
e

p
t.

 
2

0
0

5
 

S
u

rv
e

y
 d

u
e

 t
o
 b

e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 O
c
t 

0
6
. 

  

1
0

. 
T

im
 B

a
rn

e
tt

 
 

N
o

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

c
h

ild
 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 p
o

lic
y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 p

u
b

lis
h

 a
 c

h
ild

 
p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 p
o

lic
y
 

P
o

lic
y
 a

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0
0

5
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
m

b
e
d

d
in

g
 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 

 

Page 49



P
a

y
 &

 W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 H

ig
h

 L
e

v
e

l 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
  

D
:\

m
o

d
e
rn

g
o

v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a
It

e
m

D
o

c
s
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0
0
3

9
5
6
\C

P
A

H
ig

h
L

e
v
e
lP

a
y
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
S

tr
a
te

g
y
0
.d

o
c
 

N
o

te
: 

a
 n

e
w

 P
e
o

p
le

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 d
e
v

e
lo

p
e
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 t

a
b

le
 o

f 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
 w

il
l 
b

e
 r

e
v

is
e
d

 t
o

 r
e
fl

e
c
t 

th
is

 o
n

c
e
 i
t 

h
a
s

 b
e
e
n

 a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 b
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

. 
 P

W
S

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 

 a
) 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 L

e
a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 C
a
p

a
c
it

y
 –

a
m

o
n
g

 b
o
th

 o
ff

ic
e
rs

 a
n
d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
n
g

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 l

e
a
d
e
rs

 i
n
to

 l
o
c
a
l 

g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

fr
o
m

 
o
u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 s

e
c
to

r.
 

b
) 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

k
il
ls

 a
n

d
 c

a
p

a
c
it

y
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 –

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 c

e
n
tr

e
 o

f 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
, 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

fr
o
n
tl
in

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
. 

c
) 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e
 o

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 –
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 e

x
c
e
lle

n
c
e
 i
n
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t,
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g

, 
e
q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 

d
) 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

in
g

 l
o

c
a
l 
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 
–
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
a
t 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 r

e
c
ru

it
, 
tr

a
in

 a
n
d
 r

e
ta

in
 t

h
e
 s

ta
ff

 t
h
e
y
 n

e
e
d
. 

 

e
) 

P
a

y
 a

n
d

 R
e
w

a
rd

s
 –

 H
a
v
in

g
 p

a
y
 a

n
d
 r

e
w

a
rd

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 t
h
a
t 

a
tt
ra

c
t,

 r
e
ta

in
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 s
k
ill

e
d
 a

n
d
 f

le
x
ib

le
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 w

h
ile

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 v

a
lu

e
 

fo
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 i
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 
O

w
n

e
r 

C
P

A
 

R
e
f 

 
C

P
A

 A
c
ti

o
n

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 

2
0
0
5

 -
 6

 

P
W

S
 I
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
•
 A

ll 
a
u

th
o
ri

ti
e
s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

th
e
ir
 f

u
tu

re
 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
a
n

d
 h

a
v
e
 p

la
n
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

to
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 p

ri
o
ri

ty
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

•
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

g
re

e
d
 -

 p
o
s
t 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g
 

•
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

it
s
 

p
re

p
a
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

•
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

   •
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 -

 J
a
n

u
a
ry

 
2
0
0
6
 

•
 

B
u
d

g
e
t 

•
 E

x
e
c
/P

R
A

C
 

   •
 E

x
e
c
/P

R
A

C
 

•
 E

x
e
c
  

 
T

h
e
 P

e
o
p

le
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 

n
o

w
 b

e
e
n

 a
p

p
ro

v
e
d
. 

 
T

h
is

 u
n
d
e
rp

in
s
 t
h

e
 P

a
y
 

a
n
d
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 

b
e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
lic

y
 a

re
a
s
 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

Page 50



P
a

y
 &

 W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 H

ig
h

 L
e

v
e

l 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
  

D
:\

m
o

d
e
rn

g
o

v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a
It

e
m

D
o

c
s
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0
0
3

9
5
6
\C

P
A

H
ig

h
L

e
v
e
lP

a
y
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
S

tr
a
te

g
y
0
.d

o
c
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 
O

w
n

e
r 

C
P

A
 

R
e
f 

 
C

P
A

 A
c
ti

o
n

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 

2
0
0
5

 -
 6

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 L

e
a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 
C

a
p

a
c
it

y
 

•
 M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

je
c
t-

 p
o
s
t 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g
 a

n
d

 e
m

b
ra

c
in

g
 n

e
w

 V
W

H
D

C
 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
v
a
lu

e
s
 

  •
 E

x
p
a
n

d
e
d

 M
e
m

b
e
r 

D
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

  •
 E

x
te

rn
a

l 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

•
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

S
k
ill

s
 P

ro
fi
le

s
 

 •
 S

k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 c

a
p

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 o

f 
s
e
n
io

r 
H

R
 l
e
a
d

e
rs

 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 l
e
a
d

in
g
 t
o

 m
o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 p

e
o

p
le

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

 

•
 

A
w

a
it
in

g
 S

e
n

io
r 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g
 

  •
 

F
o
r 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

 
A

p
ri

l 
2

0
0
6
 

 •
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
6
 

•
 

A
p
ri

l 
2

0
0
6
 

 •
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

•
 T

B
/T

d
V

 
    •
 T

B
/B

M
c
/R

F
 

  •
 P

R
A

C
 

•
 T

B
/D

Q
/R

F
 

 •
 T

B
/R

F
 

2
.1

 
        4
.2

 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 i
n
te

rn
a

l 
le

a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 
a
lig

n
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

P
o
rt

fo
lio

s
 

a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

a
n
d
 D

ir
e
c
to

rs
 

   M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
k
ill

s
 n

o
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 

Page 51



P
a

y
 &

 W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 H

ig
h

 L
e

v
e

l 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
  

D
:\

m
o

d
e
rn

g
o

v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a
It

e
m

D
o

c
s
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0
0
3

9
5
6
\C

P
A

H
ig

h
L

e
v
e
lP

a
y
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
S

tr
a
te

g
y
0
.d

o
c
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 
O

w
n

e
r 

C
P

A
 

R
e
f 

 
C

P
A

 A
c
ti

o
n

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 

2
0
0
5

 -
 6

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

k
il
ls

 a
n

d
 

c
a
p

a
c
it

y
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

 

•
 E

x
p
a
n

d
e
d

 I
n
-H

o
u
s
e
 T

ra
in

in
g
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 

o
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
ls

 

•
 E

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

e
-s

k
ill

s
 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

•
 P

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

3
-y

e
a
r 

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
s
 
- 

p
o
s
t 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g

 
a
n
d
 
e
m

b
ra

c
in

g
 
n
e

w
 

V
W

H
D

C
 M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
v
a
lu

e
s
 

•
 C

o
n
d

u
c
t 
a
 s

k
ill

s
 a

u
d
it
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 s

k
ill

s
 f

o
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 p

ro
je

c
t 
m

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t,
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t,
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
, 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
th

in
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 c
h
a
n

g
e
 m

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
 

•
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 I

n
tr

o
d
u
c
e

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
io

n
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e
 

s
ys

te
m

s
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n

d
 b

ri
n

g
 o

n
 '
h
ig

h
 f

lie
rs

' f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 l
e
a

d
e
rs

h
ip

 p
o
s
it
io

n
s
 

•
 D

e
fi
n
e
 a

n
y
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

c
a
re

e
r 

g
ra

d
e
s
 

•
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
 C

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
y
-b

a
r 

c
ri
te

ri
a
 

•
 A

d
o

p
t 

a
g
re

e
d
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 o
f 

le
a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 
c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
 f

o
r 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

. 
 

•
 R

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 r
e
la

u
n
c
h
 o

f 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
h
e
m

e
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 f

a
ir
 b

u
t 
ro

b
u
s
t 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
to

 d
e

a
l 
w

it
h
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

h
e
re

 i
t 
o
c
c
u
rs

 

•
 C

o
n
s
id

e
r 

e
x
te

n
d
in

g
 f

le
x
ib

le
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 

•
 I

m
p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n
 S

tr
e
s
s
 R

is
k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
s
 

•
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
5
 

 •
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
6
 

•
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
6
 

  •
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

- 
if
 s

ti
ll 

re
q
u

ir
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

s
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g
 

 •
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

•
 

P
a
rt

 o
f 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

•
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
6
 

•
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
6
 

•
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 
2
0
0
6

  
   •
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
6
 

 •
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

 •
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
6
 

•
 J

P
 /
 T

B
 

 •
 R

F
 /
 T

B
 

•
 P

R
A

C
 /
 T

B
 

  •
 P

R
A

C
 /
 T

B
 

    •
 P

R
A

C
 /
 T

B
 

•
 P

R
A

C
 /
 T

B
/ 

B
M

c
 

 •
 P

R
A

C
 /
 T

B
 

•
 P

R
A

C
 /
 T

B
 

•
 P

R
A

C
 /
 T

B
 

 •
 P

R
A

C
 /
 T

B
 

   •
 P

R
A

C
 /
 T

B
 

 •
 P

R
A

C
 /
 T

B
 

4
.3

 
C

a
p
a
c
it
y
 o

f 
k
e

y 
s
ta

ff
 

n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 

Page 52



P
a

y
 &

 W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 H

ig
h

 L
e

v
e

l 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
  

D
:\

m
o

d
e
rn

g
o

v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a
It

e
m

D
o

c
s
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0
0
3

9
5
6
\C

P
A

H
ig

h
L

e
v
e
lP

a
y
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
S

tr
a
te

g
y
0
.d

o
c
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 
O

w
n

e
r 

C
P

A
 

R
e
f 

 
C

P
A

 A
c
ti

o
n

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 

2
0
0
5

 -
 6

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 

•
 I

n
v
e
s
to

rs
 i
n
 P

e
o
p
le

 R
e
-a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

  •
 R

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 r
e
la

u
n
c
h
 o

f 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 A

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
S

c
h
e
m

e
 

•
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 r

e
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

•
 E

q
u

a
l 
P

a
y
 A

u
d

it
 

•
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

o
 b

e
 f

o
rm

u
la

te
d
 

•
 S

tr
u
c
tu

re
 

a
n

d
 

S
ta

ff
in

g
 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

&
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 p

o
s
ts

 n
e

e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

•
 A

p
p

o
in

tm
e
n
t 
o
f 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

 •
 E

x
p
lo

ra
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 

•
 E

x
p
lo

ra
ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e

w
 w

a
y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e
 B

V
 

4
 C

s
 

 •
 E

x
te

n
d

e
d
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 e

m
p
lo

y
e

e
 d

a
ta

 v
ia

 E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 S

e
lf
-

S
e
rv

ic
e
 M

o
d

u
le

 o
f 

H
R

 S
y
s
te

m
 

•
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
 s

tr
e
s
s
 r

is
k
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 

•
 I

n
tr

o
d
u
c
e

 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
io

n
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

h
a

v
e

 
s
ys

te
m

s
 t

o
 i

d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n

d
 b

ri
n
g
 o

n
 '

h
ig

h
 f

lie
rs

' 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 l
e
a

d
e
rs

h
ip

 p
o
s
it
io

n
s
 

•
 1

0
0
%

 c
a

p
a
b

ili
ty

 i
n
 e

le
c
tr

o
n

ic
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

y
 2

0
0
5

 i
n

 w
a

ys
 t
h

a
t 
c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 w
ill

 u
s
e
 

•
 I

d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 w

a
y
s
 t
h

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
rg

a
n

is
e
s
, 
p
ro

c
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
rs

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t’
s
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 

•
 R

e
d
e
s
ig

n
in

g
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
w

o
rk

fl
o

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
u
ra

c
y
 

•
 

F
e
b
 2

0
0
6
  

  •
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
6
 

 •
 

A
p
ri

l 
2

0
0
7
 

•
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
6
 

•
 

A
p
ri

l 
2

0
0
6
 

•
 

F
ro

m
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
4
 

•
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 O

c
t 
2

0
0
5
 

•
 

A
n
n

u
a

lly
 w

it
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

p
la

n
s
 

•
 

A
n
n

u
a

lly
 w

it
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

p
la

n
s
 

 •
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
6
 

  •
 

P
o
s
t-

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n

g
 

•
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 P

a
rt

 o
f 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
 

•
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 

  •
 

A
n
n

u
a

lly
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

b
u
d
g

e
t 

  •
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
6
 

 

•
 E

x
e
c
/P

R
A

C
/T

B
 

 •
 P

R
A

C
/T

B
 

 •
 P

R
A

C
/T

B
 

•
 P

R
A

C
/T

B
 

•
 N

M
/E

x
e
c
  

•
 J

P
 /
 T

A
S

 
 •
 T

A
S

  
 •
 E

x
e
c
 

•
 E

x
e
c
 

   •
 P

R
A

C
/T

B
  

  •
 J

P
/T

B
 

P
R

A
C

/T
B

/ 
B

M
c
 

 •
 P

R
A

C
/T

B
 

   •
 P

R
A

C
/T

B
 

  •
 T

B
/ 
P

ro
je

c
t 

B
o
a
rd

 
 

1
.1

 
  1
.3

 
   2
.1

 
      2
.3

 
   3
.1

 
   3
.2

 
 5
.1

 
   5
.2

 
  5
.3

 
  

R
e
fi
n
e
 a

n
d
 s

im
p
lif

y
 

v
is

io
n
, 

a
im

s
, 
a
n
d
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

 Im
p
ro

v
e
 i
n
te

rn
a

l 
le

a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 
a
lig

n
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

P
o
rt

fo
lio

s
 

a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

a
n
d
 D

ir
e
c
to

rs
 

 P
ri
o
ri

ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 
n
e
e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 c

le
a
r 

 A
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e

 c
h
a
n

g
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 e

m
b
e
d
d
e

d
 

 S
h
a
ri

n
g
 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
 l
e
a
rn

t 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
C

u
lt
u
re

 
n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 e

m
b
e
d
d
e

d
 

 U
s
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 

 B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 4

C
s
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 

b
e
 m

o
re

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 

a
p
p

lie
d
 

Page 53



P
a

y
 &

 W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 H

ig
h

 L
e

v
e

l 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
  

D
:\

m
o

d
e
rn

g
o

v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a
It

e
m

D
o

c
s
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0
0
3

9
5
6
\C

P
A

H
ig

h
L

e
v
e
lP

a
y
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
S

tr
a
te

g
y
0
.d

o
c
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 
O

w
n

e
r 

C
P

A
 

R
e
f 

 
C

P
A

 A
c
ti

o
n

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 

2
0
0
5

 -
 6

 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

in
g

 l
o

c
a
l 

g
o

v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 
•
 R

e
-c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 p

o
s
t 

le
is

u
re

 
tr

u
s
t 

•
 C

o
n
s
id

e
r 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
&

 r
e

te
n
ti
o

n
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

•
 R

e
v
ie

w
 M

a
n
a
g

in
g

 O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

h
a
n
g

e
 

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 

•
 P

ro
d
u
c
e
 

P
e
o

p
le

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

e
m

b
ra

c
in

g
 

n
e

w
 

V
W

H
D

C
 M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
v
a
lu

e
s
 

•
 A

d
d
re

s
s
 s

ta
ff

 t
u
rn

o
v
e
r 

(L
P

I 
H

R
1
) 

•
 E

q
u

a
l 
P

a
y
 A

u
d

it
 

•
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
 s

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 

•
 I

n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
s
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

 a
n
d
 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

•
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
e

e
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s
 

•
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 

•
 C

o
n
s
id

e
r 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
d

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 a
 

s
h
o
rt

a
g
e
 o

f 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 

•
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
 o

n
-l
in

e
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

•
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
6
 

 •
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

•
 C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 •
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0

0
6
 

 •
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
6
 

•
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
6
 

•
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

•
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
0
6
 

 •
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
0
7
 

•
 C

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 F

e
b
 2

0
0

5
 

 •
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

 •
 C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

•
 

T
A

S
/ 

P
R

A
C

 

•
 J

P
/T

B
 

•
 P

R
A

C
/T

B
 

 •
 P

R
A

C
/T

B
 

 •
 P

R
A

C
/T

B
 

•
 P

R
A

C
/T

B
 

•
 P

R
A

C
/T

B
 

•
 R

F
/T

B
 

 •
 P

R
A

C
/T

B
 

•
 E

x
e
c
 

 •
  
E

x
e
c
 

 •
 T

B
 

1
.2

 
      4
.1

 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h
e
 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 s

tr
a
n

d
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

le
a

d
 b

y
 o

th
e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 
 E

n
s
u
re

 s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 
to

 d
e

liv
e
r 

a
g
re

e
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

P
a

y
 a

n
d

 R
e
w

a
rd

s
 

•
 C

o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

to
 

b
e
c
o
m

e
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
r 

o
f 

C
h
o
ic

e
 

•
 E

q
u

a
l 
P

a
y
 A

u
d

it
 

•
 D

e
fi
n
e
 a

n
y
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

c
a
re

e
r 

g
ra

d
e
s
 

•
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
 C

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
y
-b

a
r 

c
ri
te

ri
a
 

•
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0

0
6
 

 •
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
6
 

•
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0

0
6
 

•
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0

0
6
 

 

•
 P

R
A

C
/T

B
 

 •
 P

R
A

C
/T

B
 

•
 P

R
A

C
/T

B
 

•
 P

R
A

C
/T

B
 

 
 

       T
im

 B
a
rn

e
tt
 

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
(H

u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
) 

2
8
.1

1
.0

4
 

R
e
v
is

e
d
 2

2
.0

7
.0

5
, 
0

4
.1

1
.0

5
, 
0
2
.0

2
.0

6
, 
0

3
.0

5
.0

6
, 
2
3

/5
/0

6
 

Page 54



IE
G

  
  
 C

P
A

 A
ct

io
n

s 
R

ep
o

rt
: 

A
p

ri
l 

2
0
0

6
 

  
  
  

  
  
  

 J
er

e
m

y
 B

ea
c
h

 
A

p
p
en

d
ix

 1
e 

 
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

E
 

O
F

F
IC

E
R

 

 
W

E
A

K
N

E
S

S
E

S
 

ID
E

N
T

IF
IE

D
 

 
A

C
T

IO
N

 F
O

R
 

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

 
M

IL
E

S
T

O
N

E
S

 
 

 
T

IM
E

- 
S

C
A

L
E

 
 

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

 A
S

 
A

T
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 4
  

2
0

0
5

-0
6
 

J
e

re
m

y
 B

e
a

c
h

 
     

B
V

P
I 

1
5

7
 s

c
o

re
 i
s
 i
n

 l
o
w

e
r 

q
u

a
rt

ile
 

(n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
ra

n
k
in

g
s
) 

a
t 

8
7

.6
%

, 
th

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
d

if
fe

re
n

c
e
s
 

b
e
tw

e
e

n
 a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 a

re
 e

x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 
s
m

a
ll.

 
 S

p
e

c
if
ic

 w
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
e
s
: 

•
 

L
a

c
k
 o

f 
o

n
lin

e
 t

ra
n

s
a

c
ti
o

n
a

l 
lic

e
n
s
in

g
 p

re
s
e

n
c
e

 

•
 

L
im

it
e

d
 e

-p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

•
 

L
im

it
e

d
 c

a
rd

 p
a

y
m

e
n
ts

 v
ia

 
te

le
p

h
o

n
e
 /

 f
a

c
e
 t

o
 f

a
c
e

 

•
 

N
o

 o
n

lin
e

 p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 

 

•
 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

ro
-

a
c
ti
v
e

 w
o

rk
 o

n
: 

•
 

O
n

lin
e

 l
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 

p
re

s
e
n

c
e

 

•
 

O
n

lin
e

 f
o

rm
s
 f

o
r 

v
a

ri
o

u
s
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 w

h
e

re
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 

•
 

T
e
le

p
h

o
n

e
 a

c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

 
o

f 
c
a

rd
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

 

N
o

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

m
ile

s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
a
s
 i
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

d
e
le

te
d

. 

C
L

O
S

E
D

 
B

V
P

I 
1

5
7
 =

 8
7
.6

%
 

J
e

re
m

y
 B

e
a

c
h

 
O

D
P

M
 I

E
G

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

. 
 

 T
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 
e

n
ti
re

ly
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

f 
V

W
H

D
C

 a
n
d

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
h

a
d

 a
n

 
e

x
p

lic
it
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 n

o
t 

to
 p

ro
c
e

e
d
 a

re
 

c
u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 A

M
B

E
R

 (
in

 o
th

e
r 

w
o

rd
s
 

u
n
d

e
r 

w
a

y
 b

u
t 

n
o

t 
c
o

m
p

le
te

) 

 R
9

 E
-P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n

t 

R
1

0
 O

n
lin

e
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 

G
1

3
 P

a
rk

in
g

 o
n

lin
e

 f
o
rm

s
 

G
2

0
 W

e
b
s
it
e

 c
o

n
fo

rm
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 A
A

 
a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

ili
ty

 r
a
ti
n

g
 

R
2

8
 A

u
to

m
a

te
d
 e

m
a

il 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 

a
n
d

 u
n

iq
u

e
 r

e
fe

re
n

c
e

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 

R
2

9
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 t

o
 e

m
a

ils
 w

it
h

in
 

R
9

 –
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

F
S

R
 

R
1

0
 –

 t
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
d

e
la

y
s
 n

o
w

 
o

v
e

rc
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 d

u
e
 f

o
r 

la
u

n
c
h
 s

p
ri

n
g

 2
0

0
6

 
G

1
3

 –
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
n

lin
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 p

ro
je

c
t,

 w
ill

 d
e

liv
e

r 
la

te
 

G
2

0
 –

o
n
 t

ra
c
k
 a

n
d

 d
u
e

 
s
u
m

m
e

r 
2

0
0

6
 

R
2

8
 –

 v
e

ry
 t

ri
c
k
y
 f

o
r 

w
h

o
le

 
o

rg
a
n

iz
a
ti
o

n
: 

n
e

e
d

s
 a

 
p

ro
p
e

r 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 
R

2
9

 –
 d

it
to

 
G

2
5

 –
 c

a
n

 c
re

a
te

 o
n

lin
e

 
fo

rm
 b

u
t 

m
o

s
t 

w
o

rk
 t

o
 b

e
 

d
o
n

e
 b

e
h

in
d

 s
c
e

n
e

s
, 

w
ill

 b
e

 
la

te
 

 

C
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e

s
e
 

‘R
’ 
o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 

s
h
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 
b

e
e

n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y
 

3
1
/1

2
/0

5
 a

n
d

 
‘G

’ 
o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 

b
y
 3

1
/0

3
/0

6
. 

 
 M

o
s
t 

o
f 

th
e

s
e
 

‘a
m

b
e

r’
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
re

 
n

o
w

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 

to
 b

e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 
fr

o
m

 M
a

rc
h

 
th

ro
u

g
h
 t

o
 

A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

0
6
. 

 
 

S
e

e
 I

E
G

6
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

o
n

 o
u

r 
w

e
b

 s
it
e

 a
t 

h
tt

p
:/

/v
a

le
w

e
b

/I
m

a
g

e
s
/I

E
G

6
S

ta
te

m
e
n

t1
0

A
p

ri
l0

6
_

tc
m

4
-

9
8
9

1
.p

d
f 

  

Page 55



IE
G

  
  
 C

P
A

 A
ct

io
n

s 
R

ep
o

rt
: 

A
p

ri
l 

2
0
0

6
 

  
  
  

  
  
  

 J
er

e
m

y
 B

ea
c
h

 
A

p
p
en

d
ix

 1
e 

o
n
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y
 

G
2

5
 S

in
g

le
 n

o
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

a
d
d

re
s
s
 

 

Page 56



IEG     CPA Actions Report: April 2006 

             Jeremy Beach 

Appendix 1e 
Addendum to CPA Actions IEG Update May 2006 
 

1. Directors will be aware that the national ‘e-government’ agenda came to an end on 31
st
 March 2006. 

This was marked by the submission of a final IEG Statement in April 2006 which reported progress 
against a number of factors: 

 
a. ODPM Priority Service Outcomes (mandatory); 
b. Change Management (expected); 
c. BVPI 157; 
d. Take-up; 
e. Expenditure; 
f. Efficiency Gains. 

 
2. In summary, the Vale has achieved a lot in the last 4 years. It has raised its BVPI 157 score from 

25% to 88%, with the majority of the remaining points within striking distance. It has ensured that it 
has either achieved or has active work streams for all of the mandatory outcomes under its direct 
control. It has also addressed the vast majority of non-mandatory outcomes. It has driven take-up of 
online and telephone call-centre channels beyond initial expectations and the Council is now in an 
excellent position to use these as building blocks for further service delivery improvements. The 
Council has matched ODPM expenditure and should expect to see modest efficiency gains in 2006-
7, with the opportunity for considerably increased efficiency gains in 2007-8 and onwards. 

 
3. There is no longer a requirement to report against the ODPM outcomes or BVPI 157. However, it 

would be foolish if the Council was to run-down its work related to e-enabling services and re-
engineering processes. There are two main reasons to continue or even increase the pace of e-
government reform: 

 
a. The national ‘Transformational Government’ agenda, which has been launched as a 

replacement for e-government. This picks up and refocuses on the same themes as before. 
However, there is no longer the carrot of funding, but the probability of the stick of 
assessment and censure. 

b. Local necessity. This authority is under continuing pressure to deliver efficiency gains and 
provide services in the ways which customers want to use them. These two aims are 
complimentary, not conflicting, as online services are both customer-orientated and efficient. 

 
4. ‘Transformational government’ outcomes should be incorporated into the strategic direction of the 

authority, and cascaded down to become concrete service development aims for individual 
departments. A separate paper will be presented to Directors outlining practical examples for 
incorporation into strategic plans for the Council. 

 
5. ‘E-government’ has been accorded a special place in the council’s planning and monitoring hierarchy 

through the IEG Steering Group. It has been suggested that this be disbanded. If this is going to be 
the case, then it is imperative that the on-going ‘T-government’ agenda is represented through a 
presence on another key strategic group, such as customer services or performance development. 
This sort of work cuts across departmental silos and can deliver real long-term improvements in 
terms of expenditure and customer service delivery – it is crucial that the Council does not lose its 
commitment to such an agenda at a time when it could benefit from it the most. 

 
 
Jeremy Beach 
2

nd
 May 2006 

 

 

Page 57



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

. 
 O

u
r 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 i

n
 2

0
0

5
/0

6
.

K
e

y
:

N
/a

 =
 N

o
t 
A

p
p

lic
a

b
le

T
o

p
 a

n
d

 B
o

tt
o

m
 q

u
a

rt
ile

 d
a

ta
 is

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
a

ll 
E

n
g

la
n

d
 A

u
th

o
ri
tie

s
R

e
d

 -
 o

ff
 t

a
rg

e
t

�

T
re

n
d

 a
rr

o
w

s
: 

c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 f

o
u

rt
h

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 t

h
ir

d
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

0
0

5
/6

 (
n

o
t 

p
o

s
s

ib
le

 f
o

r 
a

ll
 B

V
P

Is
) 

Y
e

ll
o

w
 -

 o
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
�

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

 0
4

/0
5

 c
o

lu
m

n
: 

a
c

tu
a

l 
0

4
/0

5
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
0

4
/0

5
 q

u
a

rt
il
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 d

a
ta

 
G

re
e

n
 -

 a
b

o
v

e
 t

a
rg

e
t

�

T
 =

 t
o

p
; 

B
 =

 b
o

tt
o

m
; 

M
 =

 m
id

d
le

 q
u

a
rt

il
e

B
V

P
I

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
T

g
t/

 I
n

d
T

Q
 0

4
/0

5
B

Q
 0

4
/0

5
A

c
tu

a
l 

0
4

/0
5

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

 

0
4

/0
5

T
a

rg
e

t 

0
5

/0
6

A
c

tu
a

l 
Q

1
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

2
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

3
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

4
o

n
/o

ff
 

T
g

t
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

T
re

n
d

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 H
e

a
lt

h

2
a

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 f
o

r 
L

o
c

a
l 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
(L

e
v

e
l 
0

 -
 5

)
T

0
0

2
2

2
2

2
1

H
o

u
s
in

g
 I
n
s
p
e

c
to

ra
te

 c
h
a

lle
n
g
e

d
 t
h
e

 c
la

im
 t
o

 l
e

v
e

l 
2

. 
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 

a
n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
im

p
a

c
t 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

 b
y
 s

e
v
e

ra
l 
d

e
p
ts

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

d
e

la
y
e

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
c
h
a

n
g
e

. 
�

2
b

T
h

e
 d

u
ty

 t
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 r

a
c

e
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

 

c
h

e
c

k
li
s

t 
s

c
o

re
 (

%
)

T
7

2
4

2
5

3
M

6
8

5
3

5
3

5
3

4
7

A
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 t
h
e

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
la

im
e

d
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 b

y
 2

. 
(a

) 
T

h
e

 A
u
d

it
o

rs
 

c
h
a

lle
n
g
e

d
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 l
e

v
e

ls
 (

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 H

R
).

 (
b
) 

T
h
e

 s
lip

p
a

g
e

 

in
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 R

a
c
e

 E
q
u
a

lit
y
 S

c
h
e

m
e

 i
s
 n

o
w

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t,
 a

n
d

 ‘
re

v
ie

w
e

d
 

re
g
u
la

rl
y
’ 
is

 n
o

t 
b
e

in
g
 c

la
im

e
d

 a
s
 a

n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

m
e

n
t,
 a

s
 i
t 
h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

, 

w
h
ile

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 w

e
re

 a
w

a
it
e

d
.

�

8
0

T
9

5
.9

7
8

8
.6

5
9

1
.0

5
M

1
0

0
9

4
.1

3
9

4
.8

9
3

.9
8

9
2

.8
8

B
o

tt
o

m
 q

u
a

rt
ile

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a

ry
 a

n
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
6

 d
ra

g
g
e

d
 d

o
w

n
 

a
n
n
u
a

l 
p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

�

9
0

T
9

8
.3

9
6

.3
6

9
9

.5
T

9
9

.3
2

9
.8

5
8

.1
9

8
6

.7
2

9
9

.1
L

o
w

e
r 

ta
rg

e
ts

 f
o

r 
2

0
0

6
/7

 d
u
e

 t
o

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

is
ru

p
ti
o

n
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 m
a

rk
e

t 

te
s
ti
n
g
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 a

n
d

 o
u
ts

o
u
rc

in
g
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 -

 p
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n

�

1
0

0
T

9
9

.1
4

9
8

9
9

.7
T

9
9

.4
2

9
.2

6
5

9
.7

9
0

.8
3

9
9

.2
a

s
 f

o
r 

B
V

P
I 
9

�

Page 

1
1

a
0

I
4

0
.2

3
1

9
.6

3
1

6
.6

7
B

2
0

1
3

.3
3

1
3

.3
3

1
3

.3
3

1
4

.2
9

�

58

1
1

b
0

I
3

.4
8

0
0

B
1

.7
5

7
.1

4
7

.1
4

7
.1

4
7

.1
4

�

1
1

c
0

I
0

0
0

7
7

.1
4

7
.1

4
7

.1
4

7
.6

9
N

e
w

 i
n
d

ic
a

to
r

�

1
2

0
T

8
.4

1
1

.1
9

.2
2

M
9

9
.3

2
8

.0
8

8
.4

1
0

S
e

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
t 
in

 'S
ta

ff
in

g
 I
s
s
u
e

s
' s

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
a

c
e

 

re
p
o

rt
 

�

1
4

0
I

0
.1

6
0

.8
4

1
.5

3
B

0
.2

5
0

0
0

0
�

1
5

0
I

0
.1

2
0

.4
4

0
T

0
.2

5
0

0
0

0
�

1
6

a
0

I
3

.7
3

1
.4

9
4

.3
T

4
.1

4
.6

6
4

.6
9

5
.4

5
5

.9
�

1
7

a
0

I
4

.6
0

.9
2

.4
M

2
.4

2
.4

7
2

.1
7

2
.2

4
2

.5
8

�

1
5

7
0

T
8

7
.5

6
6

.5
9

6
9

.1
M

1
0

0
7

4
.5

7
6

.1
7

8
.8

8
7

.6

T
h
e

 m
a

in
 r

e
a

s
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

n
o

t 
m

e
e

ti
n
g
 t
h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
w

e
re

:

(a
) 

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 n

o
t 
h
a

v
in

g
 a

n
 o

n
lin

e
 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
a

l 
p
re

s
e

n
c
e

; 
[t
h
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
a

lt
 

w
it
h
 p

ro
-a

c
ti
v
e

ly
 r

ig
h
t 
n
o

w
]

(b
) 

L
a

c
k
 o

f 
e

-e
n
a

b
le

d
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

a
 r

a
n
g
e

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
; 
[t
h
is

 i
s
 

s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 r
o

ll-
o

u
t 
o

f 
o

n
lin

e
 f

o
rm

s
 a

n
d

 t
e

le
p
h
o

n
e

 c
re

d
it
 c

a
rd

 p
a

y
m

e
n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
]

(c
) 

L
a

c
k
 o

f 
c
o

u
n
c
il-

w
id

e
 e

-p
ro

c
u
re

m
e

n
t.
 [
th

is
 i
s
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h
e

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e

n
t]
.

�

H
o

u
s

in
g

6
4

0
T

5
6

.2
5

4
1

1
M

4
0

3
4

5
�

D
:\
m

o
d

e
rn

g
o

v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5

6
\B

V
P

If
in

a
lv

e
rs

io
n

Q
4

2
0

0
5

0
6

1
1

0
.x

ls
1

 o
f 
1

4
2

4
/0

5
/0

6

Page 58



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

. 
 O

u
r 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 i

n
 2

0
0

5
/0

6
.

K
e

y
:

N
/a

 =
 N

o
t 
A

p
p

lic
a

b
le

T
o

p
 a

n
d

 B
o

tt
o

m
 q

u
a

rt
ile

 d
a

ta
 is

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
a

ll 
E

n
g

la
n

d
 A

u
th

o
ri
tie

s
R

e
d

 -
 o

ff
 t

a
rg

e
t

�

T
re

n
d

 a
rr

o
w

s
: 

c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 f

o
u

rt
h

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 t

h
ir

d
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

0
0

5
/6

 (
n

o
t 

p
o

s
s

ib
le

 f
o

r 
a

ll
 B

V
P

Is
) 

Y
e

ll
o

w
 -

 o
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
�

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

 0
4

/0
5

 c
o

lu
m

n
: 

a
c

tu
a

l 
0

4
/0

5
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
0

4
/0

5
 q

u
a

rt
il
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 d

a
ta

 
G

re
e

n
 -

 a
b

o
v

e
 t

a
rg

e
t

�

T
 =

 t
o

p
; 

B
 =

 b
o

tt
o

m
; 

M
 =

 m
id

d
le

 q
u

a
rt

il
e

B
V

P
I

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
T

g
t/

 I
n

d
T

Q
 0

4
/0

5
B

Q
 0

4
/0

5
A

c
tu

a
l 

0
4

/0
5

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

 

0
4

/0
5

T
a

rg
e

t 

0
5

/0
6

A
c

tu
a

l 
Q

1
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

2
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

3
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

4
o

n
/o

ff
 

T
g

t
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

T
re

n
d

1
8

3
a

0
T

1
5

4
.4

6
M

6
2

.7
1

4
.3

8
3

.1
4

3
.2

6

2
0

0
4

/0
5

 Y
E

 f
ig

u
re

 r
e

c
a

lc
u
la

te
d

 f
u
rt

h
e

r 
to

 E
x
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 (

w
a

s
 i
n
it
ia

lly
 

c
a

lc
u
la

te
d

 a
s
 5

.7
3

 w
e

e
k
s
) 

N
e

w
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e

 f
ro

m
 O

D
P

M
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ts

 e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 o

f 

c
e

rt
a

in
 a

p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
is

 c
a

lc
u
la

ti
o

n
. 
A

n
y
 s

ta
y
s
 i
n
 B

&
B

 p
ri
o

r 
to

 

0
1

/0
4

/2
0

0
4

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 d
is

c
o

u
n
te

d
. 
T

h
is

 n
e

w
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e

 w
a

s
 i
s
s
u
e

d
 i
n
 Q

3
 a

n
d

 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

e
n
d

 c
a

lc
u
la

ti
o

n
 r

e
fl
e

c
ts

 t
h
is

 c
h
a

n
g
e

.

�

1
8

3
b

0
T

0
1

8
2

7
.8

9
B

2
0

1
2

.3
6

1
2

.3
6

2
3

.2
3

1
2

.3
2

�

2
0

2
0

T
0

0
1

1
0

0
0

0
N

/a

2
0

3
0

T
-6

.9
4

2
8

.3
1

-1
5

.7
7

T
5

0
0

0
-1

4
.2

T
h
e

 s
u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
h
o

m
e

le
s
s
n
e

s
s
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 l
e

d
 t
o

 a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 t
h
e

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
 (

a
n
d

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
) 

in
 t
e

m
p
o

ra
ry

 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 p

la
c
in

g
 u

s
 i
n
 t
h
e

 T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

 a
g
a

in
.

N
/a

2
1

3

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

h
o

u
s

e
h

o
ld

s
  
c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
  

h
o

m
e

le
s

s
 f

o
r 

w
h

o
m

 h
o

u
s

in
g

 a
d

v
ic

e
 

c
a

s
e

w
o

rk
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 r

e
s

o
lv

e
d

 t
h

e
ir

 

s
it

u
a

ti
o

n
.

I
0

0
0

T
0

0
.1

0
.3

7
0

.7
9

2
N

/a

T
a

rg
e

t 
n
o

t 
re

q
u
ir
e

d
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
5

/6
. 
N

u
m

b
e

r 
is

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
 

a
s
s
is

te
d

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
c
a

s
e

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 d
iv

id
in

g
 t
h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 b
y
 t
h
e

 n
u
m

b
e

r 

o
f 

th
o

u
s
a

n
d

 h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
 i
n
 t
h
e

 V
a

le
 (

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 f

ig
u
re

 -
 4

8
,6

2
4

).
 N

e
w

 

P
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

in
 p

la
c
e

 s
in

c
e

 S
e

p
te

m
b
e

r 
2

0
0

5
. 
F

ig
u
re

 o
f 

3
.3

3
%

 r
e

la
te

s
 

to
 9

0
 s

u
c
c
e

s
fu

l 
p
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 c

a
s
e

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 i
n
 t
h
e

 2
0

0
5

/0
6

 F
Y

.

N
/a

2
1

4
0

I
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

.4
9

3
.3

3
N

/a
T

a
rg

e
t 
n
o

t 
re

q
u
ir
e

d
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
5

/6
. 
3

 R
e

p
e

a
t 
h
o

m
e

le
s
s
n
e

s
s
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

th
e

 y
e

a
r.

N
/a

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

Page

7
6

a
0

T
2

8
2

.1
6

1
5

5
.8

6
2

6
9

.5
5

M
2

7
3

6
8

1
5

2
.9

2
2

1
7

.4
3

2
8

3
.7

W
e

ll 
a

b
o

v
e

 t
a

rg
e

t
�

59

7
6

b
0

T
0

0
0

.1
8

0
.1

9
0

.1
9

0
.3

8
0

.3
8

0
.3

8

A
b
o

v
e

 t
a

rg
e

t

�

7
6

c
0

T
5

3
.4

2
4

.0
1

8
2

.5
9

T
8

9
2

5
.8

2
4

8
.9

3
7

7
.6

8
1

1
8

.6
5

A
b
o

v
e

 t
a

rg
e

t

�

7
6

d
0

T
5

.3
1

2
.0

6
1

2
.4

5
T

1
0

2
.5

5
.5

6
9

.1
6

1
5

.0
2

W
e

ll 
a

b
o

v
e

 t
a

rg
e

t

�

7
8

a
0

T
2

9
.3

8
4

4
.5

5
2

5
T

3
6

2
7

3
4

2
4

2
6

A
b
o

v
e

 t
a

rg
e

t

�

7
8

b
0

T
7

.4
1

4
.9

5
T

9
8

8
6

6

A
b
o

v
e

 t
a

rg
e

t

�

7
9

a
0

T
9

9
9

6
.2

9
9

T
9

9
9

8
.4

1
0

0
1

0
0

9
9

O
n
 t
a

rg
e

t

�

D
:\
m

o
d

e
rn

g
o

v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5

6
\B

V
P

If
in

a
lv

e
rs

io
n

Q
4

2
0

0
5

0
6

1
1

0
.x

ls
2

 o
f 
1

4
2

4
/0

5
/0

6

Page 59



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

. 
 O

u
r 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 i

n
 2

0
0

5
/0

6
.

K
e

y
:

N
/a

 =
 N

o
t 
A

p
p

lic
a

b
le

T
o

p
 a

n
d

 B
o

tt
o

m
 q

u
a

rt
ile

 d
a

ta
 is

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
a

ll 
E

n
g

la
n

d
 A

u
th

o
ri
tie

s
R

e
d

 -
 o

ff
 t

a
rg

e
t

�

T
re

n
d

 a
rr

o
w

s
: 

c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 f

o
u

rt
h

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 t

h
ir

d
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

0
0

5
/6

 (
n

o
t 

p
o

s
s

ib
le

 f
o

r 
a

ll
 B

V
P

Is
) 

Y
e

ll
o

w
 -

 o
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
�

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

 0
4

/0
5

 c
o

lu
m

n
: 

a
c

tu
a

l 
0

4
/0

5
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
0

4
/0

5
 q

u
a

rt
il
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 d

a
ta

 
G

re
e

n
 -

 a
b

o
v

e
 t

a
rg

e
t

�

T
 =

 t
o

p
; 

B
 =

 b
o

tt
o

m
; 

M
 =

 m
id

d
le

 q
u

a
rt

il
e

B
V

P
I

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
T

g
t/

 I
n

d
T

Q
 0

4
/0

5
B

Q
 0

4
/0

5
A

c
tu

a
l 

0
4

/0
5

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

 

0
4

/0
5

T
a

rg
e

t 

0
5

/0
6

A
c

tu
a

l 
Q

1
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

2
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

3
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

4
o

n
/o

ff
 

T
g

t
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

T
re

n
d

7
9

b
(i

)
0

T
4

9
.9

3
3

3
.1

3
0

T
1

0
5

8
9

.2
4

9
6

.9
9

7
.4

9
9

.1

G
re

a
tl
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
o

p
 q

u
a

rt
ile

, 
a

lt
h
o

u
g
h
 t
h
is

 P
I 
is

 b
e

lo
w

 i
n
it
ia

l 
ta

rg
e

t

�

D
:\
m

o
d

e
rn

g
o

v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5

6
\B

V
P

If
in

a
lv

e
rs

io
n

Q
4

2
0

0
5

0
6

1
1

0
.x

ls
3

 o
f 
1

4
2

4
/0

5
/0

6

Page 60



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

. 
 O

u
r 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 i

n
 2

0
0

5
/0

6
.

K
e

y
:

N
/a

 =
 N

o
t 
A

p
p

lic
a

b
le

T
o

p
 a

n
d

 B
o

tt
o

m
 q

u
a

rt
ile

 d
a

ta
 is

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
a

ll 
E

n
g

la
n

d
 A

u
th

o
ri
tie

s
R

e
d

 -
 o

ff
 t

a
rg

e
t

�

T
re

n
d

 a
rr

o
w

s
: 

c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 f

o
u

rt
h

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 t

h
ir

d
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

0
0

5
/6

 (
n

o
t 

p
o

s
s

ib
le

 f
o

r 
a

ll
 B

V
P

Is
) 

Y
e

ll
o

w
 -

 o
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
�

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

 0
4

/0
5

 c
o

lu
m

n
: 

a
c

tu
a

l 
0

4
/0

5
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
0

4
/0

5
 q

u
a

rt
il
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 d

a
ta

 
G

re
e

n
 -

 a
b

o
v

e
 t

a
rg

e
t

�

T
 =

 t
o

p
; 

B
 =

 b
o

tt
o

m
; 

M
 =

 m
id

d
le

 q
u

a
rt

il
e

B
V

P
I

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
T

g
t/

 I
n

d
T

Q
 0

4
/0

5
B

Q
 0

4
/0

5
A

c
tu

a
l 

0
4

/0
5

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

 

0
4

/0
5

T
a

rg
e

t 

0
5

/0
6

A
c

tu
a

l 
Q

1
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

2
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

3
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

4
o

n
/o

ff
 

T
g

t
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

T
re

n
d

7
9

b
(i

i)
0

I
0

0
0

5
7

.5
4

9
.1

7
5

4
.4

5
4

.1
4

9
.1

T
h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
(C

F
O

) 
is

 e
x
a

m
in

in
g
 a

rr
e

a
rs

 i
n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 

re
c
o

v
e

ry
 a

n
d

 B
V

P
I 
p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

�

7
9

b
 (

ii
i)

0
I

0
0

0
5

.5
0

.6
6

0
0

1
.8

L
in

k
e

d
 t
o

 B
V

P
I 
7

9
(i
i)
, 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 t
o

 r
e

d
u
c
e

 t
h
e

 a
m

o
u
n
t 
o

f 
s
ta

ti
c
 

d
e

b
t.
  
B

u
t 
s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
b
e

in
g
 p

la
n
n
e

d
.

N
/a

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

8
2

a
0

T
1

7
.8

9
1

1
.7

8
2

1
.3

T
2

4
2

1
.3

2
2

2
1

.5
8

2
2

.1

R
o

ll 
o

u
t 
o

f 
G

re
e

n
 B

o
x
 s

c
h
e

m
e

 d
e

la
y
e

d
. 
D

e
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o

f 
m

in
i 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 d

e
la

y
e

d
. 
B

o
th

 d
u
e

 t
o

 c
o

n
c
e

n
tr

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 o

n
 B

ro
w

n
 B

in
 

s
c
h
e

m
e

 a
n
d

 v
a

c
a

n
c
y
 o

f 
W

a
s
te

 P
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

p
o

s
t.

�

8
2

a
ii

0
T

0
0

0
1

0
1

7
9

2
2

1
4

4
4

8
8

6
6

9
9

9
0

3
8

s
e

e
 8

2
a

�

8
2

b
0

T
9

.8
1

.5
3

0
.0

2
B

1
0

0
.1

7
1

.5
9

1
.7

�

8
2

b
ii

0
T

0
0

0
4

0
7

0
3

4
4

9
4

6
9

9
�

8
4

0
I

3
9

7
.7

4
9

1
.6

3
4

8
T

3
5

1
8

9
.3

9
1

7
6

.8
2

6
7

.7
3

5
2

1
%

 a
b
o

v
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
- 

re
fl
e

c
ts

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
m

a
te

ri
a

l 
c
o

lle
c
te

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

B
ro

w
n
 B

in
 

s
c
h
e

m
e

 d
u
ri
n
g
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 h
a

lf
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a

r.
�

Page

8
4

b
0

T
0

0
0

0
2

.9
7

1
.o

-0
.2

1
.0

9
N

/a

T
a

rg
e

t 
n
o

t 
re

q
u
ir
e

d
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
5

/6

N
/a

60

8
6

0
T

3
5

.3
1

4
8

.1
3

4
1

.1
5

M
4

1
.9

0
0

0
0

N
/a

A
n
n
u
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 -

 c
a

lc
u
la

ti
o

n
 n

o
t 
y
e

t 
c
o

m
p
le

te
N

/a

1
6

6
a

0
T

9
7

7
9

.1
5

6
.2

5
B

7
3

5
6

.2
5

5
6

.2
5

5
6

.2
5

6
6

.2
5

0
5

/0
6

 t
a

rg
e

t 
n
o

t 
a

c
h
ie

v
e

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 M

id
d

le
 

Q
u
a

rt
ile

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 i
n
 0

6
/0

7
�

1
9

9
0

T
1

1
2

4
2

2
M

1
8

0
0

0
1

2
A

n
n
u
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
N

/a

P
la

n
n

in
g

1
0

6
0

T
9

4
5

7
.1

4
9

2
M

6
0

0
9

4
0

9
5

6
 m

o
n
th

ly
  
re

p
o

rt
in

g
N

/a

1
0

9
a

0
T

6
8

.9
4

6
.8

8
5

1
M

6
0

2
9

3
1

4
2

5
0

T
h
e

s
e

 l
a

te
s
t 
q
u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 f

ig
u
re

s
 s

h
o

w
 t
h
e

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

a
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 t
h
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 f

o
r 

M
a

jo
r,

 M
in

o
r 

a
n
d

 O
th

e
r 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n
c
il’

s
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 o

f 

c
o

n
ti
n
u
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
in

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

, 
a

n
d

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 h

e
lp

e
d

 b
y
 

a
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 S
c
h
e

m
e

 o
f 

D
e

le
g
a

ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
m

e
 i
n
to

 o
p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0

0
5

 
�

1
0

9
b

0
T

7
5

.4
6

1
.1

2
5

1
B

6
5

6
0

6
5

6
9

7
1

A
s
 f

o
r 

1
0

9
a

�

1
0

9
c

0
T

8
8

8
0

7
7

B
8

0
8

5
8

6
8

8
8

7
A

s
 f

o
r 

1
0

9
a

�

1
7

9
0

T
1

0
0

9
6

.9
6

9
9

.6
B

1
0

0
9

9
.8

7
9

9
.6

9
9

.7
2

9
9

.7
9

S
lig

h
tl
y
 b

e
lo

w
 t
a

rg
e

t
�

D
:\
m

o
d

e
rn

g
o

v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5

6
\B

V
P

If
in

a
lv

e
rs

io
n

Q
4

2
0

0
5

0
6

1
1

0
.x

ls
4

 o
f 
1

4
2

4
/0

5
/0

6

Page 61



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

. 
 O

u
r 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 i

n
 2

0
0

5
/0

6
.

K
e

y
:

N
/a

 =
 N

o
t 
A

p
p

lic
a

b
le

T
o

p
 a

n
d

 B
o

tt
o

m
 q

u
a

rt
ile

 d
a

ta
 is

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
a

ll 
E

n
g

la
n

d
 A

u
th

o
ri
tie

s
R

e
d

 -
 o

ff
 t

a
rg

e
t

�

T
re

n
d

 a
rr

o
w

s
: 

c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 f

o
u

rt
h

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 t

h
ir

d
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

0
0

5
/6

 (
n

o
t 

p
o

s
s

ib
le

 f
o

r 
a

ll
 B

V
P

Is
) 

Y
e

ll
o

w
 -

 o
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
�

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

 0
4

/0
5

 c
o

lu
m

n
: 

a
c

tu
a

l 
0

4
/0

5
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
0

4
/0

5
 q

u
a

rt
il
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 d

a
ta

 
G

re
e

n
 -

 a
b

o
v

e
 t

a
rg

e
t

�

T
 =

 t
o

p
; 

B
 =

 b
o

tt
o

m
; 

M
 =

 m
id

d
le

 q
u

a
rt

il
e

B
V

P
I

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
T

g
t/

 I
n

d
T

Q
 0

4
/0

5
B

Q
 0

4
/0

5
A

c
tu

a
l 

0
4

/0
5

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

 

0
4

/0
5

T
a

rg
e

t 

0
5

/0
6

A
c

tu
a

l 
Q

1
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

2
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

3
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

4
o

n
/o

ff
 

T
g

t
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

T
re

n
d

2
0

0
a

0
T

0
0

0
y

e
s

0
y

e
s

0
y

e
s

N
/a

A
n
n
u
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g

N
/a

2
0

0
b

0
T

0
0

0
y

e
s

0
y

e
s

0
y

e
s

N
/a

6
 m

o
n
th

ly
 r

e
p
o

rt
in

g

N
/a

2
0

0
c

0
I

0
0

0
y

e
s

0
y

e
s

0
y

e
s

N
/a

A
n
n
u
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g

N
/a

2
0

4

%
 a

p
p

e
a

ls
 a

ll
o

w
e

d
 a

g
a

in
s

t 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

's
 d

e
c

is
io

n
s

 t
o

 r
e

fu
s

e
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n

T
2

5
3

7
.5

3
2

M
3

5
0

1
7

0
0

N
/a

6
 m

o
n
th

ly
 r

e
p
o

rt
in

g
 -

 a
w

a
it
in

g
 r

e
s
u
lt
s

N
/a

2
0

5
0

T
8

8
.9

7
2

.2
7

2
B

8
0

0
7

8
0

0
N

/a
6

 m
o

n
th

ly
 r

e
p
o

rt
in

g
 -

 a
w

a
it
in

g
 r

e
s
u
lt
s

N
/a

2
1

9
a

0
I

0
0

0
5

2
0

0
0

0
N

/a

A
n
n
u
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 -

 a
w

a
it
in

g
 r

e
s
u
lt
s

N
/a

2
1

9
b

0
I

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
/a

A
n
n
u
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 -

 a
w

a
it
in

g
 r

e
s
u
lt
s

N
/a

2
1

9
c

0
I

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
/a

A
n
n
u
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 -

 a
w

a
it
in

g
 r

e
s
u
lt
s

N
/a

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

Page

1
2

6
0

I
6

.9
1

4
.2

3
5

.3
8

T
5

.3
6

1
.5

4
3

.2
4

4
.9

7
5

.9
4

P
o

lic
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 b
e

in
g
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
.

�

61

1
2

7
a

0
I

3
8

.7
1

0
M

1
0

.4
6

2
.9

7
6

.1
9

9
.2

2
1

2
.3

9
P

o
lic

e
 r

e
p
o

rt
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 b
e

in
g
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
.

�

1
2

7
b

0
I

5
.9

6
1

2
.7

0
T

0
.2

4
0

.0
5

0
.0

6
0

.1
1

0
.1

6
�

1
2

8
0

I
7

.7
7

1
5

.0
4

6
.1

T
6

.9
1

.6
4

3
.1

2
4

.4
8

5
.8

8
�

1
5

6
0

T
0

0
8

3
1

0
0

8
3

8
3

8
3

8
3

C
o

m
p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
a

rt
e

r 
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
 i
s
 s

c
h
e

d
u
le

d
 f

o
r 

J
u
n
e

 o
f 

th
is

 y
e

a
r.

 T
h
is

 

s
h
o

u
ld

 t
a

k
e

 t
h
is

 i
n
d

ic
a

to
r 

u
p
 t
o

 9
0

%
 p

lu
s
 -

 a
s
s
u
m

in
g
 n

o
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 i
n
 t
h
e

 

d
e

fi
n
it
io

n
.

�

1
7

4
0

I
0

0
0

0
.8

6
0

.8
6

0
.8

6
0

.8
6

0
.8

6
1

 I
n
c
id

e
n
t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e

 y
e

a
r

�

D
:\
m

o
d

e
rn

g
o

v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5

6
\B

V
P

If
in

a
lv

e
rs

io
n

Q
4

2
0

0
5

0
6

1
1

0
.x

ls
5

 o
f 
1

4
2

4
/0

5
/0

6

Page 62



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

. 
 O

u
r 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 i

n
 2

0
0

5
/0

6
.

K
e

y
:

N
/a

 =
 N

o
t 
A

p
p

lic
a

b
le

T
o

p
 a

n
d

 B
o

tt
o

m
 q

u
a

rt
ile

 d
a

ta
 is

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
a

ll 
E

n
g

la
n

d
 A

u
th

o
ri
tie

s
R

e
d

 -
 o

ff
 t

a
rg

e
t

�

T
re

n
d

 a
rr

o
w

s
: 

c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 f

o
u

rt
h

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 t

h
ir

d
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

0
0

5
/6

 (
n

o
t 

p
o

s
s

ib
le

 f
o

r 
a

ll
 B

V
P

Is
) 

Y
e

ll
o

w
 -

 o
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
�

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

 0
4

/0
5

 c
o

lu
m

n
: 

a
c

tu
a

l 
0

4
/0

5
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
0

4
/0

5
 q

u
a

rt
il
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 d

a
ta

 
G

re
e

n
 -

 a
b

o
v

e
 t

a
rg

e
t

�

T
 =

 t
o

p
; 

B
 =

 b
o

tt
o

m
; 

M
 =

 m
id

d
le

 q
u

a
rt

il
e

B
V

P
I

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
T

g
t/

 I
n

d
T

Q
 0

4
/0

5
B

Q
 0

4
/0

5
A

c
tu

a
l 

0
4

/0
5

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

 

0
4

/0
5

T
a

rg
e

t 

0
5

/0
6

A
c

tu
a

l 
Q

1
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

2
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

3
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

4
o

n
/o

ff
 

T
g

t
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

T
re

n
d

1
7

5
0

T
0

0
N

/a
1

0
0

1
0

0
1

0
0

1
0

0
1

0
0

A
ll 

in
c
id

e
n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n
 a

c
ti
o

n
e

d
 i
n
 t
h
e

 y
e

a
r

�

D
:\
m

o
d

e
rn

g
o

v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5

6
\B

V
P

If
in

a
lv

e
rs

io
n

Q
4

2
0

0
5

0
6

1
1

0
.x

ls
6

 o
f 
1

4
2

4
/0

5
/0

6

Page 63



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

. 
 O

u
r 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 i

n
 2

0
0

5
/0

6
.

K
e

y
:

N
/a

 =
 N

o
t 
A

p
p

lic
a

b
le

T
o

p
 a

n
d

 B
o

tt
o

m
 q

u
a

rt
ile

 d
a

ta
 is

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
a

ll 
E

n
g

la
n

d
 A

u
th

o
ri
tie

s
R

e
d

 -
 o

ff
 t

a
rg

e
t

�

T
re

n
d

 a
rr

o
w

s
: 

c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 f

o
u

rt
h

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 t

h
ir

d
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

0
0

5
/6

 (
n

o
t 

p
o

s
s

ib
le

 f
o

r 
a

ll
 B

V
P

Is
) 

Y
e

ll
o

w
 -

 o
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
�

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

 0
4

/0
5

 c
o

lu
m

n
: 

a
c

tu
a

l 
0

4
/0

5
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
0

4
/0

5
 q

u
a

rt
il
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 d

a
ta

 
G

re
e

n
 -

 a
b

o
v

e
 t

a
rg

e
t

�

T
 =

 t
o

p
; 

B
 =

 b
o

tt
o

m
; 

M
 =

 m
id

d
le

 q
u

a
rt

il
e

B
V

P
I

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
T

g
t/

 I
n

d
T

Q
 0

4
/0

5
B

Q
 0

4
/0

5
A

c
tu

a
l 

0
4

/0
5

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

 

0
4

/0
5

T
a

rg
e

t 

0
5

/0
6

A
c

tu
a

l 
Q

1
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

2
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

3
A

c
tu

a
l 
Q

4
o

n
/o

ff
 

T
g

t
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

T
re

n
d

2
2

5
0

I
0

.8
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
5

.5
N

/a
N

/a

2
2

6
a

A
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 g
u

id
a

n
c

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 -

 t
o

ta
l 

s
p

e
n

t 
£

'0
0

0
I

1
0

0
2

9
.7

0
M

2
0

0
2

0
0

2
0

0
2

0
0

2
0

0
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 f

ig
u
re

. 
A

c
tu

a
l 
2

0
0

5
/0

6
 a

w
a

it
in

g
 f

in
a

l 
c
a

lc
u
la

ti
o

n

2
2

6
b

0
I

0
0

0
7

5
7

5
7

5
7

5
7

5

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 f

ig
u
re

. 
A

c
tu

a
l 
2

0
0

5
/0

6
 a

w
a

it
in

g
 f

in
a

l 
c
a

lc
u
la

ti
o

n

2
2

6
c

A
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 g
u

id
a

n
c

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 -

 

d
ir

e
c

t 
p

ro
v

is
io

n
 £

'0
0

0
I

0
0

0
4

5
0

4
5

0
4

5
0

4
5

0
4

5
0

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 f

ig
u
re

. 
A

c
tu

a
l 
2

0
0

5
/0

6
 a

w
a

it
in

g
 f

in
a

l 
c
a

lc
u
la

ti
o

n

Page 62

D
:\
m

o
d

e
rn

g
o

v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5

6
\B

V
P

If
in

a
lv

e
rs

io
n

Q
4

2
0

0
5

0
6

1
1

0
.x

ls
7

 o
f 
1

4
2

4
/0

5
/0

6

Page 64



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

. 
 O

u
r 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 i

n
 2

0
0

5
/0

6
.

B
e

tt
e

r

W
o

rs
e

S
ta

b
le

T
a

rg
e

t 

0
6

/0
7

2 7
8

1
0

0

9
9

.0

9
9

.0

2
3

.5

1
.9

5

7 9 0
.2

0
.2

5

4
.1

2
.4

1
0

0

3 D
:\
m

o
d

e
rn

g
o

v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5

6
\B

V
P

If
in

a
lv

e
rs

io
n

Q
4

2
0

0
5

0
6

1
1

0
.x

ls
8

 o
f 
1

4
2

4
/0

5
/0

6

Page 65



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

. 
 O

u
r 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 i

n
 2

0
0

5
/0

6
.

B
e

tt
e

r

W
o

rs
e

S
ta

b
le

T
a

rg
e

t 

0
6

/0
7

6 2
2 1 5

N
/a

N
/a

2
7

3

0
.3

8

8
9

.5

1
2

3
6 9 9
9 D
:\
m

o
d

e
rn

g
o

v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5

6
\B

V
P

If
in

a
lv

e
rs

io
n

Q
4

2
0

0
5

0
6

1
1

0
.x

ls
9

 o
f 
1

4
2

4
/0

5
/0

6

Page 66



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

. 
 O

u
r 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 i

n
 2

0
0

5
/0

6
.

B
e

tt
e

r

W
o

rs
e

S
ta

b
le

T
a

rg
e

t 

0
6

/0
7

1
0

5

D
:\
m

o
d

e
rn

g
o

v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5

6
\B

V
P

If
in

a
lv

e
rs

io
n

Q
4

2
0

0
5

0
6

1
1

0
.x

ls
1

0
 o

f 
1

4
2

4
/0

5
/0

6

Page 67



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

. 
 O

u
r 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 i

n
 2

0
0

5
/0

6
.

B
e

tt
e

r

W
o

rs
e

S
ta

b
le

T
a

rg
e

t 

0
6

/0
7

5
7

.5

5
.5 2
5

1
0

3
2

5

3

1
2

3
9

3
5

3

0
.5

4
2

.5
6

8
3

1
5

6
0

6
0

6
5

8
0

1
0

0

D
:\
m

o
d

e
rn

g
o

v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5

6
\B

V
P

If
in

a
lv

e
rs

io
n

Q
4

2
0

0
5

0
6

1
1

0
.x

ls
1

1
 o

f 
1

4
2

4
/0

5
/0

6

Page 68



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

. 
 O

u
r 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 i

n
 2

0
0

5
/0

6
.

B
e

tt
e

r

W
o

rs
e

S
ta

b
le

T
a

rg
e

t 

0
6

/0
7

y
e

s

y
e

s

y
e

s

3
5

8
5

5
2

1
0 4

5
.3

6

1
0

.1

0
.2

3

6
.5

1
0

0

0
.8

6

D
:\
m

o
d

e
rn

g
o

v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5

6
\B

V
P

If
in

a
lv

e
rs

io
n

Q
4

2
0

0
5

0
6

1
1

0
.x

ls
1

2
 o

f 
1

4
2

4
/0

5
/0

6

Page 69



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

. 
 O

u
r 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 i

n
 2

0
0

5
/0

6
.

B
e

tt
e

r

W
o

rs
e

S
ta

b
le

T
a

rg
e

t 

0
6

/0
7

1
0

0

D
:\
m

o
d

e
rn

g
o

v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5

6
\B

V
P

If
in

a
lv

e
rs

io
n

Q
4

2
0

0
5

0
6

1
1

0
.x

ls
1

3
 o

f 
1

4
2

4
/0

5
/0

6

Page 70



Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

. 
 O

u
r 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 i

n
 2

0
0

5
/0

6
.

B
e

tt
e

r

W
o

rs
e

S
ta

b
le

T
a

rg
e

t 

0
6

/0
7

0

2
0

0
0

0
0

7
5

4
5

0
0

0
0

D
:\
m

o
d

e
rn

g
o

v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\6

\5
\9

\A
I0

0
0

0
3

9
5

6
\B

V
P

If
in

a
lv

e
rs

io
n

Q
4

2
0

0
5

0
6

1
1

0
.x

ls
1

4
 o

f 
1

4
2

4
/0

5
/0

6

Page 71



Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
L

Y
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 G
O

V
E

R
N

A
N

C
E

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 -
 F

o
u

rt
h

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
.4

.0
5

 -
 3

1
.3

.0
6

L
o

c
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 A

im
s

 2
0

0
5

/0
6

 (
c

u
m

m
u

la
ti

v
e

 y
e

a
r 

to
 d

a
te

)

L
P

I
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
5
/0

6
A

c
tu

a
l 

Q
3

A
c
tu

a
l 

Q
4

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

L
I 
H

2
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

u
n
it
s
 o

f 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 /

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 

6
0

7
8

1
3
1

S
p
lit

 b
y
 t

e
n
u
re

 -
 S

h
a
re

d
 O

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 -
 6

1
 (

4
6
.5

6
%

) 
S

o
c
ia

l 
re

n
te

d
 -

 7
0
 (

5
3
.4

4
%

)

L
I 
H

2
a

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 u

n
it
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 S

1
0
6
 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

In
d
ic

a
to

r
6
6

1
1
4

N
e
w

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r

L
P

I 
T

P
5

%
 o

f 
d
w

e
lli

n
g
s
 p

e
rm

it
te

d
 o

n
 s

it
e
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 l
o
c
a
l 

p
la

n
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 p

o
lic

y
 t

h
re

s
h
o
ld

s
 w

h
ic

h
 f

a
ll 

w
it
h
in

 

th
e
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 o

f 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 

3
0
%

2
3
%

2
6
%

6
 m

o
n
th

ly
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 (

th
e
 Q

3
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 t

h
e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 

q
u
a
rt

e
r)

. 
W

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 a

re
 t

w
o
 M

c
C

a
rt

h
y
 a

n
d
 S

to
n
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 w

e
re

 a
b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 t

h
re

s
h
o
ld

 d
u
e
 a

 h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 

d
e
n
s
it
y
 s

o
 c

o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
ti
a
lly

 d
id

 n
o
t 

y
ie

ld
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g

L
P

I 
T

P
6

%
 o

f 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 d
w

e
lli

n
g
s
 p

e
rm

it
te

d
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
re

n
te

d
 

c
a
te

g
o
ry

6
0
%

9
1
%

6
1
%

6
 m

o
n
th

ly
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 (

th
e
 Q

3
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 t

h
e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 

q
u
a
rt

e
r)

L
P

I 
T

P
7

%
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
h
o
u
s
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
n
n
u
a
lis

e
d
 

a
d
o
p
te

d
 S

tr
u
c
tu

re
 P

la
n
 t

a
rg

e
ts

N
e
w

 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
1
1
7
%

1
6
2
%

A
n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 -

 A
n
n
u
a
lis

e
d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

5
,7

5
0
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s
 b

y
 

2
0
1
1
 (

1
9
9
6
-2

0
1
1
).

 T
h
is

 t
ra

n
s
la

te
s
 i
n
to

 a
n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
s
tr

a
ig

h
t 

lin
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

3
8
3
 p

e
r 

fu
ll 

y
e
a
r.

 T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 6
2
1
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s
 (

y
e
t 

to
 b

e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 w

it
h
 C

o
u
n
ty

) 
in

 A
p
ri
l 

0
5
 t

o
 M

a
rc

h
 0

6
. 

W
h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 p

la
n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

3
8
3
 i
t 

m
a
k
e
s
 m

a
k
e
s
 1

6
2
%

.

T
o

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
 a

n
d

 M
o

d
e
rn

is
e
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

C
S

3
%

 o
f 

e
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
 a

t 
th

e
 

L
S

P
 W

a
n
ta

g
e

9
7
%

n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

9
5
.3

2
%

C
S

4
%

 o
f 

e
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
 a

t 
th

e
 

L
S

P
 A

b
in

g
d
o
n
 

9
7
%

n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

9
7
.2

0
%

C
S

5
%

 o
f 

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 c

u
s
to

m
e
rs

 a
t 

th
e
 L

S
P

 W
a
n
ta

g
e

9
5
%

9
0
%

9
4
.7

5
%

C
S

6
%

 o
f 

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 c

u
s
to

m
e
rs

 a
t 

th
e
 L

S
P

 A
b
in

g
d
o
n

9
5
%

1
0
0
.0

0
%

1
0
0
.0

0
%

C
S

9
%

 o
f 

c
a
lls

 t
o
 b

e
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 2
0
 s

e
c
o
n
d
s

9
0
%

8
7
.0

0
%

8
7
.0

0
%

b
e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t 

b
u
t 

h
ig

h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

in
d
u
s
tr

y
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s

C
S

1
0

%
 o

f 
c
a
lls

 u
n
a
n
s
w

e
re

d
6
%

2
.0

0
%

2
.0

0
%

v
e
ry

 g
o
o
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t

T
o

 H
e
lp

 F
a
c
il

it
a
te

 t
h

e
 P

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
u

s
in

g
  

Page 72



Q
1
 

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
2
 T

a
rg

e
t

Q
3
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
v
. 

N
o
. 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 

le
ft

/m
th

A
v
. 

T
u
rn

o
v
e
r/

 

m
th

A
v
. 

N
o
. 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 

le
ft

/m
th

A
v
. 

T
u
rn

o
v
e
r/

 

m
th

A
v
. 

N
o
. 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 

le
ft

/m
th

A
v
. 

T
u
rn

o
v
e
r

/ 
m

th

A
v
. 

N
o
. 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 

le
ft

/m
th

A
v
. 

T
u
rn

o
v
e
r/

 

m
th

T
o

ta
l 

N
o

 

L
e
a
v
e
rs

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e
 

T
u

rn
o

v
e
r

A
u
d
it
 &

 I
C

T
0
.3

3
1
.6

7
%

0
.3

3
1
.7

5
%

0
0
.0

0
%

0
.6

7
3
.9

2
%

4
2
2
.2

2
%

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

0
.3

3
1
.3

9
%

0
.3

3
1
.3

9
%

0
0
.0

0
%

0
0
.0

0
%

2
8
.3

3
%

B
u
ild

in
g
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
(i
n
c
 D

S
O

)
0

0
.0

0
%

0
0
.0

0
%

0
.3

3
1
.3

9
%

0
0
.0

0
%

1
4
.1

7
%

C
o
n
ta

c
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

0
0
.0

0
%

0
0
.0

0
%

0
.6

7
1
.8

8
%

1
2
.9

7
%

5
1
5
.6

3
%

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

0
0
.0

0
%

1
1
.7

5
%

0
0
.0

0
%

0
.6

7
1
.9

6
%

1
5
.2

6
%

E
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 P

la
n
n
in

g
0

0
.0

0
%

0
0
.0

0
%

0
0
.0

0
%

0
0
.0

0
%

0
0

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h

0
.3

3
1
.1

1
%

1
.3

3
4
.6

4
%

0
0
.0

0
%

0
0
.0

0
%

5
1
8
.5

2
%

F
in

a
n
c
e

0
0
.0

0
%

0
0
.0

0
%

0
.6

7
2
.5

7
%

0
.3

3
1
.3

9
%

3
1
2
.5

0
%

H
o
u
s
in

g
 &

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
0
.6

7
2
.3

8
%

0
.3

3
1
.2

3
%

0
0
.0

0
%

0
.6

7
2
.3

4
%

5
1
7
.8

6
%

H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

0
0
.0

0
%

0
0
.0

0
%

0
0
.0

0
%

0
0
.0

0
%

0
0

L
e
g
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

0
0
.0

0
%

0
0
.0

0
%

0
0
.0

0
%

0
0
.0

0
%

0
0

L
e
is

u
re

0
.3

3
0
.6

9
%

0
.6

7
1
.4

6
%

1
2
.2

6
%

0
.3

3
0
.7

8
%

7
1
6
.2

8
%

P
la

n
n
in

g
0

0
.0

0
%

0
0
.0

0
%

0
.3

3
0
.6

8
%

0
.3

3
0
.7

4
%

2
4
.4

4
%

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 &

 E
s
ta

te
s

0
0
.0

0
%

0
0
.0

0
%

0
0
.0

0
%

0
.3

3
4
.1

6
%

1
1
2
.5

0
%

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 D
ir
e
c
to

rs
 O

ff
ic

e
s

0
0
.0

0
%

0
.3

3
0
.3

3
%

0
0
.0

0
%

0
.6

7
7
.4

1
%

3
3
7
.5

0
%

T
o

ta
ls

1
.9

9
0
.5

8
%

4
.3

2
1
.2

8
%

3
0
.9

0
%

5
1
.5

5
%

3
9

1
2
.2

3
%

C
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
 f

ig
u

re
 f

o
r 

2
0
0
4
-2

0
0
5

8
.3

4
2
.3

8
%

7
.6

3
2
.2

3
%

2
0
.6

3
%

3
.3

3
1
.0

6
%

5
5

1
5
.4

1
%

T
u
rn

o
v
e
r 

h
a
s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 f

a
ir
ly

 c
o
n
s
it
e
n
t 
th

is
 y

e
a
r.

  
It
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

ti
v
e
ly

 m
u
c
h
 l
o
w

e
r 

in
 Q

1
 a

n
d
 Q

2
 i
n
 2

0
0
5
/0

6
 a

s
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 2

0
0
4
/0

5
 

a
s
 2

0
0
4
/0

5
 w

a
s
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

o
f 

P
a
y 

a
n
d
 G

ra
d
in

g
 w

h
ic

h
 s

e
e
m

e
d
 t
o
 c

a
u
s
e
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
u
rn

o
v
e
r.

  
T

u
rn

o
v
e
r 

is
 u

p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 Q

4
 a

n
d
 Q

3
 

a
n
d
 t
h
is

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

o
u
ts

o
u
rc

in
g
 t
o
 C

a
p
it
a
. 
 T

h
e
 n

e
x
t 
tw

o
 q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 w
ill

 h
e
lp

 t
o
 c

la
ri
fy

 t
h
is

.

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 T

U
R

N
O

V
E

R
 2

0
0
5
-0

6

Q
1

Q
2

Q
3

Q
4

Page 73



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL     Report No 7/06 
           Wards affected:  All 
 

REPORT OF THE DEPUTY DIRECTOR (PLANNING & COMMUNITY STRATEGY) 
TO THE STRATEGIC AND LOCAL PLANNING ADVISORY GROUP AND THE DEVELOPMENT 

CONTROL COMMITTEE 
24 MAY 2006  

 
Response to formal consultation on the Proposed Modifications to the Local Plan 2011 

 
 
1.0 Introduction and Report Summary 
 
1.1 Members will recall that following the consideration of the Inspector’s Report on the Local Plan 

2011 the Council’s statement of decisions on the Inspector’s recommendations and its proposed 
modifications to the Local Plan were published for comment between 23 March and 4 May. 

 
1.2 The purpose of this report is to consider the representations received and decide whether any 

further modifications should be made before the Local Plan is formally adopted. 
 
1.3 Appendix 1 to this report contains a schedule of representations received together with the 

officers’ responses and suggested recommendations to Executive and Council.  Appendix 2 
contains a list of policies subject to proposed modifications where no objections have been 
received.  The Council at its meeting on 22 March agreed that such policies could be given full 
weight when considering planning applications. 

 
1.4 The contact officer for this report are Katie Barrett, Section Head: Planning Strategy, contact Tel 

No: 01235 540339 and Grant Audley-Miller, Section Head (Environmental Planning & 
Conservation), contact Tel No. 01235 540343.   

 
2.0 Recommendations  
 
2.1 That the Advisory Group and the Development Control Committee recommend the Executive to 

recommend Council to: 
 
 i) note the representations received on the Council’s decisions on the Inspector’s 

recommendations and the proposed modifications to the Local Plan and agree the 
officers’ observations and recommendations; 

 
 ii) accept there is no justification for making further substantive changes to the Local Plan 

which would require the publication of further proposed modifications; 
 
 iii) delegate authority to the Deputy Director (Planning and Community Strategy) to make 

minor editorial changes and up-dates to the Local Plan prior to adoption; 
 
 iv) adopt the Local Plan as proposed to be modified and authorise officers to give notice of 

this decision and take the remaining necessary steps in accordance with the regulations. 
 
3.0 Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies 
 
3.1 This report complies with the Council’s vision and aims.  The Local Plan will guide development 

in the District to 2011 and beyond. 
 
4.0 Overview of the Representations Received 
 
4.1 A total of 276 representations were received on the Council’s proposed modifications from 138 

individuals and organisations.  33 representations supported the proposed modifications, 233 

Agenda Item 13

Page 74



objected and there were 10 informal comments. 
 
4.2 No objections were made to the proposed modifications in the following chapters: introduction, 

the future of the Vale, historic environment, natural environment and tourism.  185 of the 
representations (mainly objections) related to the allocation of the two sites at Botley 
recommended by the Inspector.  The site at Tilbury Lane was the main focus of the objections 
and a further 17 objections were received to the loss of safeguarded land at Botley.  10 
objections related to the strategic housing allocation at Grove, 2 to the Chilton Field allocation 
and 1 to the increased number of dwellings at the former Dow Agro site (from Letcombe Regis 
Parish Council). 

 
5.0 Consideration of the Representations 
 
5.1 Members will be aware that the Council accepted all but five of the Inspector’s recommendations 

to change the Local Plan and three of these were minor changes to the Inspector’s wording 
which the Council proposed for clarity.  The majority of the proposed modifications arise from the 
Inspector’s recommendations to make specific changes to the plan to ensure consistency or to 
update the plan.  Given that the Inspector has carefully considered all the objections to the Local 
Plan and the detailed evidence put forward at the Inquiry and given the late stage in the local plan 
process, officers are of the view that further substantive changes to the Local Plan would only be 
justified if significant additional information comes to light which alters the Council’s judgement on 
a particular policy or proposal.  However, minor wording and editorial changes and up-dates to 
the plan can be made without a need to advertise them as further proposed modifications.  
Having examined the representations received officers are of the view that no substantive 
changes to the plan are necessary as outlined in Appendix 1. 

 
5.2 If Members believe substantive changes are necessary at this stage – such as adding or deleting 

a site proposed for development, or introducing, deleting or significantly amending criteria in 
policies – these would need to be advertised as further proposed modifications to the Local Plan. 
 This would mean that the Local Plan could not be adopted before 22 July 2006.  After this date 
all plans and strategies adopted by councils must be subject to an environmental assessment in 
accordance with Government regulations unless it is not feasible to do so.  The Council at its 
meeting in May 2005 considered it would not be feasible to carry out an environmental 
assessment in accordance with the regulations at this late stage in the process and has 
published a statement to that effect on its web site and placed notices in the local press.  
Although the Council has taken Counsel’s opinion and done all it can to safeguard the Local Plan 
in the event that it is not adopted by 22 July, there is no guarantee that it would be able to 
successfully defend its position if the ‘not feasible’ approach were tested through a high court 
challenge.  If the court did not support the Council, the Local Plan could not be formally adopted 
and the Council would have to rely on the plan in its draft form until local development documents 
were adopted.  Policies in a draft plan would not carry as much weight at a planning appeal as 
those in an adopted plan.  Having to rely on a draft Plan would be likely to encourage planning 
applications on greenfield sites not allocated for development. While the requirement for an 
environmental assessment does not preclude substantive changes being proposed, members 
should be aware of the consequences of doing so. 

 
6.0 The Next Steps 

 
6.1 The recommendations of the Advisory Group and the Development Control Committee will be 

considered by the Executive at its scheduled meeting on 2 June and a special meeting of Council 
on the 14 June.  If no substantive changes are proposed requiring the advertisement of further 
proposed modifications a notice of intention to adopt the Local Plan will be published in the local 
press.  After a period of four weeks the Local plan will be adopted (13 July).  A further notice has 
to be published and a six week period given within which legal challenges can be lodged with the 
high court. 

 
6.2 Comments on the draft Supplementary Planning Guidance, which will give more detail on policies 

Page 75



and proposals in the Local Plan and which were also available for comments between 25 March 
and 4 May, will be considered at a meeting of the Advisory Group on 26 June; Development 
Control Committee on 3 July; Executive on 7 July and Council on 19 July for adoption on 20 July. 

 
 
 
 

RODGER HOOD 
Deputy Director (Planning & Community Strategy) 

 
TIM SADLER 

Strategic Director 
 

 
 
Background Papers:  None 

Page 76



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 3 – GENERAL STRATEGY 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 
Deputy Director (Planning & Community 

Strategy) 
  

PM MAP8 – Policy GS1 Development in Existing Settlements  
 
Support 
 
330/PM/1 Cranfield University support the inclusion of 
Sudbury House within the development area of 
Faringdon as logical as it uses previously developed 
land and is contiguous with the existing development 
boundary. 
 

 
 
 
Noted 

PM 3.6 – Para 3.14 Development in the Oxford Green Belt  
 
Support 
 
489/PM/1 Oxford Brookes University remains 
appreciative of the support of the District Council as 
expressed in the Plan and as such supports the 
Proposed Modification. 
 

 
 
 
Noted 
 
 

PM 3.8 – Policy GS5 Safeguarded Land 

 
Support 
 
291/PM/8 University of Oxford support deletion of 
policy GS5 in light of the Inspector’s recommendation 
and in relation to the allocation of land for housing at 
Botley. 
 
Objections 
 
902/PM/1 Dr Paul Sutton, 950/PM1 Mrs C Trafford 
and Mr L Trafford,  949/PM1 M Nash, 989/PM1 Mrs M 
Hayle, 954/PM1 Mr Peter A Harper-Smith, 995/PM1 
Mr & Mrs Hall, 901/PM1 Maureen Elliot, 906/PM1 Mrs 
S Dyson, 913/PM1 V Campo, 912/PM1 NJ Campo, 
943/PM1 Mr G Allsworth, 947/PM1 Mr T Foster, 
907/PM1 AJ O’Leary, 992/PM1 K Neller, 904/PM1 Mr 
S Waite & Ms K Alderson made the following 
objections:- 

• Land should remain safeguarded, 

• It is not a sustainable location for housing, 

• Development will increase congestion on Botley 
Rd/A34/A420, 

• Modification is a bad compromise destroying 
safeguarded land because land in Grove can’t be 
developed as quickly,  

• No evidence that alternative sites will not be 
developed in time, 

• Land not needed as other areas of Cumnor/Botley 
are already to be developed (Timbmet), 

• There has been no proper risk assessment, 

• Agricultural land will be lost, 

• Biodiversity and local wildlife will be harmed 

• It will lead to flooding 

• Sewerage system is not adequate, 

• Schools/Nurseries do not have enough places 

• Health provision is already inadequate, 

• Car parking in the area is already at capacity, 

• Development will increase local traffic/parking 

 
 
 
Noted  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Land was safeguarded for development and was excluded 
from the Green Belt under policy GS5 in the draft Local Plan. 
The land was therefore considered to be suitable for 
development and had been previously excluded from the 
Green Belt for that reason. Indeed the Council’s 
Sustainability Appraisal showed that the sites at Tilbury Lane 
and Lime Road Botley were sustainable locations for 
development. However, because of the capacity of other 
allocations in the draft Local Plan, the Council considered 
that the land did not need to be developed to meet the Vale’s 
housing allocation and should remain safeguarded for 
development beyond the plan period. 
 
The Inspector considered that sites allocated in the draft 
Local Plan at Grove and Faringdon would not be developed 
sufficiently quickly to meet the Vale’s housing requirements 
and therefore considered that other allocations were 
required. In reaching this conclusion he considered evidence 
in relation to the likely speed of development on the allocated 
housing sites. Given the results of the Council’s 
Sustainability Appraisal in relation to the safeguarded land 
the Inspector further considered that land at Tilbury Lane and 
Lime Road Botley might be suitable for allocation as housing 
sites to meet the expected shortfall on other sites. The 
representations which relate to the suitability of the 
safeguarded land for housing development were then dealt 
with under policy H3 in the Inspector’s report. Similarly the 
representations made in response to the proposed 
modification allocating land at Tilbury Lane and Lime Road 
Botley for housing which are listed opposite are dealt with 

Page 77



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 3 – GENERAL STRATEGY 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 
Deputy Director (Planning & Community 

Strategy) 
problems and decrease road safety/lead to more 
accidents, 

• Current residents’ quality of life will be reduced, 

• Development will affect Human Rights via loss of 
views, 

• Anti-social behaviour and crime will increase, 

• Mixing private and local authority housing will 
cause problems, 

• New houses will be affected by overhead power 
lines, 

• Effect on OAP housing in Seacourt Rd, 

• Unsuitable cycle/pedestrian access arrangements, 

• Hazel Rd is unsuitable for access, 

• No sports facilities for children, 

• Loss of greenfield land, 

• Health and safety risks, 

• Loss of Green Belt, 

• Land should be a nature reserve, 

• Effect on water table, 

• Loss of allotments, 

• Increase in noise, particularly during construction, 
will disturb residents, 

• Public transport is not adequate, 

• Using Hazel Rd, Seacourt Rd, Poplar Rd or Elms 
Rd will cause problems, 

• Alley off Hazel Rd is not suitable for pedestrian or 
cycle access, 

• Development will lead to short cutting along 
existing roads, 

• Taxis will drop off fares at alley late at night, 

• Hazel Rd will be used as a car park,  

• Hazel Rd will not be safe for children to play in, 

• Flooding of roads will increase, 

• Development should be kept to the Fogwell Road 
side of Tilbury Lane. 

• Vandal proof fencing will be needed between the 
development and existing housing. 

 

under policy H3 elsewhere in this schedule. 
 
The Inspector considered that the one remaining area of 
safeguarded land did not justify the retention of the policy. 
The Council agreed with this recommendation and policy 
GS5 has been deleted from the draft Local Plan via a 
modification. None of the objections which have been made 
justify continuing to safeguard the sites for development 
against the Inspector’s recommendation or retaining the 
policy in the draft Local Plan. 
Recommendation: No change  

 

Page 78



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 4 – GENERAL POLICIES FOR DEVELOPMENT 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

 
Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 

Deputy Director (Planning & Community 
Strategy) 

  

PM 4.8 – Para 4.20 – Provision of Infrastructure and Services                      
 
Objection 
 
1004/PM/1 George Wimpey UK Ltd and Taylor Woodrow 
Developments Ltd.  This is a joint objection that Local Plan 
para 4.20 does not fully reflect the guidance in Circular 
5/2005 (para B18-B19) that the requirement for maintenance 
in perpetuity only applies to facilities which are predominantly 
for the benefit of the users of the associated development and 
where assets are intended for wider public use, the costs of 
maintenance should normally be borne by the body in which 
the asset is to be rested.  Additions to para 4.20 are proposed 
to clarify this distinction 
 

 
 
 
This objection correctly points out that Circular 5/2005 makes 
this distinction and para 4.20 states that improvements will be 
secured through planning obligations in accordance with 
Circular 5/2005.  Para 4.20 adds that maintenance “may be 
required in perpetuity” and if this is qualified as suggested 
below it will give clarity in accordance with the Circular and 
refer to the distinction that the objectors are seeking. 
 
Recommendation: Para 4.20, penultimate sentence, after 
“in perpetuity” add “where the facilities are predominantly 
for the users of the associated development.”  
 

PM 4.9 – Policy DC8 – Provision of Infrastructure and Services 
 
Objection 
 
1003/PM/1 Thames Water comments that legal agreements 
cannot be made to secure water and waste water 
infrastructure upgrades, but that it is essential that upgrades 
are in place to avoid unacceptable impacts on the 
environment such as sewage flooding and low water pressure.  
Thames Water is therefore seeking to modify policy DC8 to 
clarify that a planning condition will be used to ensure that 
infrastructure is provided ahead of development. 
 

 
 
 
Local Plan para 4.20 notes Structure Plan policy G3 which 
states that development will not be permitted unless the 
necessary infrastructure is available.  Government advice in 
PPS12 explains that one purpose of the planning system is to 
co-ordinate new development with the infrastructure it 
demands (para B4).  Local Plan policy DC8 provides in 
summary, that development will only be permitted where the 
necessary infrastructure can be secured in time to serve the 
needs of the development and it requires that infrastructure 
must be provided to ensure co-ordination with development.  
In some cases this may be before development starts.  The 
policy as worded therefore covers Thames Water’s concerns. 
 
Recommendation: No change.  
 

PM 1.12 – Policy DC13 – Flood Risk and Water Run-off 
 
Support 
 
403/PM/1 Environment Agency 
 

 
 
 
Noted 
 

 

Page 79



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 5 - TRANSPORT 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

  
Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 

Deputy Director (Planning & Community 
Strategy) 

 

PM5.5 – Policy TR1A      Integrated Transport Strategy 
 
684/PM/1 Maurice and Patricia Hyde reiterate their 
opposition to a new road from Mably Way to the A417 east 
of Wantage. 

 
The new road was examined in detail at the local plan inquiry 
and the Inspector who was fully aware of all the objections 
concluded that removing direct reference to the A417 either 
side of Wantage would permit wider consideration of all 
possible opportunities to relieve Wantage town centre and 
through traffic in the review of this plan in the near future.  
Policy TR1A now refers to a ‘relief road scheme for Wantage’ 
as recommended by the Inspector and not to a new road from 
Mably Way to the A417 east of Wantage.   
 
Recommendation: No change. 
 

PM5.6 - Paras 5.21-5.24 
 
Objection 
 
323/PM/1 Williams F1 object to the deletion of the 
reference to the road north of Grove following a route south 
of Bellinger’s Garage.  This route is preferable to an 
alignment north of Bellinger’s Garage and the reference 
should be retained as an indication of such preference. 

 

 
 
 
The Inspector at the Local Plan Inquiry concluded that the 
reference would restrict highway design options in the light of 
the WAGASTS Phase 2 outcome and saw no need for 
references to ‘the south of Bellingers Garage’ to be added to 
the plan.  The modification is in accord with his 
recommendation and there is no reason to modify the plan 
further. 
 
Recommendation: No change. 
 

PM5.2 - Para 5.13                                           
 
Comment 
 
815/PM/2 Gloucestershire County Council noted that 
since the consultation began Local Highway Authorities 
have had to submit their second LTP’s 2006-2011 and the 
plan should reflect this. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1002/2 Mr M Hocken objects that this modification needs 
to be updated as a result of the submission of the full LTP. 
 
Mr Hocken goes on to conclude that the final paragraph of 
the proposed amendment PM5.2 para 5.13 is factually 
incorrect in a number of respects and a new concluding 
paragraph should be added along the lines: 
 
“The Local Transport Plan recognizes that measures taken 
to date will be insufficient to address exceedences of 
airborne pollutants resulting from traffic emissions in central 
Abingdon.  As a result, consultation on the declaration of an 
Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) in Abingdon town 
centre has begun, with a view to the adoption, within a 12-
18 month timeframe, of an Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) 
for integration into the new Local Transport Plan.  This 
Action Plan will be required to set “ambitious but realistic” 

 
 
 
Agreed.  A minor change to the wording would correct and 
update the plan.  It would not be a substantive change and it 
is not necessary to advertise it as a further proposed 
modification. 
 
Recommendation: Second Deposit Draft Local Plan 
incorporating the Proposed Modifications March 2006, 
page 62, para 5.13, first sentence: delete ‘produced’ and 
insert ‘submitted’. 
 
 
 
 
 
The Local Plan re-iterates the agreed ambitions of the 
Transport Plan which the Proposed Modifications correctly 
include.  This as set out in para 5.14 is purely to set the 
framework for planning decisions affecting land use.  The text 
suggested by Mr Hocken is a level of detail not appropriate for 
inclusion in a land use plan. 
 
 
Development proposals which would unacceptably harm the 
amenities of neighbouring properties and their wider 
environment will be considered in the context of policy DC9. 
 
 

Page 80



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 5 - TRANSPORT 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 
Deputy Director (Planning & Community 

Strategy) 
targets to reduce exceedences and show that all 
appropriate traffic management measures to bring about 
such reductions have been considered.  As a consequence 
of the AQMA declaration, the authority will be required to 
assess the impact of any proposed development on air 
quality levels within the AQMA, and ensure that both air 
quality and traffic assessments/travel plans will be required 
in respect of all development plans that could adversely 
affect air quality within the AQMA (see section 5.64 and 65 
and TR7 [which should be amended accordingly]).  The 
relevant development and planning guidance will be strictly 
enforced by the authority (in particular PPS13, PPS23 and 
DC10).  All sustainability appraisals conducted under the 
Plan will need to factor in this material consideration.  
Should it moreover transpire that there was no public 
advertisement of the May 2005 decision by the Executive 
not to conduct an environmental assessment of the 
emerging Local Plan, the legal implications thereof will 
need to be elucidated before the Plan is finalised.” 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public notices were displayed in the local press and Mr 
Hocken has been advised of this.   
 
Recommendation: No change. 
 

PM5.4 - Para 5.19                                           
 
815/PM/3 Gloucestershire County Council comment that 
this modification needs updating due to the 
submission of the LTP.  
 
 

 
Agreed.  A minor change to the wording would correct and 
update the plan.  It would not be a substantive change and it 
is not necessary to advertise it as a further proposed 
modification. 
 
Recommendation: Second Deposit Draft Local Plan 
incorporating the Proposed Modifications March 2006, 
page 65, para 5.19, first sentence delete: ‘provisional’ and 
insert ‘submitted’. 
 
 

PM5.5 - Para 5.24                                           
Objection 
 
276/PM/1 Grove Parish Council consider that the latter 
part of paragraph 5.24 is not consistent with PM8.24 and 
PM8.29 and should be reworded. 

 
 
Agreed.  A minor change to the wording would make the 
Proposed Modifications consistent.  This is not a substantive 
change and it is not necessary to advertise it as a further 
proposed modification. 
 
Recommendation: Second Deposit Draft Local Plan 
incorporating the Proposed Modifications March 2006, 
page 67 para 5.24 amend final sentence to read ‘The 
Council will also require the development to fund the 
construction of a new road from the strategic housing site 
west of Grove to join the A338 north of Grove to be 
started early in the second phase of development and 
completed before any more than 1500 dwellings in total 
have been built on the site.’ 

PM5.17 and PM 5.18 – Policy TR9    Lorries and Roadside Services 
Support 
 
333/PM/1 Mr J Bray supports the clearer definition of 
roadside facilities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Noted. 
 

 

Page 81



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 5 - TRANSPORT 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 
Deputy Director (Planning & Community 

Strategy) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 82



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 7 – NATURAL ENVIRONMENT 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

 
Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 

Deputy Director (Planning & Community 
Strategy) 

  

PM 7.3 – Para 7.27 – The Need for Ecological Appraisals                        
 
 
 
Support 
 
403/PM/2 Environment Agency 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Noted 

 

 
 

Page 83



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 8 - HOUSING 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

 
Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 

Deputy Director (Planning & Community 
Strategy) 

  

PM8.8 - Table 8.2                                    
 
815/1 Gloucestershire County Council comments that it 
would be clearer if the second column were changed to 
read ‘Dwellings constructed 31/3/96 – 31/3/2005 and sites 
with planning permission at 31/3/05. 

 

 
It is accepted that the heading to the column could be clearer 
and it would be a minor change that would not need to be 
advertised as a further proposed modification. 
 
Recommendation: Page 127 of the second deposit plan 
incorporating the proposed modifications, table 8.2 column 
2: amend to read “Dwellings built since 01.04.96 and 
dwellings permitted at 01.04.05”. 
 

 

PM8.14, PM8.15 & PM8.16 – Policy H3 iv) – Housing on Land South of the A420 (both 
sides of Tilbury Lane)                                   
Support 
 
291/PM/2-6 University of Oxford 
 
Objection 
 
943/PM/2-5 Mr Allsworth, 961/PM/1 Mr Amor, 924/PM/1 
Mr Asker, 925/PM/1 Mr Aspel, 981/PM/1 Mr & Mrs 
Barrett, 983/PM/1 E Beaves, 964/PM/1 Miss J Bolder & 
Mr Coates, 999/PM/1 Mr Bowell, 920/PM/1 Mrs Bragg, 
922/PM/1 Mr Bragg, 956/PM/1 Mr Bunt, 919/PM/1 Mrs 
Byford, 912/PM/2-5 N J Campo, 913/PM/2-5 V Campo, 
914/PM/1-4 Z Campo, 968/PM/1 A Carter, 935/PM/1 Mr & 
Mrs Cartwright, 985/PM/1 Mr Carver, 917/PM/1 Mr & Mrs 
Crampton, 285/PM/1 Cumnor Parish Council, 966/PM/1 
Mr & Mrs Durham, 406/PM/2-5 Mrs Dyson, 962/PM/1 Mr 
& Mrs Edwards, 901/PM/2-5 M Elliott, 955/PM/1 M 
Erskine, 938/PM/1 M R Evans, 900/PM/1 Dr P Fisher, 
930/PM/1 A Ford, 947/PM/2-5 T Foster, 948/PM/1 Mrs 
Gardner, 931/PM/1 G Goble, 987/PM/1 Cllr J Godden, 
958/PM/1 Mr & Mrs Gordon, 942/PM/1 Mr & Mrs 
Griffiths, 995/PM/2-5 Mr & Mrs Hall, 954/PM/2-5 Mr 
Harper-Smith, 934/PM/1 M Harris, 989/PM/2-5 Mrs 
Hayle, 1000/PM/1 Mr & Mrs Hayward, 997/PM/1 Hazel 
Road Kids, 973/PM/1 A Herbert, 908/PM/1 M Holroyd, 
929/PM/1 S Harper, 936/PM/1 Mr & Mrs Jackson, 
909/PM/1 Mr Jones, 959/PM/1 T Lee & D Rescarle, 
960/PM/1 L M & V E Lee, 967/PM/1 H Millar & J McGrath, 
957/PM/1 P Milton, 972/PM/1 M G & J A Maloney, 
963/PM/1 Mr & Mrs P Maloney, 932/PM/1 Mr & Mrs 
Moore, 926/PM/1 Mr J Murphy, 928/PM/1 I & H Naqib, 
949/PM/2-5 M Nash, 939/PM/1 Dr M Neil, 992/PM/1 K 
Neller, 945/PM/1 Mr & Mrs Newport, 965/PM/1 M Nicks, 
107/PM/1-3 North Hinksey Parish Council, 998/PM/1 Mrs 
O’Dell, 940//PM1 Mr & Mrs O’Donoghue, 982/PM/1 G 
Ogle, 907/PM/2-5 A O’Leary, 915/PM/1 K O’Rourke, 
911/PM/1 Oxford Association of Hotels & Guest 
Houses, 933/PM/1 C Pearson, 952/PM/1-4 S & R Pickles, 
988/PM/1-5 J Porter, 977//PM1 A Poynter, 980/PM/1 A & 
P Pritchard, 916/PM/1 Mr & Mrs Puffett, 937/PM/1 Mr & 
Mrs Purbrick, 976/PM/1 E Rankin, 903/PM/1-3 Dr A 
Reeve, 991/PM/1 Mrs R Reid, 986/PM/1 Mrs Rivers, 
984/PM/1 B Roberts, 923/PM/1 M G & J M Roberts, 
970/PM/1 C Ross, 944/PM/1-3, C & S R Ryde, 941/PM/1 

 
 
Noted 
 
 
 
Many of the objections cover matters that the Inspector 
considered in detail at the local plan inquiry and reported in his 
report, e.g. the sustainability of the site, the landscape and visual 
contexts of the site and whether the site should continue to be 
safeguarded (paras 8.7.11-8.7.18).  Evidence submitted by the 
Council to the inquiry confirmed that major service providers had 
no objections to the principle of development on the H3 Botley 
sites.  These major service providers have been reconsulted 
following the Inspector’s recommendation to allocate the Botley 
sites.  None objects to the principle of development subject to 
further comment on the details of the housing schemes.  Many of 
the objections relate to detailed concerns that will be examined in 
more detail at the planning application stage. 
 
The objections have been listed in the left hand column.  In order 
to structure the Council’s response, a number of issue headings 
have been set down below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 84



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 8 - HOUSING 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 
Deputy Director (Planning & Community 

Strategy) 
V Sadler, 921/PM/1 Mr & Mrs Seggin, 918/PM/1 G 
Sheppard, 946/PM/1 Mr & Mrs Smith, 978/PM/1 D 
Stevens, 927/PM/1 Mr & Mrs Sutherland, 902/PM/2-5 Dr 
P Sutton, 979/PM/1 M Swain, 993/PM/1 C Tasker, 
975/PM/1-3 P & L Terry, 910/PM/1 Tilbury Lane 
Neighbourhood Watch, 950/PM/2-5 Mr & Mrs Trafford, 
904/PM/2-5 S Waite & K Alderson, 990/PM/1 J & M 
Walker, 905/PM/1-3 Mr & Mrs Webb, 951/PM/1 JD Webb, 
996/PM/1 K & T Weston, 969/PM/1 Mr & Mrs Woodley, 
971/PM/1 C Wortham, 994/PM/1 J Wright, 974/PM/1 Mrs 
B E Young made the following objections:- 

 

• Land should remain safeguarded; 

• It is not a sustainable location for housing; 

• Development will increase congestion on Botley 
Road/A34/A420; 

• Modification is a bad compromise destroying 
safeguarded land because land in Grove can’t be 
developed as quickly; 

• No evidence that alternative sites will not be 
developed in time; 

• Land not needed as other areas of Cumnor/Botley 
are already to be developed (Timbmet); 

• There has been no proper risk assessment; 

• Agricultural land will be lost; 

• Biodiversity and local wildlife will be harmed; 

• It will lead to flooding; 

• Sewage system is not adequate; 

• Schools/nurseries do not have enough places; 

• Health provision is already inadequate; 

• Car parking in the area is already at capacity; 

• Development will increase local traffic/parking 
problems and decrease road safety/lead to more 
accidents; 

• Current residents’ quality of life will be reduced; 

• New development will reduce the value of existing 
houses; 

• High density housing will be out of character with 
the area; 

• Development will affect Human Rights via loss of 
views; 

• Antisocial behaviour and crime will increase; 

• Mixing private and local authority housing will 
cause problems; 

• New houses will be affected by overhead power 
lines; 

• Effect on OAP housing in Seacourt Road; 

• Unsuitable cycle/pedestrian access arrangements; 

• Hazel Road is unsuitable for access; 

• No sports facilities for children; 

• Loss of greenfield land; 

• Health and safety risks; 

• Loss of Green Belt; 

• Land should be a nature reserve; 

• Effect on water table; 

• Loss of allotments; 

• Increase in noise, particularly during construction, 
will disturb residents; 

• Public transport is not adequate; 

• Using Hazel Road, Seacourt Road, Poplar Road 

 
 
 
 
 
 

• Safeguarded Land: This land has never been part of the 
Green Belt.  Its location between the built-up area and 
the edge of the Green Belt meant that it was 
safeguarded for future development to be released for 
development through the development plan process at 
the appropriate time.  The Inspector has taken the view 
that this site should now be released for development 
(para 8.7.17). 

• Sustainability: In his report the Inspector accepts that this 
is a sustainable site (para 8.7.11) and accordingly, it can 
be allocated. 

• Land Supply: One of the reasons the Inspector allocated 
the site was because he concluded that more land 
needed to be identified to meet the strategic housing 
requirement.  In coming to this conclusion the Inspector 
sets out, principally in paras 8.2.6, 8.2.7 and 8.2.8, his 
reasoning with regard to the development of these sites 
and other sites such as Grove.  Further comment with 
regard to this matter is set out in the Council’s response 
to PM3.8 on policy GS5. 

• Highways: The County Surveyor accepts that there is no 
objection to the principle of 150 dwellings on the site 
subject to a transport assessment and technical and 
safety audits.  These assessments and audits would, in 
total, cover technical issues with respect to the design of 
the junction and access issues in the wider area.  When 
a more detailed housing scheme has been prepared it 
will be possible to more critically assess how the site’s 
footpaths and cycle paths should link to the surrounding 
area.  It is not currently proposed that there would be any 
vehicular access to the site from Hazel Road, Seacourt 
Road, Poplar Road or Elms Road.  Vehicular access will 
be along Fogwell Road.  During the construction phase 
there will be some disturbance and the Council will use 
its planning and other powers to ensure that this is kept 
to a minimum and that no construction work takes place 
outside agreed times. 

• Local Infrastructure: In commenting on the site’s 
sustainability, the Inspector noted its proximity to a range 
of services and facilities (para 8.7.12).  As referred to 
above, none of the major service providers has an ‘in 
principle’ objection to the development.  One of the 
purposes of the planning system is to enable those 
responsible for the provision of infrastructure and 
facilities to plan on the basis of a clear picture of 
development in the community.  Where new 
infrastructure is required, local plan policy DC8 seeks to 
ensure the coordination of its provision with the needs 
arising from the development. 

• Pylons: National Grid, which is responsible for these 
overhead power lines, has commented that the balance 
of scientific evidence is against the electric and magnetic 
fields from the power lines resulting in adverse health 
impact although it recognises that there are concerns 
about this issue.  The Council’s Environmental Health 
Officers do not disagree with this view.  The proposed 

Page 85



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 8 - HOUSING 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 
Deputy Director (Planning & Community 

Strategy) 
or Elms Road will cause problems; 

• Alley off Hazel Road is not suitable for pedestrian 
or cycle access; 

• Development will lead to short cutting along 
existing roads; 

• Taxis will drop off fares at alley late at night; 

• Hazel Road will be used as a car park; 

• Hazel Road will not be safe for children to play in; 

• Flooding of roads will increase; 

• Development should be kept to the Fogwell Road 
site of Tilbury Lane; 

• Vandal proof fencing will be needed between the 
development and existing housing; 

• Notification of this proposed development to local 
residents was unsatisfactory. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

housing is the same distance from these power lines as 
the Fogwell Road housing estate to the west. 

• Foul and Surface Water Drainage and Water Supply: 
These matters are all the responsibility of Thames Water.  
As referred to above, Thames Water has no “in principle” 
objection although together with the Environment Agency 
it will investigate these matters in more detail at the 
planning application stage. The identification of these 
sites in the local plan will enable Thames Water to plan 
on the basis of a clear picture of development in the 
community. 

• Parking:  The County Council, as the Highway Authority 
has published parking standards which the Council will 
apply to the new development.  Indiscriminate parking is 
always a possibility in the neighbourhood but it would be 
unreasonable to require the new site’s parking to be in 
excess of the County Council’s standards. 

• Density: A development of 150 dwellings on this site is 
approximately 40 dwellings to the hectare.  This is 
consistent with the advice in Government guidance 
(PPG3) and with policy H14. 

• Character of Area: In his report the Inspector took into 
account many factors, including the existing character of 
the site and the surrounding area and the agricultural 
quality of the land (para 8.7.13-15) and his 
recommendation to allocate the site was a balanced view 
of all these factors.  The Inspector concluded that the 
land on both sides of Tilbury Lane was required to help 
meet the strategic housing requirement.  The 
Government believes it is important to create inclusive 
communities.  It does not accept that different types of 
housing and tenures make bad neighbours.  The Local 
Plan’s policies need to provide dwellings that will meet 
the needs of existing and future residents.  Other local 
plan policies seek a high standard of design which will 
have regard to the existing character of the area and 
neighbouring amenities and the provision of landscaping 
and open space for outdoor play and informal recreation. 

• Crime: As referred to above, the development will be 
designed to a high standard, and the Council has a 
policy which seeks to reduce crime through careful 
design (DC3). 

• Wildlife: The land is not identified as having any special 
nature conservation value and consultation with the 
County Ecologist has not revealed anything that would 
prelude development.  Policy NE1 can require an 
ecological appraisal to be carried out if necessary. 

• Water Table: The Environment Agency notes that the 
site lies above a minor aquifer, but has no “in principle” 
objection to the development.  A flood risk assessment 
will be required with any planning permission. 

• House Values: The end result of the local plan includes 
provision for additional development in the most 
sustainable way.  How new development may or may not 
affect property values is not a material consideration in 
the allocation of land for housing. 

• Scheme Design: The Inspector’s recommendation to 
allocate this site establishes the principle of housing.  
The details of the development will be the subject of 
public comment when the planning application is 
submitted to the Council. 

Page 86



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 8 - HOUSING 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 
Deputy Director (Planning & Community 

Strategy) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Objection to H3 iv) allocation boundary 
 
291/PM/1 University of Oxford objects that the north-
eastern boundary of the allocated land is not consistent 
with the northern most extent of the existing housing in 
Hazel Road to the east of the site, as recommended in the 
Inspector’s report (para 8.7.18). 

 

• Human Rights: As referred to above, the Inspector’s 
recommendation to allocate the site was a balanced view 
having taken into account all the factors involved.  The 
landscape surrounding the settlement was one of the 
factors considered. The Local Plan has been  prepared 
accordingly to the legal context.   

• Notification: In the earlier stages of the Local Plan’s 
preparation, no housing development was proposed on 
this site.  It is only as a result of the Inspector’s 
recommendations that the site is now allocated.  The 
feelings of the local residents that such a significant 
change should not take place at such a late stage in the 
plan making  process are recognised.  However, the 
publication of the proposed modifications was an 
opportunity to inform the public of this change to the 
Local Plan in accordance with the appropriate legal 
procedures. 

 
Recommendation: No change. 
 
 
 
 

In allocating this land the Inspector did refer to consistency with 
the northern most extent of the existing housing.  However, the 
Inspector also explained that this land should be released (from 
its safeguarded status) to meet housing needs (Report para 
8.217).  The north-eastern boundary of the allocated land is 
exactly the same as the former boundary of the safeguarded land 
and the boundary of the Green Belt.  To change the allocation as 
the objector suggests would encroach on land currently 
designated as Green Belt.  As the Inspector did not recommend 
that land should be released from the Green Belt, it is considered 
that the Inspector’s recommendations have been properly 
interpreted. 
 
Recommendation: No change 

 

PM8.14, PM8.15 & PM8.16 – Policy H3 v) – Land south of Lime Road                         
Support 
 
137/PM/2-5 Bovis Homes 
 
Objection 
 
943/PM/1 G Allsworth, 956/1 D Bunt, 912/2-5 N J 
Campo, 913/2-5 V Campo, 914/2-5 Z Campo, 406/2-5 
Mrs S Dyson, 901/2-5 M Elliott, 955/1 M Erskine, 900/1 
Dr P Fisher, 947/2-5 T Foster, 987/1 Cllr J Godden, 
985/2-5 Mr & Mrs Hall, 954/2-5 P Harper-Smith, 989/2-5 
Mrs M Hayle, 949/2-5 M Nash, 939/1 & 2 Dr M Neil, 
992/2-5 K Neller, 107/1-3 North Hinksey Parish Council, 
907/2-5 A O’Leary, 988/1 J Porter, 977/1 A & M Poynter, 
903/1-3 Dr A Reeve, 944/1 C & S Ryde, 941/1 V Sader, 
902/2-5 Dr P Sutton, 950/1 C & L Trafford, 904/2-5 S 
Waite & K Alderson, 905/1-3 Mr & Mrs Webb, 970/1 & 2 
C Wortham 
 
Objections 
 
 

 
 
Noted 
 
 
 
These objectors made representations to the proposed 
modifications which referred to both the Lime Road and Tilbury 
Lane sites.  Technically, therefore, they made objections to the 
Lime Road site.  However, having  looked at these  objections in 
detail, it is clear that none of these objections is to the allocation 
at Lime Road.  Their objections to the Tilbury Lane site are 
considered in the section above. 
 
Recommendation: To note that these objections have been 
addressed in the section dealing with H3 iv) above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 87



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 8 - HOUSING 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 
Deputy Director (Planning & Community 

Strategy) 
 
987/PM/1 Cllr J Godden, 939/PM/1-2 Dr M Neil, 
107/PM/1-3 North Hinksey Parish Council object to the 
allocation at Lime Road for the reasons which are 
summarised below; 
 

• Highways: The site is at the inner end of a suburban 
residential estate & development could have an adverse 
effect on the existing pleasant residential roads which are 
inadequate to support such a large number of additional 
houses. 

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  

•  
 
 

•  

• Local Facilities / Infrastructure: Botley is not a 
sustainable area for development in terms of local 
facilities, which are already stretched and an increase in 
housing would over- burden them.  

 
 
 
 
 

• Foul Drainage: The existing foul drainage infrastructure is 
already under pressure in the Botley area. The system 
will be further stretched with the additional dwellings.  

 
Surface Water: The drainage infrastructure is already 
under pressure in the Botley area. The system will be 
further stretched with the additional dwellings especially 
after heavy rain. 
 
Bridlle Path:   Concern that the proposed development 
would cause the loss of the bridle path which links to 
Lime Road. 
 
Parking:   There are already parking problems on the 
roads near the proposed development. It will be 
important that the proposed development includes 
adequate off-street parking. 
 
Density: The proposed density of the development (total 
130 dwellings) is considered to be excessive. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Landscape: The Inspector noted that the hedgerows and 
woodlands provided visual containment which screened 
the site to the west. However, some of these trees have 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Highways: Oxfordshire County Council’s ‘Residential Road 
Design Guide’ notes that a major access road (a type 3 road) is 
one of the principal access roads into a neighbourhood. A minor 
access road (type 4) may take access from a type 3 road and, as 
a loop, may serve up to 200 dwellings. The guide also prescribes 
the design of the junction of the two roads (by reference to the ‘X’ 
& ‘Y’ distances). The objector’s evidence to the local plan inquiry 
included a drawing which showed the proposed access 
arrangements to the site. Lime Road is a major access road 
(type 3) and the minor access road into the site is a type 4 road. 
The objector’s access arrangements comply with the guidance 
given in the County Council’s guide.  

 
Local Facilities/Infrastructure: In commenting on the site’s 
sustainability, the Inspector noted its proximity to a range of 
services and facilities (para 8.7.4). The Council is not the 
providing agency for these services but, by identifying the site  in 
the local plan, the various agencies will be able to plan on the 
basis of a clear picture of development in the community.  There 
have been no objections in principle from the service providers to 
housing development on this site. 
 
Foul and Surface Water Drainage: Thames Water has a legal 
duty to receive and treat the foul drainage in its area and to 
provide surface water drainage. The identification of the site  in 
the local plan will enable Thames Water to plan on the basis of a 
clear picture of development in the community.  There has been 
no objection from Thames Water to the principle of 130 dwellings 
on this site. 
 
 
 
Bridle Path: A public bridleway runs along the north western 
boundary of the site. This bridle way  lies outside the site and will 
not be lost when the site is developed. 
 
Parking: The County Council, as the Highway Authority has 
published parking standards which the Council will apply to new 
development.   
 
 
Density: Government guidance (PPG3) on residential densities 
encourages development at between 30 and 50 dwellings per 
hectare. The objector’s evidence to the local plan inquiry explains 
that the site has an area of some 3.8 ha and that, in line with the 
government advice, it  would yield between 160 -200 dwellings. 
However, given the site’s irregular shape and the need to provide 
a landscaped context, the objectors proposed a site capacity of 
130 dwellings. This is the figure that the Inspector has chosen. It 
represents a density of just over 34 dwellings per hectare.  
 
Landscape:  The Council’s Arboricultural Officer visited the site in 
mid 2003 and again following the reports that some of the trees 
were being felled. In 2003 he reported that none of the trees was 
worthy of a Tree Preservation Orders and recommended to the 
planners that the outer fringe of growth around the site should be 

Page 88



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 8 - HOUSING 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 
Deputy Director (Planning & Community 

Strategy) 
been cut down. The proposed development should be 
conditioned to ensure that the associated trees are 
preserved. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Consultation: Objection on the basis that the proposal  
for the development has been made without proper 
consultation.   

 

 

left. At a recent visit, he observed that a lot of activity had been 
going on but that no trees had been felled that he would have 
objected to and the outer row of trees had been retained. When 
the detailed proposals for the site’s development are submitted, 
the Council will require a landscaping scheme to be submitted as 
part of the application. 
 
Consultation: The proposed modification allocating the site has 
been made following the Inspector’s recommendation. The 
publication of the proposed modifications has been carried out in 
accordance with the appropriate legislation. The Council is 
satisfied that it followed the legally required procedures.  
 
Recommendation: No change. 

 

PM8.17 – 8.19 - Policy H4 – Housing Sites in Faringdon                              
 
The Former Nursery 
 
882/1 Bernadette Disborough objects to development as 
the existing Folly Park with its beautiful wild flowers, birds, 
badgers and muntjacs will become a walk through area 
with litter and noise.  It will lose its beauty, tranquillity and 
wildlife.  The new residents will not work in Faringdon, there 
is poor public transport, the doctors surgery is full and 
water pressure is poor.  More business units are not 
needed as half the existing ones are empty and people 
don’t want to lose the existing cricket ground.  The Council 
should tidy up the entrance to Faringdon which is 
unwelcoming. 
 
 
 
Land at Winslow and Coxwell House 
 
339/1 Mr & Mrs Knapp support the allocation of land at 
Winslow and Coxwell House as a residential site and its 
inclusion within the development boundary of the town.  It 
will provide a sustainable urban extension to the town. 
 
 

 
The Inspector considered that the major extension to Folly Park 
would significantly improve the availability of public open space 
and protect the environmental and ecological interest of the area 
for future generations.  He also considered that the part of the 
site identified for employment development was suitable for that 
use and that additional land would help arrest the town’s relative 
economic decline and retain its role as a service centre.  He also 
considered the relocation of the cricket ground should result in a 
material enhancement of local sporting facilities.  Although 
people walk on the land allocated for housing and leisure use 
there is no public right of access except the permissive path from 
Nursery View to the existing Folly Park. 
 
Recommendation:  No change. 
 
 
 

Noted. 

PM8.20-8.32 – Policy H5 – Housing West of Grove 
PM 8.20 Para 8.23 
 
Support 
 
397/PM/4 Persimmon Strategic Land (Western) and  
291/PM/1 University of Oxford support PM 8.20 
 
PM8.23 Para 8.29 
 
Support 
 
334/PM/1 Crown Technology and 
406/PM/1 Grove 2000 plc support PM 8.23 
 
Objection 
 
1001/PM/1 Grove RFC consider the proposed modification 
is in contradiction with policies DC8; DC9; NE10; H9; CF1; 
L1; L3; L13 and to the intentions behind other  relevant 

 
 
 
 
Noted 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Noted 
 
 
 
 
The local plan Inspector considered that the first phase of new 
housing at least ought to be served principally from the south to 
Mably Way.  He concluded that the realignment of Denchworth 

Page 89



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 8 - HOUSING 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 
Deputy Director (Planning & Community 

Strategy) 
paragraphs of the plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PM8.24 Para 8.29a 
 
Support 
 
397/PM/6 Persimmon Strategic Land (Western) support 
PM 8.24 
 
Objection 
 
276/PM/1 Grove Parish Council  

• ask that attractiveness is defined in the first 
sentence.     

 
 
 

• what improvements are envisaged to the Mably 
Way /A338 junction/roundabout because they 
have concerns on the traffic management and the 
ability to improve access to this junction. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PM8.25 Para 8.33 
 
Support 
 
397/PM/1 Persimmon Strategic Land (Western) supports 
the deletion of the requirement for the payment of 
commuted sums for 25 years. 
 
Objection 
 
397/PM/2 Persimmon Strategic Land (Western) objects 
to the requirement that “in the case of outdoor playing 
space this may be required in perpetuity”. 
 
PM8.26 Para 8.33 
 
Support 
 
397/PM/5 Persimmon Strategic Land (Western) support 
PM 8.26 
 
PM8.29 – Policy H5 – Strategic Housing Site West of 
Grove 
 

Road south or a suitable alternative road, as suggested in the 
Council’s pre-inquiry change to para 8.29, to facilitate a safe and 
satisfactory main vehicular access into the site from Mably Way 
would be an essential component of the first phase of 
development, rather than any increased use of Newlands Drive 
or Cane Lane.  The Inspector did not recommend the specific 
line that has been proposed by the developers and other options 
can be considered.   
 
Recommendation: No change 
 
 
 
 
 
Noted 
 
 
 
 
 
This is clarified in paragraph 3.3 of the SPG for the site which 
makes it clear that the attractiveness of the link from Grove to 
Mably Way to vehicular traffic will help to reduce the tendency for 
traffic to access the site through Grove village.   
 
The precise improvements to be carried out are too detailed for 
the local plan.  They will be considered in the Traffic Impact 
Assessment and form part of the planning application for the site. 
The Inspector fully endorsed the need to increase the 
attractiveness of the southern link to the A338 via Mably Way but 
did not consider it necessary to specify the exact nature of such 
improvements.  There is no reason to disagree with the 
Inspector’s recommendation. 
 
Recommendation: No change 
 
 
 
 
 
Noted 
 
 
 
 
 
See response to Rep No 1004/PM/1 under the General Policies 
for Development Section of this schedule. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Noted 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 90



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 8 - HOUSING 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 
Deputy Director (Planning & Community 

Strategy) 
Objection 
 
397/PM/3 Persimmon Strategic Land (Western) object as 
they do not consider that policy H5 needs to refer to the 
commencement date for the road but just the deadline by 
which it must be completed.  They consider there are no 
benefits in specifying an early start date if completion is not 
required until 1,500 dwellings are built.  Practically, this 
means the road would be built in its entirety and building it 
in phases will only add to disruption during construction.  
For practical purposes the road is likely to be built in one 
phase, which will be determined by the planning and 
construction programme, and is more properly dealt with in 
the Environmental Statement.  This might determine that 
the road should be built early for other reasons but the only 
policy requirement should be when the road is completed.  
The policy should be amended to read “xiv) A new road 
from the site to the A338 North of Grove to be completed 
before any more than 1,500 dwellings in total have been 
built on the site.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
684/PM/2 Maurice & Portia Hyde reiterate their opposition 
to the new road from Mably Way to the A417 east of 
Wantage. 
 
PM8.32 
 
Objection 
 
317/PM/7 Persimmon Strategic Land (Western) object 
because they do not consider it reasonable to seek 
contributions towards an unquantified, unplanned and 
uncosted road until there is a defined timed, published 
route and programme in place. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1007/PM/1 Mr Wooster in commenting on the proposed 
modifications raises the following points 
 

• The Local Plan does not include a whole site 
sustainability plan for the UKAEA Harwell site, and 
considers it important because the County Council 
has allocated another 1,400 dwellings to Grove.  
The area for future industrial  expansion at 
UKAEA Harwell does not need the large area 
north, about 47 hectares.  Will the Council explain 
the use of the other brownfield sites too. 

 
 
 

 
The Local Plan Inspector felt that in the interests of clarity and 
certainty for all concerned for the policy and text to also refer to a 
specific number of new units being built before the new road link 
from the site to the A338 is completed.  He was essentially 
content that reversion to the revise deposit version of part xiv a) 
should ensure that the provision of he new road to the north of 
Grove would come at a time before the development of the new 
housing to the west creates significant highway safety or 
congestion issues within the existing built up area of the 
settlement or at the A338 junction to the east.  He considered for 
a number of reasons that no more than 1,500 dwellings should 
be built before the new road is completed.  This he concluded 
would place start of construction squarely within the (amended) 
second phase of development from 2011 to 2016.  The start date 
‘early in the second phase’ is not specific and flexible.  Given the 
land ownership issues, and particularly the Common Land it is 
important that these issues are addressed as early as possible. 
There is therefore no reason to disagree with the Inspector’s 
recommendation which gives clarity to the plan by giving some 
flexibility to the start date but clearly setting out the  timing for the 
completion of the road. 
 
 
 
Recommendation: No change 
See response to Rep No 684/PM/1 under  the Transport Section 
of this Schedule. 
 
 
 
 
 
The Inspector was satisfied that the reference in para 5.23 to the 
hoped for relief road for Wantage is appropriate as a long term 
objective, providing that it remains a general reference to a 
scheme, rather than to any specific route or proposal.  It was his 
view that it is reasonable in the circumstances to have a policy 
seeking contributions towards such provision as a result, even if 
construction does not commence within the plan period, so that 
all new development in the locality may be assessed for pro-rata 
contributions, in accordance with the levels of additional traffic to 
be generated.  The Council has no reason to disagree with the 
Inspector’s recommendation. 
 
Recommendation: No change 
 
The Inspector gave consideration to the proposition put forward 
by Mr Wooster and other objectors that new housing should be 
located at empty employment sites outside settlements, such as 
the Harwell Campus rather than on the edge of Grove.  He 
concluded ‘Overall I have no doubt that such a dispersed 
distribution of new housing would lead to a less sustainable 
pattern of development’ (para 3.1.10. of his report).  The Council 
understand that UKAEA is intending to have an approach where 
the views of all the landowners of the site can be taken into 
account in producing a whole site approach for the future of the 
site.  There is however, no reason for this local plan to contain a 
sustainability appraisal of that site. 
 
The County Council has not allocated another 1400 dwellings to 
Grove.  The draft South East Plan proposes 3,400 dwellings at 

Page 91



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 8 - HOUSING 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 
Deputy Director (Planning & Community 

Strategy) 
 
 
 
 

• The planning windfall at St Mary’s School will 
provide another massive development area within 
Wantage. 

 
 
 
 
Mr Wooster shares the concerns of the 286 members of the 
public listed by BDOR 
 
1 Flooding concerns 
2 Respect for the canal 
3 Connections between main roads and the 

development site 
4 General increase in numbers and congestion 
5 Access from the South East 
6 Need to improve transport infrastructure 
7 There being no economic linkage to where people 

might work 
8 Concerns about supporting funding 
9 Shared sports facilities 
10 People having too many bad experiences left from the 

past when you have been involved with developers 
promising and then not delivering on the other two 
large housing estates built at Grove 

11 There is a serious issue of lack of public trust in what 
is taking place 

 
Concern that the SPG for Grove reads that the land slopes 
to the south, while the reverse is true. 
 
 
The Minister of State does not support opening more main 
line stations nor is any rail operator interested in this 
proposition. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The planning officers have never visited Steventon to 
monitor the existing impact current rail operators have on 
this village and the likely impact additional traffic could have 
on the operation of two level crossing gates.   
 
 
 
Contributions towards off site strategic road building cannot 
be justified and within S106 contracts. 
 
Questions the lack of connection the major development at 
Grove will have to appropriate employment prospects, 
whilst water customers cannot be expected to pay for a 
road to connect Grove to the A34, there is no certainty of a 
reservoir its drainage or location.  This project (at Grove) 

Grove and Wantage over the next 20 years which is 900 more 
than the allocation on the airfield. 
 
The Inspector also had before him the concerns of Mr Wooster 
and his views on the potential of St Mary’s School and UKAEA 
Harwell, as well as many alternative sites put forward by other 
objectors but he endorsed the allocation at Grove. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Except for items 10 and 11 all these matters were considered in 
depth by the Inspector at the Local plan Inquiry. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Only part of the site slopes to the south and the officers will be 
recommending changes to the draft SPG to reflect this. 
 
 
The Inspector recognised that the station was not a pre-requisite 
of the H5 allocation scheme proceeding, as Grove is a 
sustainable location in its own right.  The Inspector was fully 
aware of the uncertainty surrounding the re-opening of the 
station but recognised that the allocation of the land for the 
station does not require or assume that it will be completed within 
the plan period to 2011.  Similar conclusions were reached by 
the Panel at the EiP into the Oxfordshire Structure Plan 2016. 
 
 
No technical reasons have been raised either by Network Rail or 
the County Council as Highway Authority to the allocation of land 
for the station and any potential impacts that it may have on 
these level crossings.  It is unlikely that the opening of Grove 
Station would result in an increase in the number of trains 
because the line is already operating at capacity. 
 
The Inspector confirmed the transport improvement required in 
policy H5.  Notably the Inspector confirmed that it was 
reasonable in the circumstances to have a policy requiring a link 
road to the A338 north of Grove and seeking contributions 
towards a relief road scheme for Wantage.  The Inspector in his 
report at para 8.11.7 stated “In conclusion I accept the Council’s 
judgement that the proposed urban extension to the west of 
Grove is in a sustainable location in PPG3 terms.  I also agree 
with the EIP Panel that major housing development here would 
help serve the needs of the expanding employment base in 
southern Oxfordshire, eg at H/C, MP and Didcot.” 

Page 92



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 8 - HOUSING 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 
Deputy Director (Planning & Community 

Strategy) 
questions both the validity of sustainability credentials 
along with the survey methodology used to select this site 
for development in the first instance, rather than the 
abundant brownfield land available. 
 
The amount of flood water from a large Grove development 
is of no use to a canal, the land drains in the opposite 
direction towards the railway and Hanney village. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Inspector having had considerable evidence put before him 
at the Inquiry about flooding, relating to both on site and off site 
drainage concerns considered at para 8.12.4 of his report, ‘that 
there need therefore be no objection in principle to the 
development of the site for new housing.’ 
 
The Council has previously agreed with the Inspector’s 
recommendations as they relate to Mr Wooster’s comments and 
as all the matters raised by the objector now have been put to 
the Inspector there is no reason to amend the plan at this stage. 
 
Recommendation: No change 
 

Policies H5 and H5 – Proposed Housing at Didcot and Grove                           
 
299/1 GOSE comments that for these two large sites to be 
developed successfully the plans of other organisations will 
have to be aligned.  This includes the Local Transport Plan 
recently submitted to the Department of Transport and 
GOSE which should be explicit about what it will do to 
enable the proposals to be fully implemented.  All parties 
should work together in a pro-active and co-ordinated way. 
 
 
 

 
Noted.  The Integrated transport strategies should help ensure 
that all parties work together in a co-ordinated way. 

PM8.44 - Policy H8A – Housing on the Harwell/Chilton Campus                             
 
837/1 Ken Messer and 1006/1 Dilys Messer object to 
housing at Chilton Field as it is mainly greenfield,  
encroaches on the AONB and will be very visible from the 
Ridgeway.  It is not advisable to bring so many houses 
close to a nuclear establishment, the Rutherford Appleton 
Laboratory and the Diamond Synchrotron.  Would like to 
see a risk assessment or health and safety report. 
 

 
The Inspector considered that providing the eastern part of the 
site is retained as open space the development would be no  
more harmful to the landscape of the AONB than the original 
scheme and from the Ridgeway would be seen against the back 
drop of the extensive buildings on the Harwell Campus.  
Accordingly he endorsed the revised siting of the scheme 
proposed in the second deposit plan.  An Environmental Impact 
Assessment for landscape impact is being carried out as part of 
the current planning application.  Moving the allocation further 
south from that in the adopted and first deposit plans puts a 
greater distance between the housing and the 
Rutherford/Appleton Laboratories and the licenced nuclear site.  
The Health and Safety Executive has not objected to the 
application for 275 dwellings on the site. 
 
Recommendation:  No change 
 
 

PM8.45 - Policy H8B – The Former Dow Agro Sciences Site in Letcombe Regis                          
 
166/1 Letcombe Manor Estate supports the allocation of 
the former Dow site for up to 100 dwellings in accordance 
with the Inspector’s recommendation.  It meets the 
minimum density requirement of 30 dwellings a hectare and 
is on previously developed land which could be re-used for 
employment purposes.  The Inspector concluded that it 
would not harm the character or appearance of the 
settlement, the conservation area, listed buildings, AONB, 
the amenities of neighbours or the interests of highway 
safety. 
 

 
Noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 93



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 8 - HOUSING 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 
Deputy Director (Planning & Community 

Strategy) 
284/1 Letcombe Regis Parish Council objects to policy 
H8B and its related text which should be removed from the 
Local Plan.  It considers that the proposed modification for 
100 dwellings has been based solely on the Inspector’s 
recommendation and the Council has failed to take account 
of more detailed technical information. 
 
Traffic – When considering the application for 99 dwellings 
the County Council objected because the site could 
generate between 787 and 1049 trips a day.  This is 
significantly more than the previous use which generated 
about 635 trips a day. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fallback position – The fear of the Inspector that the site 
would fall into decay is unlikely to materialise given the 
investment made to purchase it.  If permission for 99 
dwellings was refused there would be another application 
for a lower number or a residential care village. 
 
The site has been vacant for a number of years and a legal 
position could be taken that the employment use has been 
abandoned.  The buildings do not lend themselves easily to 
an alternative or more intensive business use.  In any 
application to redevelop the site for business use matters 
such as operational practices, job numbers and traffic 
generation could be controlled so as not to cause undue 
harm.  The Inspector’s concern that the site could be used 
for a more intensive employment use is unlikely to 
materialise. 
 
 
 
Landscape – The Inspector noted that the site was not 
prominent within the AONB because of the ‘berm’ along the 
southern boundary.  However, the applicants propose to 
remove the ‘berm’.  The AONB officer objected to the 
application for 99 dwellings and its likely impact on the 
AONB was one of the reasons for refusal. 
 
The Call In – The Inspector noted that the application for 44 
dwellings was called in mainly because of the low density 
proposed.  This is not strictly the case as the call in letter 
refers to a number of issues. 
 
 
Perceived benefits – The Inspector notes that a large 
scheme would be more likely to support local facilities, but 
that additional residents might not prevent further losses, 
let alone reverse recent trends.  The Parish Council 
considers the retention of open spaces would exist whether 

The Council carefully considered the Inspector’s 
recommendation and the concerns of the Parish Council before 
taking its decision.  Most of the points made by the Parish 
Council were fully debated by members in March when decisions 
were taken on whether to accept the Inspector’s 
recommendation. 
 
 
During the local plan inquiry the County Council as highway 
authority was sent the objector’s traffic assessment relating to 
some 100 dwellings on the former Dow site.  The County Council 
accepted the evidence was sound and although there were 
concerns about the level of growth proposed in a small village 
with very few services and facilities no objections were made by 
the County on transport grounds.  In response to the subsequent 
application for 99 dwellings an objection was lodged on transport 
grounds.  When the County Council was asked to clarify its 
position it considered that a B1 use could generate some 1547 
trips a day - significantly more than 100 dwellings, and that even 
if the business traffic was halved the difference between it and 
the trips that could be generated from 100 houses would not be 
of such significance that a refusal could be confidently sustained.  
The Highway Authority advised they would not object to the 
allocation of up to 100 dwellings in a letter dated 10 March 2006. 
 
The Council did not base its decision on whether to accept the 
Inspector’s recommendation of up to 100 dwellings on a belief 
that the site would otherwise fall into decay.  An application for a 
residential care village has now been made, however the 
proposed allocation of the site for housing development should 
be considered on its own merits. 
 
The site has been vacant for about four years, but its use has not 
been abandoned.  Further advice will be given on this at the 
meeting.  In view of the existing buildings on the site and their 
previous use the Council considered that it would not be possible 
to refuse an application for a well designed office scheme of 
about 8,000 square metres.  On a floorspace for floorspace 
replacement basis a requirement to restrict job numbers and 
traffic generation on the site could not be justified.  It may also be 
possible to refurbish and adapt the existing buildings for 
employment use without the need for planning permission. 
 
 
The retention or removal of the berm is a detailed matter that 
could be resolved at the planning application stage.  Its retention 
as part of a landscaping scheme could be required and would not 
preclude the development of 100 houses on the site. 
 
 
It is accepted that the call in related to a number of matters.  
However, in relation to the density issue, after careful 
consideration, the Inspector concluded the site would be suitable 
and appropriate for a well designed housing scheme at the PPG3 
minimum density of 30 dwellings a hectare. 
 
The Inspector and the Council did not base their decisions solely 
on the perceived benefits referred to by the Parish Council.  The 
Inspector also took into consideration the benefits of: resolving 
the future of a vacant site and the removal of a number of 
unsightly structures through a redevelopment that makes a 
positive contribution to the conservation area, the AONB and the 

Page 94



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 8 - HOUSING 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 
Deputy Director (Planning & Community 

Strategy) 
this development went ahead or not and the provision of 
additional affordable housing should not over-ride the 
principle of developing at a smaller scale. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Historic Buildings – The Inspector considered the Manor 
House and stables were not worthy of retention, but he did 
not have available to him documents from Dow suggesting 
that these buildings make a positive contribution to the 
conservation area and should be retained. 
 
The Appeal – Allocating the site for 99 dwellings would 
destroy the Council’s chance of successfully arguing 
against the development, possibly to such an extent that 
costs would be claimed by the appellant. 
 
 
 

character of the village as a whole; making the best use of 
previously developed land; retaining the Lodge; contributions to 
improving local bus services and cycling and walking links to 
Wantage; and identifying a site that could make an early 
contribution to the dwellings requirement in the district.  The 
Council took into these factors into account when reaching its 
decision and also the Inspector’s view that achieving the PPG3 
minimum density need not be harmful to the character or 
appearance of the settlement, the conservation area, the AONB, 
the setting of listed buildings, the amenities of neighbours and 
the interests of highway safety. 
 
 
The Manor House and stables are not listed buildings.  A scheme 
for 100 dwellings could be developed to incorporate these 
buildings.  It is a detailed matter that does not preclude an 
allocation for 100 dwellings on the site. 
 
 
 
If the residential care village is permitted the applicants have 
stated that this appeal will be withdrawn.  If the appeal goes 
ahead and if the Local Plan is adopted with policy H8B as 
proposed to be modified, the Council would alter its reasons for 
refusal, making an award of costs against it unlikely. 
 
Recommendation:  No change. 
 

PM8.47 – 8.48 - Policy H10 – Development in the Larger Villages                           
 
342/1 DPDS Consulting supports the increase from 9 to 
15 dwellings and the deletion of criterion i) as both will 
allow best use to be made of previously developed and 
unused land. 
 
 

 
Noted. 

PM8.50 – 8.51 - Policy H11 – Development in the Smaller Villages                           
 
342/2 DPDS and 3 Consulting supports the increase from 
1 or 2 dwellings to 4. 
 
342/7 and 8 DPDS Consulting objects to all the dwellings 
in smaller villages having to be small dwellings, which 
according to the definition in policy H15 would have one or 
two bedrooms.  This is inflexible, could have design 
implications where the site is surrounded by larger 
properties and may not give choice where there are already 
a good number of such properties.  It is inconsistent that 
four dwellings in an H10 village do not have to be small, but 
they all do in an H11 village.  Both large and small 
dwellings could support the social and economic well-being 
of these villages.  The policy could lead to land and 
buildings remaining unused.  It is an over complicated 
interference in the housing market and expecting all 
dwellings to be of one type is unreasonable.  Even without 
the reference to ‘small’ dwellings there may be 
circumstances where small dwellings would be provided.  
Rather than defining ‘small’ in this context it would be 
preferable to delete the references to small in paragraph 
8.58 and policy H11 and the sentence in 8.58 referring to it 
being consistent with the housing needs survey. 

 
Noted. 
 
 
In the context of this policy small need not necessarily mean 
having one or two bedrooms.  The Inspector considered that 
limiting a site to one or two dwellings would tend to encourage 
the provision of large detached properties when the site was 
capable of taking more and this would not meet the need for 
smaller units.  He considered the approach to the size of 
dwellings in this context should take account of site specific 
factors including comparability with nearby properties.  It is 
considered that further advice could be given in the lower case 
text to say that in the context of this policy ‘small dwellings’ will 
include up to three bedroom properties.  This change is a minor 
clarification which is not necessary to advertise as a further 
proposed modification. 
 
Recommendation:  Page 155 of the second deposit plan 
incorporating the proposed modifications, paragraph 8.58: 
change the sentence starting “This is consistent with 
……….” to read “In the context of this policy schemes may 
include dwellings which are not overly large  of up to three 
bedrooms where this is consistent with the objective of 

Page 95



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 8 - HOUSING 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 
Deputy Director (Planning & Community 

Strategy) 
 widening housing opportunity and choice”. 

PM8.52 – 8.54 - Policy H12 – Development Elsewhere                           
 
342/4 DPDS Consulting supports allowing 1 or 2 dwellings 
within the built-up areas of the smallest villages. 
 
342/9 and 10 DPDS Consulting objects to the inclusion of 
the word ‘small’ in the policy and supporting text for the 
reasons given in relation to their objection to policy H11 
above. 
 
815/4 Gloucestershire County Council note a spelling 
mistake in ‘equestrian’. 
 
 

 
Noted. 
 
 
 
See response to objection 342/7 and 8 to policy H11 above. 
 
 
 
 
Noted.  This will be corrected. 

PM8.55 – 8.59 - Policy H15 – Widening Housing Opportunity                             
 
342/5 and 6 DPDS Consulting supports the replacement 
of ‘requirement’ with ‘expectation’ and the deletion of the 
proposed removal of permitted development rights. 
 
342/11 DPDS Consulting objects to setting the threshold 
for small dwellings with 1 or 2 bedrooms on sites as small 
as 5 dwellings.  The threshold should be increased to 10 
dwellings.  This would give a sufficient critical mass to be 
amenable to notions of dwelling mix. 
 
 
 
137/1 Bovis Homes the requirement for 50% of the 
dwellings to have two bedrooms or less is contrary to PPG3 
which requires mixed and balanced communities and a 
choice of housing.  Each application should be negotiated 
on a site by site basis at the planning application stage.  
The policy should be amended to accord with paras 9 and 
10 of PPG3.  Failing this the words ‘where appropriate’ 
should be inserted at the start of the criterion for small 
dwellings. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
299/2 GOSE comments that the policy and text do not 
clarify which settlements have a population greater or less 
than 3,000 people. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Noted. 
 
 
 
In the interests of achieving one and two bedroom dwellings in 
villages (principally those in policy H10) the Council considered 
that a five dwelling threshold was appropriate.  The objector has 
not put forward any sound evidence as to why this is not feasible. 
 
Recommendation:  No change.  
 
The policy is proposed to be modified so that the ‘requirement’ 
for 50% one and two bedroom properties is an ‘expectation’ 
which gives more flexibility.  The policy will help to achieve mixed 
and balanced communities and is in accordance with the housing 
needs survey which shows a significant shortage of one and two 
bedroom dwellings in the coming years.  The Inspector 
specifically supported the inclusion of a policy seeking that 
around 50% of new dwellings are of two bedrooms or less in 
principle.  The rewording of the policy suggested by the objector 
does not accord with the Inspector’s recommendation and would 
not give certainty and clarity. 
 
Recommendation:  No change.  
 
This could be included as a footnote to the policy for information.  
As it is not a substantive change but a matter of fact it would not 
need advertising as a further proposed modification. 
 
Recommendation:  Page 161 of the second deposit local 
plan as proposed to be modified, policy H15: add a footnote 
against ‘3,000’ to say ‘Those settlements with more than 
3,000 people are Abingdon, Botley, Faringdon, Grove, 
Wantage and Kennington’. 
  
 
 

Policy H16 – Affordable Housing                       
 
299/3 GOSE comments that there is also a need for 
clarification with this policy regarding those settlements with 
more or less than 3000 people. 
 

 
Recommendation:  Add a footnote to policy H16 as for 
policy H15 above. 
 
 

Page 96



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 8 - HOUSING 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 
Deputy Director (Planning & Community 

Strategy) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 

Deputy Director (Planning & Community 
Strategy) 

  

PM9.6 Para 9.36                                           
 
Objection 
 

 
 
 

Page 97



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 9 – COMMUNITY SERVICES & FACILITIES 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 
Deputy Director (Planning & Community 

Strategy) 
838/PM/1 Mono Consultants Ltd object to the retention of 
the first line in para 9.36 as a means of making clear the 
Council’s attitude to telecommunications development on its 
own land.  They point out that the Inspector in his report 
made it clear that policies relating to the Council’s  own land 
should not form part of a development plan.  The policies 
should relate to all new development. 
 

 

The Inspector in his report recommended the deletion of the 
whole of para 9.36.  The remaining line in para 9.36 however 
is merely a statement of fact regarding the Council’s corporate 
policy for telecommunication development on its own land and 
is retained for completeness. 
 
Recommendation: No change. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PM9.7 Para 9.37                                           
 
Objection 
 
838/PM/2 Mono Consultants Ltd object to the retention of 
the last line in para 9.37 to make clear how the Council will  
scrutinise proposals that site telecommunications equipment 
near children.  They point out that the Inspector  in his report 
recommended the deletion of the entire  paragraph as PPG8 
states that Councils should not impose their own 
precautionary policies and that para 9.35 adequately 
addresses the issue of health and sensitive locations. 

 
 
 
The Inspector in his report did recommend the deletion of the 
whole of para 9.37.  The remaining line in para 9.37 (now at 
the start of para 9.38) however usefully explains to Local Plan 
users that the Council will carefully scrutinise proposals for the 
installation of telecommunication equipment near children.  It is 
not a precautionary policy but complements the health 
information set out in para 9.35. 
 
Recommendation: No change. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 98



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 10 - LEISURE 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

 
 

Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 
Deputy Director (Planning & Community 

Strategy) 
  

PM10.7 – Para 10.71 – Use of Canal to Alleviate Drainage Problems in the Area                                      
 
Objection 
 
403/PM/3 Environment Agency object to using the canal to 
alleviate drainage problems because of: 
 

• drainage problems and increased risk of flooding 
elsewhere; 

• difficult maintenance and management of water levels 
and flood flows; 

• water levels having a negative effect on wildlife and 
ecology (wildlife and habitat on the banks and 
ecologically sensitive areas); 

• pollution from surface water run-off; 

• erosion of banks causing bank instability 

 

 
 
 
The Inspector in his report considered the Environment 
Agency’s objection to the statement that the Wilts and Berks 
Canal could be investigated to alleviate local drainage 
problems.  He concluded that as the Environment Agency 
would be a formal consultee in relation to any such proposals it 
need not therefore be concerned that any potentially negative 
impact on the land drainage network, including ecology, 
pollution, erosion or flooding would or could be ignored.  He 
therefore proposed para 10.71 of the local plan should remain. 
 
Recommendation: No change. 
 

 
 
 
 

PM10.8 – Paragraph 10.72a                                         
 
403/PM/4 Environment Agency support this proposed 
modification. 

 
Noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PM10.9 & PM10.10 – Development Close to the Canal will be expected to contribute to its 
restoration                                         
 
403/PM/4, 403/PM/5 Environment Agency object to these 
proposed modifications for the same reasons as to 10/7 
above. 

 
See response to PM 10.7 above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 99



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 11 – THE ECONOMY OF THE VALE 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

 
Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 

Deputy Director (Planning & Community 
Strategy) 

  

PM 11.6 – Policy E4 Grove Technology Park 
 
Support 
 
406/PM2 Grove 2000 plc supports the deletion of the 
restriction on single users occupying more than 2.4ha 
of Grove Technology Park from para 11.41 and Policy 
E4. 
 

 
 
 
Noted 
 

PM 11.7 – Para 11.59 Harwell/Chilton Campus 

 
Support 
 
398/PM2 UKAEA, CLRC, NRPB & MRC support the 
deletion of paragraph 11.59. 
 
 

 
 
 
Noted 
 

PM 11.9 – Policy E7 Harwell/Chilton Campus 

 
Support 
 
398/PM3 UKAEA, CLRC, NRPB & MRC support the 
deletion of criteria i) from policy E7. 
 
Objections 
 
406/PM1 Grove 2000 plc objects to the deletion of 
criteria i) from policy E7 on the basis that the removal of 
the 240,000m

2
 floorspace limit would be unsafe and 

unsatisfactory given that the council has yet to conduct 
an Employment Land Review and there is no evidence 
base for making decisions about either the scale or 
location of employment sites. 
 
 
 
321/PM1 MEPC Ltd objects to the deletion of criteria i) 
from policy E7 on the basis that the removal of the 
240,000m

2
 floorspace limit would be unsafe and 

unsatisfactory given that the council has yet to conduct 
an Employment Land Review and there is no evidence 
base for making decisions about either the scale or 
location of employment sites. 
 

 

 
 
 
Noted 
 
 
 
 
The Inspector was fully aware of the need to conduct an 
Employment Land Review but considered that he had 
sufficient evidence before him in relation to employment 
to make recommendations about the scale or location of 
employment sites. The modification is in accord with his 
recommendation and the council has no reason to 
disagree with the Inspector’s recommendation.  
Recommendation: No change 
 
The Inspector was fully aware of the need to conduct an 
Employment Land Review but considered that he had 
sufficient evidence before him in relation to employment 
to make recommendations about the scale or location of 
employment sites. The modification is in accord with his 
recommendation and the council has no reason to 
disagree with the Inspector’s recommendation.  
Recommendation: No change 
 

PM 11.17 – Policy E12 Main Single User Employment Sites at Grove and Wantage 

 
Support 
 
406/PM3 Grove 2000 plc supports the deletion of 
policy E12 but considers that there is no case for 
inclusion of the employment sites in policy E10. Such 
sites should only be included under policy E10 following 
an Employment Land Review which the Council has yet 
to carry out. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
The Inspector was fully aware of the need to conduct an 
Employment Land Review but considered that he had 
sufficient evidence before him in relation to employment 
to make recommendations about employment sites. The 
modification is in accord with his recommendation and 
the council has no reason to disagree with the Inspector’s 
recommendation.  
Recommendation: No change 
 

Page 100



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 11 – THE ECONOMY OF THE VALE 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 
Deputy Director (Planning & Community 

Strategy) 

PM 11.18 - Policy E14 

 
Support 
 
321/PM3 MEPC Ltd supports the deletion of the phrase 
“AND NOT TO SERVE THE NEEDS OF THE WIDER 
AREA” from criteria i) as otherwise the policy would be 
unwieldy and impractical. 
 
398/PM1 UKAEA, CLRC, NRPB & MRC support the 
deletion of the final 10 words of criteria i) of policy E14. 

 

 
 
 
Noted 
 
 
 
 
Noted 
 
 

PM 11.20 – Policy E16 Steventon Storage Facility 

 
Objection 
 
321/PM2 MEPC Ltd objects to the deletion of the 
reference to relocation of the storage facility to another 
site within policy E16, as it provides the policy basis for 
moving forward with the idea of relocation. It would be 
much harder to achieve this with no policy framework. 
Also the modification countenances the loss of 
44,540m

2
 of employment floorspace without the 

evidence from an Employment Land Review. 

 

 
 
 
The Inspector was fully aware of the need to conduct an 
Employment Land Review but considered that he had 
sufficient evidence before him in relation to employment 
to make recommendations about employment sites. The 
modification is in accord with his recommendation and 
the council has no reason to disagree with the Inspector’s 
recommendation.  
Recommendation: No change  

 
Informal Comments  
 

PM 11.7 – Policy E7 Harwell/Chilton Campus 

 
479/PM1 The Highways Agency is concerned about 
the deletion of the floorspace limit from criteria i) of 
policy E7. However the Agency considers that these 
concerns may be better addressed as part of the 
development of the Local Development Framework. 
The Agency agrees that there is merit in expanding 
employment in this area but considers that work is 
needed to ensure that the campuses transport needs 
can be serviced in a sustainable manner and that there 
is a local balance between housing and employment. 
Phasing of one or both may be required.  
 

 
The concerns of the Highways Agency are noted. The 
Agency will be consulted as part of the development of 
the Local Development Framework in relation to the 
Harwell/Chilton Campus. 

 

Page 101



Appendix 1 
CHAPTER 12 – SHOPPING AND TOWN CENTRES 

 

Response to the Proposed Modifications to the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 

Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group and Development Control Committee - 24th May 2006 
 

 

 
Summary of Representations Observations and Recommendations of the 

Deputy Director (Planning & Community 
Strategy) 

  

PM12.1 - Para 12.8                                     
 
Objections 
 
1005/PM/1 W M Morrison Supermarkets Plc object that 
the wording does not correctly reflect the guidance in 
PPS6. 
 

 

 
 
 
Agreed.  A change to the wording of para 12.9 would update the 
plan.  As it is merely a description of PPS advice it would not be 
a substantive change and it is not necessary to advertise it as a 
further  proposed modification. 
 
Recommendation: Draft Local Plan March 2006, 
incorporating the Proposed Modifications, page 268, para 
12.8 from the second sentence to end of paragraph 
substitute ‘ PPS6 emphasises the role of existing town 
centres, clearly stating that the government’s key objective 
for town centres is to promote the vitality and viability by: 

• planning for the growth and development of existing 
centres; and 

• promoting and enhancing existing centres, by 
focusing development in such centres and 
encouraging a wide range of services in a good 
environment, accessible to all. 

There are other Government objectives which need to be 
taken into account in the context of the key objective above: 

• enhancing consumer choice and allow genuine 
choice to met the needs of the entire community; 

• supporting efficient, competitive and innovative retail, 
leisure, tourism and other sectors, with improving 
productivity; and 

• improving accessibility, ensuring good access by a 
choice of means of transport.’ 

 

PM12.3 - Para 12.17                                           
 
Objections 
 
1005/PM/2 W M Morrison Supermarkets Plc object as the 
paragraph should be updated to reflect the update of the 
1996 retail study. 

 
 
 
Agreed.  A further change to the wording of para would correct 
and update the plan.  As it is merely a factual description of the 
completion of the study it would not be a substantive change and 
it is not necessary to advertise it as a further proposed 
modification. 
 
Recommendation : Draft Local Plan incorporating the 
Proposed Modifications March 2006 page 271, para 2.17: 
delete the paragraph and replace with ‘In 2004 the Council 
commissioned Nathaniel Lichfield to carry out a review of 
their 1996 study.  This, together with the recent town centre 
composition study, underpins the shopping policies in this 
chapter, as set out below.’ 

 
 

Page 102



Appendix 2 
 

Policies proposed to be modified where no objections have been received. 
 

 
GS1 
GS2 
GS7 
DC1 
DC3 
DC13 
DC18 
TR1 
TR3 
HE2 
NE12 
H1 
H2 
H6 
H7 
H9 
H10 
H16 
H17 
H23 
H24 
CF5 
L1 
L13 
L19 
E1 
E4 
E10 
E11 
E12 
E15 
E16 
T4 
 
The only policies where there are outstanding objections are: 
 
GS5 
DC8 
TR1A 
H3 
H4 
H5 
H8A 
H8B 
H11 
H12 
H15 
E7 
E14 

Page 103



South East plan 24 May 2006 (KB) in Reports 2006  

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL   Report No 8/06 
         Wards affected:      ALL 
 

REPORT OF THE DEPUTY DIRECTOR (PLANNING & COMMUNITY STRATEGY) 
TO THE STRATEGIC AND LOCAL PLANNING ADVISORY GROUP AND THE DEVELOPMENT 

CONTROL COMMITTEE 
24 MAY 2006  

 
Formal Consultation on the draft South East Plan Submitted to the Government 

 
 
1.0 Introduction and Report Summary 
 
1.1 The South East England Regional Assembly (SEERA) submitted the draft Plan for the South 

East to Government in March this year.  It is the Regional Spatial Strategy for the South East and 
sets out how the region will develop to 2026.  It follows extensive public consultation – this 
Council having commented on the emerging plan in March 2005 and the draft housing figures in 
October 2005.  When approved, the South East Plan will replace current regional guidance 
(RPG9) and the Oxfordshire Structure Plan, and will become part of the development plan for the 
district.  It will form the context within which the Council’s Local Development Framework (LDF) 
will be prepared and will be a significant material consideration when planning applications are 
determined.  It will provide the context for other key regional strategies and incorporate the 
regional transport strategy.  The closing date for comments is 23rd June 2006.   

 
1.2 All Members of the Council have been sent an Executive summary of the draft South East Plan.  

Copies of all the documents submitted including the full draft plan, pre-submission consultation 
statement, sustainability appraisal, implementation plan and monitoring framework are available 
in the local services points in Abingdon and Wantage, the Council Office in Faringdon and the 
Members Lounge in Abbey House. 

 
1.3 This report summarises the key features of the draft plan as they affect the Vale and outlines a 

proposed response from the Council.  Section 4 of this report outlines and comments on the main 
features of the region-wide policies and section 5 focuses on the policies for Central Oxfordshire 
and the housing figures for the Vale of White Horse.  A report on the South East Plan 
incorporating where appropriate the views of the Advisory Group and Development Control 
Committee will be considered by Executive on 2 June and Council on 14 June.  Relevant 
sections of the draft Plan have been circulated to assistant and deputy directors and a workshop 
of officers held to help formulate the Council response. 

 
1.4 The Key dates for the next steps of the South East Plan are as follows: 
 
  31 August 2006  - the Panel publishes matters to be discussed at the  
       Examination in Public and the participants to be  
       invited 
  End of September  - comments on matters and participants due 
  23 October    - final list of matters and participants published 
  9 November    - participants’ statements to be submitted 
  28 November     - Examination in Public starts 
  28 November-15 December  - regional and general matters to be discussed 
  16 January 2007–30 March  - sub-regional matters to be discussed 
  27 February – 9 March  - Gatwick, London Fringe, Western Corridor,  

      Oxfordshire and Milton Keynes and Aylesbury Vale 
sub regions to be discussed 

  End of July 2007   - Panel Report due. 
 
1.5 The contact officer for this report is Katie Barrett, Section Head (Planning Strategy) telephone 

number 01235 540339 

Agenda Item 14

Page 104



South East plan 24 May 2006 (KB) in Reports 2006  

 
2.0 Recommendations  
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Executive recommends Council to make representations on the South 

East Plan as set out in Sections 4 and 5 of this report. 
 
3.0 Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies 
 
3.1 This report complies with the Council’s vision and aims.  The South East Plan will have a 

significant bearing on all the Council’s strategies and including those related to land use planning. 
 
4.0 The Main Features of the Draft Plan with Officer’s Comments 
 
 General Comments 
 
4.1 Overall the main aims and objectives of the draft plan and the thrust of the core strategy are 

welcome, and officers believe it should generally be supported.  However, on a practical note the 
policies in the main are too long, repetitive and are a mixture of aspiration, process and policy.  
While this is understandable to some extent as it is a spatial rather than a traditional land-use 
plan, greater clarity is needed in defining what specifically is intended as policy as the document 
will become part of the development plan for the district within which local development 
documents must fit and against which planning applications will be determined.  It is somewhat 
surprising that the Vision and Core Strategy sections of the plan (Section C) contain no specific 
policies to enshrine the preferred spatial approach and agreed scale of development to be 
achieved.  There would be greater clarity if the core strategy section contained appropriate, 
focussed and concise policies: these would not need repeating elsewhere in the Plan.  To 
implement the proposals in the draft Plan effectively will have significant implications for the future 
work of this Council and the resources needed to carry it out (see particularly paragraphs 4.8, 
4.12, 4.15 and 4.20 below).  Officers consider these general comments should be forwarded 
to the Panel. 

 
The Scale of Development and the Preferred Spatial Strategy (Section C pages 28-39) of the 
draft Plan 

 
4.2 Headlines -The strategy proposes an annual average growth level of 28,900 dwellings a year 

and assumes an economic growth rate of 3% per annum gross value added (GVA) for the first 
ten years of the plan.  A growth figure for the economy after 2016 will be incorporated in a review 
of the plan.  

 
4.3 The preferred spatial strategy is to  
 - promote sustainable development in all parts of the South East 
 - ensure development only takes place when necessary infrastructure is available or will be 

provided in time 
 - address intra-regional disparities 
 - support strategic development at the growth areas (Thames Gateway, Ashford, Milton 

Keynes) and in South Hampshire 
 - support economic growth which minimises pressures on land and labour 
 - use existing Green Belt designations to control urban growth. 
 
 

 As stated in paragraph 4.1 above, there are no specific policies included to give clarity and focus 
to the spatial strategy. 

 
4.4 Comment – It is understood that central Government considers that the South East should be 

accommodating significantly higher levels of growth than proposed in the draft plan and GOSE 
has commissioned consultants to assess a housing distribution based on higher levels of growth. 
 This Council previously endorsed a growth figure of 32,000 dwellings a year.  However, 

Page 105



South East plan 24 May 2006 (KB) in Reports 2006  

Members should be aware that 45% of respondents to the previous consultation supported 
growth at 25,500 dwellings a year or less.  In reaching the overall figure the Regional Assembly 
also took account of housing need, the impact of development and its deliverability.  Taking 
account of the need for major investment in infrastructure and affordable housing, your officers 
would not dissent from the scales of growth proposed provided the assumptions about economic 
growth beyond 2016 are updated and included in a revised Plan in the next 5-6 years.  The 
spatial strategy should be broadly supported, particularly the commitment to maintain existing 
Green Belt designations and to address intra-regional disparities which should help to reduce 
pressures on the increasingly congested western parts of the region.  Officers consider that the 
proposed levels of growth and the spatial strategy should be broadly supported, subject 
to adequate infrastructure being provided and the assumptions about economic growth 
beyond 2016 being updated and included in a revised plan in the next 5-6 years. 

 
 Cross Cutting Policies (Section D1, pages 42-54) 
 
4.5 Headlines - There are cross cutting policies to promote sustainable development and mitigate 

and adapt to climate change, reduce resource use, promote sustainable construction methods, 
provide infrastructure, use public land, ensure inter-regional connectivity, focus development in 
urban areas and regional hubs (including Oxford), reduce inter-regional disparities, retain Green 
Belts and identify strategic gaps, support an aging population and conserve and enhance the 
environment and quality of life. 

 
4.6 Comment – These policies are broadly welcomed, particularly the emphasis on protecting 

existing Green Belts (policy CC10a), the conservation and enhancement of the environment and 
quality of life (policy CC12); the intention to keep the scope for further links with the South West 
Region under review as this is particularly important for this Council in view of the proposed 
expansion of Swindon (policy CC7); the aim to concentrate development within the urban areas 
and seek 60% of development on brownfield land (policy CC8a); and addressing intra-regional 
disparities (policy CC9). 

  
4.7 The emphasis on development not proceeding until the infrastructure is available or will be 

provided in time (policy CC5) is welcome having been a consistent concern of this Council.  
There will be a key role for the local strategic partnerships to inform and co-ordinate the plans 
and strategies of the separate organisations to support the growth proposed in the Plan. 
However, your officers have concerns that the funding gap that too often exists between what the 
development industry can provide through legal agreements and the total investment needed to 
provide sustainable communities will not be filled by central Government or local taxation.  If there 
is a funding gap the Planning Inspectorate will have to be prepared to refuse applications at 
appeal solely on this basis if we are not to experience growth and development without the 
infrastructure local authorities consider necessary.  The objective of achieving sustainable 
development is welcome (policy CC1), but the criteria to achieve it, including good governance 
and using sound science responsibly, do not relate directly to the definition of sustainable 
development and lack clarity on implementation.  The policy to prevent the coalescence of 
settlements by defining strategic gaps (policy CC10b) is potentially useful but it is regrettable that 
it will only apply to settlements each with a population of 10,000 or more as it is often the rural 
character and separate identity of villages that need protecting from nearby urban growth.  As an 
example Wantage and Grove have populations of approximately 11,000 and 7,500.  The 
population of Grove is unlikely to exceed 10,000 until around 2013/14. 

 
4.8 The policies to reduce the region’s ‘resource footprint’ (CC2-CC4) are important but they are 

likely to have a significant impact on the future work of local authorities through the measures 
highlighted including improving the energy efficiency of new and existing buildings, promoting 
carbon sinks, encouraging the development and use of renewable energy, reducing the amount 
of biodegradable waste land filled, ensuring the new and existing buildings stock is resilient to the 
impacts of climate change, incorporating sustainable drainage measures and high standards of 
water efficiency in new and existing building stock, and increasing flood storage capacity. Policies 
relating to the increased efficiency of resource use are a key feature, including promoting energy 

Page 106



South East plan 24 May 2006 (KB) in Reports 2006  

and water efficiency standards that exceed current building regulations and new buildings that 
provide a proportion of energy demand from renewable resources and are built using low-impact 
materials.  Many of these policy ‘requirements’ for new developments go beyond existing building 
regulations and Government planning guidance and it is difficult to see how they can be 
implemented effectively and speedily through the development control process.  Building 
regulations would be a more efficient way improving the quality of new development and 
representations should be made accordingly to Government.  Officers consider the cross 
cutting policies should be broadly welcomed and policies CC7, CC8a, CC9, CC10a and 
CC12 specifically supported.  Policy CC5 on infrastructure should be supported and the 
need for it to be implemented effectively and for major investment from central 
government highlighted.  Comments should also be made on policies CC1 and CC10b as 
set out in para 4.7 above and policies CC2-CC4 as set out in paragraph 4.8. 

 
 Economy (Section D2, pages 55-71) 
 
4.9 Headlines - The draft plan has a range of policies to promote important business sectors and 

clusters, provide a good range of sites and premises, improve skills and training, promote the 
development of ICT enabled sites, maintain and enhance the most economically successful parts 
of the region (including Central Oxfordshire) and address the structural economic weakness of 
the under performing areas. 

 
4.10 Comment – The employment policies promote economic development with insufficient reference 

to achieving this through sustainable economic growth, instep with the labour force of the area.  
This is particularly important as employment grew faster than population between 1991 and 2001 
resulting in a tightening of the labour market.  Policy RE1 for example supports regionally 
important clusters but with no reference to achieving this in a sustainable way.  Criterion i) of the 
policy requires local development documents to ensure land and premises are available to meet 
their requirements without reference to other factors. Members will be aware that Harwell and 
Milton Park contain important business clusters.  Indeed the Government announced in the 2006 
budget its decision that the Harwell site should be developed as the Harwell Science and 
Innovation Campus.   Given the concentration of science based enterprises at Harwell and the 
major investment in Synchrotron, pressure for further economic growth building on the current 
successes of the area can be expected especially as the Inspector recommended, and the 
Council accepted, the removal of the 1986 floorspace limits.  Significant investment in public 
transport and other non-car modes will be needed to these sites, but even with this the single 
largest constraint to the development of Harwell and Milton Park will be congestion on, and the 
capacity of, the A34.  Clear guidance is needed at an early stage from Government as to what 
measures will be taken, or whether congestion on the A34 will inhibit growth in the area generally. 
 It should be noted that the A34 is designated in the plan as an inter-regional corridor (See 
Communication and Transport section). 

 
 
4.11 There are two specific points of concern with policy RE2 which contains a list of criteria for 

identifying employment land.  One of the criteria refers to intensifying the use of existing sites.  
This could be used to justify and promote unsuitable rural sites and should be reworded to refer 
to ‘existing sustainable sites’.  The policy also supports non-land based businesses on farm sites 
which could result in the construction of new buildings for commercial purposes in the 
countryside.  This would be contrary to PPS7 which states that new buildings in the open 
countryside away from existing settlements should be strictly controlled.  It should refer instead to 
‘existing rural buildings’.  Policy RE5, which seeks to reduce intra-regional disparities and 
promote smart economic growth (defined as maximising the productive value of the workforce, 
land and natural resources) should be supported.  However, the definition of smart growth needs 
more clarity and explanation, particularly with the reference to natural resources, and it should 
refer to “employment land” rather than just “land”. 

 
4.12 Members should be aware that if such policies are taken forward local authorities will be 

expected to be involved in future work that could have significant implications for staffing and 

Page 107



South East plan 24 May 2006 (KB) in Reports 2006  

resources, including regular employment land reviews, developing delivery mechanisms to 
unlock sites with economic development potential, promoting business clusters, developing skills 
and promoting advances in ICT and changing work practices.  Officers consider that objection 
should be made to the lack of reference to sustainability issues in the employment 
policies (particularly policies RE1 and RE2).  Concern should be expressed that the 
development of the regionally important business clusters at Milton Park and Harwell 
could be inhibited by congestion on the A34 and this needs resolving at an early stage. 
Objection should be made to the last part of policy RE2 which refers to supporting non-
land based businesses on farms.  Policy RE5 on reducing intra-regional disparities should 
be supported but clarification sought on the definition of smart growth. 

 
 Housing (Section D3, pages 72-91) 
 
4.13 Headlines - The draft South East Plan policies provide for an average annual building rate of 

28,900 dwellings in the South East between 2006 and 2026.  This figure includes an allowance 
for the backlog of current housing need in 2001 and local authorities will have to say specifically 
how this has been addressed.  The Vale is given an annual build rate of 575 dwellings equating 
to a total of 11,500 dwellings over the 20 years.  The figure assumes that the 3,000 dwellings 
proposed at Didcot in addition to the current provision in local plans will be split equally between 
the two districts.  The plan states that further advice will be given by the County Council as part of 
this consultation exercise.  Any over or under delivery to 2006 in relation to RPG9 levels should 
be addressed in LDDs.  The focus of development will be on previously developed land.  There 
should be a mix of housing types, sizes and tenures, 25% should be social housing for rent and 
10% other forms of intermediate housing.  Densities should achieve a regional average of 40 
dwellings a hectare.  There is an emphasis on high standards of design and making better use of 
the existing housing stock.  There will be an early partial review of the Plan in the light of local 
gypsy and traveller assessments. 

 
4.14 Comment – The housing figures for the Vale are discussed in more detail in section 5 of this 

report.  Putting this issue on one side it is considered that the bulk of the other housing policies 
should be generally supported particularly the requirement that LDDs should specify housing 
tenure (policy H4) the emphasis on raising the quality of design (policy H5) and improving the 
existing stock (policy H7).  However, it is not considered necessary to adjust the figures in policy 
H1 to take account of any over or under supply to 2006 in the context of the 20 year plan as the 
completion figures for 2005 were available to the Assembly.  In any event it is not possible to 
relate the district housing figures to those in RPG9 as they are on a county wide base only.  
Similarly it is difficult to see how the Council can demonstrate that the backlog of unmet need is 
being met (policy H1) as some 60% of the need cannot be disaggregated to the district level. 

 
4.15 Members should also again be aware of the resource implications of the future work that local 

authorities are expected to undertake if the plan is to be implemented as currently proposed.  
Work will include housing delivery action plans, urban potential studies, housing need and market 
assessments which identify the full range of housing needs in their areas, comprehensive policy 
guidance on financial viability of affordable housing, empty homes strategies, guidance for the 
design of new housing that encourages sustainable construction methods and address the 
implications of changing lifestyles and incentives for small households to move from large to 
smaller dwellings.  Gypsy and traveller accommodation assessments are currently being 
undertaken by ACTVAR.  Oxfordshire currently has a relatively high number of caravans on 
authorised sites (318) and a relatively low number on unauthorised sites (26).  Officers consider 
that policies H4, H5 and H7 should be supported and concerns should be expressed 
about policy H1 for the reasons given in para 4.14. 

 
 Communications and Transport (Section D4, pages 92-103) 
 
4.16 Headlines - This chapter forms the Regional Transport Strategy (RTS) within which other 

strategies, including those of the Highways Agency and the rail industry and local transport plans, 
should be developed.  Policies promote managing the transport system to make the most of 

Page 108



South East plan 24 May 2006 (KB) in Reports 2006  

existing capacity (including road pricing and charging, more demanding yet flexible parking 
standards and a requirement that all major travel generating developments as identified in local 
development documents must have travel plans by 2011) and investment in non-car modes of 
access (walking, cycling, public transport and ICT). The transport system is to be upgraded to 
support the international and inter-regional movement corridors (including the A34) and regional 
hubs and spokes (Oxford is a regional hub with the A420 to Swindon one of its spokes).  The 
Plan suggests there should be no further growth at Heathrow and Gatwick beyond that already 
agreed and encouragement is given to Southampton airport to enhance its role as an airport of 
regional significance.  Similarly there is a policy to enhance the role of Southampton port for car 
ferries and deep sea containers.  Up to three locations for rail freight inter changes are to be 
identified and submissions are likely to be made at the Examination in Public. 

 
4.17 Comments – The policies are based largely on the existing RTS which the Council has 

previously supported.  However, there are concerns that significantly enhancing the port at 
Southampton could increase the use of the A34.  While its designation as an international and 
inter-regional corridor (policy T1) is both welcomed and is to be supported as it may justify 
additional investment, it must be recognised that the road is an important local artery in 
Oxfordshire which supports development of regional significance including the important business 
clusters at Harwell, Milton Park and Oxford.  Officers consider that the identification of the 
A34 as an inter-regional movement corridor in policy T1 where investment will be 
prioritised should be supported subject to the caveat above.  Comment should be made 
that policy T1 should specifically support and promote investment in the transport 
infrastructure necessary to support the growth proposed in the sub-regional strategies.  
The identification of the A420 as a regional spoke should be supported (policy T2).  An 
objection should be lodged as there are no policies to promote the east-west rail link or 
rail passenger travel, and concerns should be expressed at policy T11 which proposes 
enhancing the role of Southampton port. The Council will also have to be aware of the 
proposals for rail freight interchanges which, depending on their location, could have an impact 
on the Vale. 

 
 Natural Resource Management (Section D5, pages 104-136) 
 
4.18 Headlines - Policies aim to improve water quality and management, safeguard land for new 

reservoirs (including one in the Upper Thames by 2019/20), reduce the risk of flooding, improve 
biodiversity, enhance woodland cover, energy efficiency, promote the use of combined heat and 
power, district heating and renewable energy. 

 
4.19 Comments – The previous consultation draft Plan supported the creation of new reservoirs but 

the five were named in the lower case text, not the policy itself as now (policy NRM2).  The 
Council already has criteria based policies in its adopted and emerging local plans against which 
any planning application for a new reservoir would be considered.  It would be premature to 
safeguard land for a reservoir until a convincing case has been made for a reservoir in the Upper 
Thames Valley and its location in a particular district.  The Council should object to this policy and 
suggest it is reworded to confirm that only where the need for additional water resources is 
established should local development documents allocate and safeguard sites.  As water 
resources can be proposed through a compulsory works order the last sentence of NRM2 should 
say ‘when considering proposals’ (not applications). 

 
4.20 Again, Members should be aware of the increasing impact of the policies on local authorities 

which will have implications for staffing and resources.  These include seeking measures to 
achieve high levels of water efficiency BREEAM (Building Research Establishment 
Environmental Assessment Methodology) standards, identifying infrastructure needs of water and 
sewerage companies and the Environment Agency, requiring energy efficiency and use 
development of renewable energy to contribute to the regional targets.  Officers consider that 
objection should be made to policy NRM2 as set out in paragraph 4.19 above). 

 
 Waste (Section D6, pages 137-161) 

Page 109



South East plan 24 May 2006 (KB) in Reports 2006  

 
4.21 Headlines – Policies seek a reduction in the growth of waste, the re-use of construction and 

demolition materials, and layouts that provide adequate space for the storage and re-use of 
waste (including composting).  Authorities are expected to manage the waste generated within 
their areas.  Oxfordshire is to provide landfill capacity of 4.4 million tonnes of waste from London. 
 There are regional targets to reduce the amount of landfill and increase recycling and 
composting.  Policies enable new facilities for recycling and recovery, giving priority to 
safeguarding and expanding existing suitable sites with good transport connections. 

 
4.22 Comment – The policies in this section appear to be consistent with the targets set by DEFRA 

and with the strategy for the collection and disposal of municipal waste currently being prepared 
by the Oxfordshire authorities.  In 2015 Oxfordshire will have a surplus capacity of 1.6 million 
tonnes in existing sites.  Members should be aware that the need to reduce landfill will result in a 
requirement for other facilities including waste transfer, separation, recovery, diversion, 
management and possibly incineration.  Officers consider that no representations need to be 
made on this subject. 

 
 
 Minerals (Section D6, pages 162-173) 
 
4.23 Headlines – The use of recycled and secondary aggregates is encouraged to reduce the 

demand for primary aggregates and Oxfordshire is to provide 0.9 million tonnes of recycled and 
secondary aggregates a year.  Recycling facilities will not be precluded from Green Belts but will 
only be allowed in AONBs in very exceptional circumstances.  Oxfordshire is to maintain a seven 
year land bank for sand and gravel on the basis of producing 1.82 million tonnes a year (policy 
M3).   

 
4.24 Comments – Although the amount of sand and gravel to be produced in Oxfordshire is to reduce 

by 9% from that agreed in 1994 it is significantly less than the region-wide reduction of 20%.  This 
fails to take into account that Oxfordshire is poorly located to the main areas for growth and that 
the aggregate resources are affected by environmental constraints.  Officers consider that 
objection should therefore be made to policy M3. 

 
 
 
 
 Countryside and Landscape Management (Section D7, pages 174-178) 
 
4.25 Headlines – The South East Plan gives priority to protecting and enhancing the New Forest 

National Park and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty: elsewhere high quality management of 
open countryside should be encouraged.  Local authorities through rights of way improvement 
plans should encourage access to the countryside. 

 
4.26 Comments – The policy to encourage high quality management of the countryside (policy C3) 

refers to supporting local economies through small scale development to meet local needs.  For a 
development plan policy this is not sufficiently rigorous and could be used to justify inappropriate 
and potentially unsuitable development in the countryside.  It needs to be linked specifically to 
development needed to support land management systems in ways that maintain and enhance 
local distinctiveness as referred to in para 1.12 of section D7.  Officers consider that objection 
should be made to policy C3 as it could enable new buildings for business development in 
the countryside. 

 
 Built and Historic Environment and Town Centres (Sections D8 and D9, pages 179-202) 
 
4.27 Headlines – There are policies for the significant improvement of the urban environment and 

managing the urban – rural fringe.  Local Development Documents should set out overall strategy 
and incorporate clear design guidance for the intensification of residential neighbourhoods.  In 

Page 110



South East plan 24 May 2006 (KB) in Reports 2006  

addition they should support the role of small rural towns through small scale development and 
plan positively for limited small scale growth in villages to meet defined local needs.  The Plan 
identifies a network of primary and secondary regional centres as a focus for large-scale 
development (Oxford and Banbury are the two regional centres in Oxfordshire).  Further large-
scale out-of-centre regional shopping centres will be discouraged. 

 
4.28 Comment – Although paragraph 1.35 of section D9 refers to the expansion of Bicester and 

Didcot there is no clear policy direction for the market towns of Oxfordshire which fall between the 
definition of regional centres (policy TC2) and small rural towns (policy BE5).  Officers consider 
that concern should be expressed at this omission. 

 
 Tourism, Sport and Recreation (Section D10, pages 203-217) 
 
4.29 Headlines – Policies promote tourism and recreation based rural diversification, seek to upgrade 

and develop new regionally significant sports facilities, improve existing tourist accommodation 
and attractions and develop new regionally significant attractions where they can be easily 
accessed by public transport.  Oxford and the River Thames are identified as priority areas for 
tourism. 

 
4.30 Comments – The recognition that joint working between Oxford and neighbouring authorities to 

encourage visitors to stay in the area longer is welcomed (policy TSR7 iii) as is joint working 
along the River Thames to achieve the potential for informal recreation and sporting uses (TSR7 
iv) and resist the loss of tourism infrastructure such as public open spaces, car parks, moorings 
and access points (para 8.8 of section D10).  Policy TR7 should be specifically supported. 

 
 Social, Cultural and Health (Section D11, pages 218-232) 
 
4.31 Headlines – Local planning authorities should have policies that target areas of social 

deprivation; support healthy communities; ensure land is available to meet the health care and 
educational needs of local communities; increase participation in sport, recreation and cultural 
activities especially of socially disadvantaged and socially excluded groups; and encourage 
mixed use community facilities. 

 
4.32 Comments – The Plan places the responsibility for ensuring adequate social, cultural and health 

facilities with local authorities, even where they are not the primary providers.  This is misleading 
and puts an unreasonable requirement on local authorities to ensure the provision of services 
over which they have no control.  The plan makes no reference to and should take more account 
of regional recreation strategies prepared by Sport England and London 2012.  Concerns 
should be expressed to this section on this basis. 

 
5.0 Central Oxfordshire and the Housing Figures for the Vale of White Horse District Council 
 (Section E7, pages 314-321) 
  
 Headlines 
 
5.1 General Policy Approach – Central Oxfordshire, one of the ten sub-regions, is focussed on 

Oxford and includes land in all five districts.  Abingdon, Botley, Wantage and Grove are within the 
Central Oxfordshire area.  The core strategy provides for development in ways which will protect 
and enhance the environment and the setting of Oxford, make best use of previously developed 
land and concentrate development where the need to travel particularly by car can be reduced.  
The main locations for development will be Bicester, Didcot, Wantage & Grove and within the 
built up area of Oxford.  A Green Belt will be retained around Oxford and 50% of all new housing 
should be affordable.  Priority is to be given to economic development which supports 
educational, scientific, technological and emerging business clusters.  Access to Oxford from 
major towns in the sub-region and neighbouring sub-regions is a priority.  Future development is 
contingent on the delivery of infrastructure to support it. 

 

Page 111



South East plan 24 May 2006 (KB) in Reports 2006  

5.2 Housing Requirement for the Vale – 11,500 additional homes are required in the Vale between 
2006 and 2026 (policy H1) with some 10,500 dwellings to be provided in the Central Oxfordshire 
part of the Vale (policy CO2).  The lower case text to policy CO2 states that the housing 
distribution allows for about 7,300 homes at Didcot and 3,400 at Wantage and Grove (para 2.4 of 
section E7).  This latter figure is 900 more than the allocation in the emerging local plan for 2,500 
homes on the former airfield at Grove.  It is also noted that the 3,000 dwellings at Didcot 
proposed between 2016 and 2026 have been split equally between South Oxfordshire and the 
Vale for illustrative purposes only, until more detailed work (including a crucial strategic flood risk 
assessment) establishes the most appropriate location. 

 
 Comment 
 
5.3 The approach of focussing development in the larger settlements without compromising the 

Green Belt is similar to that in the adopted Structure Plan and is consistent with the Vale’s Local 
Plan and can be broadly supported.  Policy CO1 names Didcot and Wantage & Grove as main 
locations for development in the south of the county which again reflects the adopted Structure 
Plan and the emerging Local Plan for the district.  However, the reference to the increase of 
18,300 jobs by 2016 should be omitted (para 2.13) given the considerable degree of uncertainty 
that applies to the forecasts.  It is also considered that the transport policy (CO6) which prioritises 
access to Oxford should also include a priority to promote investment in the Grove/Wantage and 
Didcot corridor as included in the adopted Structure Plan 2016.  This would also give a sound 
basis for the transport schemes listed in the Implementation Plan.  Policy CO7 on infrastructure 
should be strongly supported.  Members should note that the policy to achieve 50% affordable 
housing in Central Oxfordshire may be difficult to achieve especially as this Council’s local plan 
Inspector recommended an affordable housing provision of 40% rather than 50% based on a 
detailed analysis and appraisal of the level of local housing need at the local plan inquiry. 

  
5.4 Members will recall that the Executive on 21 October last year supported the option of focusing 

the 8000 homes that may need to be provided on greenfield sites equally between Didcot and 
Bicester (rather than the option of a stronger focus in the south of the county), but  

 
 i) considered that the housing requirement for Oxford should be increased and  
 
 ii) given the difficulties in providing a satisfactory transport package to support the growth 

already planned in the Didcot area, advised that further growth should not be supported 
until the Council is satisfied that there will be a deliverable and funded transport solution  
to current traffic problems in the area, including a Harwell by-pass, improved public 
transport and measures to resolve problems in the A34 corridor. 

 
The Executive also resolved that before any limited further growth at Wantage/Grove could be 
supported, central Government must commit to additional infrastructure including improvements 
to the A417 and public transport.  An extract of the Minutes of the Executive are in Appendix 1 to 
this report.  The Council did not support the option of a stronger focus of development in the 
south of the county with 11,500 dwellings for the Vale, which was the second of the two options 
proposed. 

 
5.5 The 11,500 dwelling requirement for the Vale is a significant increase in the building rate from 

that in the Structure Plan 2011 (within which the emerging local plan was prepared) and the 
currently adopted Structure Plan to 2016 as the figures below show: 

 
  Structure Plan 1996-2011  - 380 dwellings a year 
  Structure Plan 2001-2016  - 477 dwellings a year 
  Draft South East Plan 2006-2026 - 575 dwellings a year 
 
 It is the eleventh highest growth rate in the South East Region out of 69 authorities.  What this 

may mean in terms of development in addition to existing commitments at 1 April 2006 on the 
basis of the draft figures for dwellings with planning permission and potential within existing 

Page 112



South East plan 24 May 2006 (KB) in Reports 2006  

settlements is shown below: 
 

 Central 
Oxfordshire 

Remainder of 
the Vale 

Total 

Dwellings with permission1 
Dwellings allocated2 
Potential in settlements3 
Potential supply 
Requirement 2006-2026 
Balance to find 

1245 
3550 
2540 
7335 

10,500 
3165 

295 
550 
410 
1255 
1000 
+255 

1540 
4100 
2950 
8590 
11500 
2910 

 
 1 As at 1 April 2006 – the figures are draft only 
 2 Including all the allocations in the draft local plan as proposed to be modified (with the full 

2500 at Grove) 
 3 Assumes large sites (10 or more dwellings) at 75% of the rate expected 2001-2011 

between 2011 and 2016 (i.e. 750) and 50% between 2016 and 2026 (i.e. 1000) 
 
5.6 The figures for the potential in settlements are general estimates only, as even with a reasonably 

up to date urban capacity study it is difficult to predict how many dwellings will be built within 
existing settlements as most will be developed on land in an existing use.  The figure for the 
remainder of the Vale outside Central Oxfordshire is particularly sensitive given there are a small 
number of villages and Faringdon is the only town.  Members should consider whether the figure 
for the district outside Central Oxfordshire should be increased by 255 or 455  

 
 dwellings (the latter figure would allow a modest expansion of Faringdon) with a commensurate 

reduction in the Central Oxfordshire area of the Vale. 
 
5.7 The 3165 dwellings to be found on sites outside the existing built-up areas of settlements in 

Central Oxfordshire (as indicated in the above table) includes a figure of 1500 dwellings for 
Didcot in addition to the allocations in the emerging Local Plan (discussed below).  This leaves 
1665 to be found outside Didcot in the Central Oxfordshire part of the district, if no adjustment is 
made as suggested in para 5.6 above.  Members will be aware from the work carried out on the 
emerging Local Plan of the difficulties in finding suitable development sites on the edge of 
Abingdon, and that most of the safeguarded land at Botley has now been allocated for housing 
on the recommendation of the Local Plan Inspector.  Officers are concerned at the implications of 
accommodating this number of dwellings on greenfield sites, as this could ultimately result in a 
significant expansion of some villages which is not a sustainable option for growth. 

 
5.8 Grove – Of the 3,400 dwellings proposed for the Wantage and Grove area in the lower case text 

supporting policy CO2 (para 2.4), 2,500 are already planned on the former airfield west of Grove. 
 The redevelopment of St. Mary’s School and possibly one of the King Alfred’s campuses, plus 
existing permissions could yield an additional 500 dwellings.  This would leave some 400 
dwellings to be accommodated on sites outside the existing settlements.  This could be 
reasonably manageable given the 20 year time horizon.  However, the redevelopment sites are 
included in the urban potential figure in the table in para 5.5 above and would not therefore 
contribute to the ‘greenfield’ requirement.  Members may consider that an increased building rate 
for Wantage and Grove above the 3,400 proposed would not be acceptable bearing in mind the 
need to see first whether public transport can be improved sufficiently to deter car use to access 
job opportunities and secondly the opportunities for job growth above that anticipated to 2016 at 
Milton Park and Harwell. 

 
5.9 It is imperative that further growth at Wantage and Grove above that provided for in the emerging 

local plan is supported by the necessary infrastructure – secondary education and transport being 
particularly important.  The implementation plan (accompanying the draft South East Plan) 
specifically refers to local road improvements in the Grove and Wantage area, the link road north 
of Grove, and the Wantage north east relief road: these should be welcomed.  In this context 
policy CO7, which states that development will be contingent on the timely delivery of 

Page 113



South East plan 24 May 2006 (KB) in Reports 2006  

infrastructure, should be supported.  However, paragraph 2.18 of Section E7 should specifically 
refer to the infrastructure, requirements at Grove and Wantage.  The Council will also have to 
ensure, particularly through local strategic partnerships, that the infrastructure requirements are 
picked up in the plans and strategies of relevant service providers (including the Local Transport 
Plan, Integrated Transport Strategies and strategies for health care, education and water for 
example). 

 
5.10 Didcot – The County Council reduced the additional housing requirement from 4,000 to 3,000 

dwellings after 2016 from that proposed last autumn, although the technical justification for this is 
not clear.  The Councils are expected to give advice as to how the 3,000 dwellings should be 
apportioned between South Oxfordshire and the Vale.  Although the two district council’s have 
appointed consultants to look at future development at Didcot their work is not yet complete and 
an issue of flood risk on some potential areas for growth has been identified.  This will not be a 
barrier to further growth at Didcot but may be a factor in identifying preferred locations.  A 
strategic flood risk assessment is being undertaken and should be available to inform the 
Examination in Public. 

 
5.11 The Council has always accepted that Didcot is potentially the most sustainable location for 

growth in the south of the county close to the major employment sites of Milton Park and Harwell. 
 Further growth of the town may help to support additional services and facilities for the town and 
the recent development of the Orchard Centre is an example of this.  However, it is crucial that 
there is investment in a wide range of facilities and, from this Council’s perspective, particularly in 
transport to mitigate the problems of increased levels of traffic in nearby villages – most notably 
Harwell.  In this context the references to the Harwell by-pass in the implementation plan are 
welcome. 

 
5.12 Officers suggest that the number of dwellings to be accommodated in the Central Oxfordshire 

part of the Vale is too high and could result in the need to find some 1265 dwellings on 
‘greenfield’ sites outside Didcot, Grove and Wantage.  If an objection is made to the EiP Panel on 
this basis it is suggested that the Council should indicate what figure would be appropriate and 
where the balance should be found.  An increase of 300 dwellings for the Vale outside Central 
Oxfordshire with a commensurate reduction in Central Oxfordshire, plus further reduction of 700 
in Central Oxfordshire would be likely to give more reasonable figure for the district as follows: 

 
 

 Central 
Oxfordshire 

Remainder of 
the Vale 

Total 

Revised requirement 
Potential supply 
Balance to find 
less Didcot 

9500 
7335 
2165 
1500 
 665  

 

1300 
1255 
45 

10,800 
8590 
2210 

 
 The 700 dwellings not provided in the Vale could be reapportioned to Oxford or other towns in 

Central Oxfordshire, including Didcot.  Members are asked to give a view on whether this 
approach should be pursued in preparation for the EiP. 

 
5.13 Officers suggest the following response could be made to the Central Oxfordshire policies and 

the housing requirement for the Vale: 
 

• the strategy to focus housing development in towns beyond the Green Belt and the 
Implementation Plan for the sub-region is broadly supported provided that development at 
Grove, Wantage and Didcot are accompanied by investment in the necessary infrastructure 
and services.  Without it the Council will not grant planning permission for the major levels 
of growth proposed; 

• the housing requirement for the Vale should be reduced by 700 dwellings from 11,500 to 

Page 114



South East plan 24 May 2006 (KB) in Reports 2006  

10,800 and the figures for Central Oxfordshire and the remainder of the Vale changed to 
9,500 and 1,300 respectively; 

• support policy CO3 protecting the Green Belt; 
• policy CO6 on transport should also refer to priority to be given to improving transport 

infrastructure in the Grove/Wantage and Didcot corridor as in the approved Structure Plan 
2016 to support the major levels of growth proposed; 

• policy CO7 which states that development is contingent on the timely delivery of services 
should be strongly supported, but that reference should be made in the lower case text to 
the need for infrastructure in Grove and Wantage, particularly for secondary education; 

• the split of the housing requirement for Didcot between South Oxfordshire and the Vale 
cannot be determined at this stage in view of the need for a strategic flood risk assessment 
but information will be provided in time to inform the Examination in Public; 

• object to the reference to 18,300 jobs by 2016 in paragraph 2.13 as this is based on 
forecasts which are subject to considerable uncertainty. 

 
RODGER HOOD 

Deputy Director (Planning & Community Strategy) 
 

TIM SADLER 
Strategic Director 

 
Background Papers:   

Page 115



LDF SCI SD 24 May 06 (GAM) 06 – in Reports 2006 

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL     Report No 9/06 
           Wards affected: ALL 
 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 
TO THE STRATEGIC AND LOCAL PLANING  ADVISORY GROUP 

24 MAY 2006 
 

Local Development Framework:  Response to the Statement of Community Involvement 
Submission Document 

 
 
1.0 Introduction and Report Summary 
 
1.1 The Statement of Community Involvement was submitted to the Secretary of State on the 10th 

March 2006 and placed on deposit until 21st April 2006.  This report summarises the 
representations received during the deposit period and Appendix A sets out the recommended 
response of the Council to the representations for consideration by the Inspector at the 
Examination. 

 
1.2 The Contact Officer for this report is Grant Audley-Miller, Section Head (Environmental Planning 

& Conservation) 01235 540343. 
 

2.0 Recommendations  
 
2.1 That the Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group recommend the Executive to: 
 
 1)  Note the representations received in response to the submission of the Statement of 

Community Involvement, 
 
 2) Forward Appendix A to the Planning Inspectorate as the Council’s response to the issues 

raised by the representations and possible changes to the final Statement of Community 
Involvement that would improve the document. 

 
3.0 Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies 
 
3.1 This report complies with the Council's Vision Statement and aims. 
 
4.0 The Statement of Community Involvement Submission Document 
 
4.1 The Statement of Community Involvement submission document was placed on deposit from 10 

March 2006 to 21 April 2006.  It was sent free to all the Consultation Bodies contained in 
Appendix 1 and the List of Bodies and Organisations in Appendix 2 of the Statement.  In addition 
over 200 individuals and other organisations who had previously expressed interest on being 
kept up to date on progress on the Local Plan were notified by letter of the publication of the 
Statement.   

 
4.2 The document and the forms for making representations were available at the Local Services 

Points in Abingdon and Wantage and the Council's offices at Faringdon, at libraries throughout 
the district and at Didcot and the Westgate Centre, Oxford.   

 
4.3 Notices were placed in the Oxford Mail and the Wiltshire Gazette and Herald at the start of the 

consultation period.  A press release was sent out to the media identified in Appendix 2 of the 
Statement.  In addition an informal notice was placed in Council News.  The document and 
representation forms were also available at  www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/planningpolicy/LDF which 

Agenda Item 15

Page 116



LDF SCI SD 24 May 06 (GAM) 06 – in Reports 2006 

included a downloadable version of the document together with forms for making comments. 
 
5.0 Consultation Responses 
 
5.1 30 individuals and organisations made representations.  8 were representations in support and 7 

were comments.  7 were submitted by e-mail. 
 
5.2 16 representations were objecting to the SCI or part of the SCI.  The majority were concerned 

with minor amendments to help improve the clarity of the document and requests that the 
representee was included on the LDF database and should continue to be kept informed on the 
preparation of local development documents.  Only 1 individual has requested the examination to 
be in the form of a hearing. 

 
6.0 Next Steps 
 
6.1 The Planning Inspectorate are required to be sent a summary of the responses and the main 

issues raised.  The representations have been forwarded to the Planning Inspectorate to arrange 
the Examination which will be carried out by Keith Holland BA (Hons) Dip TP, MRTPI ARICS.     

 
6.2 The Planning Inspectorate also recommend that authorities can include a response to the main 

issues raised, offering where necessary, possible changes to the final SCI that would improve the 
document.  It is intended that Appendix A be forwarded to the Planning Inspectorate after 
consideration by the Executive. 

 
 
 

 
RODGER HOOD 

Deputy Director (Planning & Community Strategy) 
 

TIM SADLER 
Strategic Director 

 
 
Background Papers: None 
 

Page 117



L
D

F
 S

C
I 

S
D

 2
4

 M
ay

 0
6
 (

G
A

M
) 

0
6
 –

 i
n

 R
ep

o
rt

s 
2
0

0
6

 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 I

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 D

o
c
u

m
e
n

t 
 

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
P

a
ra

 N
o

 
O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

’s
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

S
E

E
D

A
 

A
ll 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 
 

C
h
u
rc

h
e
s
 T

o
g

e
th

e
r 

in
 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 

 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 
 

E
a
s
t 

H
a
g

b
o
u
rn

e
 P

a
ri
s
h
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

A
ll 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 
 

O
x
fo

rd
 G

re
e
n
 B

e
lt
 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 

A
ll 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 

P
le

a
s
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 

 

W
M

 M
o
rr

is
o
n
 

S
u
p
e
rm

a
rk

e
ts

 P
lc

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 6

 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 s
e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 S

C
I 

 

T
h
e
 T

h
e
a
tr

e
s
 T

ru
s
t 

 
W

e
lc

o
m

e
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 a

n
d
 l
o
o
k
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 t
o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ti
n
g

 o
n
 n

e
x
t 

s
ta

g
e
 o

f 
L
D

F
 

 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 G

e
o
lo

g
y
 

T
ru

s
t 

 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 

W
o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 R

IG
S

 G
ro

u
p
 

d
e
le

te
d
 a

s
 n

o
 l
o
n
g

e
r 

e
x
is

ts
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 n

o
 o

b
je

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t
h
e
 d

e
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 R

IG
S

 G
ro

u
p
 f
ro

m
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
. 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 S

k
ill

s
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 
 

S
o
u
th

 W
e
s
t 
R

e
g

io
n
a
l 

A
s
s
e
m

b
ly

 

 
N

o
te

d
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
te

n
ts

. 
H

a
v
e
 n

o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
t 
th

is
 s

ta
g

e
 

 

G
lo

u
c
e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 

C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

 
N

o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
. 
W

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t

o
 b

e
 k

e
p
t 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 o

f 
fu

tu
re

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 L

D
F

 

 

B
ri
ti
s
h
 W

a
te

rw
a
y
s
 

 
S

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 i
t 
a
p
p
e
a
rs

 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s
 

a
n
d
 h

a
s
 n

o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 

 

B
e
llw

a
y
 H

o
m

e
s
 

 
H

a
v
e
 n

o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 b

u
t 
w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t

o
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 f

u
tu

re
 

 

F
ir
s
t 
G

re
a
t 
W

e
s
te

rn
 

 
W

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o

n
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 a

ro
u
n
d
 r

a
il 

s
ta

ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 

R
a
il 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 R
a
il 

in
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 c
a
s
e
s
 b

u
t 
d
o
 n

o
t 
c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

it
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
a
b
le

 t
o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
 r

a
il 

o
p
e
ra

to
rs

 a
s
 s

u
g
g

e
s
te

d
. 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 

 
N

o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 

 

Page 118



L
D

F
 S

C
I 

S
D

 2
4

 M
ay

 0
6
 (

G
A

M
) 

0
6
 –

 i
n

 R
ep

o
rt

s 
2
0

0
6

 

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
P

a
ra

 N
o

 
O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

’s
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

C
lu

tt
o
n
s
 

 
N

o
te

 c
o
n
te

n
t,
 w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 o

n
 l
is

t 
o
f 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 f

u
tu

re
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 n

o
 o

b
je

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 

C
lu

tt
o
n
s
 i
n
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
. 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 

A
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
a
n
d
 

H
is

to
ri
c
a
l 
S

o
c
ie

ty
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 

  A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 

O
x
fo

rd
 

A
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 

a
n
d
 

H
is

to
ri
c
a
l 

S
o
c
ie

ty
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 

re
a
d
 

a
s
 

O
xf

o
rd

s
h
ir
e
 

A
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 

a
n
d
 

H
is

to
ri
c
a
l 

S
o
c
ie

ty
 

 T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

B
ri
ti
s
h
 

A
rc

h
a
e
o
lo

g
y
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
G

ro
u
p
s
 

T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 

n
o
 

o
b
je

c
ti
o
n
 

to
 

a
m

e
n
d
in

g
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 t

o
 r

e
a
d
 ‘

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 A

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 

a
n
d
 

H
is

to
ri
c
a
l 
S

o
c
ie

ty
’.
 

 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 
1
 

is
 

a
n
 

e
x
tr

a
c
t 

fr
o
m

 
P

P
S

1
2
: 

L
o
c
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

s
, 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
ta

in
s
 a

 l
is

t 
o
f 

b
o
d
ie

s
 
a
n
d
 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 
w

h
ic

h
 
th

e
 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

h
a
s
 s

p
e
c
if
ie

d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
. 

T
h
is

 l
is

t 
is

 n
o
t 

in
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 e

x
h
a
u
s
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 i
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

o
 s

h
o

w
 

th
e
 

ra
n
g

e
 

o
f 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 

in
v
o

lv
e
. 

T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 

it
s
 

o
w

n
 

d
a
ta

b
a
s
e
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
n
ta

in
s
 m

a
n
y
 m

o
re

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 
n
o
 
o
b
je

c
ti
o
n
 
to

 
th

e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

B
ri
ti
s
h
 A

rc
h
a
e
o
lo

g
y
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
. 

O
x
fo

rd
 F

ie
ld

 P
a
th

s
 

S
o
c
ie

ty
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
ir
 g

ro
u
p
 
s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 
in

c
lu

d
e
d
 
u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
In

te
re

s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 

h
e
a
d
in

g
 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 

th
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
In

te
re

s
t 
G

ro
u
p
 h

e
a
d
in

g
 

T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 

n
o
 

o
b
je

c
ti
o
n
 

to
 

a
m

e
n
d
in

g
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
. 

C
h
ilt

o
n
 P

a
ri
s
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 
F

e
e
ls

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 a

c
id

 t
e
s
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 
w

h
e
th

e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

v
ie

w
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
y
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 o

n
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 

A
ll 

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 
w

ill
 
b
e
 
ta

k
e
n
 
in

to
 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

b
u
t 

th
e
 

w
e

ig
h
t 

g
iv

e
n
 
to

 
th

e
m

 
w

ill
 
d
e
p
e
n
d
 
u
p
o
n
 
w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
y
 a

re
 m

a
te

ri
a
l 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

n
e
e
d
 
a
ls

o
 
to

 
ta

k
e
 
in

to
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d

 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

p
o
lic

y
. 

H
a
rw

e
ll 

P
a
ri
s
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
a
ra

 6
.1

0
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
r 

it
 
is

 
fa

c
tu

a
lly

 
in

c
o
rr

e
c
t.

 
T

h
e
 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 

a
re

 
p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 

to
 

b
e
 

e
v
e
ry

 
th

re
e
 
w

e
e
k
s
 
in

 
fu

tu
re

, 
w

o
u
ld

 
lik

e
 
p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 

c
h
a
n
g

e
d
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

is
. 

F
ro

m
 t

h
e
 1

 M
a

y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 

w
ill

 
m

e
e
t 

e
v
e
ry

 
3
 

w
e
e
k
s
 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a
n

 

e
v
e
ry

 2
 w

e
e
k
s
. 

 A
t 

th
e
 t

im
e
 o

f 
s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

h
is

 h
a
d
 

n
o
t 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 n

o
 o

b
je

c
ti
o
n
 

to
 

u
p
d
a
ti
n
g

 
th

e
 

te
x
t 

to
 

re
fl
e
c
t 

th
is

 
c
h
a
n
g

e
 

in
 

c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 

 
C

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 S

C
I 
s
h
o
u
ld

 s
e
t 

o
u
t 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 t
ry

 t
o
 i

n
v
o
lv

e
 a

s
 m

a
n
y
 s

e
c
to

rs
 o

f 

Page 119



L
D

F
 S

C
I 

S
D

 2
4

 M
ay

 0
6
 (

G
A

M
) 

0
6
 –

 i
n

 R
ep

o
rt

s 
2
0

0
6

 

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
P

a
ra

 N
o

 
O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

’s
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

A
g

e
n
c
y
 

•
 

W
a
y
s
 

o
f 

in
v
o
lv

in
g

 
a
ll 

s
e
c
to

rs
 

o
f 

th
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

th
o
s
e
 

in
 

s
m

a
lle

r 

s
e
tt

le
m

e
n
ts

. 
R

u
ra

l 
a
re

a
s
 

a
n
d
 

a
re

a
s
 

in
 

th
e
 

ru
ra

l/
u
rb

a
n
 f

ri
n
g

e
 w

h
o
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
y
 i

n
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 

s
o
m

e
 

m
e
th

o
d
s
 

u
s
e
d
 

to
 

e
n
g

a
g

e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
; 

 
T

h
e
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 o

r 
te

c
h
n
iq

u
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

ru
ra

l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s 

h
a
v
e
 t

h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 f

u
lly

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

L
D

F
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

 •
 

H
o
w

 w
ill

 o
th

e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i

n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

T
o
w

n
 a

n
d
 V

ill
a
g

e
 D

e
s
ig

n
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a
l 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e
 

o
r 

s
u
rv

e
y
 

w
o
rk

 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 

in
fo

rm
 

th
e
 

L
D

F
 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 

w
e

ig
h
t 

th
a
t 

s
u
c
h
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 g

iv
e
n
; 

     •
 

H
o
w

 
th

e
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 

o
f 

lo
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

in
v
o

lv
e
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 

p
o
lic

y
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 
b
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
. 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 b

u
t 

h
a
s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

in
d
fu

l 
o
f 

th
e
 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

N
e
v
e
rt

h
e
le

s
s
, 

th
e
 
S

C
I 

h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 t
h
a
t 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
n
s
id

e
rs

 t
h
a
t 

it
 

w
ill

 
a
d
d
 

v
a

lu
e
 

to
 

th
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

a
n
d

 

m
a
k
e
 i

t 
e
a
s
ie

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 t

o
 b

e
 i

n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i

t 

w
ill

 
u
s
e
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

te
c
h
n
iq

u
e
s
 

a
t 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

s
ta

g
e
s
 

in
 

th
e
 

p
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

D
P

D
s
. 

 
T

h
e
s
e
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

m
e
th

o
d
s
 

c
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

u
s
e
d

 
in

 
th

e
 

ru
ra

l 

a
re

a
s
 i
f 

it
 w

a
s
 f

e
lt
 t

o
 a

s
s
is

t 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 t

o
 

b
e
c
o
m

e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
. 

 T
o
w

n
 a

n
d
 v

ill
a
g

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 d

o
 

n
o
t 

h
a
v
e
 a

n
y
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
ta

tu
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 L

D
F

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 m

a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t

h
e
y
 r

a
is

e
 d

o
 n

o
t 

fa
ll 

w
it
h
in

 

th
e
 s

c
o
p
e
 o

f 
th

e
 L

D
F

. 
 T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
n
s
id

e
rs

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 
m

o
s
t 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
w

a
y
 
o
f 

m
a
k
in

g
 
u
s
e
 
o
f 

th
e
 

v
a
lu

a
b

le
 
s
u
rv

e
y
 
w

o
rk

 
a
n
d
 
o
th

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 
th

a
t 

s
u
c
h
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 c

o
n
ta

in
 i

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

th
a
t 

th
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i

s
 f

e
d
 i

n
to

 t
h
e
 e

a
rl
y
 s

ta
g

e
s
 o

f 

th
e
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
L
D

F
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

. 

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 7

.0
 o

f 
th

e
 S

C
I 

s
tr

e
s
s
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
te

n
d
s
 

to
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
lly

 
e

v
a
lu

a
te

 
th

e
 

m
a
in

 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
n

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

e
x
e
rc

is
e
s
, 

a
n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 

m
e
th

o
d
s
 

o
f 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

u
s
e
d
, 

th
e
ir
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

n
e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
. 

 
T

h
e
 

m
a
in

 

m
e
th

o
d
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 i

s
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
rm

s
 

b
u
t 

th
is

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

e
x
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

fr
o
m

 u
s
in

g
 

o
th

e
r 

m
e
th

o
d
s
. 

 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 
A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 
1

 
P

le
a
s
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 b

o
th

 a
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s
 

N
o
te

d
 

Page 120



L
D

F
 S

C
I 

S
D

 2
4

 M
ay

 0
6
 (

G
A

M
) 

0
6
 –

 i
n

 R
ep

o
rt

s 
2
0

0
6

 

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
P

a
ra

 N
o

 
O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

’s
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

&
 2

 

 P
a
ra

 6
.5

 

      P
a
ra

 6
.2

2
-

6
.2

5
 

  W
o
u
ld

 
lik

e
 
th

e
 
p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 
c
h
a
n
g

e
d
 
to

 
in

d
ic

a
te

 
th

a
t 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
ty

 
s
h
o
u
ld

 
a
ls

o
 

b
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 

o
n
 

is
s
u
e
s
 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 
m

in
e
ra

ls
 

a
n
d
 

w
a
s
te

, 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
, 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r 

fu
n
d
in

g
, 

ri
g
h
ts

 
o
f 

w
a
y
, 

e
c
o
lo

g
y
 

a
n
d
 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
. 

  W
o
u
ld

 
u
rg

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 
to

 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
ty

 
fo

r 

a
d
v
ic

e
 a

t 
a
n
 e

a
rl
y
 s

ta
g

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 

  T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 

n
o
 

o
b
je

c
ti
o
n
 

to
 

a
m

e
n
d
in

g
 

th
e
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 

s
e
n
te

n
c
e
 

o
f 

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 

6
.5

 
to

 
re

a
d
 

“ 

..
(h

ig
h
w

a
y
, 

a
rc

h
a
e
o
lo

g
y
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
p
la

n
n
in

g
, 

m
in

e
ra

ls
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
te

, 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
, 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e

r 

fu
n
d
in

g
, 
ri
g

h
ts

 o
f 

w
a
y
, 

e
c
o
lo

g
y
 a

n
d
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
).

.”
 

 T
h
e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 
n
o
 
o
b

je
c
ti
o
n
 
to

 
a
d
d
in

g
 
a
 
n
e
w

 

s
e
n
te

n
c
e
 a

ft
e
r 

th
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 s

e
n
te

n
c
e
 o

f 
p
a
ra

 6
.2

4
, 

to
 r

e
a
d
 “

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
ls

o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 

to
 
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 
e
a
rl
y
 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
w

it
h
 
th

e
 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

b
o
d
ie

s
 

a
n
d
 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il.

 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 R

u
ra

l 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 
W

e
lc

o
m

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 s

ta
te

d
 i

n
te

n
ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

im
 f

o
r 

e
a
rl
y
 

in
v
o

lv
e
m

e
n
t,

 
c
la

ri
ty

 
a
b
o
u
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

fo
r 

in
v
o

lv
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 g

o
o
d
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
. 

 N
o
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 S

C
I 

is
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

a
c
t 

th
a
t 

in
 r

u
ra

l 

a
re

a
 

m
a
n
y
 

o
f 

th
e
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

a
re

 
‘h

a
rd

 
to

 
re

a
c
h
’.
 

W
o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t

o
 b

e
 a

s
s
u
re

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 t
a
k
e
 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
n
o
te

 
o
f 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 

is
s
u
e
s
 

w
h
e
n
 

c
o
n
d
u
c
ti
n
g
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

N
o
te

d
 

   S
e
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 

M
r 

M
. 

G
. 

H
o
c
k
e
n
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 5

 

&
 6

 

      

C
o
n
s
id

e
rs

 t
h
e
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

fo
rm

a
l 
n
o
ti
c
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

S
C

I 
w

a
s
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 i
n
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 p
a
p
e
rs

. 

      

In
 i
ts

 a
tt

e
m

p
t 
to

 c
o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 T

o
w

n
 a

n
d
 C

o
u
n
tr

y
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

(L
o
c
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t)

 
(E

n
g

la
n
d
) 

R
e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 

2
0
0
4
 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

u
s
e
d
 

th
e
 

O
x
fo

rd
 

M
a

il 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 W

ilt
s
h
ir
e
 G

a
z
e
tt

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 n
o
ti
c
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 S

C
I.
  

T
h
e
 O

xf
o
rd

 

M
a

il 
h
a
s
 

th
e
 

m
o
s
t 

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 

c
ir
c
u
la

ti
o
n
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t.

  
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e

 
n
o
 

o
b
je

c
ti
o
n
 

to
 

a
d
d
in

g
 

th
e
 

H
e
ra

ld
 

S
e
ri
e
s
 

a
n
d
 

th
e

 

Page 121



L
D

F
 S

C
I 

S
D

 2
4

 M
ay

 0
6
 (

G
A

M
) 

0
6
 –

 i
n

 R
ep

o
rt

s 
2
0

0
6

 

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
P

a
ra

 N
o

 
O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

’s
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

        S
e
c
ti
o
n
 8

 

        T
h
e
re

 
a
re

 
in

a
d
e
q

u
a
te

 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

to
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 
in

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 
in

 
re

s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

a
ir
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 

a
n
d
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
is

s
u
e
s
 

in
 

g
e
n
e
ra

l.
 

T
h
e
 

re
q

u
is

it
e
 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

 r
is

k
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 m
a
d
e
 o

f 

th
is

 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
a
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 
L
D

F
 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
a
n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 I
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

O
x
fo

rd
 T

im
e
s
 (

a
n
d
 b

u
d
g

e
ta

ry
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

m
a
d
e
 
fo

r 
th

is
) 

b
u
t 

it
 
is

 
s
ti
ll 

o
f 

th
e
 
v
ie

w
 
th

a
t 

to
 

c
o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 s

p
ir
it
 o

f 
th

e
 R

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 i

t 
w

ill
 i

n
 

fu
tu

re
 s

ti
ll 

n
e
e
d
 t

o
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 O

xf
o
rd

 M
a
il 

a
n
d

 

th
e
 W

ilt
s
h
ir
e
 G

a
z
e
tt

e
. 

  T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
n
s
id

e
rs

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 S

C
I 

is
 s

o
u
n
d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 

re
s
p
e
c
t 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

e
x
is

t 
in

 

h
o
u
s
e
 
in

 
th

e
 
c
o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 
L
o
c
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 
a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 
It

 
is

 
c
le

a
r 

th
a
t 

it
 
c
a
n
 
u
s
e
 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 i
f 

it
 c

a
n
 b

e
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 w
ill

 

e
n
a
b
le

 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

to
 

b
e
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 

o
u
t 

m
o
re

 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
, 

o
r 

fo
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 i
f 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 l
a
c
k
 

o
f 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 o

r 
e
x
p
e
rt

is
e
 i
n
 h

o
u
s
e
. 

 F
u
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

d
o

 
n
o
t 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
a
t 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

fo
r 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 f
a
ll 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

c
o
p
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

S
C

I 
w

h
ic

h
 

is
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 

w
it
h
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

fo
r 

m
a
n
a
g

in
g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t.

 

 

G
O

S
E

 
B

a
c
k
 C

o
v
e
r 

      C
o
n
te

n
ts

 

  

T
h
e
 i

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 t

e
x
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 i

n
s
id

e
 f

ro
n
t 

c
o
v
e
r 

is
 

w
e

lc
o
m

e
d
: 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 

m
a
y
 a

s
s
is

t 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

if
 t

e
x
t 

w
e
re

 

a
d
d
e
d
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
in

 l
o
c
a
lly

 r
e
le

v
a
n
t 

la
n
g

u
a
g

e
s
 

to
 

e
x
p
la

in
 

w
h
a
t 

th
e
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

is
 

a
b
o
u
t 

a
n
d
 

w
h

y
 

p
e
o
p
le

 s
h
o
u
ld

 t
a
k
e
 a

n
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

in
 i
t.
 S

u
c
h
 t

e
x
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 

b
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

o
v
e
r 

o
f 

a
ll 

L
D

F
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

. 

 U
p
d
a
te

 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 5
. 

  

T
h
e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 
h
a
d
 
n
o
 
re

q
u
e
s
ts

 
in

 
th

e
 
re

c
e
n
t 

p
a
s
t 

to
 

m
a
k
e
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
in

 
o
th

e
r 

la
n
g

u
a
g

e
s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

is
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
n
g

 
th

e
 

p
o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 
o
f 

u
s
in

g
 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e

 

la
n
g

u
a
g

e
s
, 

re
q

u
e
s
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 i

f 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t.
 

  T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 n

o
 o

b
je

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 i

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i

n
 

th
e
 c

o
n
te

n
ts

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 “

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 5
: 

S
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 k

e
y
 

Page 122



L
D

F
 S

C
I 

S
D

 2
4

 M
ay

 0
6
 (

G
A

M
) 

0
6
 –

 i
n

 R
ep

o
rt

s 
2
0

0
6

 

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
P

a
ra

 N
o

 
O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

’s
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

  P
a
ra

 2
.6

 

     F
ig

 3
 

   P
a
ra

 5
.5

8
 

     P
a
ra

 6
.9

-

6
.1

8
 

            

  Y
o
u
 m

a
y
 a

ls
o
 w

is
h
 t

o
 a

d
d
 t

h
e
 w

e
b
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

S
C

I 
fo

r 
th

o
s
e
 w

h
o
 m

a
y
 w

is
h
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
 e

 c
o
p
y
 a

n
d
 t

o
 

a
le

rt
 r

e
a
d
e
rs

 t
o
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

fo
r 

th
e
 S

C
I 

to
 b

e
 u

p
-

d
a
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu

re
. 

  T
h
e
 P

re
fe

rr
e
d
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 S

ta
g

e
 i
s
 c

o
m

m
o
n
ly

 c
a
lle

d
 R

e
g
 

2
6
, 

w
h
ile

 
th

e
 
A

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 
S

it
e
s
 
S

ta
g

e
 
is

 
c
o
m

m
o
n
ly

 

c
a
lle

d
 R

e
g

 3
2
. 

 T
h
e
 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 
p
re

p
a
re

 
a
n
 
in

it
ia

l 
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 

re
p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 r

e
s
c
in

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
5
 O

D
P

M
 I

n
te

ri
m

 

A
d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 S

A
 o

f 
R

S
S

 a
n
d
 L

D
F

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 f

in
a
l 
S

A
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
. 

 Y
o
u
 

m
a
y
 

w
is

h
 

to
 

a
d
d
 

te
x
t 

to
 

in
fo

rm
 

re
a
d
e
rs

 
th

a
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 

w
ill

 
b
e
 

b
a
s
e
d
 

u
p
o
n
 

th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 

u
n
le

s
s
 

m
a
te

ri
a
l 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

in
d
ic

a
te

 o
th

e
rw

is
e
, 

a
n
d
 t

o
 b

ri
e
fl
y
 e

x
p

la
in

 i
n
 t

h
e
 t

e
x
t 

o
r 

g
lo

s
s
a
ry

 t
h
e
 m

e
a
n
in

g
 o

f 
m

a
te

ri
a
l 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
. 

          

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 w

it
h
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 i

n
 E

n
g

la
n
d
 

a
n
d
 W

a
le

s
”.

 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 n

o
 o

b
je

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t
h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 o

f 

“.
.a

n
d
 c

a
n
 b

e
 v

ie
w

e
d
 a

t 

w
w

w
.w

h
it
e
h
o
rs

e
d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
/p

la
n
n
in

g
p
o
lic

y
/L

D
F

.”
 t

o
 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 
s
e
n
te

n
c
e
 o

f 
p
a
ra

 2
.6

. 

  T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 n

o
 o

b
je

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

m
e
n
d
in

g
 F

ig
 3

 

a
s
 

a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 

a
t 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 
A

 
to

 
o
v
e
rc

o
m

e
 

th
is

 

in
a
c
c
u
ra

c
y
. 

 T
h
is

 a
d
v
ic

e
 i

s
 n

o
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

n
 a

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
t 

to
 F

ig
 3

 

a
s
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 a

t 
A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 A
 
w

o
u
ld

 o
v
e
rc

o
m

e
 t

h
is

 

in
a
c
c
u
ra

c
y
. 

   T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 n

o
 o

b
je

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 i

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 

te
x
t 

to
 

p
a
ra

 
6
.9

 
th

a
t 

c
la

ri
fi
e
s
 

h
o
w

 
p

la
n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
re

 
d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

a
n
d
 

to
 

re
a
d
 

“D
e
c
is

io
n
s
 o

n
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i

n
 l

in
e

 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

re
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 

th
e
 

T
o
w

n
 

a
n
d
 

C
o
u
n
tr

y
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 
A

c
t 

1
9
9
0
. 

 
In

 
g

e
n
e
ra

l 
th

is
 
m

e
a
n
s
 
th

a
t 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 
o
n
 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 
w

ill
 
b
e
 
b
a
s
e
d
 
o
n
 
th

e
ir
 

c
o
n
fo

rm
it
y
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 a

n
d
/o

r 
o
th

e
r 

m
a
te

ri
a
l 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
.”

  

 It
 w

o
u
ld

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
s
s
is

t 
re

a
d
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 S

C
I 

to
 a

d
d
 t

o
 

th
e
 g

lo
s
s
a
ry

 “
 M

a
te

ri
a
l 

C
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
: 

S
o
m

e
th

in
g

 

th
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 i

n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

w
h
e
n
 p

re
p
a
ri
n
g
 

Page 123



L
D

F
 S

C
I 

S
D

 2
4

 M
ay

 0
6
 (

G
A

M
) 

0
6
 –

 i
n

 R
ep

o
rt

s 
2
0

0
6

 

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
P

a
ra

 N
o

 
O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

’s
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

     P
a
ra

 7
.2

 

    A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 

 G
e
n
e
ra

l 

   Y
o
u
 m

a
y
 w

is
h
 t

o
 a

d
d
 t

e
x
t 

to
 t

h
e
 e

ff
e
c
t 

th
a
t 

re
a
d
e
r 

s
h
o
u
ld

 r
e
fe

r 
to

 t
h
e
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 v

e
rs

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

C
I 

th
a
t 
w

ill
 

c
o
m

p
ri
s
e
 

th
e
 

m
o
s
t 

u
p
-t

o
-d

a
te

 
v
e
rs

io
n
 

e
.g

. 
if
 

n
o
n
-

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
s
 
a
 
c
h
a
n
g

e
 
o
f 

n
a
m

e
 
o
r 

a
d
d
re

s
s
/w

e
b
s
it
e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 a

re
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 

Y
o
u
 

m
a
y
 

w
is

h
 

to
 

a
d
d
 

A
C

T
V

a
R

 
to

 
y
o
u
r 

lis
t 

o
f 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s
. 

 W
e
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 i

n
te

n
ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

v
o
id

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

d
u
ri
n
g

 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

h
o
lid

a
y
s
. 

In
 
th

e
 
in

te
re

s
ts

 
o
f 

a
v
o
id

in
g

 
d
e
la

y
 

in
 

th
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 

n
e
w

 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 
s
y
s
te

m
 
a
n
d
 
th

e
 
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 
o
f 

a
n
 
u
p
-t

o
-d

a
te

 

L
D

F
 f

o
r 

th
e
 V

a
le

, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

it
s
 

L
D

S
 d

e
ri
v
e
d
 D

P
D

 t
im

e
ta

b
le

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

u
n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ri
ly

 

le
n
g

th
e
n
e
d
, 

fo
r 

th
is

 o
r 

o
th

e
r 

re
a
s
o
n
s
, 

b
e
y
o
n
d
 t

h
o
s
e
 

in
d
ic

a
te

d
 i
n
 P

P
S

1
2
 F

ig
u
re

 4
.1

 a
n
d
 4

.2
. 
 

  

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 
o
r 

d
e
te

rm
in

in
g

 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
, 

b
u
t 

th
e
y
 
m

u
s
t 

b
e
 
g

e
n
u
in

e
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

e
g

 
th

e
 

ty
p
e
 

o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

 
s
it
e
, 

la
y
o
u
t,

 
s
it
in

g
, 

d
e
s
ig

n
, 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
.”

 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 n

o
 o

b
je

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t
h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 t

h
e
 

e
n
d
 o

f 
p
a
ra

 7
.2

 o
f 

th
e
 t
e
x
t 
“t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 
u
p
 t
o
 d

a
te

 

v
e
rs

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

C
I 
w

ill
 b

e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 

a
t:
 w

w
w

.w
h
it
e
h
o
rs

e
d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
/p

la
n
n
in

g
p
o
lic

y
/L

D
F

.”
  

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 n

o
 o

b
je

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 i

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 

A
C

T
V

a
R

 i
n
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
. 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

re
c
o
g

n
is

e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

S
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 a

n
 a

m
b
it
io

u
s
 a

n
d
 t

ig
h
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 F
o
r 

th
is

 r
e
a
s
o
n
 t

h
e
 w

o
rd

s
 “

W
h
e
re

 p
ra

c
ti
c
a
b
le

 …
 “

w
e
re

 

u
s
e
d
 
w

h
e
n
 
c
h
a
n
g

in
g

 
th

e
 
S

C
I 

in
 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 
to

 
a
n
 

o
b
je

c
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

w
a
s
 m

a
d
e
 a

t 
th

e
 d

ra
ft

 s
ta

g
e
. 

 T
h
is

 

re
c
o
g

n
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

, 
w

h
e
re

 p
ra

c
ti
c
a
b
le

, 

a
n
d
 

w
it
h
o
u
t 

p
re

ju
d
ic

e
 

to
 

it
s
 

L
o
c
a
l 

D
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

S
c
h
e
m

e
 a

tt
e
m

p
t 

to
 a

v
o
id

 p
u
b
lic

 h
o

lid
a

y
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

v
a
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

H
a
rc

o
u
rt

 
H

ill
 

E
s
ta

te
 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5

 

        

It
 i
s
 n

o
t 

c
le

a
r 

w
h
o

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

m
ig

h
t 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

to
 b

e
 a

 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

b
o
d
y
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
 

       

A
t 

th
is

 s
ta

g
e
 i

n
 t

h
e
 L

D
F

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i

t 
is

 n
o
t 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 p
re

c
is

e
ly

 w
h
ic

h
 g

ro
u
p
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e

d
 

a
t 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 s

ta
g

e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

P
D

s
. 

 T
h
is

 

w
ill

 d
e
p
e
n
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 t

y
p
e
 o

f 
D

P
D

 b
e
in

g
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
. 
 

A
s
 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 

in
 

C
re

a
ti
n
g
 

L
o
c
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 
A

 
C

o
m

p
a
n
io

n
 

G
u
id

e
 

to
 

P
P

S
1
2
 

th
e
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 
In

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 

‘lo
n
g

 
lis

t’
 

o
f 

th
e
 

ty
p
e
s
 

o
f 

g
ro

u
p
s
 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
s
 t
o
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
. 

Page 124



L
D

F
 S

C
I 

S
D

 2
4

 M
ay

 0
6
 (

G
A

M
) 

0
6
 –

 i
n

 R
ep

o
rt

s 
2
0

0
6

 

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
P

a
ra

 N
o

 
O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

’s
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5

 

   P
a
ra

 5
.4

6
 

      P
a
ra

 6
.3

 

 

 T
h
e
 O

xf
o
rd

 T
im

e
s
 i

s
 r

e
a
d
 m

o
re

 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

th
a
n
 a

 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
s
s
u
e
 o

f 
th

e
 O

x
fo

rd
 M

a
il.

 

  It
 

is
 

n
o
t 

c
le

a
r 

w
h
e

n
 

s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 
w

ill
 

b
e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
, 

b
y
 

w
h
o
m

 
a
n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

s
ta

tu
s
 t

h
e
s
e
 w

ill
 h

o
ld

. 

    It
 

is
 

n
o
t 

c
le

a
r 

w
h
ic

h
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 

w
ill

 
b
e
 

n
o
ti
fi
e
d
 

o
f 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

S
h
o
u
ld

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 t

o
 n

o
ti
fy

 l
o
c
a
l 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s
, 
th

o
s
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
d
jo

in
 o

r 

o
v
e
rl
o
o
k
. 

          A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 i
n
 a

re
a
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 t

h
e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

o
f 

s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 
s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

a
tt
e
rs

 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

 

 S
e
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t

o
 M

r 
M

 G
 H

o
c
k
e
n
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

   S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 
w

ill
 

b
e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 T
h
e
y
 w

ill
 f

o
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 e

x
p
a
n
d
 o

n
 

p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 m
a
d
e
 i

n
 t

h
e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
is

 
is

 
c
le

a
rl
y
 
s
e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 
p
a
ra

 

2
.1

0
 o

f 
th

e
 S

C
I.
 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
s
 a

 m
a
tt

e
r 

o
f 

c
o
u
rs

e
 d

o
 n

o
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
 

w
it
h
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 i

t 
is

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
 

h
o
w

 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 

th
e
y
 

a
re

, 
th

e
ir
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 
a
n
d
 
lo

n
g
e
v
it
y
. 

 
T

h
e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

d
o
e
s
 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

ta
k
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

ro
m

 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 i
f 

th
e
y
 a

re
 

b
a
s
e
d
 u

p
o
n
 m

a
te

ri
a
l 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
. 

T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
 

a
ll 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 

th
a
t 

a
d
jo

in
 

a
n

 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 s

it
e
, 

b
u
t 

d
o
 n

o
t 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
a
t 

th
e
y
 c

a
n

 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 

to
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 

th
a
t 

o
v
e
rl
o
o
k
 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t

h
e
 t

e
rm

 i
s
 t

o
o
 v

a
g

u
e
 a

n
d
 i

m
p
re

c
is

e
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 d

e
g
re

e
 o

f 
o
v
e
rl
o
o
k
in

g
 i
s
 s

u
b
je

c
ti
v
e
. 

 S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 
w

ill
 

n
o

t 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ri
ly

 
b
e
 

a
re

a
 

b
a
s
e
d
. 

T
h
e
y
 

w
ill

 
in

 
m

o
s
t 

c
a
s
e
s
 

e
x
p
a
n
d
 

o
n
 

p
o
lic

e
s
 

th
a
t 

a
p
p
ly

 
a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e

 

w
h
o

le
 d

is
tr

ic
t.

 A
ll 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
g

a
rd

le
s
s
 

o
f 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

re
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 p
u
b
lic

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

F
it
z
h
a
rr

y
’s

 M
a
n
o
r 

P
a
ra

 6
.3

 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 S

C
I 

b
u
t 

s
u
g
g

e
s
t 

a
 m

in
o
r 

a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

S
e
e
 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 
in

 
re

la
ti
o
n
 
to

 
H

a
rc

o
u
rt

 
H

ill
 
E

s
ta

te
 

Page 125



L
D

F
 S

C
I 

S
D

 2
4

 M
ay

 0
6
 (

G
A

M
) 

0
6
 –

 i
n

 R
ep

o
rt

s 
2
0

0
6

 

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
P

a
ra

 N
o

 
O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

’s
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

E
s
ta

te
 R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 

to
 

e
n
s
u
re

, 
w

h
e
re

 
a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

, 
th

a
t 

th
e
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 
a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 

is
 

a
w

a
re

 
o
f 

th
e
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

F
a
ri
n
g

d
o
n
 T

o
w

n
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 
T

h
e
re

 
is

 
n
o
 

in
d

ic
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

w
h
a
t 

h
a
p
p
e
n
s
 

to
 

th
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

o
n
c
e
 

it
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
. 

   N
o
 
m

e
n
ti
o
n
 
is

 
m

a
d
e
 
o
f 

th
e
 
h
e
a
lt
h
c
h
e
c
k
 
o
r 

v
ill

a
g

e
 

e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 e

n
ti
re

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t.
 

 W
o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t
o
 s

u
g
g

e
s
t 
th

a
t 

th
e
re

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 s
e
p
a
ra

te
 

C
it
iz

e
n
s
 P

a
n
e

l 
fo

r 
e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a
s
 o

p
e
ra

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 

th
e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 
ie

 
A

b
in

g
d
o
n
 
A

re
a
, 

N
o
rt

h
 E

a
s
t 

A
re

a
, 
S

o
u
th

 E
a
s
t 

A
re

a
 a

n
d
 W

e
s
t 

A
re

a
. 

 A
 l
a
rg

e
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 F

a
ri
n
g

d
o
n
 

d
e
p
e
n
d
s
 u

p
o
n
 t

h
e
 e

x
is

te
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 F

a
ri
n
g

d
o
n
 L

o
c
a
l 

O
ff

ic
e
, 
th

e
 f

u
tu

re
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

t 
p
re

s
e
n
t 
u
n
c
e
rt

a
in

. 

 T
h
e
 
V

a
le

 
is

 
a
s
k
e
d
 
to

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 
o
f 

d
e
le

g
a
ti
n
g

 
m

in
o
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
, 

in
 

th
e
 p

re
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

, 
to

 p
a
ri
s
h
 a

n
d
 t

o
w

n
 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

. 

T
h
e
 

s
ta

g
e
s
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

o
n
 

fr
o
m

 
fo

rm
a
l 

p
u
b
lic

 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
p
e
ri
o
d
s
 
is

 c
le

a
rl
y
 
s
ta

te
d
 
in

 
th

e
 
S

C
I.
 

T
h
e
 n

e
x
t 

s
ta

g
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 S

C
I 

a
re

 s
e
t 

o
u
t 

a
t 

p
a
ra

s
 

3
.9

-3
.1

0
. 

S
ta

g
e
s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

D
P

D
s
 

a
n
d
 

S
P

D
s
 

a
re

 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

t 
p
a
ra

s
 5

.1
4
 –

 5
.5

7
. 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 n

o
 o

b
je

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 i

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 

th
e
 F

a
ri
n
g

d
o
n
 H

e
a
lt
h
 C

h
e
c
k
 i
n
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
. 

 T
h
e
 

C
it
iz

e
n
s
 

p
a
n
e
l 

d
o
e
s
 

h
a
v
e
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e

 

s
a
m

p
le

s
 f

ro
m

 e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
u
r 

a
re

a
s
. 

 I
f 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 

a
n
d
 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
th

e
 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 
c
a
n
 
b
e
 
a
n
a
ly

s
e

d
 

a
c
c
o
rd

in
g

ly
. 

  T
h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

is
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 

th
e
 T

o
w

n
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

a
n
d
 

is
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ri
n
g
 

fu
tu

re
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
. 

  T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 o

n
ly

 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 i
ts

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 

o
f 

d
e
le

g
a
ti
o
n
. 

 
T

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

d
o
e
s
 

n
o
t 

h
a
v
e
 

th
e
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 
to

 
m

a
k
e
 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
to

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 
a
d
v
ic

e
 
to

 
to

w
n

 
a
n
d
 
p
a
ri
s
h
 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

 
a
n
d
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t’
s
 
ta

rg
e
ts

. 
 
In

 
a
d
d
it
io

n
 
d
e
te

rm
in

a
ti
o
n

 

b
y
 t

o
w

n
 a

n
d
 p

a
ri
s
h
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 a
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 a

 

h
ig

h
e
r 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
ro

b
it
y
 i

s
s
u
e
s
 t

h
a
n
 i

f 
d
e
a
lt
 w

it
h
 

Page 126



L
D

F
 S

C
I 

S
D

 2
4

 M
ay

 0
6
 (

G
A

M
) 

0
6
 –

 i
n

 R
ep

o
rt

s 
2
0

0
6

 

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
P

a
ra

 N
o

 
O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

’s
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

b
y
 t

h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il.

 

D
ra

y
to

n
 P

a
ri
s
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 
C

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 S

C
I 

is
 s

o
u
n
d
. 

 

  A
ls

o
 

h
a
v
e

 
th

e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

: 
 

It
 

w
o
u
ld

 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 
b
e
 

v
e
ry

 
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
v
e
 

if
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

e
re

 t
o
 b

e
 a

p
p
lie

d
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
to

 g
u
id

e
lin

e
s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

in
 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 

     N
o
t 

e
n
o
u
g

h
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 r

o
le

 o
f 

p
a
ri
s
h
 c

o
u
n
c
il.

 

   It
 i

s
 i

m
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 c
le

a
r 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 

th
a
t 

is
 a

p
p
lie

d
 u

n
if
o
rm

ly
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 d

is
tr

ic
t.
  

W
ith

 

re
g

a
rd

 t
o
 D

P
D

s
 a

n
d
 S

P
D

s
 t

h
e
 S

C
I 

m
a
k
e
s
 i

t 
c
le

a
r 

th
a
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
c
a
n
 

b
e
 

v
a
ri
e
d
 
if
 

th
is

 a
d
d
s
 v

a
lu

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
k
e
s
 i
t 

e
a
s
ie

r 

fo
r 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
. 

  

  P
a
ri
s
h
 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 
h
a

v
e
 
a

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

ro
le

. 
 
If
 
th

e
ir
 

v
ie

w
 
is

 
c
o
n
tr

a
ry

 
to

 
th

e
 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 

a
re

 
b
a
s
e
d
 

u
p
o
n
 

m
a
te

ri
a
l 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

th
e
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

is
 

re
fe

rr
e
d
 

to
 

th
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 
T

h
e
 

P
a
ri
s
h
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 t

h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

L
e
tc

o
m

b
e
 B

ro
o
k
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 

W
o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

lo
c
a
l 

e
n

v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
in

te
re

s
t 

g
ro

u
p
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 B
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 t

o
 

b
e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
o
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 o

f 
th

e
 S

C
I.
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 n

o
 o

b
je

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l

is
t 

o
f 

g
ro

u
p
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 A

p
p
e
n
d

ix
 B

 b
e
in

g
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

o
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 

o
f 

th
e
 S

C
I.
 

P
e
rs

im
m

o
n
 H

o
m

e
s
 

        

O
v
e
ra

ll 
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

is
 
e
a
s
ily

 
u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
. 

S
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

m
o
re

 
s
u
c
c
in

c
t 

a
n
d
 

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
a
l 

s
ty

le
 

w
o
u

ld
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
s
, 
m

a
p
s
 a

n
d
 

d
ia

g
ra

m
s
 t
o
 b

re
a
k
 u

p
 t
e
x
t.

 

    

N
o
te

d
. 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
n
s
id

e
rs

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

n
e
e
d
s
 

to
 

b
e
 

th
is

 
le

n
g

th
 

if
 

it
 

is
 

to
 

c
o
n
ta

in
 

th
e
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 c

o
n
v
e

y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 h
o

w
 

it
 

is
 

to
 

in
v
o
lv

e
 

th
e
m

 
in

 
th

e
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 
 

W
h
e
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
l 
v
e
rs

io
n
 i
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 

lo
o
k
 
a
g

a
in

 
a
t 

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
th

e
 
p
o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 
o
f 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
in

g
 p

h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
s
 e

tc
. 

 

Page 127



L
D

F
 S

C
I 

S
D

 2
4

 M
ay

 0
6
 (

G
A

M
) 

0
6
 –

 i
n

 R
ep

o
rt

s 
2
0

0
6

 

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
P

a
ra

 N
o

 
O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

’s
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

        P
a
ra

 2
.9

 

         P
a
ra

 5
.1

 

       P
a
ra

 5
.2

 

     

 O
b
je

c
t 

to
 

th
e
 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

th
a
t 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 

o
n
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

m
u
s
t 

b
e
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 

w
it
h
in

 
th

e
 

s
p
e
c
if
ie

d
 

ti
m

e
. 

A
ll 

c
o

m
m

e
n
ts

 
re

c
e
iv

e
d
 

p
ri
o
r 

to
 

d
e
te

rm
in

a
ti
o
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

u
ly

 a
c
c
e
p
te

d
. 

   D
a
n
g

e
r 

th
a
t 

th
e
 

S
C

I 
c
o
u
ld

 
m

is
le

a
d
 

re
a
d
e
rs

 
in

to
 

b
e
lie

v
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 D

P
D

s
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

le
v
e
l 

w
ill

 
d
e
te

rm
in

e
 
th

e
 
a
m

o
u
n
t 

a
n
d
 
g

e
n
e
ra

l 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
 
o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 I
s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 f
o
r 

th
e
 S

C
I 

to
 e

x
p
la

in
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 

p
o
lic

ie
s
 

o
f 

th
e
 

d
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

m
u
s
t 

a
ls

o
 

b
e
 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

w
it
h
 
h
ig

h
e
r 

o
rd

e
r 

p
o
lic

ie
s
 
a
n
d
 
g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
o
n
 
D

P
D

s
 
is

 
n
o
t 

a
n
 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 
to

 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 o

r 
g

u
id

a
n
c
e
. 

 F
a
ilu

re
 
to

 
re

c
o
g

n
is

e
 
th

e
 
im

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

ro
le

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 

a
n
d
 

la
n
d
 

o
w

n
e
rs

 
w

ill
 

h
a
v
e
 

in
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
tl
y
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
. 

P
a
ra

 5
.1

 b
e
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 

la
n
d
 
o

w
n
e
rs

 
a
n
d
 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 
w

o
rk

in
g

 
to

g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 d

is
tr

ic
t’
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

 O
b
je

c
t 

to
 

th
e
 

fi
n
a
l 

s
e
n
te

n
c
e
 

o
f 

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 

5
.2

. 
It
 

s
u
g
g

e
s
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
d
e
r 

th
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

m
a
y
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 

a
p
p
ly

 i
ts

 d
is

c
re

ti
o
n
 t

o
 w

h
ic

h
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
t 

w
ill

 m
e
e
t,

 i
n
 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 
th

e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 
 

 L
a
s
t 

s
e
n
te

n
c
e
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
s
ta

te
 

“o
v
e
ra

ll 
c
o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

in
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l,
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
n
d
 

re
g

io
n
a
l 

p
o
lic

ie
s
 

a
n
d
 

T
h
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

is
 

in
 

a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

R
e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
. 

 W
h
e
re

 p
ra

c
ti
c
a
b
le

 a
n
d
 s

o
 l

o
n
g

 a
s
 i

t 

d
o
e
s
 
n
o
t 

p
re

ju
d
ic

e
 
d
e
te

rm
in

a
ti
o
n
 
o
f 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

w
it
h
in

 
th

e
 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
ts

 
ta

rg
e
ts

 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 

n
o
rm

a
lly

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 
re

c
e
iv

e
d
 

a
ft

e
r 

th
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ie

d
 t

im
e
. 

 P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 

2
.2

 
s
e
ts

 
o
u
t 

th
a
t 

a
ll 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 
m

u
s
t 

c
o
m

p
ly

 
w

it
h
 

th
e
 

R
e
g

io
n
a
l 

S
p
a
ti
a
l 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
o
u
ld

 h
a

v
e
 n

o
 o

b
je

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

e
n
te

n
c
e

 

a
ls

o
 b

e
in

g
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

th
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 s

e
n
te

n
c
e
 o

f 

p
a
ra

 2
.9

 t
o
 a

d
d
 c

la
ri
ty

. 

    A
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 i
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n

 

th
e
 l

a
s
t 

s
e
n
te

n
c
e
 o

f 
p
a
ra

 1
.4

. 
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
o
u
ld

 

h
a
v
e
 n

o
 o

b
je

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

m
e
n
d
in

g
 p

a
ra

 5
.1

 t
o
 r

e
a
d
 ‘
…

 

b
y
 

s
e
e
k
in

g
 

e
a
rl
y
 

in
v
o

lv
e
m

e
n
t 

fr
o
m

 
th

e
 

lo
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

, 
d
e

v
e
lo

p
e
rs

, 
to

w
n

 

a
n
d
 p

a
ri
s
h
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

 a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
) 

o
n
 t
h
e

 

c
o
n
te

n
t 
…

. 
‘.
 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

c
le

a
rl
y
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 

th
e

 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 
In

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

h
o
w

 
it
 
w

ill
 

m
e
e
t 
th

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

   T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

d
o
 n

o
t 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

it
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 r

e
fe

r 

Page 128



L
D

F
 S

C
I 

S
D

 2
4

 M
ay

 0
6
 (

G
A

M
) 

0
6
 –

 i
n

 R
ep

o
rt

s 
2
0

0
6

 

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
P

a
ra

 N
o

 
O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

’s
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

P
a
ra

 5
.2

 

      P
a
ra

 5
.4

 

          P
a
ra

 5
.6

 

    P
a
ra

 5
.1

1
 

        

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e

 o
th

e
r 

p
o
lic

ie
s
 o

f 
th

e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

c
o
u
n
c
il”

. 
S

C
I 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
re

c
o
g

n
is

e
 

th
a
t 

th
e
re

 
a
re

 
a
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

in
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
s
 

w
it
h
in

 
th

e
 

d
is

tr
ic

t.
 

 C
o
n
s
id

e
r 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

te
c
h
n
iq

u
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i

n
te

n
d
 t

o
 i

n
fo

rm
 a

n
d
 e

d
u
c
a
te

 t
h
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 o

n
 t

h
e
 w

id
e
r 

p
o
lic

y
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

w
it
h
in

 w
h
ic

h
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 
a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 m
u
s
t 

b
e
 p

re
p
a
re

d
. 

     T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 m

e
th

o
d
s
 b

y
 

w
h

ic
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
te

n
d
 t

o
 e

d
u
c
a
te

 a
n
d
 i

n
fo

rm
 t

h
e
 

lo
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 s

im
p
ly

 l
is

te
n
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir
 

v
ie

w
s
. 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

 t
w

o
 w

a
y
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 A
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

p
o
s
it
iv

e
 r

e
fi
n
e
m

e
n
t 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 t

o
 i

n
fo

rm
 k

e
y
 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
ir
 v

ie
w

s
 a

re
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 

s
o
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y
 m

a
y
 a

tt
e
n
d
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 o

r 
o
th

e
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 o

f 
th

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

a
ft

e
r 

th
e
 e

v
e
n
t.

 

       

to
 i
n
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

  
W

h
e
re

 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

th
e
s
e
 a

re
 e

m
b
o
d
ie

d
 i
n

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
le

g
is

la
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
/o

r 
d
e
a
lt
 w

it
h
 i
n
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
  

  T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
g

re
e
s
 

th
a
t 

a
n
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 

o
f 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 
is

s
u
e
s
 
is

 
a
n
 
im

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

p
a
rt

 
o
f 

e
n
a
b
lin

g
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 
in

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t.

 
 
T

h
e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

lo
c
a
l 

p
la

n
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 
in

c
lu

d
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d

 

e
x
p
la

n
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
e
 w

id
e
r 

p
o
lic

y
 c

o
n
te

x
t.

  
T

h
e

 

S
C

I 
re

fe
rs

 
to

 
th

e
 
w

id
e
r 

p
o
lic

y
 
c
o
n
te

x
t 

a
ll 

is
 
a

n
 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 

h
o
w

 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 g

lo
s
s
a
ry

, 
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 

to
 

w
e
b
 

s
it
e
s
 

a
n
d
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 

w
it
h

 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 c

a
n
 h

e
lp

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 w
it
h
 a

 w
id

e
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
. 

 S
e
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 p

a
ra

 5
.4

 a
b
o
v
e
 

    T
h
e
 

ti
m

e
ta

b
le

 
o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 

is
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
o
n
 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 

a
lo

n
g

 
w

it
h

 

a
g

e
n
d
a
s
 f

o
r 

th
o
s
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

s
. 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
o
u
ld

 

h
a
v
e
 
n
o
 
o
b
je

c
ti
o
n
 
to

 
p
ro

v
id

in
g

 
s
u
c
h
 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

w
h
e
re

 p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l 

in
 i

ts
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s
 a

n
d

 

o
n
 i
ts

 w
e
b
s
it
e
. 

 A
n
y
o
n
e
 

w
h
o

 
s
u
b
m

it
s
 

w
ri
tt

e
n
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 
o
n
 

a
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
ti
fi
e
d
 o

f 
th

e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 

s
p
e
a
k
 

a
t 

th
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

(p
a
ra

 6
.1

5
) 

Page 129



L
D

F
 S

C
I 

S
D

 2
4

 M
ay

 0
6
 (

G
A

M
) 

0
6
 –

 i
n

 R
ep

o
rt

s 
2
0

0
6

 

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
P

a
ra

 N
o

 
O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

’s
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

   P
a
ra

 5
.1

3
 

    P
a
ra

 5
.2

7
 

   P
a
ra

 5
.5

4
 

    P
a
ra

 5
.5

7
 

       P
a
ra

 5
.5

8
 

      

In
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
 

to
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 
fo

rm
s
 

a
n
d
 

le
tt

e
rs

, 
a
n
 

a
llo

w
a
n
c
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 f

o
r 

w
ri
tt

e
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
. 

   W
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

h
e
lp

fu
l 

w
h
e

n
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g

 
th

e
 

P
re

fe
rr

e
d
 

O
p
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
ls

o
 e

x
p

la
in

 w
h
y
 o

th
e
r 

m
a
in

 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 d
is

c
o
u
n
te

d
. 

 W
h
e
n
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 a

 d
ra

ft
 S

P
D

 

th
e
s
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

th
e
 
in

te
re

s
ts

 
o
f 

fa
ir
n
e
s
s
 
a
n
d
 
o
p
e
n
n
e
s
s
 
b
e
fo

re
 
th

e
 

S
P

D
 i
s
 f

in
a
lly

 a
d
o
p
te

d
. 

 S
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
 a

 c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 l
is

t 
o
f 

a
ll 

a
d
o
p
te

d
 a

n
d
 e

m
e
rg

in
g
 

S
P

D
’s

 s
o
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 a
re

 f
u
lly

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e
ir
 e

x
is

te
n
c
e
. 

    S
tr

e
s
s
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 

a
p
p
ra

is
a
l 

m
u
s
t 

b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

b
y
 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 

e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

th
e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

a
re

 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 

in
 

a
 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 
m

a
n
n
e
r 

a
n
d
 

th
a
t 

th
e
y
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

b
e
 u

s
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

o
r 

a
n
y
 o

th
e
r 

p
a
rt

y 

a
s
 a

 d
e
v
ic

e
 t

o
 p

re
c
lu

d
e
 o

r 
s
lo

w
 d

o
w

n
 t

h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

n
e
w

 d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t.

 

   S
h
o
u
ld

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 a
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 r

o
le

 i
n
 

 T
h
e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
c
c
e
p
ts

 
w

ri
tt

e
n
 
re

p
o
rt

s
 
a
n
d
 
h
a
s
 
n
o
 

o
b
je

c
ti
o
n
 

to
 

th
e
 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

o
f 

‘(
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

w
ri
tt

e
n
 

re
p
o
rt

s
)’
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 

s
e
n
te

n
c
e
 o

f 
p
a
ra

 

5
.1

3
 o

f 
th

e
 S

C
I.
 

 T
h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 

o
f 

b
a
c
k
g

ro
u
n
d
 i

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 

th
e
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 
D

P
D

s
 

w
ill

 
b
e
 

m
o
re

 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 

d
e
c
id

e
d
 w

h
e
n
 t

h
e
y
 a

re
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
re

 
is

 
n
o
 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 
th

e
 
re

g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

a
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

ro
u
n
d
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 S

P
D

s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r 

if
 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

fe
e
l 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 

h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 

m
a
d
e
 

to
 

a
n
 

S
P

D
 

th
e
y
 

m
a
y
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
a
s
e
s
. 

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 
5
.1

0
 
o
f 

th
e
 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

In
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

to
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

to
 

th
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 

 
T

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 n

o
 o

b
je

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 s

e
n
te

n
c
e
 

b
e
in

g
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
a
d
 ‘
T

h
is

 w
ill

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 

lis
ts

 o
f 

e
m

e
rg

in
g

 a
n
d
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

, 
c
o
p
ie

s
 

o
f 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 …
. 
‘.
 

 S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 

a
p
p
ra

is
a
l 

o
f 

L
o
c
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i

n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h

 

th
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

w
ill

 
b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

in
 

a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

ti
m

e
ta

b
le

 
s
e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

L
o
c
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

S
c
h
e
m

e
 

w
h

ic
h
 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

m
u
s
t 

a
d
h
e
re

 
to

. 
 

T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

c
a
n
n
o
t 

c
o
m

m
e
n
t 

w
it
h
 

re
g

a
rd

 t
o
 t

h
e
 i

m
p
a
c
t 

‘o
th

e
r 

p
a
rt

ie
s
’ 

m
ig

h
t 

h
a
v
e
 o

n
 

th
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

Page 130



L
D

F
 S

C
I 

S
D

 2
4

 M
ay

 0
6
 (

G
A

M
) 

0
6
 –

 i
n

 R
ep

o
rt

s 
2
0

0
6

 

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
P

a
ra

 N
o

 
O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

’s
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

   P
a
ra

 6
.1

 

     P
a
ra

 6
.3

 

         P
a
ra

 6
.1

8
 

       P
a
ra

 6
.2

0
 

   P
a
ra

 6
.2

1
 

e
x
p
la

in
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
n
g
 

th
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 

o
f 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 

h
o
w

 t
h
e
y
 w

ill
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

 B
u
lle

t 
p
o
in

t 
7
 –

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
v
e
 o

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 a
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 o

f 
ti
m

e
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 

to
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
. 

 F
u
rt

h
e
r 

b
u
lle

t 
p
o
in

t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

o
 

d
e
a
l 

w
it
h
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

th
a
t 

a
re

 
d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

u
n
d
e
r 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

D
e
le

g
a
te

d
 P

o
w

e
rs

. 
S

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

a
n
 

O
ff

ic
e
r’
s
 

D
e
le

g
a
te

d
 

re
p
o
rt

 
to

 
b
e
 

m
a
d
e
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 

   A
m

e
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 a

ls
o
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
s
p
e
c
ia

l 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

s
 

w
h
e
re

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
la

rg
e
 s

c
a
le

 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 s
it
e
s
. 

F
le

x
ib

ili
ty

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 g

iv
e
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 t

im
e
 

a
llo

w
e
d
 

fo
r 

p
u
b
lic

 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 

a
t 

s
u
c
h
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
. 

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

m
a
d
e
 

to
 

e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 m
a
y
 w

is
h
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 t

o
 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 S
h
o
u
ld

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

a
lly

. 

  S
h
o
u
ld

 
c
o
n
fi
rm

 
th

a
t 

a
ll 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 
in

 
re

s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 
w

ill
 
b
e
 

d
is

p
la

y
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 w

e
b
s
it
e
. 

   

 T
h
is

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

c
le

a
rl
y
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 

th
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

is
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

C
I 

a
n
d
 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 n

e
e
d
 

a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

s
 s

u
g
g

e
s
te

d
. 

   T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
o
u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 n
o
 o

b
je

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

d
d
in

g
 t

o
 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
b
u
lle

t 
p
o
in

t 
7
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 ‘

 a
n
d
 a

llo
w

 

2
1
 d

a
y
s
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
t.

’ 
 A

 S
c
h
e
d
u
le

 o
f 

d
e
le

g
a
te

d
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 i

s
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 i

s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

p
u
b
lic

 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 i

n
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
n
g
 

th
e
 

p
o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 
o
f 

p
ro

d
u
c
in

g
 

fu
lle

r 
re

p
o
rt

s
 

o
n
 

d
e
le

g
a
te

d
 i

te
m

s
 b

u
t 

is
 n

o
t 

in
 a

 p
o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 i

n
c
lu

d
e

 

th
is

 i
n
 t
h
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 I
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t.
 

 O
c
c
a
s
io

n
a
lly

 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 
h
a

v
e
 

a
 

S
p
e
c
ia

l 

M
e
e
ti
n
g

 
fo

r 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
a
t 

w
h

ic
h
 n

o
rm

a
l 

s
ta

n
d
in

g
 o

rd
e
rs

 a
re

 r
e
la

x
e
d
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 

lo
n
g

e
r 

s
p
e
a
k
in

g
 b

y
 a

ll 
in

te
re

s
te

d
 p

a
rt

ie
s
. 

    T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

c
a
n
 

n
o
w

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

a
lly

 
e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 
p
a
y
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 
fe

e
 

a
n
d

 

th
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 c

h
a
n
g

e
 t

h
e
 p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h
. 

 T
h
e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 
n
o
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 
to

 
a
n
d
 
h
a
s
 
m

a
d
e
 
a
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 

n
o
t 

to
 

p
ro

c
e
e
d
 

d
o
w

n
 

th
is

 
ro

u
te

. 
 

It
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
rs

, 
b
e
a
ri
n
g

 
in

 
m

in
d
 

th
e
 

IT
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
h
a
t 

it
 i

s
 m

o
re

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

a
t 

th
is

 t
im

e
 t

o
 

Page 131



L
D

F
 S

C
I 

S
D

 2
4

 M
ay

 0
6
 (

G
A

M
) 

0
6
 –

 i
n

 R
ep

o
rt

s 
2
0

0
6

 

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
P

a
ra

 N
o

 
O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

’s
 C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

       P
a
ra

 6
.2

6
 

      

  A
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 

o
u
g

h
t 

to
 

b
e
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 

w
h
ic

h
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
 

is
 

re
q

u
ir
e
d
 

fo
r 

n
o
n
-

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 

   

h
a
v
e
 

a
ll 

th
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

re
la

ti
n
g

 
to

 
th

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
 t

h
e
 w

e
b
s
it
e
. 

 T
h
e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
d
v
ic

e
 
a
n

d
 

h
a
s
 

n
o
 

o
b
je

c
ti
o
n
 

to
 

th
e
 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

o
f 

a
 

n
e
w

 

s
e
n
te

n
c
e
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
p
a
ra

 6
.2

6
 ‘

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

o
r 

n
o
t 

o
th

e
r 

fo
rm

s
 

o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

re
q

u
ir
e
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
.’
 

 

 
 

 
 

Page 132



LDF SCI SD 24 May 06 (GAM) 06 – in Reports 2006 

Appendix A 
 
Figure 3. Process for preparing a Development Plan Document 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Seek the community’s views on the 

emerging issues and options and the initial  

 Sustainability Appraisal of options. 

Documents to be published 

in preparing Development 
Plan Documents 

Evidence base 

Reg 25   Issues and Options 

Preferred options and draft 

policies 

Draft Development Plan 

Document submitted to 

Reg 28   Secretary of State 

Inspector’s Report 

Objective and Scope of Community 
Involvement 

To test soundness of baseline information 

and seek views on the issues affecting the 

local community. 

Seek the community’s views on the 

preferred option and draft policies and the 

Sustainability Appraisal of preferred option 

Reg 26 & 27    

Allow the community to submit 

representations on the draft plan for the 

Reg 29   consideration at the examination. 

PUBLIC EXAMINATION 

An independent Inspector considers 

representations on the draft DPD and tests 

its soundness taking account of the 

Sustainability Appraisal. 

Published to provide information 

Scoping Report 

Assess and refine 

options 

Final Sustainability 

Appraisal Report Adopted Plan 

Sustainability 

Appraisal 
Reports 

Preparation of 

Sustainability 
Appraisal Report 

Published to provide information 

Alternative sites published Seek the community’s views on the 

Reg 32 alternative sites 
Appraise alternative 

         sites 

Page 133



LDF SCI SD 24 May 06 (GAM) 06 – in Reports 2006 

 

 

 
Appendix B 
 
List of Groups to be added to Environmental Interest Groups in Appendix 2 of SCI 
 
Blewbury Village Society Environmental Group 
Cumnor Conservation Group 
Harwell Environment Group 
Letcombe Conservation Society 
Marcham Society 
Wantage and District Field Club 

 
 

Page 134



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL   Report No 12/06 
         Wards affected: All       
 

REPORT OF THE  DEPUTY DIRECTOR (PLANNING AND COMMUNITY STRATEGY) 
TO THE EXECUTIVE 

2 JUNE 2006 
 

Major and Minor Planning Applications Improvement Plan 
 
 
1.0 Introduction and Report Summary 
 
1.1 This report considers the implications of the Council being included on the list of Planning 

Standards Authorities for processing Major and Minor planning applications.  Historical and 
current performance for processing all planning applications are considered, and an Improvement 
Plan is proposed in relation to Major and Minor applications. 

 
1.2 The Contact Officer for this report is Mike Gilbert, Development Control Manager, telephone 

(01235) 547681. 
 
2.0 Recommendation  
 
2.1 It is recommended that the proposed Improvement Plan and trajectory, as appended to this 

report, be agreed. 
 
3.0 Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies 
 
3.1 This report is in accordance with Objective A of the Council’s Vision. 
 
4.0 Background 
 
4.1 The Government is committed to improving the planning system, including the speed at which 

local authorities process planning applications.  Performance indicators are used to monitor 
and compare the performance of all local authorities, and to drive the programme of 
continuous improvement. 

 
4.2 BVPI 109 sets out the Government’s targets for the time taken by local authorities to 

determine planning applications.  Applications are divided into the following 3 categories: 
 

Major - developments of 10 or more dwellings or 1,000 sq metres or more of 
commercial floorspace. 

 
Minor - developments of less than 10 dwellings or less than 1,000 sq metres of 

commercial floorspace. 
 
Other - changes of use, domestic extensions, advertisements, listed buildings consent 

and conservation area consent applications. 
 
4.3 The Government’s targets for the speed of determining applications are as follows: 
 
  Major applications – 60% to be determined within 13 weeks. 
  Minor applications – 65% to be determined within 8 weeks. 
  Other applications – 80% to be determined within 8 weeks. 
 
 
 Those local authorities which fall short of these targets are included on a list of Planning 

Standards Authorities published annually by the Government, which is seen as an incentive to 
improve performance.  All local authorities are expected to achieve all of the targets by March 

Agenda Item 16

Page 135



2007 and, thereafter, the targets will remain in force and performance will continue to be 
monitored by the Government. 

 
4.4 At Appendix 1 are a list and graphs showing the Council’s quarterly performance in 

determining Major, Minor and Other applications between March 2002 and December 2005.  
Performance has been extremely volatile for Major applications, which is due to the sensitivity 
of the figures arising from the relatively low number of applications involved (ie an average of 
only 36 applications per annum or 9 per quarter).  A steady decline in performance relating to 
Major applications occurred between June 2004 and June 2005, which was due to the 
departure and/or long-term sickness absence of key members of staff.  Performance for Minor 
applications has been more stable, although there was a noticeable dip between January and 
December 2004 which, again, coincided with the departure and/or long-term sickness absence 
of key members of staff.  Although the target for Minor applications was only occasionally met 
between March 2002 and June 2005, the last two quarters have seen a marked improvement, 
with the target easily being met.  The performance for Other applications generally has been 
very good, with the target being met in 12 of the last 15 quarters and easily being met in the 
last 3 quarters. 

 
4.5 In December 2005, the Government announced that the Vale has been named as a potential 

Planning Standards Authority for the 2006/07 financial year for Major and Minor planning 
applications.  This is due to the Council’s performance for processing Major and Minor 
applications during the year ending June 2005 being below the Government’s performance 
thresholds and it was considered unlikely that the thresholds would be achieved by 30 June 
2006. 

 
4.6 As a result, the Government has recommended that an Improvement Plan be drawn up and a 

trajectory of anticipated progress towards meeting the targets be prepared to ensure the 
performance targets are met by March 2007.  This report, therefore, has been prepared to 
advise Members of the proposed Improvement Plan and trajectory. 

 
5.0 Current Position 
 
5.1 The list and graphs at Appendix 1 show that there has been a marked improvement in the 

performance of processing Minor applications since June 2005.  This is largely due to the 
revised Scheme of Delegation, which came into effect in July 2005.  Whilst the current high 
level of performance for processing both Minor and Other applications needs to be 
maintained, it is clear that the greatest effort needs to concentrate on achieving a consistently 
higher level of performance for processing Major applications (i.e. BVPI 109a). 

 
5.2 The following actions have been carried out since June 2005 which will help to improve the 

performance of processing Major applications: 
 

1. The revised Scheme of Delegation was introduced in July 2005 and has resulted in 
some Major applications being decided under delegated authority, which is speedier 
than having to be considered by the Development Control Committee. 

 
2. Since July 2005 planning applications have been capable of being submitted 

electronically. 
 
3.         Since 1 December 2005 Major applications are prioritised on receipt to ensure they are 

processed more speedily. 
 
4. The Planning Support team has been reorganised.  The recent introduction of multi-

skilling means that each member of the team is responsible for carrying out all of the 
tasks relating to the registration of applications and carrying out consultations.  This is 
a significant change from the previous linear process and has the major benefit of 
removing blockages in the process (and resulting delays) arising from the temporary 
absence of a member of staff.  It needs to be noted, however, that following the 

Page 136



reorganisation and recent staff departures, the Planning Support team is not yet fully 
up to strength. 

 
5.3 Some of the necessary processes and resources, therefore, are already in place to ensure 

improved performance in the processing of both Major and Minor applications.  Nevertheless, 
it is clear that more needs to and can be done.  To help achieve this, the advice of the 
Planning Advisory Service (a Government agency with a remit to support local planning 
authorities in improving their performance) has been sought, case studies of other local 
authorities have been considered, and a questionnaire has been sent to a number of top 
quartile performing local authorities.  The resulting advice, information and ideas have been 
carefully considered, which has led to the preparation of the proposed Improvement Plan. 

 
6.0 Improvement Plan 
 
6.1 The proposed Improvement Plan for processing both Major and Minor applications is at 

Appendix 2.  A number of actions will be taken over the next few months which will help with 
the speed of processing all planning applications.  In particular, it is proposed to improve the 
current procedures for monitoring the progress of applications.  With particular reference to 
Major applications, it is proposed to set out a “process map”, which will specify who does each 
part of the process and how much time they have to do it.  This will lead to the preparation of 
an internal protocol which will include a timeframe for carrying out the various stages of 
processing the applications, a submission date agreed beforehand with the applicants, and a 
target Committee date for deciding the applications in the event they need to be considered by 
Committee. 

 
6.2 The principal risk to achieving and maintaining any improvement in performance is considered 

to be the potential loss of staff.  Performance has dipped noticeably in the past when key 
members of staff have left and the process of recruiting a replacement has taken longer than 
expected.  The Best Value Review of the Development Control Service carried out in 2001, for 
example, found a clear correlation between the number of Case Officers and performance.  As 
a result, the Improvement Plan includes an action to help ensure the maintenance of staff 
resources.  It is recommended that use is made of Planning Delivery Grant money to set up a 
fund to draw on when key members of staff leave.  The fund will enable a consultant to be 
employed temporarily, but on a full-time basis, until a permanent replacement is recruited, 
thereby helping to maintain a full complement of staff. 

 
6.3       A further consideration is the potential loss of the 2 Planning Technicians, who provide 

essential support within the 2 area teams and handle a number of the more straightforward 
planning applications.  The creation of these 2 posts has been an essential reason for the 
recent improved performance in processing planning applications, as their support within the 
teams has helped the 8 principal Case Officers to prioritise their caseload of applications.  The 
2 posts, however, are funded through the Planning Delivery Grant (PDG) on a temporary 
basis.  As the PDG is expected to end in 2008, there is uncertainty about the future funding of 
the posts which, in turn, creates uncertainty about future performance. 

 
6.4 The only other resource implications of the Improvement Plan are the proposed introduction of 

voicemail and the possible outsourcing of some Legal work relating to the preparation of 
Section 106 Obligations. 

 
6.5 A trajectory of the anticipated progress towards meeting the Government’s target for 

processing Major applications is at Appendix 3.  A trajectory for Minor applications has not 
been prepared, as the target is now being met and it is a purpose of the Improvement Plan to 
help ensure the current level of performance is maintained. 

 
 
 
 

 
Page 137



RODGER HOOD 
Deputy Director (Planning and Community Strategy) 

 
 
 

TIM SADLER 
Strategic Director 

 
   

Page 138



Appendix 1 
 

Major, Minor and Other Planning Applications Performance 
2002/03-2005/06 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 
2002/03 

 

 
Major 

 
Minor 

 
Other 

Apr-Jun 33%   (5/15) 59%   (63/106) 87%   (370/426) 

Jul-Sep 63%   (5/8) 59%   (61/104) 90%   (335/372) 

Oct-Dec 50%   (4/8) 65%   (47/72) 83%   (230/277) 

Jan-Mar 75%   (6/8) 63%   (70/111) 86%   (282/329) 

 
2003/04 

   

Apr-Jun 83%   (5/6) 57%   (55/96) 87%   (317/363) 

Jul-Sep 50%   (6/12) 68%   (68/100) 83%   (275/330) 

Oct-Dec 83%   (5/6) 61%   (42/69) 85%   (248/291) 

Jan-Mar 18%   (2/11) 50%   (66/132) 82%   (234/286) 

 
2004/05 

   

Apr-Jun 60%   (6/10) 45%   (50/111) 77%   (273/354) 

Jul-Sep 55%   (5/9) 49%   (58/119) 71%   (255/358) 

Oct-Dec 44%   (4/9) 51%   (57/111) 77%   (231/300) 

Jan-Mar 43%   (3/7) 61%   (48/79) 82%   (237/289) 

 
2005/06 

   

Apr-Jun 29%   (2/7) 59%   (55/92) 85%   (268/314) 

Jul-Sep 33%   (3/9) 70%   (66/94) 86%   (292/338) 

Oct-Dec 60%   (6/10) 75%   (80/106) 88%   (240/272) 

Page 139



M
A

J
O

R
 A

P
P

L
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 

0
%

1
0
%

2
0
%

3
0
%

4
0
%

5
0
%

6
0
%

7
0
%

8
0
%

9
0
%

J
u
n
e
 0

2
S

e
p
t 
0
2

D
e
c
 0

2
M

a
r 

0
3

J
u
n
e
 0

3
S

e
p
t 
0
3

D
e
c
 0

3
M

a
r 

0
4

J
u
n
e
 0

4
S

e
p
t 
0
4

D
e
c
 0

4
M

a
r 

0
5

J
u
n
e
 0

5
S

e
p
t 
0
5

D
e
c
 0

5

Page 140



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

 
 

M
a
jo

r 
&

 M
in

o
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 A
p

p
li

c
a
ti

o
n

s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

W
h

o
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

Im
p

li
c
a
ti

o
n

s
 

D
a
te

 A
c
h

ie
v
e
d

 

Im
p

ro
v
e
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

 1
. 

P
re

p
a
re

 V
a
lid

a
ti
o
n
 C

h
e
c
k
lis

ts
 t

o
 b

e
 s

e
n
t 
o
u
t 
w

it
h
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
rm

s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 c

le
a
rl

y
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 
fo

r 
a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 
th

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 b

e
fo

re
 a

n
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 c

a
n
 b

e
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 v

a
lid

. 
 2
. 

A
c
h
ie

v
e
 a

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 t

im
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

v
a
lid

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
b
y
 t

h
e
 C

a
s
e
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

–
 c

re
a
te

 a
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
 

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 M
a
jo

r 
A

p
p

li
c
a
ti

o
n

s
 P

ro
to

c
o

l 
 3
. 

S
e
t 

o
u
t 
a
 “

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 m

a
p
” 

fo
r 

M
a
jo

r 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
, 
s
p
e
c
if
y
in

g
 

w
h
o
 d

o
e
s
 e

a
c
h
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 w

h
o
le

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 h

o
w

 m
u
c
h
 

ti
m

e
 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 t

o
 d

o
 i
t.
 

 4
. 

S
e
t 

u
p
 a

 P
ro

to
c
o
l 
(d

e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 “

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 m

a
p
”)

 f
o
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 M

a
jo

r 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

 t
im

e
fr

a
m

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
: 

 

•
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g

e
 p

re
-a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
, 

in
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

 A
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

P
ro

to
c
o
l 
w

h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

•
 

A
g

re
e
 a

n
 i
n
fo

rm
a
l 
“c

o
n
tr

a
c
t”

 w
it
h
 a

p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 

to
 a

g
re

e
d
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 d

a
te

s
 (

in
 t

h
e
 

e
v
e
n
t 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
) 

  
M

G
 

    
M

G
/R

A
 

     
M

G
 

   
M

G
, 

M
D

 &
 G

L
 

           

  
E

n
d
 o

f 
A

p
ri
l 
‘0

6
 

    
E

n
d
 o

f 
A

u
g

u
s
t 
‘0

6
 

     
E

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 ‘
0
6
 

   
E

n
d
 o

f 
A

u
g

u
s
t 
‘0

6
 

           

  N
o
 c

o
s
t 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

2
0
 h

o
u
rs

 s
ta

ff
 t
im

e
 

  N
o
 c

o
s
t 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

6
 h

o
u
rs

 s
ta

ff
 t
im

e
 

   N
o
 c

o
s
t 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

2
0
 h

o
u
rs

 s
ta

ff
 t
im

e
 

 N
o
 c

o
s
t 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

4
0
 h

o
u
rs

 s
ta

ff
 t
im

e
 

             

  C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

                          

Page 141



A
c

ti
o

n
 

W
h

o
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

Im
p

li
c
a
ti

o
n

s
 

D
a
te

 A
c
h

ie
v
e
d

 

•
 

A
P

O
’s

 t
o
 c

h
e
c
k
 t

h
e
 v

a
lid

it
y
 o

f 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

•
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

it
e
 v

is
it
s
 t
o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

p
ro

m
p
tl
y
 

•
 

O
n
-g

o
in

g
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 t
o
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 A

P
O

 a
n
d
 D

C
M

 
to

 d
is

c
u
s
s
 a

n
y
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 o

r 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 a
ri
s
in

g
 

•
 

O
n
-g

o
in

g
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 t
o
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 l
e
g

a
l 
a
n
d
 O

C
C

 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
im

e
ly

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

f 
S

e
c
ti
o
n
 1

0
6
 O

b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
 

•
 

C
a
jo

le
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s
 t

o
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
 i
n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 f
a
s
h
io

n
 

•
 

D
is

c
u
s
s
 a

n
y
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 

•
 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 d

a
te

 i
s
 m

e
t 

•
 

W
h
e
n
 a

n
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 u

n
a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

, 
n
o
n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 P

ro
to

c
o
l 
b
y
 a

p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 m
a
y
 

w
e

ll 
le

a
d
 t

o
 a

 r
e
fu

s
a
l 
o
f 

p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
 

 Im
p

ro
v
e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

 5
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
M

a
jo

r 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 b

y
 s

e
tt

in
g

 
u
p
 a

n
d
 k

e
e
p
in

g
 u

p
-t

o
-d

a
te

 a
 t
a
b
le

 o
n
 t
h
e
 p

-d
ri
v
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
m

p
u
te

r 
n
e
tw

o
rk

. 
 6
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
M

a
jo

rs
 a

n
d
 M

in
o
rs

 b
y
 m

a
k
in

g
 

b
e
tt

e
r 

u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 U

n
if
o
rm

 c
o
m

p
u
te

r 
s
y
s
te

m
 –

 r
u
n
n
in

g
 

re
p
o
rt

s
 p

e
r 

C
a
s
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r,

 a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 t

y
p
e
, 
a
n
d
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

m
a
d
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 w

it
h
in

 a
 g

iv
e
n
 t

im
e
b
a
n
d
. 

R
e
g

u
la

r 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
b
y
 A

P
O

’s
 a

n
d
 

o
v
e
rs

e
e
n
 o

n
 a

 m
o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

 b
y
 t

h
e
 D

C
M

. 
  R

a
is

e
 A

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 

 7
. 

P
u
b
lic

is
e
 t

h
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 P

ro
to

c
o
l 
o
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b
s
it
e
, 

b
y
 

                
G

L
 &

 M
D

 
   

M
G

, 
R

A
, 
G

L
 &

 
M

D
 

         
M

G
 

 

                 
E

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 ‘
0
6
 

   
E

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 ‘
0
6
 

          
E

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 ‘
0
6
 

             N
o
 c

o
s
t 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

1
0
 h

o
u
rs

 s
ta

ff
 t
im

e
 

 N
o
 c

o
s
t 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

4
0
 h

o
u
rs

 s
ta

ff
 t
im

e
 

        N
o
 c

o
s
t 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

6
 h

o
u
rs

 s
ta

ff
 t
im

e
 

   N
o
 c

o
s
t 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

4
 h

o
u
rs

 s
ta

ff
 t
im

e
 

                                 

Page 142



A
c

ti
o

n
 

W
h

o
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

Im
p

li
c
a
ti

o
n

s
 

D
a
te

 A
c
h

ie
v
e
d

 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
t 

in
 t

h
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 n

o
te

s
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n
y
in

g
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
rm

s
, 

a
n
d
 b

y
 l
e
tt

e
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 s

e
n
t 
to

 r
e
g

u
la

r 
a
g

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s
. 

  8
. 

W
ri
te

 t
o
 O

C
C

 s
e
e
k
in

g
 t
h
e
ir
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 

th
e
ir
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 1

0
6
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 s
p
e
e
d
ily

 a
n
d
 w

it
h
in

 a
g

re
e
d
 

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s
. 

 9
. 

M
e
e
t 

w
it
h
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s
 t
o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 w

a
y
s
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
ir
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
lie

s
. 

  1
0
. 
A

m
e
n
d
 t
h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 l
e
tt
e
rs

 t
o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s
 t

o
 p

la
c
e
 g

re
a
te

r 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

p
ro

m
p
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
lie

s
. 

 1
1
. 
E

m
p
h
a
s
is

e
 t
o
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 8

 
a
n
d
 1

3
 w

e
e
k
 t

a
rg

e
ts

. 
 R

e
fe

r 
th

is
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 

D
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
, 
 a

n
d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 
 E

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 t
o
 u

s
e
 t

h
e
ir
 

p
o
w

e
r 

to
 r

e
fe

r 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 s

p
a
ri
n
g

ly
 a

n
d
, 

w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
y
 d

o
, 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
y
 n

o
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 C

a
s
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

a
s
 

e
a
rl
y
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

    O
p

ti
m

is
e
 U

s
e
 o

f 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

 1
2
. 
E

n
s
u
re

 s
ta

ff
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 s

e
tt
in

g
 u

p
 a

 
fu

n
d
 t
o
 d

ra
w

 o
n
 w

h
e
n
 k

e
y
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 l
e
a
v
e
. 
 A

 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
d
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ri
ly

 a
n
d
 f

u
ll-

ti
m

e
 u

n
ti
l 

a
 p

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

is
 r

e
c
ru

it
e
d
. 

    
M

G
 

   
M

G
 &

 R
H

 
   

M
G

 
   

M
G

/R
H

 
            

R
H

 
   

     
E

n
d
 o

f 
A

p
ri
l 
‘0

6
 

   
E

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 ‘
0
6
 

   
E

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
y
 ‘
0
6
 

   
E

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 ‘
0
6
 

            
E

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 ‘
0
6
 

  

 N
o
 c

o
s
t 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

1
0
 h

o
u
rs

 s
ta

ff
 t
im

e
 

 N
o
 c

o
s
t 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

6
 h

o
u
rs

 s
ta

ff
 t
im

e
 

 N
o
 c

o
s
t 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

6
 h

o
u
rs

 s
ta

ff
 t
im

e
 

          A
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 u
s
e
 o

f 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 
G

ra
n
t 

6
 h

o
u
rs

 s
ta

ff
 t
im

e
 

 £
1
0
k
 –

 t
o
 b

e
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 

fr
o
m

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 G
ra

n
t 

2
 h

o
u
rs

 s
ta

ff
 t
im

e
 

 O
u
ts

o
u
rc

in
g

 o
f 

a
n
y
 

L
e
g

a
l 
w

o
rk

 w
o
u
ld

 
h
a
v
e
 c

o
s
t 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

     C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

                           

Page 143



A
c

ti
o

n
 

W
h

o
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

Im
p

li
c
a
ti

o
n

s
 

D
a
te

 A
c
h

ie
v
e
d

 

 1
3
. 
S

e
e
k
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl
y
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
V

o
ic

e
m

a
il 

a
s
 a

 m
e
a
n
s
 o

f 
fr

e
e
in

g
 u

p
 C

a
s
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

ti
m

e
. 

    1
4
. 
M

e
e
t 

w
it
h
 L

e
g

a
l 
to

 a
g

re
e
 w

a
y
s
 o

f 
s
p
e
e
d
in

g
 u

p
 t
h
e
 

p
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
S

e
c
ti
o
n
 1

0
6
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

. 
P

o
s
s
ib

le
 

o
u
ts

o
u
rc

in
g
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 L

e
g
a
l 
w

o
rk

, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
te

m
p
la

te
s
 a

n
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 c
la

u
s
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
. 

  1
5
. 
C

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
a
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 c

a
s
e
lo

a
d
s
 a

n
d
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

o
f 

th
e
 A

P
O

’s
 a

n
d
 P

ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 (
i.
e
. 
th

e
 

M
a
jo

r 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 C

a
s
e
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

).
 

 1
6
. 
R

e
c
ru

it
 s

ta
ff

 t
o
 t

h
e
 1

.5
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 p
o
s
ts

. 
   

 
R

H
 

     
M

G
 &

 R
H

 
     

M
G

 
   

M
G

/R
A

 
   

  
E

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 ‘
0
6
 

     
E

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 ‘
0
6
 

     
E

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 ‘
0
6
 

   
E

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
y
 ‘
0
6
 

2
0
 h

o
u
rs

 s
ta

ff
 t
im

e
 

 N
o
 c

o
s
t 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

1
5
 h

o
u
rs

 s
ta

ff
 t
im

e
 

 N
o
 c

o
s
t 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

4
0
 h

o
u
rs

 s
ta

ff
 t
im

e
 

  C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

               C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 

Page 144



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

T
ra

je
c

to
ry

 f
o

r 
M

a
jo

r 
A

p
p

li
c

a
ti

o
n

s

1
0
%

2
0
%

3
0
%

4
0
%

5
0
%

6
0
%

7
0
%

8
0
%

M
a
r 

0
6

J
u
n
e
 0

6
S

e
p
t 
0
6

D
e
c
 0

6
M

a
r 

0
7

J
u
n
e
 0

7
S

e
p
t 
0
7

Page 145



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\4\6\AI00003643\CCTVreorganisation2Jun06timeditedversion10.doc  

22 May 2006 

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL     Report No. 13/06 
Wards Affected - ALL 

 
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY) 

TO THE EXECUTIVE 
2 June 2006 

 
CCTV Re-Organisation 

 
 
1.0 Introduction and Report Summary 
 
1.1 The Executive will be aware that the 2006/7 budget contained two commitments to make 

savings within CCTV, these are; 
 

• The merging of the current out-of-hours Duty Officer system with CCTV; 

• The deletion of the post of CCTV Manager. 
 
1.2 This report recommends decisions necessary to achieve these commitments. 
 
1.3 The contact officer for this report is Paul Staines, Assistant Director (Housing and Community 

Safety) tel. 01235-547621. 
 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 That the Executive agree to the proposals to merge the Duty Officer system with CCTV and 

delegate to the Assistant Director ( Housing and Community Safety) the task of introducing 
this by September 2006. 

 
2.2 The Executive recommend to PRAC the deletion of the post of CCTV Manager from the   

current staff structure and the creation of the post of CCTV Supervisor with effect from 
30/06/2006. 

 
3.0 Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies 
 
3.1 This report relates to the Council’s Vision and strands A, B and E in particular. 
 
3.2 The report relates to the Vale’s Community Safety Strategy. 
 
3.3 The report complies with Council policy in terms of staff reorganisation and implementation of 

budget decisions. 
 
4.0  Background and Supporting Information 
 
4.1 The 2006/7 budget demonstrated the Council’s commitment to maintaining an effective CCTV 

service. 
 
4.2 In total the Council approved circa £60,000 of additional monies to fund the essential running 

costs of CCTV, costs which grow both as a result of the increased number of cameras which 
now operating in the District and because of the increasing complexity of the CCTV 
infrastructure. 

 
4.3 Alongside this however, the budget also made two commitments to achieve savings through 

more efficient management and operation of the CCTV unit. These savings commitments 
were: 

 

• A merging of the Council’s Duty Officer system with the CCTV unit; 

Agenda Item 17

Page 146



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\4\6\AI00003643\CCTVreorganisation2Jun06timeditedversion10.doc  

22 May 2006 

• The restructure of the CCTV establishment and the deletion of the post of CCTV 
Manager. 

 
4.4 This report sets out a methodology for achieving these savings as detailed below. 
 
5.0 Merging of the Duty Officer system with CCTV 
 
5.1 Members will be aware that the Council currently operates a duty officer system between the 

hours of 5 pm to 8.45am, Monday to Friday and from 5pm each Friday until 8.45 the following 
Monday each week  to deal with out-of-hours emergencies. The rota comprises 5 volunteer 
officers and the total cost to the Council is circa £17,000 per annum. 

 
5.2 Officers believe that it makes operational as well as financial sense for this system to be 

merged with the CCTV operator duty rota since this already provides 24 hours a day, 7 days a 
week cover for the CCTV operators. These officers, who number 6 FTE at full staffing levels 
can be provided with the necessary facilities to ensure that emergency calls are logged and 
dealt with appropriately and these operational efficiencies will realise a saving for the Council 
since the current Duty Officer system would no longer need to be resourced. 

 
5.3 All staff affected by the proposal have been given an early draft of this report and  it is 

intended that all will be provided with a final copy of the report and asked to comment if they 
so wish before the Executive consider the report so that those comments can be tabled at the 
meeting. In addition a copy of the report has been provided to Unison and an agenda item 
placed on the Joint Consultative Committee (JCC) that meets before the Executive  

 
5.4 Those staff that have taken the opportunity to comment on the early draft of the report have 

voiced concerns , these can be summarised as follows. 
 
5.5 Current Duty Officer staff are unhappy that they are being required to give up the work and 

remuneration attached to it and have expressed concerns that the quality of the Duty Officer 
service will suffer as a result of CCTV staff being required to carry this task out in addition to 
their current duties. 
 

5.6     The response of managers to this concern is: 
 
i   The current staff complement of CCTV operators is one that the managers and supervisor 

of the CCTV unit consider to be sufficient to operate the CCTV unit at the required levels. 
At present there are 2 vacancies within the unit and it is accepted that a full complement 
of staff needs to be in place before the Duty Officer system can be amalgamated. 
Recruitment is under way and will be complete before the Duty Officer system is merged 
with CCTV.  

 
5.7  CCTV staff have made the following comments: 
 

i. The first area of concern is the current staff levels within the CCTV unit. Staff believe that 
they will not be able to take on the Duty Officer system at current staffing levels. The 
conclusion of the staff is that it will not be possible to take on the duty officer system until 
the staffing levels are at full capacity. 

 
ii. The second area of concern is that of work load and in particular where there is a conflict 

between the roles of CCTV Operator and Duty Officer. The staff are employed as CCTV 
operators feel they are under increasing pressure by the Police and South Oxfordshire 
District Council to produce results from the CCTV system, and that the Duty Officer role 
could detract from this. 

 
iii. The staff question whether the Duty Officer work is of a more senior nature than their 

current duties and whether they should be remunerated for it. 
 

Page 147



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\4\6\AI00003643\CCTVreorganisation2Jun06timeditedversion10.doc  

22 May 2006 

5.8     The response of managers to these points is as follows: 
 

i . This is dealt with in paragraph 5.5 (i); 
 

ii. The Deputy Director charged with the management of the Duty Officer system has carried 
out a detailed analysis of the call out and work rate for Duty Officers. Managers have 
examined this and are content that it is sufficiently slight for CCTV operators to be able to 
carry on their current work whilst at the same time dealing with Duty Officer call outs as 
they arise. Managers are content that with appropriate training and systems in place that 
the Duty Officer system will be maintained at its current high standard; 

 
iii Managers are content to revise current job descriptions for CCTV operators and examine 

whether additional seniority is gained although it is not their view that this additional work 
should materially affect the current job grades. 

  
6.0 Project Outline 
 
6.1 If the Executive are minded to approve this project, it will be necessary to delivery the following 

key milestones: 
 

• Provide appropriate training for all CCTV staff on the Duty Officer system; 

• Put in place appropriate telephone and IT systems in the CCTV control suite. 
 
6.2 Officers believe this can be achieved by September 2006, thus achieving the savings 

commitment ear-marked in the budget for the first year of this project. 
 
7.0 Restructure of CCTV 
 
7.1 The Executive will be aware that in 2005 the Executive considered the issue of staffing 

difficulties within CCTV. 
 
7.2 As a result of these considerations the Executive agreed to fund a full time supervisor post 

within CCTV to carry out shift and man management of the CCTV operators together with 
other related staff issues. 

 
7.3 This post was agreed on a temporary basis for 6 months, after which a review of its 

effectiveness would take place. Since that date there have been other issues that have caused 
this temporary arrangement to be extended. However it is now appropriate to review these 
arrangements and to make the appropriate alterations to the establishment. 

 
7.4 Managers have been very pleased with the creation of the supervisor post. As a result the 

CCTV unit has been more closely managed and staff absenteeism and sickness has 
decreased considerably. 

 
7.5 Key partner agencies, these being Thames Valley Police and South Oxfordshire District 

Council have reported increased satisfaction with the service being provided by the CCTV unit. 
 
7.6 Equally importantly the staff have advised managers in a formal survey that they believe that 

the appointment of a CCTV supervisor has provided them with higher quality line management 
and supervision and have voiced their support for the post being made part of the CCTV staff 
establishment. Accordingly the Council has approved the creation of this full time post in the 
budget. 

 
7.7 The creation of the post however leads the Council to reflect on the need for the post of CCTV 

Manager, currently a 0.6 FTE post within the CCTV structure. The Executive may be aware 
that the post of CCTV Manager has fallen vacant following the resignation of the last post-
holder. 

Page 148



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\4\6\AI00003643\CCTVreorganisation2Jun06timeditedversion10.doc  

22 May 2006 

 
7.8 This post was created at a time when CCTV was being implemented and the post was created 

to carry out a dual function of both managing staff and providing the necessary technical and 
developmental support for CCTV. 

 
7.9 Latterly CCTV has entered a period of consolidation, expansion has decreased and is 

expected to decrease further and the relevance of the role of CCTV Manager with its heavy 
emphasis on technical development has waned. 

 
7.10 In the budget for 2006/7 the Council has agreed increased resources for the implementation of 

maintenance contracts for the entire CCTV system which should mean that operators are able 
to call upon specialist technical experts to effect maintenance and repairs as when the need 
arises. The implementation of this maintenance regime further erodes the necessity of the 
CCTV Manager. 

 
7.11 For these reasons officers are recommending to the Executive that they recommend to PRAC 

the following: 
 

• The post of CCTV Manager be deleted from the establishment of the Authority; 

• That the permanent post of CCTV Supervisor be added to the establishment of the 
Authority at its current grade and that officers be charged with moving as quickly 
possible to filling this post. 

 
7.12 If members are minded to recommend this to PRAC, officers consider that the new 

establishment can be put in place by the end of September 2006. This will ensure that the 
saving identified in the budget is achieved. 

 
8.0 Risk Assessment 
 
8.1 The risks associated with not carrying out the recommendations in the report are as follows: 
 
8.2     In respect of the proposal to merge the duty officer and CCTV units, should this 

recommendation not be accepted then the Council will have a shortfall in its budget of £11,000 
2006/7 (FTE £17,000) that it will need to fund from additional savings elsewhere in the 
Council. 

 
8.3 In respect of the proposed restructure there is a risk that the progress made in effectively 

managing CCTV will be halted. This could lead to an increase in dissatisfaction with the 
service from our key partners and a decrease in staff morale. There would also be a shortfall 
in the Council’s budget of £9,000 (FYE). 

 
 

PAUL STAINES 
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY) 

 

Page 149



     Page Page Page Page 1111 of  of  of  of 2222    

 

Press Release 

 
 
Author: Nikki Malin 

Tel: 01235 540376  

Email: nikki.malin@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

18 May 2006 
 

Council Leaders Go Public on Possibility 
of a Single Council for Southern 
Oxfordshire 
 

 

 
The Leaders of South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils today 
announced that they had agreed to work together to explore the possibility of 
creating a single unitary council covering the whole of southern Oxfordshire.   
 
The area has a combined population of nearly 250,000, easily bigger than a 
number of existing high performing unitary authorities. The largest centres of 
population within each existing district, Abingdon and Didcot, sit on the boundary 
of the two districts and are only five miles apart. 
 
The two Council Leaders, Jerry Patterson of the Vale of White Horse and Ann 
Ducker of South Oxfordshire District Council, have decided to make their plans 
public in the run up to the expected publication of a Government White Paper in 
the summer that will address the reorganisation of local government. The 
Government has indicated that it wants proposals to come from local councils, 
rather than be imposed from above. A unitary southern Oxfordshire council would 
mean local control over services such as education, social services, libraries and 
highways as well as current district council services. 
 
What makes this proposal particularly interesting is that it crosses the political 
divide. South Oxfordshire is currently Conservative controlled, while Vale of White 
Horse is run by the Liberal Democrats. The two councils, however, already have a 
strong track record of working together and recently put in place a combined 
finance, revenues and benefits team under a single Head of Finance who will 
work for both councils. The Leaders of the main opposition parties have given 
their endorsement to examining the possibility of creating a single unitary authority 
for southern Oxfordshire. 
 
South Oxfordshire Leader, Ann Ducker said: “I am very pleased to make this joint 
announcement with Jerry. Up to now the debate about unitary councils has 
tended to focus on urban areas like Oxford. We feel that there are strong 
efficiency and effectiveness arguments for unitary rural councils too and we must 
make sure that the Government does not neglect this in the forthcoming debate. 
With a population of 250,000, significantly larger than any of the six unitary 
councils in Berkshire that have been running now for nearly a decade, we think 
that a unitary council for southern Oxfordshire makes sense and will offer 

Agenda Item 19

Page 150



 

 

     Page Page Page Page 2222 of  of  of  of 2222    

 

residents better services than the current two-tier arrangements.  I am keen that 
we start work to explore what is possible without delay.” 
 
Vale of White Horse Leader Jerry Patterson said: “I have no doubt that a single 
unitary Council for the market towns and villages of southern Oxfordshire is the 
right way forward. It will provide real community leadership with real 
accountability. People who live and work in the area would have one local Council 
with which to plan and deliver improved prosperity and quality of life.” 
 
The two Leaders are also calling on the six local authorities in Oxfordshire to work 
together on looking at the different options for local government in the county. 
Oxford City and Oxfordshire County Councils have already put forward their 
ideas. Cllr Patterson added: “I see little point in the six councils working separately 
on this. We must listen to the residents of Oxfordshire and come up with 
proposals that are in their best interests. I think that the best way of achieving this 
would be to work collectively and share knowledge and ideas.” 
 

Ends 
 
Note to editors 
 
The contact details for the Leaders and Opposition leaders for both Councils are: 
 
Vale of White Horse District Council 
 
Leader, Councillor Jerry Patterson 01235 540391 or 01865 730588 (home) 
 
Opposition leader, Councillor Melinda Tilley, 01235 540366 or 01865 820385 
(home) 
 
South Oxfordshire District Council 
 
Leader, Councillor Ann Ducker 01491 823130 
 
Opposition leader, Councillor David Turner 01865 891169 

 

Page 151



Agenda Item 23

Page 152

By virtue of paragraph(s) 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 155

By virtue of paragraph(s) 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 157

By virtue of paragraph(s) 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


